
City of Lemon Grove

r" p
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda

t
Tuesday, April 19, 2016, 6: 00 p. m. 
Lemon Grove Community Center

3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, 

and Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to Order

Flag Ceremony — Cub Scout Pack

Pledge of Allegiance — Flag Ceremony presented by Cub Scout Pack 108

Changes to the Agenda

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled on
the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, the item
will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless removed

from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled will be considered
at the end of the agenda.) 

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes
April 5, 2016 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: Jim P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this

agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title
only

D, Financial Audit Services Agreement

The City Council will consider a resolution extended the agreement with Badawi & 
Associates to audit the City' s financial records fiscal years ending 2016 and 2017. 

Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

Amendment to the Agreement for Tree Maintenance Services

The City Council will consider a resolution amending the existing agreement with West
Coast Arborists, Incorporated to provide tree maintenance services. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



F. Agreement for Claims Management Services

The City Council will consider a resolution adopting an agreement with George Hills
Company to provide general liability claims management services. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

G. Code Enforcement Hearing Officers Recruitment

The City Council will consider appointment of three candidates to the Code Enforcement

Hearing Officer Appeals Panel. 

Reference: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer and

David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Appoint Code Enforcement Hearing Officers

H. Professional Services Agreement Addenda with CityPlace Planning

The City Council will consider second addenda to the contract with CityPlace Planning to
further assist the City in the review, preparation, and completion of the General Plan
Update and the PEIR and related public hearings and outreach. The addendum for

26, 920 will allow for assistance through the adoption of the General Plan. The total

contract will now be for $ 56, 590. 

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

Professional Services Agreement with Dudek for the Preparation of a Program
Environmental Impact Report for the General Plan Update

The City Council will consider a resolution awarding a contract with Dudek for an
amount not to exceed $ 142, 290 for the preparation of program environmental impact

reports for General Plan updates, with a project budget includes a contingency amount
of $5, 500, 

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

2, Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150- 0003, Tentative Map TMO- 
000- 0062, General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003, and Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004
Authorizing a 25 -Lot Subdivision and Construction of 22 Dwelling Units on 2. 064 Acres at the
Southwest Corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas

The City Council will consider Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a subdivision 22
residential lots, one private street lot, and two common area lots located on the southwest

corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas and certifying Mitigated Negative
Declaration ND16- 02. 

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing; adopt a resolution approving General Plan
Amendment GPA -150- 0003 and certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16- 02; 
introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 440 approving Zoning Amendment
ZA1- 500- 0004); adopt a resolution approving Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062; and adopt

a resolution approving Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0003. 



3. Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0002, and Tentative Map
TMO- 000- 0061 to Authorize a 14 -lot Subdivision with 12 Dwelling Units on a 1. 59 -Acre Parcel
at 6800 Mallard Street. 

The City Council will consider a proposed project located at 6800 Mallard Street on a 1. 59 acre
vacant lot. The project is a request for a Tentative Subdivision Map and a Planned
Development Permit to authorize a 14 -lot subdivision on a 1. 59 acre parcel, including 12
residential lots, one private street lot and one common area lot, and a Planned Development

Permit with a total of 12 single- family dwelling units ( four restricted to moderate -income
households), common open space, pedestrian paths, all -ages play equipment, lighting, 
landscaping, and other improvements. 

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct the public hearing, and approve the Resolution for TMO- 
000- 0061 certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND -16- 03
and Resolution for PDP -150- 0002

4. Public Hearing to Consider an Appeal AA1- 600- 0001 of the Development Services Director
Determination Regarding the Denial of a Home Occupation Permit Application for General
Gunsmithing

The City Council will consider will conduct a public hearing and either adopt a Resolution
upholding the determination to deny or adopt a Resolution reversing the decision of the
Development Services Director conditionally approving the home occupation permit for general
gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Court. 

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct public hearing and adopt resolution

5, Authorization to Recruit Three Members of the Community Advisory Commission pursuant to
Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 2. 08

The City Council will consider a resolution to establish the recruitment and appointment
process for the Community Advisory Commission (" CAC'). 

Reference: James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
GC 53232. 3 ( d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings

attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non - Action Items) 

Adjournment

uu noving., liaau' rir.ea aaoif h P,Ilna: fir cric alma wii)ii Disaag'"a9IWes r" M.d (ADA), Vie Gii, y of N d, uuuoon Glove wVIM ppmvurVespea, A amorinI-nodafloir s fur peiisour.s who rer oil
a., soauta ur. a;, gai access, nagaeold aTaMnd/ oi' p: nrairticiillmite III onna:; r, flil] JJa Of O) C, Gii y r:; QuriI.ldlIf you require such asci bunco, please conntad the G'Ay Cioiifr efl ( 6' 1
825 ' ia"igl0 r„au` a orin aH sgair, IIlleI' oiaaunq, ro)/rr roma ( J OV N7YiioI k" u, luan u. ir"e"hIIG g ar, fiiH age In da p, aaa. lka: 9 is sav a[ I able foir Ipu l') II c Ievin an sah Cityd IL_ fi.; allll



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

April 5, 2016

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency

Call to Order

Members present: Mayor Mary Sessom, Mayor Pro Tem George Gastil, Councilmember Jerry Jones, 
Councilmember Jennifer Mendoza, and Councilmember Racquel Vasquez. 

Members absent. None. 

City Staff present: Lydia Romero, City Manager, David DeVries, Development Services Director; 
Daryn Drum, Division Fire Chief; Miranda Evans, Assistant Planner; Mike James, Public Works

Director; Lt. May, Sheriff' s Department; Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director; Laureen Ryan Ojeda, 
Administrative Analyst; and Michael Wapner, City Attorney. 

Changes to the Agenda

Mayor Sessom noted that Consent Calendar item 1. 1- 1 Code Enforcement Hearing Officers
Recruitment will be removed from this agenda and placed on the April 19, 2016, City Council
agenda. 

Public Comment

John L. Wood commented on a vehicle accident on Central Avenue, the Trolley crossing gate at
Broadway and Lemon Grove Avenue, and a vehicle parked on Massachusetts. 

Melanie Lucero commented on the current Joint Use Agreement between the City of Lemon
Grove and the Lemon Grove School District and asked if the City would consider expanding the
agreement to the other schools in the City. 

Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
March 8, 2016 Special Meeting
March 15, 2016 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. Memorandum of Understanding for the Completion of Phase 1 Activities

Associated with Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 for the Investigation

of Sediment Quality in the Mouth of Chollas Creek
E. Chollas Creek Diazinon, Metals, Bacteria TMDL Cost Share Agreement ( FY

2015- 16) 

F. Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for Volunteers

G. Acceptance of the Palm and Golden Avenue Improvement Project

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Vazquez, to
approve the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez



Resolution No. 2016- 3396: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Approving a
Memorandum of Understanding for the Completion of Phase 1 Activities Associated with
Investigative Order R9- 2015- 0058 Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the
Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California

Resolution No. 2016- 3397: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Authorizing
Participation in the Chollas Creek Hydrologic Unit 908. 22 Implementation Monitoring for Chollas
Creek Diazinon and Dissolved Metals Total Maximum Daily Loads ( Investigation Order No. R9- 
2004- 0277 And Addendum No. 1) and Chollas Creek Monitoring for Total Maximum Daily Loads
For Indicator Bacteria, Project I - Twenty Beaches and Creeks in the San Diego Region
Including Tecolote Creek) ( Resolution No. R9- 2010- 0001) 

Resolution No. 2016- 3398: ' Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Lemon Grove, 
California Ratifying Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for City Approved Volunteers

Resolution No. 2016 — 3399: Resolution of the Lemon Grove City Council Accepting the Palm
and Golden Avenue Improvement Project ( Contract No. 2016- 06) as Complete

2. New Business

A. Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Mid -Year Budgets

Gilbert Rojas explained that on June 2, 2015, the City Council adopted a City- wide Consolidated
Operating & Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2015- 16. Since the budget was adopted, the

revenues and expenditures for FY 2014- 15 have been finalized and audited. In addition, staff

has monitored the revenue projections for the first seven months of the Fiscal Year. Staff

recommends that the City Council consider midyear modifications to the FY 2015- 16 Budget. 

Mr. Rojas recommended that the General Fund revenues be increased in total by $ 75, 000. This
entails an increase in the Vehicle License Fee ($ 61, 000), Franchise Fees ($ 30, 000), Building
Permits ($ 150, 000) and a decrease in Sales Tax ($ 200, 000). Mr. Rojas noted a change in

Transient Occupancy Tax that was reported in the staff report from $ 34, 000 to $ 14, 000. All

proposed changes are a result of the activity within the first seven months of the Fiscal Year. 

Staff is also recommending the reinstatement of an Associate Planner/ Senior Planner position
in the Development Services department. The recent promotion of the Principal Planner to the

Development Services Director has created the need to back fill the Director' s former position. 

This position will fill and be funded by the vacant Principle Planner position. The qualifications

of the applicant pool will determine the final classification of this position. The maximum annual

cost to the City will be $ 93, 240. The General Fund has been and will continue to fund 50% of

this cost. 

An increase of $ 45, 000 to the City Attorney budget due to the unanticipated costs of dealing
with code enforcement issues related to marijuana shops. 

Due to a recent loss at the public works yard, staff recommends an additional $ 2, 500 in capital

outlay to replace a flat screen television used for staff training, 12 tablets and tablet cases. This
amount is below the City' s insurance deductible to cover the loss. 

Staff is recommending that the Transfer In for administrative costs from the Gas Tax Fund be
eliminated this fiscal year due to the declining revenue in the Gas Tax Fund. We project that

transferring these funds would cause the Gas Tax Fund to be in a deficit Fund Balance. 

The General Reserve Fund Appropriations ( Expenditures) should be increased in total by
579, 446. This would include the $ 558, 946 reimbursement to San Diego County RPTTF
Redevelopment Fund) which was an agreement with the State Department of Finance that the

City Council approved in December, 2015. 

2



Mr. Rojas also recommended an increase to the Vacation Payoff ($ 8, 000) amount due to the

larger then expected turnover rate for the first six months of the Fiscal Year. The City budgeted
30, 000 for an animal control vehicle, however, the bids came in significantly higher then

expected. Staff is requesting an additional $ 30, 000. There was $ 17, 500 set aside for the City
Manager recruitment but, the cost of the recruitment was paid for from the professional services
account within the General Fund. So this amount can be eliminated from the budget. 

Revenue from the taxing of gasoline sales is down due to the low price of gasoline. Staff is

recommending lowering revenue estimates in total by $ 103, 250. The elimination of the

administrative cost from the General Fund will result in the Gas Tax Fund balance being
projected at $ 18, 990. 

Public Speaker( s) 

There were no requests from the public to speak. 

Action: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Gastil, seconded by Councilmember Jones, to adopt
the resolution with amendment to the transient occupancy tax passed, by the following
vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2016- 3400: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Approving the City of Lemon Grove Mid -Year Budget for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 and
Authorizing Expenditures Thereto

B. Construction Management Services for the Lemon Grove Realignment Project

Mike James stated that in support of the city' s five year capital improvement program ( CIP), the
city invited firms to respond to a request for proposals ( RFP) as the construction manager for
the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project ( Contract No. 2016 — 14). The RFP was

publically advertised on February 25, 2016. The city held a mandatory pre- bid meeting on
March 8, 2016, in which five firms attended. On March 17, 2016, the city received one response

to the RFP from Infrastructure Engineering Corporation ( IEC). 

Staff thoroughly reviewed IEC' s proposal, cost estimate, and conducted reference checks and
recommends that an agreement is awarded to IEC for an amount not to exceed $ 384, 766. The

project budget includes a contingency amount of $35, 000 in addition to the proposed amount of
349, 766. He noted that $ 384, 766 is budgeted from Fund 64- 7130 — CIP Lemon Grove

Realignment during the Fiscal Year 2015- 16 through Fiscal Year 2016- 17 years. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to
adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2016- 3401: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Awarding an Agreement to Provide Construction Management Services for the
Lemon Grove Realignment Project to Infrastructure Engineering Corporation

I



3. Public Hearings

A. Public Hearing to Consider Ordinance No. 439 — Zoning Amendment ZA1- 
600- 0001 Amending the Beekeeping Regulations ( Chapter 18. 16 of the
Municipal Code) 

Miranda Evens reported that during public comment at a City Council meeting in early 2015, 
several citizens spoke about existing beekeeping activity and their positions regarding that
activity. There was a current code enforcement case at the time that has since been closed. A

property owner with bee hives asked that the City Council consider allowing the beehives
utilizing the current provisions and the neighboring property owner asked that the hives be
removed because she has small children. After that discussion, the City Council directed staff
to prepare an agenda item that would allow them to discuss potential guidelines for beekeeping
activities in the City. 

At the April 21, 2015 City Council meeting, staff presented an item to City Council that
discussed the City' s existing beekeeping regulations, regional beekeeping programs, and

current trends for the City Council' s consideration. Staff noted that there had been

approximately six requests in the past decade for beekeeping activities and less than that in
code enforcement activities. The records show that there are currently no beekeeping permits
issued in the City ( a requirement under the City' s beekeeping regulations) and no open code
enforcement cases related to beekeeping. At the hearing, a total of two citizens spoke in favor
of beekeeping, and two residents expressed concerns for beekeeping in their neighborhood. 
The City Council directed staff to return with a draft beekeeping ordinance. 

Ms. Evans stated that staff analyzed beekeeping regulations throughout the County of San
Diego. Out of the nineteen local jurisdictions, there are six agencies ( including Lemon Grove) 
that currently include standards for beekeeping activities. 

Staff considered more stringent separation requirements for sensitive sites such as public and
private schools, parks, playgrounds, picnic areas, outdoor sports facilities, daycare centers, 
residential care facilities, medical facilities, kennels, and horse -boarding facilities. Staff

determined that further restrictions could be considered as a part of the minor use permit
process and applying such restrictions could restrict future land uses ( e. g., a park couldn' t open

because it' s next to an apiary) and restrict sensitive sites from operating an apiary ( e. g., a

school wants to include beekeeping as a part of a community garden or a medical facility is
researching medicine associated with bees). The minor use permit would allow sensitive sites to

express their concerns as a part of the appeal process and the application could be denied or

amended based on the facts that the apiary is not compatible with the neighborhood due to its
proximity to sensitive sites and could be detrimental to the public health and welfare. 

Public Speaker( s) 

There were no requests from the public to speak. 

After the City Council discussion, the public hearing was continued to May 17, 2016. 

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. ( GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

Councilmember Jones attended an Independent Rate Oversight Committee, SANDAG
Transportation Committee meetings and sat in for the Mayor' s regular SANDAG meetings. 

In



Councilmember Mendoza attended the new Lions Club meeting, Eyes Across California Event, 
participated in a blood pressure test with the Fire Department, Assemblywoman Weber' s Salute

to Women Leaders, the Community Egg Hunt, Interfaith Clergy Walk, the Lemon Grove
Historical Society' s film event, the Grand Opening of the Diego Hills Charter School, and the
Urban League Walk- a- Thon. 

Councilmember Vasquez attended City/ County Reinvestment Task Force and Heartland
Communications Facility Authority meetings. 

Mayor Pro Tem Gastil attended Assemblywoman Weber' s Salute to Women Leaders, Grand

Opening of the Diego Hills Charter School, and an East County Economic Development Council
meeting, MTS meeting, and presented a proclamation to the Michael Monsoor VFW Post 2082

Mayor Sessom attended an Airport Authority meeting. 

City Manager and Department Director Reports

David De Vries expressed appreciation for the opportunity to serve as the City' s Development
Services Director. 

Lt. May reported that Deputy Ortiz, of the Lemon Grove substation, was honored with
Outstanding DUI Officer Award" at the recent MADD Awards Ceremony and Luncheon. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency the meeting was adjourned at 7: 05 p. m. 

Bare ijay e -f

Susan Garcia, City Clerk



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary
Approved as Submitted: 

Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director ACH/ AP Checks 02/ 26/ 16- 04/ 06/ 16 1, 424, 160. 67

For Council Meeting: 04/ 19H16
Payroll - 3/ 29/ 16 113, 543. 14

Total Demands 1, 537, 70181

Ords No Vendor No Vendor Narne Check 1Dat.e Vendor Naime Check Amount

CPECK

HFC K NO I PNO I C IL NO VI-N0ORWOE 1.) A1., 4bc, 4c ic"'Hoo WOKI ANiOUN

ACHI 2/ 25/ 16 Pitney Bosses Global Firwandal See-Oces LLC 02/ 2..6/ 2016 Postage Usage 2/ 25/ 1[. 6 25000 2.50 00

ACH Mar][ 6 lPeirs Health 03/ 02/ 2016 Peers Health Insueance Mar' 16 53, 701. 49 53, 7011 49

ACH Feb 16 Dharnsa Mevchant Services 03/ 02/ 2016 Merchaireiree- 3 Feb' 16 263. 08 26. 3. 08

ACH Feb16 Power Pay 11W 03/ 02/ 2016 Ovilivie CiredA Cai J Pimcessing Feb' 16 54. 76 54. 76

ACH FQb16 Blueffin Payr-rientSysteinnis 0. 3102. 12. 016 Merchant Staternent Fee - FeW1. 6 9. 95 9. 95

ACH Vlair' I 1. 6 FrnpIoyireneint Development Departinent 03/ 03/ 201. 6 Se. M.e Taxes 3/ 1/ 16 7, 734, 93 7, 73433

ACH Feb1.6 Aufthisfize. Net 03/ 03/ 201. 6 Merchant ree-> lei Store& Oiri Feb' 16 41- 50 411, 50

ACH 3/ 3/ 1. 6 Pitney Bcwves Global Financial Senfices LILC 03/ 04/ 201.6 Postige Usage 3/ 3/ 16 250 00 250, 00

ACH Jan' 16 Cdonial Life 03/ 04/ 2016 Optionall lnsuirairice lan' 16 793,' 71.3 793. 78

ACH Feb]. 6 C01011W [ Jife 03/ 04/ 2016 olption. fl linsuirance FPWIG 793. 78 793. 78

ACI 11 298236696 US Bank Equipment Finance 03/ 07/ 2. 01. 6 Defibirdlitor Lease Contract Payment 3/ 1. 1/ 1. 6 11, 663. 30 1, 663. 30

ACH Mar][.6 Aflac 03/ 07/ 2016 Aflaclinsurance NAai' 16 743. 86 743. 86x

ACH Mar][. 16 US rereasury 03/ 08/ 20. 16 Feclenall iaxes. 3/ 1/ 16 31, 263. 04 3, 11, 263 04

ACH 41.54920380 SIDG& F 03/ 08/ 20][ 6 11. 1ecteric Usage: St Light 1/ 31/ 16- 2/ 29/ 1. 6 2, 774, 26 2, 774. 2.6

ACH 3568860625 SIDG& E 03/ 08/ 2016 06.-rtiric Usage: St Light1/ 31./ 1. 6- 2./ 29/ 1. 6 1, 245. 91 1, 245. 91

ACH 3/ 8/ 1. 6 Pftney Bowes Glubal Finandal Services LIC 03/ 09/ 2016 Posiage Usage 3/ 8/ 16 250. 00 250. 00

ACH 1` 617 Mairl CallpersSupplevriferital Incorne457 Man 03/ 10/ 20- 16 457 Plain 2/ 17/ 116. 3/ 1/ 16 4, 01' 3445 4, 034. 45

ACH Febl.6 WeHi Fargo Bank 03/ 11/ 2016 Bank Service Charge . Feb' 16 84553 845, 53

ACH Mae -15 16 Emlpdoyvnenk Development Departieneirift 03/ 17/ 201. 6 State Faxes 3/ 115/ 16 6, 781 97 6, 781 97

ACH 3/ 1. 6/ 16 Pitney Bowes Globall IfiinaancialJ Senhces LLC 03/ i 8/ 201.6 Postage Usage 3/ 1. 6/ 16 25000 25000

ACH 3/ 17/ 1. 6 Pitinr,y Bowes Global Rrianf: W Se-vOcei LLC 03/ 21/ 2016 Posiage Usage 3/ 1. 7/ 116 250, 00 25000

ACH Mai 2 Mar15 CaIpeirs Supl: Aevnentall IIIncoirrle. 45./ Plan 03/ 21/ 2016 457 Han 3( 2!/ 16-:.3( 7. 5( 1. 6 4, 482, 04 4, 48204

ACH F616 Home 3epot Credk SevOces 03/ 21/ 2016 lonnelDepotCharges Feb' 16 1, 644 70 1, 644. 70

ACH evlaif- 15 Is US ifeasury 03/ 22/ 2076 Federall Taxes 3/ 15/ 16 26, 441 04 28, 441. 04

ACH Mall 17 16 Southern CA Rrefighteirs Benefier Vi uM 03/ 23/ 2006 LG fivefighters Benefit Frust 3/ 3/' 16, 3/ 17/ 16 1, 707. 5.5 1, 707 55

ACH FeW. ei& wl Calfifornia Pubfic 11. 1 impi Refireveient System 03/ 24/ 2016 Pers Retiiieniene. 2/ 3/ 16- 3/ 1/ 16 59, 543 63 59, 543. 63

ACH 3/ 24/ 16 Pitney, Bowes Global I inaincial Services II. L. 0 03/ 2. 5/ 2016 Postage Usage 3/ 24/ 16 25000 25000

ACH 44378749 WEX VVi ight Express ( Heat : Seances 03/ 28/ 2016 Fuel Fire f) qA- Feb' 16 43197 433 97

ACH 3/ 29/ 16 PuViteyl, mNo, GllolbalViinai" cialSevvucesll. V.. 0 03/ 30/ 2016 Posi.age Usage 3/ 29/ 1. O 250= 25000

ACH Mar29 16 Employment Devellopirrient Departmene 03/ 3 1/ 2.0 Ur Stabe Taxes 3/ 29/ 16 5, 722. 95 5, 722 95

ACH Mav29 16 UF TreasfuV 03/ 31/ 2016 Federall iaxes 3/ 29/ 16 26, 10(103 26, 100 03

ACI I Feb 1. 6 Safi Diega County Sheiriff' s ) elpartirhent 03/ 3X/ 2016 Law [ niforcerne- W. Services larf' 16 413, 942 55 823, 50007

LavvEnfaicevnein Services Feb' 16 409, 557 52



ACH Mar16 Colonial Life 04/ 01/ 2016 Optional Insurance - Mar' 16 1, 19067 1, 190. 67

ACH Mar16 Dhavara Merchwit Services 04/ 04/ 2016 Merchant Fees - Mar' 16 374. 130 37/V86

ACH MaPIG Power Pay Bic 04/ 04/ 2016 Ontne Credit Card Processing Mar' 16 226 58 226, 58

ACH Mar16 Auffioro. e, Net 04/ 04/ 2016 Merdwnt Fees In Stoup & Online Mar' 16 53 14 53 14

ACH Mar16 Bluefin Payment Systems 04/ 04/ 2016 Merchant Staternent Fee Mar' 16 9 95 995

ACI' I AprIG Aflac 04/ 04/ 2016 Affac insurance - Apr' 16 74386 743. 86

ACH May16 Aflac 04/ 04/ 2016 Aflac Insurance May' 16 743, 86 743. 86

ACH Apr16 Pers HealOh 04/ 04/ 2016 Pars Hpalth Insurance Apr' 16 55, 39090 55, 39090

5464 Nov Feb16 Affaro Jr, Florentine 03/ 23/ 2016 Cell Phone Reimbursement- Nov IS Feb 16 60 00 60. 00

5465 1896448 American Fence Company Inc.. 03/ 23/ 2016 Ift th @ Olive Pence Rental 2/ 7/ 16 3/ 16/ 16 105 00 105. 00)

5466 ViarI7 16 California State Disbursernent Unit 03/ 23/ 2016 Wage Withholding Pay Period Ending 3/ 15/ 16 26700 267. 00

5467 67891 Carrion,. louge 03/ 23/ 2016 8x10 Siltsoxx Setup Compait Socks LG Realignment 496. 21 496. 21

5468 3/ 7/ 26 Cox Cornonurucation5 03/ 23/ 2016 Calservirs Modem Line: 2259 Washington . 3/ 6/ 16 4/ 5/ 16 2: 1... 1. 11 3, 18652

3/ 7/ 16 Calsense Modern Line: 7071 Mt Vernon- 3/ 6/ 16- 4/ 5/ 16 i9 99

2/ 28/ 16 Internet/ Cornmunity 0r 3/ l/ 16- 3/ 29/ 16 75. 00

3/ 8/ 16 E3/. t Phone/ Fire / 7853 Central 3/' 7/ 1. 6- 4g6/ 16 31....: 5

2/ 28/ 16 Peg Circuit Svc 3/ 1/ 16- 3/ 29/ 16 2, 941 1. 5

3/ 5/ 16 Phan e/ Ree Ctr/ 3131 School Ln - 314/ 16- 4/ 3/ 16 97. 73

5469 Durnas CVVEA 03/ 23/ 2016 CWEA Mernbership Renewal - Duryws 164. 00 16400

5470 0311162305 Domestic Linen California Inc.. 03/ 23/ 2016 Shop Towels & Safety lMats 3/ 11/ 16 9075 90. 75

5471 Maid 16 Ek_ larnes 03/ 23/ 2016 EMT Recertification Fee- Ek 54. 00 5400

5472 3/ 07- 1..0/: 16 Esgil Corporation 03/ 23/ 2016 75% Building Fees- 3/ 7/ 16- 3/ 10/ 16 4, 673, 35 7, 5: 1. 5. 66

3/ 1.4-: 1.' 7/ 7. 6 75% Building Fees 3/ 14/ 16- 3/ 17/ 16 2, 842 31

5473 Mav2 16 Gamester, Sean 03/ 23/ 2016 Uniform Reimbursement- Gamester 3/ 2/ 16 Q. 3 7 3237

5474 0025025- IN Ifinderlitor De Llamas & Associates 03/ 23/ 2016 Sales Tax Audit Services . Qtr 3 2015 2, 82664 2, 826. 61

5475 00035413 Hudson Safe T Lite Rentals 03/ 23/ 2016 Post Cap/ % Nvench 34 72 3472

5476 952" 1" 506- 00 Hydro- Scape Products, Inc 03/ 23/ 2016 Paint/ Weed Killer 40940 1, 36695

9528873 00 LGA Median & Parks Supplies 95755

5477 28180 KTU § A Planning i Landscape ArcufneCtUne 03/ 23/ 2016 Prof Serv: Main St Promenade PhaseZ Ian: 1 31, 2016 1, 0'72..50 10, 457 10

28247 Prof Serv: Main St Promenade Phase2 Febl 29, 2016 9, 384 60

5478 886333-15 LandCare 03/ 23/ 201. 6 Landscape Maintenance Feb16 9, 47900 9, 479 00

5479 Feb16 Lounsberry Ferguson Altona & Peak LLP 03/ 23/ 2016 General 0116. 3- 0000. 2. Feb' 16 6, 719, 4' 5 15, 4.S 3 / 19

Febl.6 Code Enforcement01.: 1. 63- 00003 - Feb' 16 6, 114129

Febl. 6 DOF 01163- 0001' 7 Feb' 16 95. 00

Feb16 Affordable Housing 01. 1. 63- 0007. 9 Feb' 1. 6 9500

Feb16 Cost Share Agveement00023 Feb'. 16 1, 24500

Feb 16 7309 Broadway 00024 - Feb' 16 57'8 70

FaI. 16 7973 North Avenue 00025 - Feb' 16 57 05

5480 IN1007572 Municipal Emergency Services Inc 03/ 23/ 2016 Uniform Allowance Drurn 3/ 3/ 16 267 1. 4 2614

548.1. 11153 NASSCO, hic 03/ 23/ 20: 16 14ASSCO Mernbership Dues 295, 00 29500

5482 21.60049 IVES 03/ 23/ 2016 Sanitation Rate Study.. '" Iru Felb29, 2016 4, 084 02 4, 084 02

5483 197027 Ninyo & Moore 03/ 23/ 2016 Golden Ave Row Homes Inspection thru Feb26' 16 1, 499 50 8, 489 50

197028 Mal:erials Testing Svc SIRTS Palm & Golden ihru Feb26' 16 6„ 9907.( 70

ACH Marl 16 Employment Developrnemr Department H/ 03/ 2016 State Taxes 3/ 1/ 16 7734. 93 7,. 1'34 93

ACH Feb16 Authorize Net 03/ 03/ 2016 Merchant Fees In Store & Online - Feb' 16 41..'.50 4150

ACH 3/ 3/ 16 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 03/ 04/ 2016 Postage Usage 3/ 3/ 16 250 00 25000

ACH 1an16 COonial Life. 03/ 04/ 2016 Opkional insurance - Jan' 16 793. 78 79178

ACH Feb16 Colonial Life 03/ 04/ 2016 Optional Insurance - Feb' 16 793 78 793 79

ACI -1 298236696 US Bank Equipment Finance 03/ 07/ 2016 Defibrillator Lease Contract Payment 3/ 11/ 16 1, 66330 1, 66330



5499 Mar16 Standard Imurance Company 03/ 23/ 2016 Long Term Disability insurance - Mar' 16 1, 624. 79 1, 624 79

5490 97924 Tristar Risk Management 03/ 23/ 2016 Losses Paid- 2/ 1/ 16- 2/ 29/ 16 3, 00782 3, 007. 82

5491 MaV15 16 Vantage Point Transfer Agents -457 03/ 23/ 2016 ICMA Deferred Compensation Pay Period Ending 3/ 1, 3/ 15 1, 16154 1, 161. 54

5492 9761514925 Verizon Wireless 03/ 23/ 2016 Models Cardiac Monitors - 2/ 4/ 1..6- 3/ 3/ 1. 6 2839 28, 18

5493 71066282 Vulcan Materials 03/ 23/ 2016 Asphalt 131134 268, 29

71066283 Asphalt 134 14

5494 032316 American General Life Insurance Company 03/ 23/ 2016 Life Insurance - I.. Romero 141 is 141. 18

5495 00.597 A- Pol: Rentals 03/ 30/ 20: 16 Portable Restroorn Rental. 3/ 9/ 16- 4/ 8/ 16 132 20 132 20

5496 1902718 American Fence Corripany Inc.. 03/ 30/ 2016 North & Olive Fence Rental 3/ 17/ 16- 04/ 16/ 16 10500 105..00

5497 AZI13G Aztec Fence Co 11 Inc. 03/ 30/ 2016 Fence Repair. Barry Street Park 47500 475. 00

5498 1263 Badawl & Associates 03/ 30/ 2016 HIS Audit Final Billing 1, 604. 00 1, 60400

5499 680354- 9 BJ' s Rentals 03/ 30/ 2016 Compactor Plate Rental 31680 61541

681324- 9 propane 25. 60

681746- 9 Compactor Plate Rental 10755

682.605...9 Compactor Plate Rental 13926

692882. 9 Propane 26. 20

5500 82098783 Boundtree Medical LLC 03/ 30/ 2016 Medical Supplies 1, 141 3G 1, 14136

5501 13618 City of El Cajon 03/ 30/ 2016 HFIA Quarterly Billing FY15/ 16- ft QTR 2, 93200 2, 932. 00

5502 19435 City of P.. a Mesa 03/ 30/ 2016 OVeffin' re Reimbursement I.. opez/ Mast/ Pvovericp-/ SL, gerit 3, 645. 81 3, 645. 83

5503 1000141152 City of Sort Diego 03/ 30/ 2016 FY16 Regional 3C' s Network Connections and Support 3, 00000 3, 000. 00

5504 3099 D Max Engineering Inc. 03/ 30/ 2016 Northside Commons Stormwater Plan Review- thru 3/ 1. 0/ 16 270. 00 27000

5505 79382 Day Wireless Systems Inc. 03/ 30/ 2016 E310 Engine Radio Repair 220. 00 22000

5506 0325162305 Domestic Linen California Inc.. 03/ 30/ 2016 Shop Towels & Safety Mats 3/ 25/ 16 90. 75 90. 75

5507 5 348 40307 Federal K. xpvess 03/ 30/ 2016 . Shipping ( lia rges Flee Dept. 1269 12, 69

5508 7205709 Globalstar USA, Inc 03/ 30/ 2016 Satelite Services 2/ 16/ 16- 03/ 15/ 16 95. 98 9598

5509 00035474 Hudson Safe - T- Lite Rentals 03/ 30/ 2016 12 Point Wrench 43. 40 4340

5510 7637126 Kirnley. Horn and Associates Inc. 03/ 30/ 2016 Lemon Grove Safe Routes Project Through 3/ 31/ 16 9, 86700 9, 86700

5511 l.GPavvn Lernon Grove Pawnbroker 03/ 30/ 2016 Refund/ Lernon Grove Pawnbroker/ License 13000 130. 00

5512 197029 Ninyo & Moore 03/ 30/ 2016 Project Inspector Svc thru Feb 26, 2016- SRTS Palm& Golden 8, 563 25 13, 61.935

197232 Materials' Testing Svc SRTS Palrri& Golden Aso thru Mar22 j, 849 50

197330 Project Inspector Svc 0ru Mar 23, 2016. SR FS PMm& Golden 3, 20700

5513 WO -26925- 1 Office Advantage, Inc. 03/ 30/ 2016 C:) Tice Supplies 128. 67 128. 67

5514 Overton Overton, Dawn 03/ 30/ 2016 Consultant Services . Goal Setting 6, 262. 50 6, 262 50

5515 160357 Pacific HVAC Service 03/ 30/ 2016 AC Repair Sheriffs 3/ 23/ 16 19250 i92 50

5516 1. 2. 1. 340 Pacific Sweeping 03/ 30/ 2016 Street Sweeping/ Parking Lot. Feb16 6, 051 28 6, 0511.. 28

5511 Um 3/ 25/ 16 Ratkovich, Michael 03/ 30/ 2016 Uniform Allowance- Ratl( ovich 3/ 25/ 16 32014 320 114

5518 Ross Ross, Thornas/ Kirn 03/ 30/ 2016 Refund/ Ross, Thornsis/ Kint/ License Refund 124. 00 124. 00

5.519 3/ 28/ 16 Russell, Corinne 03/ 30/ 2016 Reirrilb: Mileage- Russell Mar22 23, 2016 11880 118 80

5520 SCIDefined S C I Defined Benefit Pension Plan 03/ 30/ 2016 Refund/ SCI Defined Benefit Pension Plan/ TPM Review 949. 73 949 13

5` x21. 0274446 SCS Envineers 03/ 30/ 2016 Monitoring Well Installation & Sampling Main St Prop- Feb' 16 3, 28000 3, 2&969.. 00

5522 3/ 24/ 16 SDG& E 03/ 30/ 2016 3225 Clive 2/ 2. 2./ 16- 3/ 21/ 16 8020 22763

3/ 24/ 16 3500 1/ 2 Main- 2/ 22/ 16- 3/ 21/ 16 147 43

5523 FSA 2015 Sessorn, Mary 03/ 30/ 2016 FSA 2015- Sessom 49400 494. 00

5524 772112 Superior Ready Mix Concrete I.. f' 01/ 20/ 2016 Recycled Class 11 261. 76 261J6

5525 Tauai Tauai, Mane/(: sera 03/ 30/ 2016 Refuncv/ Tauai, Marie/ Esera/ License Refund 7075 7075



5526 9762047740 Verizon Wireless 03/ 30/ 2016 City Phone Charges- 2/ 13/ 16- 03/ 12/ 16 391, 14 868 55

9762047741 PW Tablets/ Phone Charges - Sanitation - 2/]. 3/ 16- 3/ 12/ 16 211. 34

9762048393 Mobile Broadband Access 2/. 13/ 16- 03/ 12/ 16 7602

9762447592 MDC Engine Tablets- 2/ 21/ 16- 3/ 20/ 16 19005

5527 71072411 Vulcan Materials 03/ 30/ 2016 Asphalt 134 14 562. 17

71072412 Asphalt 13046

71073868 Asphalt 130 46

71076279 Asphalt 1. 67.. 1. 1. 

5528 75852881 Waxie Sanitary Supply 03/ 30/ 2016 Cleaning Supplies 1,: 380. 33 1, 38038

5529 10729 AAA Imaging 04/ 06/ 2016 Maps 110100 1. 1. 0. 4149

5530 15011 AAir Purification Systems 04/ 06/ 2016 Installation ol' Vehicle Exhaust Removal System 19, 41,659 19, 416. 59

5! 531. 3/ 22/ 16 AT& T 04/ 06/ 2016 AT& I High Speed Internet Max Plus 2/ 23/ 16- 3/ 22/ 16 130 00 130. 00

5532 4467594 Bearcorn 04/ 06/ 2016 Portable Radios IvonthlyContract 3/ 22/ 16- 4/ 21/ 16 15000 15000

5533 684202- 9 BJ' s Rentals 04 20.16 Propane 7. 5. 7. 0 52. 39

684547 9 Propane 27..29

5534 Apr16 California Dental Network Inc 04/ 06/ 2016 California Dental Insurance - Apr' 16 309. 98 30% 98

5535 15881664 Canon Financial Services Inc. 04/ 06/ 2016 Canon Copier Contract Charge 4/ 1/ 16 642, 60 642. 60

5536 88 City Place Planning, Inc, 04/ 06/ 2016 CL. G General Plan Project Feb' 16 5, 79000 5, 79000

5537 2.797 Clark Telecom & Electric Inc. 04/ 06/ 2016 Street Light Maintenance- lan16 13733 7, 215, 06

2798 Street Light Repairs- Jan16 270, 85

2799 Street Lighting Dig Alert Mark Outs - Jan7. 6 98, 84

2800 Traffic Signal Mainterrance- Jan16 1, 170, 00

2801 Traffic Signal Repairs- Jan16 1, 158 22

2802 Traffic Signal Dig Alert Mark Outs- Jan16 15644

2803 Street Light Maintenance Feb16 137 33

2804 Street Light Repairs Feb16 2, 244A2

2805 Traffic Signal Maintenance Feb16 1, 17000

28DS Traffic Signal Repairs Feb16 671, 63

5538 3/ 20/ 16 Cox Communications 04/ 06/ 2016 Phone/ PWYard/ 28735kyline 3/ 19/ 164/ 18/ 16 21192 211, 92

5539 Draw# 5 Crest Equipment Inc 04/ 06/ 2016 Safe Routes to School Palm/ Golden 3/ 1/ 16- 3/ 31/ 16 DravvJ15 37, 761 07 37, 76107

5540 13001 Custom Auto Wrap Inc, 04/ 06/ 2016 Day Camp Banners 40500 405, 00

5541 3/ 31/ 16 Drurn, Daryn 04/ 06/ 2016 Farrah: kitchen Towels/ Cups/ Vehicle Towels 1. 22. 80 122, 80

5542 Uni- 3/ 30/ 16 Duenez, Nicholas 04/ 06/ 2016 Uniform Allowance- Duenez 3/ 30/ 16 293. 27 293. 27

5543 2/ 29- 3/ 3/ 1. 6 Esgil Corporation 04/ 06/ 2016 75% Building Fees 2/ 29/ 16- 3/ 3/ 16 9, 198. 59 15, 332 63

3/' 21.. 2.4/ 16 75% Building Fees- 3/ 21/ 16- 3/ 24/ 16 2, 26742

3/ 2&¢...::91/ 1. 6 75% Building Fees 3/ 29/ 16- 3/ 31/ 16 3, 86662

5544 AR007689 Grossmont Union High School District 04/ 06/ 2016 Spring Camp/ Egg Hunt Flyers 1, 650. 00 1, 6 io. 0o

5545 103 Janazz, LLC UP 04/ 06/ 2016 Computer Maintenance Mar16 60900 60900

5546 201611. Lernon Grove Car Wash 04/ 06/ 2016 Full Service Car Wash 3/ 1/ 16 16 00 1600

5547 Uni- 3/ 29/ 16 Medina, I ravis 04/ 06/ 2016 Uniform Allowance- Medina 3/ 29/ 1. 6 3942 39. 42

5548 IN1013175 Municipal Emergency Services Inc 04/ 06/ 2016 Shipping Combustible Sensor 8 64 8. 64

5549 102776 Penske Ford 04/ 06/ 2016 LGPW07, Oil & Filter Change 42 66 4266

5550 7029747- MR16 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LLC 04/ 06/ 2016 Postage Meter Rental Adj - 12/ 30/ 15- 3/. 30/ 16 13. 37 1. 3,;: 37

5551 Am16 PLIC 5BD Grand Island 04/ 06/ 2016 Dental Insurance Apr' 16 4, 595 96 4, 59596

5552 7210 RapidScale Inc 04/ 06/ 2016 Virtual Hosting- Mir16 2, 04807 2, 0413. 07

5553 7230 Spring Valley Lawn Mower Shop 04/ 06/ 2016 Weed Whip Line 9, 67 9 67

5554 Apr16 Standard Insurance Company 04/ 06/ 2016 Long Term Disability Apr' 16 1, 624 79 1, 624. 79

555,15 SynergyEast Synergy East 04/ 06/ 2016 Refund/ Synergy Cast/ Overpaid Business License Fees 6300 63. 00

5556 2010 Bond LIS Bank Corporate T rusT Services 04/ 06/ 2016 CDA 2010 Tax Allocation Refunding Bond Reserve Fund x, 483. 07 5, 483. 0U7

5557 71067701 Vulcan Materials 04/ 06/ 2016 Asphalt 1. 32119 654. 26



71079266 Asphalt 300. 67

71082907 Asphalt 128. 74

71086835 Asphalt 97...66

5558 0163860 Zurnar Industries, Inc. 04/ 06/ 2016 Street Narne Signs 1, 796, 66 3„ 196 66

5559 2870 D- Max Engineering Inc. 04/ 06/ 2016 Valencia Construction Inspections - 4/ 1/ 15- 5/ 31/ 1:; 2, 86730 33, 981U6

2871 100 Celsius - WQI- R 1st Review 1, 116. 70

2937Reissue FY14/ 15 Industrial Commercial Program - Compliance Inspections 6, 491. 13

2952 Shirley Lane WQTR 3rd Review 1, 301. 70

3018 Lemon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 1st Review 992. 50

3023 Shirley Lane WQTR Review Meeting 54358

3056 Mallard Court WQrR 2nd Review 931. 70

3068 Lemon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 2nd Review 1, 248. 75

3069 LG Lefts- SWMP 3rd Review 1, 43920

3070 2065 690t Street - SWAMP fist Review 1, 541. 25

3098 Lernon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 3rd Review 1, 225. 45

3099 Northside Commons- Erosion Control Plan Review 27000

3106 Lemon Grove Vista Azul- SWMP 4th Review 720. 00

3108 Mallard Court SWAMP 4th Review 870= 

3114 Promenade Extension Conceptual Design Review QUO

3115 BMP Design Manual Update 10/ 1/ 15- 2/ 29/ 16 11, 710.00

1, 424, 160. 67 1, 424, 160. 67



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1_. D

Mtg. Date I' ll.mm
April 19, 2016

Dept. Finance

Item Title: Financial Audit Services Agreement

Staff Contact: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving an amendment to agreement for financial audit
services with Badawi & Associates. 

Item Summary: 

In 2013 the City Council authorized a Request for Proposal ( RFP) for financial audit services which
resulted in Badawi & Associates being awarded a three year agreement to audit the City financial
records. The agreement also provided options to extend the agreement for fiscal years ending
2016 and 2017. The staff is aware that Badawi & Associates experience in auditing the City is very
valuable and useful to the City. Therefore, is recommending extending the agreement for the
Fiscal Year 2016 audit. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The Fiscal Year 2015- 16 cost for the audit will be $ 23, 000— this is an increase from last years

audit cost of $ 16, 040. In addition, Badawi & Associates also prepares and submits the State

Controllers Report and the Street Report. This cost will decrease from $ 2, 613 to $ 2, 000. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution ( with Agreement for Professional Services) 



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date

mmmApril
19, 2016

Item Title: Financial Audit Services Agreement

Staff Contact: Gilbert Rojas, Interim Finance Director

Discussion: 

The advantages of extending the services of Badawi & Associates include the following: 

Badawi & Associates has 3 years of knowledge and experience in the City' s finances; 
Badawi & Associates has reasonable fees; 

Badawi & Associates received 100 percent positive feedback from cities contacted by
staff; 

The partner, Mr. Ahmed Badawi, and staff at Badawi & Associates have extensive

experience in auditing local government entities. Their staff has a thorough

understanding of California laws and PERS. In addition, the partner is a member of

various governmental committees, has actively participated in the development of
accounting and audit guidelines for the governmental sector, and is an instructor for the
California Society of Municipal Finance Officers. 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider the reappointment of Badawi & Associates. 

Staff has prepared a resolution ( Attachment B) authorizing the execution of an amendment to
the agreement between the City and Badawi & Associates. 

Included with the resolution is the City' s Amendment to the Agreement for Professional Services
for a one year term. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution ( Attachment B) awarding the
contract to Badawi & Associates. 

I



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE AND BADAWI & 

ASSOCIATES TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, the City Council authorized the release of a Request
for Proposals for Audit Services; and

WHEREAS, after evaluating the firms qualified based on RFP criteria, the City Council
selected Badawi & Associates to provide financial audit services; and

WHEREAS, the original agreement approved in 2013 provided for an agreement

extension of auditing services beyond the original three years; and

WHEREAS, an amendment for financial auditing services has been prepared to extend
audit services for Fiscal Year 2015- 16. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves the Amendment for Professional Services ( Exhibit 1) with Badawi & 

Associates to provide financial audit services; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager to execute said agreement. 

M



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL FINANCIAL AUDITING

SERVICES

This amendment is entered into the _ day of April, 2016, by and between the City of Lemon
Grove (" CITY") and Badawi & Associates (" AUDITOR"); 

The following sections are changed to read as follows: 

Section 5. TOTAL COST AND PAYMENT. 

The total cost for all work and deliverables ( including the optional reports) specified in

Attachment A is not to exceed Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($ 25, 000) for the Fiscal Year

ending June 30, 2016. AUDITOR will submit to CITY detailed invoices, describing work
performed and the associated costs. CITY will pay AUDITOR for undisputed invoiced amounts
within thirty ( 30) days of receiving an invoice. 

Section 6. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. 

This agreement is effective as of the date noted above in Section 1. The agreement will

terminate when all work is complete for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

Section 18. NOTICES. 

All communication to a particular party is deemed made when received by that party at the
following name and address: 

Gilbert Rojas

Finance Director

City of Lemon Grove

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Ahmed Badawi

Partner

Badawi & Associates

180 Grand Avenue, Suite 955

Oakland, CA 94612

Written communication is conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five ( 5) 
days after it is deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Lydia Romero, City Manager

Date

BADAWI & ASSOCIATES

Ahmed Badawi, Partner

Date



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1 aE

Mtg. Date, r

Dept. Public Works

Item Title: Tree Maintenance Services Agreement Amendment

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving an agreement amendment ( Attachment B — 
Exhibit 1) with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for tree maintenance services in the City of Lemon
Grove. 

Item Summary: 

On November 4, 2014, the City Council approved an agreement with West Coast Arborists, Inc. 
WCA) for tree maintenance services in the City of Lemon Grove. The intent of the agreement was

to establish a professional services tree maintenance cycle that is appropriate for the size and type

of urban forest that exists in the City of Lemon Grove. Since working with WCA, staff has been
very satisfied with the response times, quality of work, and professional quality of services that has
been received. In December 2015, staff was approached by WCA to discuss a new prevailing
wage determination that was issued by the Department of Industrial Relations ( DIR). On August

22, 2015, a new rate was established that is higher than the Landscape Maintenance Laborer

classification and therefore will increase the rates that are reflected in the city' s tree maintenance
agreement. At this time, WCAs proposes a 31 percent cost increase to account for the DTRs

determination. The requested increase exceeds the consumer price index that is authorized per

the existing agreement and therefore requires City Council approval. Staff has met with WCA

multiple times to discuss the impacts of the DIRs decision and has concluded that the amendment

is necessary to continue to provide tree maintenance services throughout the City. 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving an

agreement amendment ( Attachment B — Exhibit 1) with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for tree

maintenance services in the City of Lemon Grove, 

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact at this time. However, in light of the recent increase in unit costs, staff

anticipates a funding adjustment as part of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget process. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Ell Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

1- 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING A TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT WITH WEST
COAST ARBORISTS, INC. FOR TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES IN THE CITY OF LEMON

GROVE

WHEREAS, in 2014, the City established an agreement with West Coast Arborists, Inc. 
WCA) to provide tree maintenance services throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2015, the Department of Industrial Relations ( DIR) increase

the minimum hourly wage rates of employment classifications that provide services to the City; 
and

WHEREAS, in December 2015, WCA requested a 31 percent increase to its unit prices

to adhere to the new DIR requirements; and

WHEREAS, staff believes that WCA continues to provide a special and unique services

package of special tree maintenance equipment, ISA certified staff, and maintains a

professional training standard that continues to manage all tree maintenance service requests in
the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves an agreement amendment ( Exhibit 1) with West Coast Arborists, Inc. for

tree maintenance services in the City of Lemon Grove; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all contractual
documents. 

N



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

City of Lemon Grove
Urban Forestry Management

WCA, Inc. Prices for FY 2016- 2017

e, :- ,,, .... 

1 Oww f" luning i11V f' rdk6 e lipa" 66. • 4 H; r) 

6 Pruning lby "3rmrvtllre i%erl
0, 0, d0. arn r

60. 00 18. 60

601 00 1111. 35

fk1- l'21W"' 115, 00 150. 65

2rk. 10"' 185,00 242. 35

111,31 ° 260..00 32750

r"p vr1 P ' W" 1 7"Mr, 00 Y„ f.50

i" nown f'$'S lov, cldI ilu, i wa 0rl' ladnn II XF9a9111Ned1Mll lRo
11.#,^ 20100 26 20

7_ 12' 20.00 2620

13- 18" S 660. 001 65. 50

19- 24" 6 50. 00 65. 50

26- 30, 50. 00 65. U3

31- 38" 1104. 60

f;b wrrr 150" ff i9+0:(;[H 1, 906'480.& 

re! u5SUMP, l4wrvol, lrr'y 1W11, 01) 
0-I I 17. 00 22. 26

712 2. 17. 00 222ti

13181, 17. 00 22.25

77C 17:00 2.2,26

25- 30" 17. 00 22. 2: n

31.- 38" 27. 00 35. 36

35A5

skunf' r Calrnoug ff+wr d' Iemwfslr iollchi. 4. 00

paldn 1° d' MM64 ' N' N aWn141Y( g
I' ll D'alle Palm tlF" d' alwrvfYa9 Pill 120. 00 157,n

Clean I( rdnink an f aw6red Palm Foot 30. 00 39. 30

flrunff FIun Nrlop Wla9' alnfllon4Y wi11s.) 44, 00 67,80

Oman Trunk cwa Fen lwr9@m QWw, hrnfjIoi is v4 pJ} Linear Foot 10.00 IS f 3r jo

f' rnnfp all coilli + r Pail" il9n Spw ;; Go 414 00 57' CID

6mars 111mrofPrag
10. X"a<'u196rn IS 120. 00 15720

2' 4110' h Bfraw' 200. 00 262. 00

916- 4'1oh W?) a if 500. 00 655. 00

4ft, Inch bou uJ06'k. lw 1, 310. 00

tlIncn haarf pu''0 sr9J 1 2WMM. 40

Nhaup) b rwlxY) M a060

Nriilnyy a"sGjiarnr horod fawlip ... ;. 
845 Ilk 11. 11Py

Roof PI(pro` Ign"II'll ro Q1 ( W 13. 11) 

Real I'farf"Alnd Inetallafirrn 40wu i49evlgN OMrkfl 1p' ( 30 13. 1Ea

abmi 151 LNNPAIW RoC4m fiM' r` n4N,1'. p' l
f9 Aiq rate for 1 Ground - person 80. 00 78.80

HI rate for 1 Equipment Operator 80. 00 3 78. 60

Hourly rate for f Trimmer 5 6000 78.80

Hourly rate for fulalnirljwO p ' rAt rt Il 60.00 78.80

Himlowrate for IIyildly: irmoijals),, 60.00 6 78. 80

It a tyr àW, kv Ono w;. OV01104 Tl hlarseWA 60 013 11 78. 60

Dsy Pate Sur" We 1"% o r -( poo day) 6 I ' l4rN, d1Ca 11 N 401l

Boom truck per rd q,4 G66 hour dray fu df146au"Nw a Chlp
l 6fw low de Illffl v hIjgri â q 1vinhfr1111 l" " po" nd fwrrra mn

grr r, Arl M 9: F71u1dYlr19r71r 6Jyy Wa, u drdwr a$ 6yr _.. r p3dld. a 00

Emergency * mAcnin - ( wrer hour) 
r 1 kryr pglgpjr, r f 3 person crew for emergency ¢; oowuce 
rnm 151 mril business hours 011' 01 On 235 #10

ArFAI nl' oum. womlland6 . AtWitlf Will" la 0, 250000 2? 6. 10

A do m, f Horko0f, - lFee Nt9. B60p 400, 01,1 4u M. ItJSf4B

CH$ 1fera is' rararnafary( w aa0 free AW 1 P Jif, 

me reArewd a 31' Fncreaae 90 offisei Me rm w ipmvirdi 90 wwagm ¢ deterMhnalon

r©a' Fra ri J', rduf Iua radar. 6 G ( vlarae



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. F

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016: 

Dept. Public Works: 

Item Title: Agreement for Claims Management Services

Staff Contact: ' Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 
w .... ...----- ------- 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving an agreement for claims management services

with George Hills Company. 

Item Summary: 

Currently, the City self administers its claims management services in compliance with state and
federal regulations. With the recent dissolution of the San Diego Pooled Insurance Program

Authority ( SANDPIPA), the City continues to evaluate all aspects of its risk management program. 

As a part of that analysis, City staff substantially reviewed its claims management program to
determine if this is an area that it should continue to be performed in- house or if there are greater

benefits to the City if this service is contracted out. 

The staff report ( Attachment A) details the City' s claims management history, the comparison
between providing said services in- house or contracting those services to a third party
administrator, and concludes with staff' s recommendation. 

Fiscal Impact: 

In Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 ( FY 2015- 16) funds are allocated in Fund 29 — Self Insured Liability
Retention Fund. However, moving forward to FY 2016- 17, staff anticipates this amount will

increase to reflect the not to exceed cost estimate of $ 15, 000 per fiscal year. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

J Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. F

Mtg. Date _ April 19, 2016

Item Title: Agreement for Claims Management Services

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Background: 

On April 21, 2015, the City Council adopted a resolution that provided its written authorization to
the dissolution of the San Diego Pooled Insurance Authority Program Authority ( SANDPIPA). 
The City Council also authorized staff to solicit proposals to provide general liability and workers
compensation excess insurance coverage as well as third party administrative services. 

The remaining portion of this staff report details staffs selection process while reviewing
proposals from qualified third party administrative services for general liability claims
management services. 

Discussion: 

Since April 1986, the City has benefited from multiple agreements that were negotiated by
SANDPIPA' s General Manager, for the benefit of its 12 members. One of those agreements

included a third party administrative service for claims management services with Carl Warren
and Associates ( Carl Warren). However, in 2013, Carl Warren terminated its agreement with

SANDPIPA. Since that time staff has self administered its claims management services. 

During the transition period from SANDPIPA to a direct relationship with California State
Association of Counties — Excess Insurance Authority ( CSAC- EIA), staff researched and now

recommends that outsourcing claims management services may be in the best interest of the
city for the following reasons: allows staff to focus on other competing priorities, retains the
services of professional experts in the field of claims management, and improves the city' s
claims system with an external review of processes and procedures. 

Staffs first step in this process was to schedule meetings and request proposals from qualified
third party administrators for general liability claims management services. In March, staff

received proposals from five firms: Adminsure, Incorporated, Carl Warren and Associates ( Carl

Warren), George Hills Company ( George Hills), Veritas Claims, LLC, and York Risk Services

Group. Of those five firms staff interviewed two: Carl Warren and George Hills. Staff felt that

both firms brought forward a tremendous amount of experience managing claims for local
government entities. However, after meeting with both entities staff felt that George Hills will
bring a tailored methodology that will best fit the current needs of staff and the City' s risk
program. Before detailing the benefits that George Hills will bring to the city' s risk management
program, staff felt it was prudent to include information about the company: 

Since 1954, George Hills has provided best practice claims administration and litigation

management services to private and public sector clients, 

Currently employees 40 claims management professionals and 14 full time corporate
and support staff employees. Each claims professional holds the applicable industry
standard certification, 



Attachment A

Seven offices are located throughout California. The nearest office that will support

Lemon Grove is located in San Bernardino, 

Because the city is in a direct relationship with CSAC- EIA it receives additional support services
from its broker, Alliant Insurance Services ( Alliant). Alliant is familiar with the city' s risk profile, 
since it was also a SANDPIPA broker for insurance, and Alliant staff members attended both

interviews with Carl Warren and George Hills. Alliant staff concurred with staff' s

recommendation to partner with George Hills. A summary of some of the benefits that were
noted by partnering with George Hills included: 

Financially stable company with one owner, 

Claims adjuster coverage that will allow 24 hour servicing if needed, 

Subrogation recovery program for public entities, 

Currently is an approved vendor for CSAC- EIAs primary general liability program. This

is important because George Hills is familiar with the reporting requirements of the city' s
excess insurance provider, and

Will provide the conversion to the claims management tracking software ( SYSTEMA) at
no additional cost to the City. 

Agreement Details: 

In moving forward, staff felt it important to review a few of the key points of George Hills' 
proposal and the final agreement. 

Cost: Because the agreement was created on a time and material basis ($ 83 per hour) 

there is no guaranteed method to predict the annual expenditures that will occur. 
However, based on the costs listed on page 37 of this report, staff estimates that the
cost range in the first 14 months will not exceed $ 15, 000. 

Duration: The agreement will expire no sooner than June 30, 2017 with the option to

extend for four additional one- year periods. The June 30, 2017 date was selected

because that coincides with the anticipated completion date of staff's analysis and
comparison of excess insurance providers. 

Review of Policies and Procedures: During discussions with George Hills about thewww

city' s current risk program, George Hills staff volunteered its services to review all

templates and forms related to risk management for not additional cost. 

In closing, staff concluded that George Hills Company is not the largest firm that is available to
the city. However, its uniquely tailored approach, coupled with its core values of honesty & 
integrity, customer satisfaction, financial sustainability, loyalty and continuous improvement are
in keeping with what staff believes will best fit the general liability risk program moving forward. 

Conclusion: 

That the City Council adopts a resolution ( Attachment B) approving an agreement

Attachment B — Exhibit 1) for claims management services with George Hills Company. 

M



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE. CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

AWARDING A CLAIMS MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT TO GEORGE HILLS

COMPANY

WHEREAS, the City currently self -administers its general liability claims management
services; and

WHEREAS, with the recent formation of a direction relationship with the California State
Association of Counties — Excess Insurance Authority ( CSAC- EIA) staff expanded its risk

management program analysis to include general liability claims management services, there is
a need to ; and

WHEREAS, staff solicited and received five proposals for claims management services; 

and

WHEREAS, after reviewing each proposal staff interviewed two firms: Carl Warren and

George Hills Company; and

WHEREAS, staff believes that George Hills Company provides a special and unique
service package of personnel and experience that can manage all claims services in the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves an agreement ( Exhibit 1) with George Hills Company for claims
management services; and

2. Establishes an initial term ending on June 30, 2017, with the option to execute four
one- year extensions; and

3. Establishes an annual budget not to exceed fifteen thousand ($ 15, 000. 00) per fiscal

year; and

4. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all agreement
documents. 

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AND

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, by
and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the " CITY"), and

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY a claims and JPA management service provider ( the

CONSULTANT"). 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to provide third party
administration for claims management services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONSULTANT is a professional claims

and JPA management service provider and is qualified by experience and ability to perform the
services desired by the CITY, and the CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANT. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the
CONSULTANT and the CONSULTANT hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set
forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein. 

The CONSULTANT represents that all services required hereunder will be performed

directly by the CONSULTANT or under direct supervision of the CONSULTANT. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONSULTANT will perform services as set forth on

pages 18- 55 of Exhibit 1 ( Attached). 

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all research and reviews related to the work

and shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as authorized in advance
by the CITY. The CONSULTANT shall appear at meetings cited in Exhibit 1 to keep staff and
City Council advised of the progress on the project. 

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONSULTANT, from time to time
reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this
Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONSULTANT agree to meet in good faith and
confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services. 

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION. 

The City Manager or designee is hereby is designated as the Project Coordinator for the
CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this Agreement. The CONSULTANT shall

assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the

Ili



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

progress and execution of this Agreement for the CONSULTANT. John Chaquica or designee

thereby is designated as the Project Director for the CONSULTANT. 

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the CONSULTANT shall

be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings shall include labor

classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The total cost for all

work described on page 37 of Exhibit 1 shall not exceed fifteen thousand ($ 15, 000. 00) ( the

Base amount) without prior written authorization from the City Manager or designee. Monthly
invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within thirty ( 30) days from receipt of

invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with Exhibit 1 as determined by and in
the sole discretion of the CITY. The CONSULTANT shall maintain all books, documents, 

papers, time sheets, accounting records and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and
shall make such materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this
Agreement and for three ( 3) years from the date of the final payment under this Agreement, for

inspection by the CITY and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested. 
5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. This agreement will last until June 30, 2017. The

contract may be extended for four ( 4) additional one ( 1) year periods by written agreement of
the parties, and may be subject to both City Council appropriation of funds and City Council
authorization of such contract extension( s). 

6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. The Memoranda, Reports, 

Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for
this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with
respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or

any phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. By accepting payment for completion, 
filing and delivering documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONSULTANT discharges
the City of all of the City' s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement. 

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns
to the CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and
the right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work

prepared under this agreement, except upon the CITY' s prior authorization regarding
reproduction, which authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, 
upon request of the CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this
waiver and disclaimer. 

The CONSULTANT agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify, 
assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONSULTANT' s
written work product for the CITY' s purposes, and the CONSULTANT expressly waives
and disclaims any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989
relating to intellectual property and artistic works. 

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications
prepared by the CONSULTANT shall relieve the CONSULTANT from liability under Section 14
but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to
the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was
expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

7., INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT. Both parties hereto in the performance of this

Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or
joint venturers with one another. Neither the CONSULTANT nor the CONSULTANT' S

employees are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or
privileges of the CITY' s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemploy- 
ment, or workers' compensation insurance. 

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONSULTANT and the

CONSULTANT' s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement to
the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and

competence of the CONSULTANT and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of the CITY. 
Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONSULTANT from employing or hiring as
many employees, or subCONSULTANTs, as the CONSULTANT may deem necessary for the
proper and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONSULTANT with its
subCONSULTANT( s) shall require the subCONSULTANT to adhere to the applicable terms of

this Agreement. 

8. CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any

control over the conduct of the CONSULTANT or any of the CONSULTANT' s employees except
as herein set forth, and the CONSULTANT expressly agrees not to represent that the
CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT' s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner

agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONSULTANT, its
agents, servants, and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent CONSULTANTs and
that the CONSULTANT' s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this
Agreement. 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONSULTANT, in the performance

of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes
and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON

GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONSULTANT, and each of its

subCONSULTANTs, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business

license prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement. 

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that it

has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that is legally required
to practice its profession. The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that the

CONSULTANT shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONSULTANT
to practice its profession. Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the

CONSULTANT to provide the following documentation with the executed agreement will cause
delay in the agreement being executed by the City: 

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement; 

B. City Business License; 

11. STANDARD OF CARE. 
Tara.. 

A. The CONSULTANT, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall
perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the CONSULTANT' S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in
similar locations. The CONSULTANT shall take all special precautions necessary to protect the



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

CONSULTANT' s employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the
nature of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site. 

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the

CONSULTANT warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five ( 5) years preceding, 
been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or litigation
proceedings concerning the CONSULTANT' s professional performance or the furnishing of
materials or services relating thereto. 

C. The CONSULTANT is responsible for identifying any unique products, 

treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the
CONSULTANT has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, 

when no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the
CONSULTANT has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONSULTANT warrants that all products, 
materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are

reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONSULTANT to use due diligence
under this sub -paragraph will render the CONSULTANT liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY' s later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable
substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or, 

when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. 
D. City' s Right to Terminate for Default. If the CONSULTANT fails to perform or

adequately perform any obligation required by this agreement, the CONSULTANT' s failure
constitutes a Default. If the CONSULTANT fails to satisfactorily cure a Default within ten ( 10) 
calendar days of receiving a written notice from the City specifying the nature of the Default, the
City may immediately cancel and/ or terminate this Agreement, and terminate each and every
right of the CONSULTANT, and any person claiming any rights by or through the
CONSULTANT under this Agreement. The rights and remedies of the City enumerated in this
paragraph are cumulative and shall not limit the City' s rights under any other provision of this
Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity, existing as of
the date of this Agreement or enacted or established at a later date, that may be available to the
City against the CONSULTANT. 

12, NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS. The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate

against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical
condition. The CONSULTANT will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed

without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, 
national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include but not be

limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for
training, including apprenticeship. The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places

available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting
forth the provisions of this non- discrimination clause. 

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to
the CONSULTANT certain confidential information to enable the CONSULTANT to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein. The CONSULTANT shall treat all such information

as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY. The CONSULTANT shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its

own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The

foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that ( i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( ii) is, through no fault of

the CONSULTANT, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( iii) is

already in the possession of the CONSULTANT without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) has

10- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONSULTANT by a third party, but only to the
extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third party; or
v) is disclosed according to law or court order. 

The CONSULTANT shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or
other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the

prior written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONSULTANT shall

comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation. 

CONSULTANT shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this
condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONSULTANT shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any
and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, and

subCONSULTANTs in the performance of services under this Agreement. CONSULTANT' s

duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily
injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole
negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and

employees. CONSULTANT' s indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance
provisions of this Agreement. The CITY AND CONSULTANT expressly agree that any payment, 

attorney' s fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee
under the CITY ' s self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or
cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early
termination of this Agreement. 

15. INSURANCE. The CONSULTANT, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase and

maintain, and shall require its subCONSULTANTs, when applicable, to purchase and maintain

throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies: 
A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum

limits of $ 1, 000, 000 per occurrence. 

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during
the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000, 000 combined single

limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall include hired and non -owned vehicles. 

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $ 1, 000, 000

combined single limit per occurrence, covering all personal injury, bodily injury and property
damage arising out of its operation under this Agreement. Contractual liability shall include
coverage of tort liability of another party to pay for bodily injury or property damage to a third
person or organization. Contractual liability limitation endorsement is not acceptable. 

D. Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONSULTANT's employees. The
CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the provisions of the Worker' s Compensation Insurance
and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the
California Government Code and all amendments thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts
or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and
employees from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and

judgments of every nature and description, including reasonable attorney' s fees and defense
costs presented, brought or recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

volunteers, for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by
reason of any work to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement. That policy
shall provide a minimum of $ 1, 000, 000 of employer' s liability coverage, and the CONSULTANT
shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the City
and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers, 
employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to
any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty ( 30) days prior written notice
to the CITY of cancellation or material change. 

F. If any required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than

occurrence" form, the CONSULTANT shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years

after expiration of the term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement. 
G. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a

current policy holder's alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII
according to the current Best' s Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is
approved by the CITY. 

H. Deductibles. All deductibles on any policy shall be the responsibility of the
CONSULTANT

I. Specific Provisions Required. Each policy required under this section shall
expressly provide, and an endorsement shall be submitted to the City, that: 

1. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker' s compensation
policies, shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. The
CITY' s Additional Insured status must be reflected on additional insured endorsement form CG
20 12, or equivalent, which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

2. The Policies cannot be canceled, non renewed or materially changed except
after thirty ( 30) calendar days prior written notice by the CONSULTANT to the CITY by certified
mail, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY except for non- 
payment of premium, in which case ten ( 10) days notice will be provided. 

3. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that

these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY. 
If the CONSULTANT does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all
times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided
herein. 

4. The CONSULTANT may obtain additional insurance not required by this
Agreement. 

16. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from
any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the
representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then
in that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out-of- 
court settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable
costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

17. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, 

or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego, 
California, in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association ( the " AAA"). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. 

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the
services provided under this Agreement, upon the City' s request, the CONSULTANT, its agents, 

12- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. The

CONSULTANTs assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, 

attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute
resolution and/ or litigation. 

18. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by
the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30 -day' s written notice to the
CONSULTANT. During said 30 -day period the CONSULTANT shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONSULTANT may terminate this agreement upon thirty
30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its

obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices. 
B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the

event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City' s satisfaction within a
ten ( 10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONSULTANT in
connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to

perform services as directed by the CITY. 
C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of

Termination to the CONSULTANT as provided for herein. 

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps, 

Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT, whether
paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and
the CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work

satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages

caused the CITY by the CONSULTANT' s breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written
material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6. 

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: 
1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONSULTANT; ( 2) a reorganization of the

CONSULTANT for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business
name or change in business status of the CONSULTANT. 

F. The termination of the services shall be effective upon receipt of the notice by the
CONSULTANT. 

19. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall

be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express or
the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or
sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of ( i) if personally
delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, ( ii) if sent by
overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, ( iii) if mailed

by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days ( ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the
State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like

facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv) if given by telegraph or
cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or ( v) if given by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other

communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons: 

To the CITY:, CITY MANAGER

CITY O.._ F LEMON GROVE

3232 MainStreet ................... 

Lemon Grove, CA 91945- 1701

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

To the CONSULTANT; 

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in
this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice, 

demand, request or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty- 
eight ( 48) hours by letter mailed or delivered as specified in this Section. 

20. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS. 

During the term of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall not perform services of any kind for
any person or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE. The CONSULTANT also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or
material for the project in which the CONSULTANT has a material financial interest, either direct

or indirect, without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONSULTANT shall at all times

comply with the terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest
Code. The CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The CONSULTANT

represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require it to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

If the CONSULTANT violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these provisions in this
section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. Further, the

violation subjects the CONSULTANT to liability to the CITY for attorney fees and all damages
sustained as a result of the violation. 

If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of
the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest Code. 
Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall: 

1. Go to www.fppc. ca. gov

2. Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests
3, Completely fill out the form
4. Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts. 

The CONSULTANT shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or

expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the
CONSULTANT. 

21. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date or time period provided for in this

Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date
shall automatically be extended until 5: 00 p. m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a
Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday. 

I In



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the
same instrument. 

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this
Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, 
and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or
any provision hereof. 

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or
obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto. 

E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby
incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes. 

F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or

amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto. 
G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not

operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof. 
H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of California. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations
and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as
to the subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby. 

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal
bargaining strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the
opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors
as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this
Agreement, ( iv) each party and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this
Agreement, ( v) each party has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and
the rendering of such advice, and ( vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, 
or any portions hereof, or any amendments hereto. 

L. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this
Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement unenforceable, invalid, or
illegal. 

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

By: ............ .__ 
Lydia Romero

Citv Manager
Title) 

Date) 

M
James Lough

City Attorney

Title) 

Date) 

M

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY
Corporation — signatures of two corporate officers) 

Partnership — one signature) 

Sole proprietorship — one signature) 

By, — 
Name) 

Title) 

Date) 

Name) 

Title) 

Date) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: . 
Name) 

Title) 

Date) 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

General Liability Claims
Handling

and Administration

March 17, 2016

I zCls
1 OhCsel = ANY

PA .,, 

w



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

Clvve I efter fronn JT4, in Cfon;rrfz.i ca

Chief E5( ecufivo Od'ficor, George fliffs Curnp, any

March 17, 2016

City of Lemon Grove
Mike James, Public Works Director

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Dear Mr. James; 

As Chief Executive Officer of George Hills Company, Inc. ( George Hills), I would like to thank
you for the opportunity to submit a proposal for General Liability Claims Handling and
Administration to the City of Lemon Grove ( City), 

George Hills is a California " C" Corporation, incorporated in 1978. We have provided best
practice claims administration and litigation management services to private and public sector

clients since 1954. Today, George Hills employs 40 experienced claims handling/ incident
management professionals, and 14 full- time corporate and support staff employees. We have

seven ( 7) offices in the State of California and work with over 100 diverse clients, including
counties, cities, school districts, insurance carriers, joint powers authorities, and agencies. Our

firm' s extensive California public entity claims handling history, along with our specific focus on
property and liability third party administration, has resulted in George Hills' specialized
knowledge of public entity oversight and claims handling needs. 

In summary, the City of Lemon Grove has my promise George Hills will place the highest priority
on responsiveness and quality customer service in meeting the City' s unique general liability
administration needs and requirements. George Hills' culture is focused on hiring the best
people and providing them with the support and state- of- the- art tools necessary to deliver
superior service and reports. I have made our service fees as economical as possible without
compromising on talent, effort, or outcomes. 

George Hills has all State of California permits, licenses, authorizations, approvals, and

professional credentials necessary to perform services for the City of Lemon Grove. This
proposal shall remain valid for 90 days from the due date of submittal. 

Susan Legare, George Hills Business Development Manager, will be your contact throughout
this bid process. 

Susan Legare, Business Development Manager

3043 Gold Canal Drive, Suite 200

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: 916- 844- 4016 / Email: susan. legare@georgehills. com

Respectfully submitted, 

John E. Chaquica, CPA, MBA, ARM

Chief Executive Officer, George Hills Company
Email: john. chaquica@georgehills. com

18- 

K! ar f Cr P; : ompad q be,. 
E(, ( masse 10 N{ egare l,fiir (" Y" We



Organization vfFirm ................................................... —_----_-- Tab

Staffing........................................................................ _—_—...... — Tab

Experience ............................................................. Tab

ScopeofWork ......................................................... —_....... __—_- Tab

Quality Control Procedures ........................................ _—........ ......... Tab

Reports...................................................................... —_.............. Tab

Fees.............. ....... ........................................ ..... _ Tab

Appendices.............................................................. ___—_.......... Tab

A. George Hills Report Samples

B. George Hills TPA ExperiencelCase Studies

Best pnRohic* d U1, aeyoyneededoen uewand dwrwno mb 

omhwnephouwsm r0 8, ha Sw6a A v] om gef 

eng, 9gemeo1^ 

111 Maqukm, Cp,I. &"IBA^ AR/N. ChieyExoouvve Oftic

c' mp"' baovycm

me



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

r"i", US

Tab I

Orgainuzafioini xf t: nurojjj

F[ n In Nhinno Goorge U 011s (," ornpany, hic, 

3pwge 11' I G Corlpairato Offk.e Cordova

Address. 3043 baa' W ClwnaU IDir , Eadto 200

Rancho Cordowa, CA 956f() 

11:: 11111ane: 9 16) 859 4800

24- our 855) George OWHs,- AlD, JS [ 422- 2357] 

Fax: 916) 859 4805

Ov)nOrSldp John Chaquicall ARIMI, Cll: 111, 1, V1113A
111W E:' Xecufivo Officoll

l0r. Chaquica holds 100% of olomwshp anirl is Me jrxhvirjual
authorized to negotiate on behaff of Gvon7e lfilk, 

Geoigo Hldls Coninpany, IInc, ( Gmge 11111111s) hs as CallHoiinlb " C', Corpantkwll, kllcopolmteld in the
Stato of Cahfornka in 1978, fl,llc corillpany "Aras folundert un 1954 and Provded ll,) est piacflce

fiallt>Illity wO piropefly clahns achinlns rafion and Hfigifirm rnainagomeH sorAcos to the pubfic
sodoy and pri' vate inSLIMICe Call- 6eS E? Vell' S' owICO O r un Ck,,Ot hase consist' s of countJos" 6hes, 

schooll d tillrlsl, joht povm 5, authorifies, tmnsKfilraH org-anizafloins, propefty rin-anagornert lgilcAjps, 
sellknsured - mjt*,) yeiis, nIIISLJWMO canters, aincl hoallldv-arc orgainlizafions

Goorgic MIlls has sevon ( 7) <) Iffices nin CaVonnia. t:" a0irfiolld, VhWornair, Dakhii[d, FlancIlho

Coii,r:lov,3,( Sacii, ioiiei!illr), San : 3ernaj[r( ji!rm, Sain Jose, and "Rodding, 

Gporgr, Ifift ha^ b 40 empoidonco< 1 dairps jjppw6assiovmls, and 14 fiAll firre cicarjjpmatc,, and

SUIppoirtring st-,ft Goorgo Hk; emphyecas hoki 13A arid hAA. dogirces ardry kdustiy
hcllucllhng Assoclate n IRW< Marmgcnnnint AJRM), F: egkAerrxi

Ad< uster ( R, 11lA)- 1 Casualty Clairr Law A5sodatc. ( CCILA); VOoirkers' Compensaflon
Cka4ns Profe5sbnaY ( OCCP) Woukers' Coinjjpiensa6ori Gh4l' n P,dinnmNstrator CaMocinia

Sdlkho, urod Adirri6ishrator ( SIA); Coufified Publhc Accountants ( CPA): Chwtoi, Global

Maniagornonl: Accountant ( CGIMA); FcderM LEoneryan, f rina; nnrnh: ( 111:: , NlA) and D,,rViod

V naa! ar If ann4ncr ((,' F r E) Of (; Q 1 11 flfi Nngliall company0 g x 1 S  S a A 1: t jj, 11 f LA r x I

G',corge U Uhs' caH centcn personned and Wanshtkm , lj,, P, arrfle tho, ftarrniatlrjri noodsJjjtjj- Ojjr 3

of rim ford aluster> whoin mqueAud

won

MM



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Tab 2

Staffling and Approach

Sl affing

A strong rfifforenfiatw kj r f3r,,orge 11 fih der pirwJOing qwflfily, custornor foursod clahws ser0r. o ft u I' llir
tho v'ray Alo wsgllrll 10-"arrrs of cxfroheinced ' nrfivklualis who have rrianaged ar,C; QrffrtS srrnHair Do our

rinany years, Hir" scnror cllailllms ildju', Uing pvclfessionafs , m propose frau the Cly of
Lenwin Gr( we" hwe oxtonsive, expork,, nco and kinomledgo dn doafirig Mth incidents, rWirns, zlird
fifigaflon against puh, kc cnfifics. Each adjimstcw' s wroddlulu and case Ooad verily be collabomfivo, 

tedurced, aj,,,( j frIppol[ rp ed at iho pirrrnwy and limavostigafive kwok, as w. OV a 3 chcckod at tll, w, 

slujrx,, irvfsory aind quafity controf kvulls

Proposed Staff Resuinres

JOf W E Clf MQUIICA, INA1113A, CIPAI A111: 0A
Clipef Id lxecUWIJO C) Ffflo,, lu

George Hflis FQIancha ( 11 Our( jo%do/ SaC rairnento

916) 859-4,824 1 john,& KqliAk;, a( fA)i georgielhHU, conrit

C ; u iir groll I IoOkrin, Chi& 17 ' XeCUfiV0' Ofk( NF, GOW' 90 NWHIS

Past Exf!uevreinceJohir Chaquica fos over 30 nra. ajjre of oxporronce kn 651k avid os

Wgh[ y vospectod h il[ rs Nndusby f1doir fo j& 4q (; GQj[rgo, f1flIlls as flresildEmt and Chief Operating
Officer- in 2008, he was Chiul ll:: xecufive Officeir of Biclkrriore Rfsk Scrvlces ( BIRS), a Bea& ng risk

managelllxmt corri[parily arl the U, S. In addifioin to his rde as Chef Fxecutive Officcr saf jr-, 

served as F:'. xocufive Drocloir four seveml Cafifwnki pubfic entity self Insurance P0011G, and vras a
cori, mllltant to ; reverM ofher enfties Ir Chaquica was a Flavtnor af. ( Mbert AccoUlllltarlVy

Corpoiratrori, ^ iYrmnq as Audd F) aftner and IIndustry Town 11 ori dcm, Pubhc Enhty : w[ f risw, (',d
Gioulps

Otllfier: Mi, Chwrjiuks;,,A served as F) reskicnf and Irl, ' casuror () f " aor", mento' s Cowt App6linted

Spec4fl Ad%mcatles (( ASA) and uu,. orrraarrns active iln ' tire Arnedicain IInstitutc, of C,'offified Fliubhc

Accouiriltants ( ArFIA) anil tho, Clafifornia Sockity of ("' Ciffified Public Accounlants ( CSCPA) RAr
Ir'" pirca IPnu kk", an, MI: 3,A from Gakluin Gat,o UrdvoirsAy aml a BS in Accounting fronn Crflifcrrira

irarrxUrOvcr, fty, Sac ri addftron, he hollds an Associate rn Ilalisak Mainagerniont ( NOW

frorntllhlo hwrance, InstRute of / oTK,,flfCa, 

Keyvnw10 Reqlwflfin Prop wl ("I io, fieJl, erjwn (" FoVe



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

RANI , )Y RENEW3, FRIPA, CCI A

F: Iilesklent, ( Urins AdfrOnistiation

George i 1HIls FRaviclhio Cordova[ Sacrarnento

916) 859-48,11 1

Cum',Iirit RiDsRiorr IlDicsidont, Cblirrl,> Cloni, ge Hillh-, 

Leadeii; 11311anch Manage ir, George Hillfs Rarlr; ho Cordovw Account V-anagoo, 

CowMy of Sacraininonito, 
F: Iast Experierme: Randy Roinchg dalims cai[ oebogan ii - I 19, 176 at i Rx" rly Mlutuai insurance
Corrilsmy irii Sain Jose, Cahfounia, Over the course of Ih is 40 in thio, lisle

ill- IdUFArly, NAT, IlrMrfig ha5 had lijr ll: g 01 iti ali

innariagralinont ai" I con, pW labilMy casoi lin t1he public soctor, as vvirdi as, e' Aflh
accowlits, ifis expeirbse lnclljlao: r plubilir, seat Mooicawc CuinpAlaiilco rogAericitits and
iagulatioria, 

Other Mr, F? cndig hias as EIA froiin UC' 11 ), Ms^ RIPDosigimfion, !& CICU. IC: esiginaHon

NANCY VV)N' yq' dE

Wvn,agieirlSenioir

Geoirgrra p fillks hlorcc) and Saiin lBeiii wqTd" rno

95,1) 444 6299 1

Cuurjjlr(: aJmt Il AdjusterInveshgator

l::"ast EExpeidence 111, laincy Wayne has over ' 35 yo,,jjjr: 3 of lndurstry exprnience inown foil Ilmer
Mwng industry kriovvicdge i wid d0l"TWIMArable woikfion,, officienclirm, M ,, Wayne Ims been

an Gcorge  Us fur two yoars and ms extensk, e city arid distm" I , upervisolly Claill' ir nndfing
pograin eyperionce, Trashy q PAR, Ar, JF:1A citics 11- 1 SOU1111101ill C'afifondl'a, 

including t1ho cities of Monifoo, Wost Hollyvo)od, and vk,,,Wy- nlre Ralrr,,, juM Ro riame a ifew, 

Ovev ti'm course of firr naroorsho huas [ Oinciled clahills forspverai C; IPA, ritlos, ill Arcadia, 
Brea, Irvine, I- aglun.) 113eadh, Oirainigo, hv,,;fin, VinnfiriNnsilfcii wind Yoillha Il inda IPw S, ' Nayru,., Roams

also donii-, a corisiderable annow'A of jprofos 5k) riall clahnis vvork for Sain Gabi6oll Valky JPA orld
I( IRKAA JIFIA, She is h6ghlyfarnilhi! vdlii Govoirrilimrit Codr, Roquirminents and Ilrminnruumrfora as vmlli

as with winplex c1laiiins Imndfirig piroccows arld proceduro-, f, floir lfo (' r; Olg jfij!ll.: 11. i(, 

worked for CarII V\ Wrem & Company She has also wwkod amP Ha7lolrigg Pisk: PAanagennorlf
aind Ohud f4cith Ail-rcitica, 111, 11ova Plo, 

Oltheir: llfib, Wayne ir. am avid particip)aint lira accrerMed ll, k rnainzqlemeld, indus' lly evelinitn and
pil Ograirris, 

KA 1' R 11[ EEPI Wili NJAJM!: R, " AICCA, C 4'. E, IFEIPOA Cer dified

Quaillity Assurairwe RVllatia( lerr] SUd" j, Vr) a" latif) iri Spedallist
George Hill1h; Rancho COrrl,,Ir)'l, ia/ S-.irrrarTiuRtlito

916) 859 411,08 1 s .Co IT) 

pcclalls 

hc!l( ALOM5 M' C^ Or M Mly" hilu, Tlic: pujden6, fl

Hcafth hvsuiE9a' iicc Ccimpailly jjxocesblHi:: 11 Mpl awflihng n"lovinq orlbrt l
cininis, )'o( ho c(;,mpan,ji, ,, ni y,e,,)--, ho, oii rvl vVWaIITS SN"' Yell: 11 as

0 GkflrlYli PAVd), 1A 9M FN? Jii n Sy: Acnv;, dovclkqlmnq lho`" JjpoA: kfl ,, vhch

Ow Heuoh oiw V'Vc0vcIW hild  " I iobi j( l Rvcnv, Cins wild

I IIand down In 210,00 b -:-( p sciv ng flic PuNc „- ector : i, r 7V1° in llowo"" CII : dwl! Apaly, A, 
Bo, ndlincl WO cll3lnnso,,,"M ) A: alb 1Wi:, u i v, II mrI, ponmod hIho

ribs Risk Pvlwrua, wn Ai end of y01 I , ho pinocJ C P,: xglo o () ivahly d, wcu

Arp1m, vd, JjIj, )/ I wmyt (', n; g, e

22, 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

O,Aunalgor lio siuppoirt fhliil. crlullnpony' s i plasko d I -wlviros, inicillucklig " il, ploductilwin wrid
cfstrlloullcjin A chicnit nontlifly uo1pootS, flhe, DiAhnizahall Faunid Oaridao 'dn! 360l' l Ot fQUIV'10101g),' USOd
Cwtillpany w0c, wild the docuimentaHon of George Hills' SSAE 6 ' yjjpr, t & 2 coiropbance

DrOOCSSCS a:: V wvc, H as T" 10dicarl, Sell Abldiq equilroill' u' rif05, V-Jilfiall ills is kincvIin fuiwil

spociahziod4fork 61 GUIXOqiatk) ln

Other Iltts, Vihilill-all' i' s Nolds a E33 fmin CalMorinia SUir,, Unlvcr, luy, Sacial- vionto, an ' Workors 
Conl1poll3atk> 11, 11 i"' llainiris Plidininistlafioin MCCA) Dos ginafic,, n ficfll IIIQ IITA1111anco 111i

Association, and Ccitiflod Faud Examine,: 11 ' CIFE) ltasggnnatonn ficiiiii Asso uatlon ci t Ccrbfied

MIJIDIRIEW () UYMCIKEt

Jusiness Systenis %AaliiiageT

George l 1u110s Rainchio Coil

Vi t) 589- 4807 1 coni

cuirie!' A posiboly! Buslnes, SyMerins iMainager, 11 1 RAa1naqOr1SR0S, uoMi & VOS ll4 sjjpc, 6allaI 

Fjast 1:: X1j) e11e11mr in 11ho past, IN& Dunckell Ihas inariagod jjpw(,, cts at Iof anid l3ca HO also llarr 

exl neflonico I and wriifing ; Qflv,uro, having bulift , un ftvv:,-uc I3110tO( YPOS at HP 11, 310J WIld
iv,aftton S( lithmic" at F: ltth Sull, 

Oillier Mir. Il unclk, M graduated froim Callifoilinia State Uiltvcir!', lidy, Clkxj uln 2013 with a 13S hurl
HkAslness Aidmniistrakiln , POHii an anqohas s ri Accounihnig and in, iinoirs in 11roiacif IManiagorncnnl! 
and Managornenp lnforinatOin '-1ysleins, 

Ajjppiroac,h

CeicirgcHills aiddwitor assilginniont and lotatlion M11D 111( MnQlCd clOSOlyfoli Oach

Gr,oiigo Hills client, George Hillis caselloadai,, n Ilwsuilly basocicern

th," romploxity all tho adusici' s dialim lypArally, qrcounl Cwm1rjl,1&-, are

501%o rasp-loadsau, 12; 5 to 1" oOpawn ndllnlqltlesarld

501114jill ploplefty, w1justors" c-Asoloads alo 150 to 200 pending illas G, uOiigr, fiHs Adiustir" I"' S

h,andfing nullo, 11111110l! mrhy, aniiJ subrogaticin d4rns avorago botvveien KIO to 125 pendinill!) Nes 0/0
attcwl1jp1[ to linjjpio, 11',, a rayurnul- n as ; e load of 150 itericiling fillos, bUt " ve ei:, ognize thial Moro are
often I' lles u ln an adlustei' s p,) ondlng list firial arin 111- irli' llant, especlailly fni, lwblic agencins ,, vhr,, n
fllo5 sorylehine' s uoinnainn oloon sln' ljjjl)" awittling oxl: whallon of filho statull, c, following a cilaimic, Ocfiol) 
ir, vvhlrh cas,,U th Ili clalinins may be higher

1 m' n s o K 

1111 Soorgo Hills slaff trwnhnig coulsos for h*, inall Aaff andVinr c-,Hnnts aro On nood and

lerjunsl Thile G( Mil' SCS al) Lp) in " i' flitricI mattm from III to me ogoro' n-1110d lassi tOr

sclund drcision- ri- okling to xjonJir), Minq proglarns locus(, d CiMi WA g t( C1hl10l0gV k) 
mlwinc( dielit offid' olicy, " Nic rsciinsi',& elli] y keep stift, 91110 clienis uonlmnuanmod rot oull finilling

on( Foii lndustay Sponsioled in, lisk ionamnnaigorncnii thaL vve, focl ivrwld Ileo= oil i/ alur Gooroc

Hill,::' ' Lrscams li oarimidCxPolionce' s wirn 60 yow, lin Pho g, lie, xcntod in round, 1, nljlc
forniat wld iiuo 11. tur, uur i lb li( M, t   N leademilp I' lunch 111- lorfiligs , vilth clikints, to allort pli Ili e : r is of

prmsible, outcolines%' Afih gleatm aild Cost co, iitrnlkeaungga. V hills' lilleri- call Stahl tialliling
lig" luilic' s, an W16, 111 dcbsjjwclflc ailoi- Oalion III Umt in Liocoim fainlim

Cool - c, IiMs' techrolngy, aS "" AIll as, an iI! Aloducillc, n to il valur, adid Gem-( H

x,vio monili' lly hal Inlgs, to dlacuss: wflatod lo the OdwAry ' und Oull
olionts, Gcoagc liflis adust( 21S, bUj) 11) 1- 1, 1iSW' S, 1111d -' xi- cufivos riuc6ivo Onquilim

b v/ i' m' on

23- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

Callill' omb ock' s " Ind  DgIslalubz n, as `,'. cd; rk GOc zll, V , orH id ta. d I ia m rqL, lll ztliouzrz„ 

p Mucci,", wid n4as 01M ha' VOa z9HlOd 00- t 1) 11H 1I, u a CHOIIit b, z- nc, T 9" t'I' Hc e 11" ItaAos e" in
0.. II11WI!', ) Mbnat, and Ifpl uz' a i1., r a,''„" k" 3[. gas C' uir IW a „ 7II" tlt Vu, Hllu;' i°'.;„ nid I" 

r , :
D II"' ILII II H V" r

ffbce Locations ., nid Coiltzizj IInf aru° natron

SACRAMENTO OAKLAND

3043 Gold Canal Drive, Suite 200 c/ o HSNO

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 1330 Broadway, Suite 430
Phone: ( 916) 859- 4800 Oakland, CA 94608

Fax: ( 916) 859- 4805 Contact: 

Contact: Tammy Hunt
Susan Legare 916) 233 2544

916) 844- 4016

SAN JOSE SAN BERNARDINO

4010 Moorpark, Suite 106 275 W. Hospitality Lane, Suite 316
San Jose, CA 95117 San Bernardino, CA 92408

Phone: ( 408) 260- 2030 Phone: ( 909) 806- 4001

Fax: ( 408) 260- 0154 Fax: ( 909) 806- 4043

Contact: Contact: 

Rodger Hayton Craig Yeary
408) 260- 0152 909) 806- 4184

FAIRFIELD WILDOMAR

4830 Business Center Drive, Suite 130 Phone: ( 951) 226- 8853
Fairfield, CA 94534 Fax: ( 909) 806- 4001
Phone: ( 707) 419- 7500 Contact: 

Fax: ( 707) 419- 7505 Nancy Wayne
Contact: 714) 585- 0922

Chris Carmona

707) 419- 7517

REDDING

PO Box 992600

Redding, CA 96099
Phone: ( 530) 524- 2626

Contact: 

Chris Carmona

707) 419- 7517

Nm" fiLv Pnvpave,, v u of f.. Rvdn id a"; ax ra

24- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Ta b3

xpe N ence., 

OveiMew of QuaW licafions

Go' cige 111HIS C011, 11pany, 111111c, ( Goorge ififls) Nis III bo -'A piarticc [ Wilifit,' and prop,: rly

dialins adi, ironisbation and fifigaboin iTiariagorniont sr, rvlcos to the public, se clo aind prl' vaac

linsurni- 100 CaT1160S Own skncx, Hin cornpany vvis, fcurndod 4n 1954 Ow client kw o cons& ,ts of
COIA111. uCS, CitleS, SCI1001I CHS( lot-,, tO! Ht IWYMl' S @Ulhiodfics, traw:,[ Urai I aiqjan zatluivs, pirof,) orty

il'IWNAVNnoiflgoups, solf ilism" CIIJDnljjployo sj, Gnswanco and Geo alftica o rwounl, zaltk) rjs, 

At Gowge p fihl, wo alin to excelliont SorJoa thill( plugh industry I,, innvvk' 4R c andiwovafi, w, 

Ow SuCCOSS is eMotit Dy Ow Rlb fty o rinalintatin an o igolvig cliont o oil cril[ lor"! wto averago of

Goorgo 11 fills" stated mllwwOn flor om 60 yows has ) icn tu f Iio' vido tho N4'10Suvoll of quaky, 
cunto nion formsod claims sort ice "' Vie ircoinfilisli, ii that by - ws, 6gninfj a ieoinrn of passioiOo anid

2XI) CII' lonced indivldwalk6 wfio Ih. uaua TrMnagod n11111111llm wrxmnl b ir, oviory ci 110111t. V k th"M

ifflatiorislilip, Ilan. udllrxny as cutilicall to t1ho fir) 4, 11 siwx,( Ss of soirvkx; piovlicic ad cnlicmt and ilv Mi - 

way to EXA111ing a 9101od rollafioiv5hipi a^; to pi, r),J& exrolinnit, custoli' ved sorvico

111otably, 9b'%) of: oin rfi!m s we pufflic Ontill' ies, George HiHs" dkArict tocus On kalbilklity arxJ

propofty 06denVclalirs adnilnlstratpcn, htligaficii) nnainagon- ien( and lnv( mbgMNo scwlonv: givos
OLK Nin tndejjpflh e aniii in fhc,^* sjl> ecllfic woa5 of loss ronfio. aArid 6,u,, ilt
as!'sIct protoction, 

Scinqe Il hNs Ilea, 410 ex1porionor- ld rilairns profosskmals aiml 1, 1 1 fire coill-mrato and

sul!)j1poifing silaff George HiHs ernpitoyocs hold RA and NIA degi-pos, indl'or lindu:Airy
ncli6nq / t,,-,sinclato inn Rsk INA' anagennionA ( Af:11,J); Reglslcred

Piotesslona Adjustpr ( RIPA) Casu,Alty Cbiim Liana Ass,ciluiato ( OC] A) VADdms' Goirnix,,nsafion
Cilaims P11011losslonall frVolikom, Conitmnsafioni Glahm Adnnorilspin Or, n NPUCCA)', CaNfoinb

Soffinsured Adtnlliiipsfiatoii ( SIA)' 11,' ertificd I Arc,ountants ( GIPA) , Chalti!! r C'IloloM

Ka-unagoilivit PICO)' UitfaN ( CGIMA) Fadnral Hneigion<,, y Id1ranagernont ( IHLKAA,) and (, orMnd

Frawl 11 gwnlnoi Of in-illpmtailco— "i HiMs ds a mulh GUNLU: 11, MR11ti fiMj11A,' fl r,01- nrJ1iy. 
Gionrge Hills, GaH cic"" MIC111 JOISOMIlel wid fianslafian servico jjpaitnera haridle the tmrslafion needs

of rjuo fielld adantors whilin requosted

Hills alino pivm6dos a JPA Founatk) n and Mariagon, ion, Divi, sIcii), as vveli as a

aulbuogatloni Rocovoiy Dhvlslon, to Div ' I of qualMp/- Idilvo' n ckciM ofifonings ir, 3ddffion, in an
offoiil fi- coriUniuc, to irmoWft, ' PVC1, G01Tll% PCW,, ly d( wr,,loj.,,rd uan drAll- okd lnfnrviatdoin

Q,chnolngy Delpaitnionlit ff)i that Aovks dhelclay vvr th nul ,. tienfs a,. neirdo( i, fnr r, Âonn arel- loOs
and chta cnt y, poday v,,c wx,, looth Slt',AS Clatins"' and 0,10!;:'°, tc, u nuii

CA-  W i1--- - 3 2 - Wrns rnjanagomoii R Gooign  Wis has S, 3AF 16 t`yjp(,,, t ConlrOl3h,CQ ! ,, t i D 111i ' 111 1  , h 3111 l[ 

phacc foll nH Niodlrwo Slecondaly Payer Hopoming Peciolmnonh, ( awr, ai- O

Regull- ofions, 

VVII1llllnu^ George p HIS, fijmovo in filin la' A No') yu-ar-, 1111W-', xvcVage d lcss p. han ' J" Xj rw) r yeui wo aro

cainhruaHy i on b6ngIing in nevv male nn w" ve qlclv,, thcI and fou ahc rubvl fla

11 naigcninc,"nt, @ MAt gO110Mflcn l' jcg, t picltiacos oo- rkf(; irc,r,' of—risk n 3

wr , "", ", lib, 5 Id' r, 

Kes/ vnw Al"po" ah et o'l, ( ozwe

25, 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

C; oiiq) efitkoe AIpdd ant aq, es

r r 111lryV iSm,pabon l• p W': V lhluva Iy Public Enilllos, 

NYU R<° a' Md" P Lld I' 9' uv" SpdaU41hW' O" SIIV gMIVIIS

v u orgo 111IIJIS, IM U k PN P LODIlllc Enfifics, 
P, I w In Dv-';I neavdh h II oI" I tnallno' d P

r A116% 
pph p r art rl In 0. I l ff N

see
II yIno ; Y4, d' W' d" VI V poPnllo ClIn 14': ulcal, Cll! II' rA IVIII A A lU', IIIA

i0oN"7of-IIaflljI Stable
f;;6p: NIII;I f' ti,. ds: prrrra' Wlo lin

n ILP sp:dn' ml r & I,ILaplly. pu, Pl; PTII Igranqs vdth 11 k,3nds On CLahns": i,Ud V4rllr. uls, 

ho scu kd. s pnn/ kJod by u * wci,! lflllkr dulu l udo ffio f'o' llllu': rap„ rv!:p

II Au.,upo IV.. iia llhi iipy

113m: 011nioss Ilupturu° ru, u, p,410111
3 on 611: 0' aticpllvnUrl Dopu" dxp'.^ a

1 1110 uu: ull V labiilliilCyy

Ilnnlld a `..,: I Ilnary' rrl n„ y n'' yullyuprr! u p id:aul ur

P RXJLIcllsu_ alln' ullppy

P" uUIVd y pd 4rrrrrll . ilal.1 0y
Pu' u: alp! Iort y
SAIR CIha!niuiu" y: purruiluuu nuauUV[ UV° 1

yaJ nU Iiilnp%adVn C u;: bp' Vp0111 V4pVil'; uV' n V v ewrroyaiv" ii) 

II pnul  II V ' a srr rw' , rrpo d niidnll pu yVaa l a yV ull" duVlip':, prud up" nd; Pll y ŷ+ 
xpaa„a' uft Whoss

V. lIgaypua'au°n Vl l yuu' u, V Irluu lrup
V o all V dII I aIIL 1u apu l ro,. i 

u. IN: uuu'd IMaauulrno

B uld V' p" a' u;sa Investigallions

Ilunv figa4.porr::> 

Iludpd"' a Ino°°n'+ pd uup °: tljjnP rp urrn

Tallord p::;" d ud d rout' ifl Nk: lilh worrlla; 

w s pralf o` a°9IrwiIug prrd. giroprr"ns
I kII' I,op" yNunaapOMm :: a:! n4 V u" rog, ro11 n yN, aOr 511 lie 111 r dl 1, a fiai hrrurr

G113mppo I lIllll n ' oL y unolt Iloav ) ny Iluuu aoniiJali p. ulikilld' unu y ponding Ililfiigp tllon,, pal allTllrlod office a;. lo uurins„ 

u uu' Inpoundl ng II' Ilna uylorslyy pd. p"al, I' rfouonn rr,:orrnyrr adplrallllfw u u, rlrg HIHs ar eiffli, I sppr np Iarraa' y° - nlu  p n: ruall nllanU

yll' nat ffie firI n a nlp lh, IIwuvI o G x"IIs aro OnOt db IDICII' dp SLISPlliiiocl, apl' sN par d Inii!.rllllglllnlle ' po

I onilll ' act II any plI 1, tial a I VO zII IjplLubhc lqon<Y' : n, Pacid o xIplWin Cfln ' SUCIla SIlA WS, 

i r rga r; . r' rrh a rtar,rl' rry u" prvw. 
Pps + vt. l̂ld Rd I , r i,; mr' Urvav+ lgoyr' u,',' P v al U.^ vnki d rarve

26— 



I 1 0

FROerorioes

GI-Jlqio HlHs v"r-'rjo, "vith over: 1010 rlivore cllclll:,, Tho Cty of Giovr. Jwulrl fiedlroo to

ccilltair; j allily (' InUty llsfod as , i iu ieiloirco hek)', Il Gir ng lfilk hot, piactk, 
aind Gerlorjl I jaLAIIIIuIiy Aarinsjirajiolq

Description: Estimated annual new claim volume: 650
P 0 Box 276130, Sacramento, CA 95827

Project Start 1983

m.. 

Project Status: Current

Steve . .. .. " P

I

a

11

g

I

e Risk - Manager --- --------------- . 916} 870- 6067 ; ages@saccountyriet

Description: Administration of County of Napa' s liability & property claims! Estimated annual
1195 Third St , 0- 20, Napa, CA 94559 new clairn volume: 40

Project Start, 1980 Project Status: Current

Kerry John Whitney, Risk Manager 707) 253- 4821 kerryWhitney countycifnapa orgfiti

City of_Surr V-V-,AE Description: Administration of City of Sunnyvale' s liability and property claims
456 W Olive Ave Sunnyvale, CA 94086 Estimated annual new claim volume: 103

Project Start: 1995 Project Status: Current

Anthony Giles, Risk Manager 408)- 730 7503

CSAC- EIA - Pool of`216 ent& es ( 54 CA counties) Description: A preferred provider for administration of pool' s primary liability & property
75 Iron Point Circle, Suite 200, Folsom, CA 95630 claims Estimated annual new claim volurne: 300

Project Start: 199' 7 Project Status: Current

cMike Poll, Chief Claims Officer 9 1 6 8 50- 7333 in sac- era, org

A Y- of RAa ti  hcL
2729 Prospect Park Or, Rancho Cordova, CA Description: Administration of City of Rancho Cordova' s liability and property claims
95670

m,....-- 

Project Start: 2008 Project Status: Current

Mindy Cuppy, CMC 916) 8518721 mcuppy@61yofranchocorclova org

City of Richmond
450 Civic Center Plaza, Description: General Liability Claims Handling and Administration
P. O Box 4046, Richmond, CA 94804

Project Start: 2004 Project Status: Current

Ki rn Greer, Risk Manager 5 10) 620 60S eer ci richmond ca us

i' r Description: 

6520 Platt Avenue, Suite 250, West Hills, CA Administration of CharterSafe liability & property claims Estimated annual new claim
91307 volume 120

Project Start 2009 Project Status: Current
I' ll", — ----- . . ........ 

Sue Bedard, Risk and Claims Manager

I I - I' ll, ................. .. . ... 

818) 429- 3474, ( 818) 709- 1
ueB@, ommunityRS corn; 

Sbedard@charlerSafe net

Sari Francisco USD Description: 

1011 Waersair _ San Rafael, CA 94901 Administration District' s liability and property claims Estimated annual new claim volume: 
5318 20* For SFUSD George lfills investigates EPL cases, predominantly EEOC comptaints, 

Project Start: 2005 Project Status: Current

Cathy Bar 415) 241 6054 burr a u a d e d u

eoj mxp) 1,0 wy"pa', 10 In" 

r 5, 1 jeer yro"',/ " NAM, ' M", 

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Tab 4

Scope of gvrtrnrdr

omirga VpiMs tna^ owfl' inard uta b st d, raadlires prc, cesses avid pA' uar . CJUIOS iuu o4S r) R3., ruzIally' Best
n' acttp e,,, Iun+. y ffrnrrnno r tt 1'G, dumudad ptt poudr, rrvdrus , app' Aoj'na riattll!i1110a1 par. pW41 Ilirnpaaftwnit to, anntta - alld

Ga°raauga IH: ii, n ann,pu, tr,ru i tahhru°a' the pl' W, as3. 0r 6 " xold pu( oGed uios au.utihva.d in tlxMairui.unall in
acraur: 9an r tia011has , lluuu rit prOiritlua oad' 1 ua, gIAbfia, n gild u0qIi. ui en'] K, 00tS' 

At Gaaraya dp' is we W!, p' ava a claws aardduoatta. r' ra llvrda iiia to lnisa, osfiydattr,", docuurun rnrut, onnguufiato, wun, rd

y Girnttr-; uvo nrtin n ! is hhilo fouurrndaatt i u,nun of good claims andhfigattdlarno iCt a r, "aiuu r,u. 0„ rdru anpr nn Ilno. lur vr. aup' 

urununnraauynmovA, This phibsolphy is rarrutaarod on as i unuu dau5ttarnd'urnq that raiix rdu`aaunf' un lion# arua„, I!,,, 
both fiii no uclau and Sar; Gal1” arae Ilaastt wrvcd by vorii( hua„p dracpon11her W oonr°duuraa the ttiequuancy arid
evoiR' y of uadraonns, anda,, A) c, rn thir, yo ( JO au. rnuuu, tta) Pr duWa tlhnv anvoraign. a, ostt Of thon: aru china. Ga-. uyyra

HMS' cla i ni„ G" vainrdloung por),c ; uyuara , oie tauaolt on d: dnun knovadaadpya 1: pnivaat wady contact vaarlkdn ; aG1 invuopnan,"nd
nunuttiics Ileo lips o nainta' pn pounaS , Of dmO n- uunnuMicatiiaaun and raalloplart., not r: iundhy ttpn, o uunu; uuoe ddche nii, Ibut

rh;' D nAlthnttllnrun apunduTonmt, Tllnrrrall' aun rraunugrn p flh uvqu. uirns an aborru' A IhDo iMade to cx,u nttact ttdnra

lo0MPiion" vuui0reed and pllnu* dailiinaantt n: nutihn n 24 hoiiw,s, Up oin u. nrtilliicall. io n of any ru,,, vv dfPm1nai, a cid; irau is
rruottuanttod in iaunr datalbaso irawunaaard0urru I'1t Systterin aricV a Me is ostabVospncd and a sugr) o d Ilo an

w1ju stao by p, lhr, A. cou; rril on' u111' lia r, u, uu.npaorvisaar, ILho file ds Ithir, rosjjlnransiiV i OyP of tho "^dj a^sttaor, rau4 u
the Account vka,'ays havprury vrjil4niing knarnAodge of pa, io n 9ung and vpa rarn filler iii
pho a couuro's d at abna" rwa

a', unrge Il iiillla, rna i nRairunn c41 ad U Wtt +: mn,- JunnS anus mwloiciliao nuc, r„ veIDII°ypa HASS oaSCS ua uaIvk',%v

yst aunrr to Inns uic aacc uo tio urd. raW Ilae a ding, MWIru, rll M^ ud! VG by ph( D! adjiu° ap: ar
V. s" 11 aM r kff r di4" tt n ttnu. V" tt" r", au. v1arauo ap:°nriata4rrnuN k,airn also
mloot to adisc'i,ms tdnic, A"Jalch IlJ. X' u" aanttrrrn high awp.na su.nua a„ dalinn> p ttulras il. a., to aonallyze dam

arru. urr, a + y, c. aonndcaarc tGnraivrpintt> u, arnrpdou , la" nllllonge data°ua aunanllw dsis tu, . aunllnaaun uar apaunr collu. unle nt, 

pttd+ ruo %nk-'rnnnntt. uasun s, knrbu. nd Gararyya 011x" Qu a1hry an S, auuuarnaiv tttnaaor d k aunr:d pioccduios rain Il. nas ttruunurvurd
in Tab 5

A. Claims Handling

Garnrryrw II dulls M p-. uoai rrnpfly maalkru u p as rrtdaiurun NO anttttr, u runc"eiputt of the dallrnnfrom fflhuna Iy. uRy' aa; vnapd as
au vosfig atrr chinc, aaund ounir, klo ntts, avlhniivdn may be tiu!, suudjoct of such dahrn auapaurisl dlh i) Gity, and
Jouvu: nrnnrrnur n' d nnan, erpop, aruar a d , r„ ttV aur att; anu. utqnniptta: d r;d, aairins

arr' p, r II tli h ” ia^ a a,,.,, s ai nd avaduu,ate ttuna nati..uirou and extto nt oll a c.h a aiinni, aincu osttuak.) Ifiuulhn dadm

for upo, u" , rap d,rama o' s, pmpnarpay loss, i nnveturdattiruui a, apeinro a, , ainir„d VayyaN rtsrapon " es
corgis' I hflu.' iMV . ui auuire duunnvulhy daou- an IlnsnrnOiin , iiund udiung ffor llaa+a upi vvuddn a. 11rni ruintts uv prayi nay cllaiiun

u or,' iin uaa I; o unu: „ b n, du uyp

r" elorruan " d +N! ii, d. oik rorniincr, RVin un - ed ffar ado feivm a , pa ^: aanonlatt i run, rd; a; o nruunr pnd prupl cou.urnsem ' -' rid

nnrn4nPniton hlV iq"a fio n rldjvvt'y i i" lira ".. p lrnattlio n of ' danttrorrn' aa atlnn':d sulbP"+' tjattnrDrV : xm4isioll shall he in add by
th"o MY "n l' i orraa i ., uarre vvitlin iiripcW ,, ffrnu- n Goopa, 11 kflsn. 

r oip c Hill", ra^ ya p+ uapr srt ci aiwis to tt8une' xccss insivoi, and oiorlk with tthr i nsuurr> u on, a avpairri  a n  ., 

l noyraus po- u acr, r a m o", ytt d ur;,- pau4ra;. uuuu. inu, anund, unrlidtRunp u ur. rpuaW, u<. aR^, p nnu. 9' n tko", uunsuuuu. r" a nu urauUuun

nu.uvl nap" , d ttl'` uu;° ny " aff i tt, pno Gunuuuuu a-, o-. 

ry " arr; a' dad' ^," aaar a, durn drae. 
tt i vn< raa„ra aar Nar yod.. rr, ytaa i oyraarral(:, r, ratl d'.;" prrdsra r fs°aasn 

Ml



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Goral go ifill"; r,rvM (" ollidki" Ali 11, 10dicalo -' mid"' ik6'' Iid " ilotasido" agip-0111leillis ill coillphallice %' Alh

Socfloii I I d r4 the li" Allvl"" A, iiiidiliifiiva a oqUd loi opolfing Gcorgo i H1115, 1,01ock-alio Cor il 46 III oo

il"I'lam is I' loadnid up lw Pour uOsldo, J, i3alnns R: v -oh!V Rijlld 11 R :: 1A, 011C l A 1ho
1r" al' 1111 Ira spoi ds irr(I' me( fialoly U:: i i hw ing any relaled quStlloirm 011

chaflongos Illd crisuics app iw Ossary pap'" vvuik and lJocionclitatiall is cii) Illploled in a tlllnel d
li,onncii The toam flSO ITI, 0<05 SUM 311: ITIOlidfly data wi' A rcgiess n,,poids aro ar( lliate aiW

curilimt, zlild flhaP Hm Silaff ra alvva v" 1fuu11y trallind aivl up datod on IVdSP, SCINI::', NOR an,J

Niliodicaii'D SoiAwde, Allaicallion

G, oCqo 1 fills kxds III lis I( S dW, I J' Al) COed i0Sj::Ii( M%llh" J( JQIICIO" L, and oir apots

10 SlLibwgalloia: 1Joiris iu[ Offort to pr: o" 10IC: aSQZ, SON" Icd byWo Ct, c4 1, cirion Giovc b)y way
Or (" Cill 11 IN011M iv <:lo 1- Irligo

Goa> igic Hifls: v01111 pim" Ido a dilsugnatcd cdalin ad klrAliur I Hie C"Ity of 11 oilion Grove Georgo Hills
alsrc) aclkiv!) Vvlodgax" and corlflmiln:: u tho dInlin allplistoll, inai be, lnuhiali co:Ment

by 11. 1va Clt y of 11., eii u lon Goa ViD rkI11 h1g fl liO kIll[ 011 tho

B. Litigation

vnoigo Ilfillls has di!i%, olOjI) od n d"

IliojjoflotairiBest
F", ioclices Chqhns yi`andhrlgi A1 anajainlnd a i

Pvodhres I" nr" gatllm Manag, wneM 111, 10P0, 111 vvii-tich lioclw' le aM Irn qi, iiostod i oullillicid anill
coillfiltnilId I. J01111olev, AH Googo Q1111> : odli sskm' s lniuslPiflimv ifllue plocn,Dsos, ond procoduies willilined

In tho inaniaAls in ac(!:ordalloc ovillh a dlclWs spocific mplatlorls, i equ4cirleMs, 

ooigofills: )"" 1111 a" Ihm cly 111111onRoil 1111olgatiliol' i eHoioo and cornmunk' alo rogi, flin 11 ly voth H Ile CRY (' if
i mon Giaioid' o silaff rugar<fillq lol, igaGi' dm

aolgio fiilk: understaloids siotflcioinont nuilhoNly 011 llilgak-Hd dallivis Inrulust IhI allopoviod by III Cill' y
Ol: i OITIOiiii Glovic staff prioll till hlnlirq Maya 3plt, vlsd M VVilh tli' i! dalmant'!, al1oiney' 

OOJJqO 1jgjU-OS I djllo to ally S clffleirileM cxoirif, rcinro, wo and/ oll oq: d cowlsell, %%Ndhove is

0ll) j' 1lOil) 1lWC" ofl prOVIdO 9 YAOOM 21R) II/ Sis fl 0110 CaSO'' II[ dilding I) Pfill3m and
Ol: 

gage d His iiMll infl- irm I' ll w lity C' d i onroor) "; Irdam, sloff of aill siottlorrloIt rdtfileii s reciogved fii oo i ii tho

dalinallt cii thin r: [ alimaOs aticircy,, 

Geoligo filis vvill! pilovide, Olgallon onaiiopment or ltl g" Alci a. , s clonbolillng i aclJOifies, 

iii5luring cally opililiolva aim, Cs) ITSI( 1011C< 3 oV C1Dl` o1l11Ulfto1l11g OgUlwh/ VV11111h

dc'Jonso oxmimrxd' arld Illonitoring rost fillq htlon

C. Financial Accounting

wadai Hiisj I:: lIoanaall Accoulibrig are I Best

e s clams HandhoU 111wnw,O wn d cmfwiffici civ::AiM,6z" d pari unigotciqw4 oL ftarnthi" 
City of Lemon Grwl,,o, Pzqlwloilil," of r,! allrV' And , XIAATX': Div typil:;"10y it"qiuiesa(' d handllrq g

Vd nSWIR311( l 03P IIC" II, rjiv (,' wjjjciiaow iffli:!,2, loicakd n Rlancho

callitova, Vvitil Ow < 1liliit xlhlng up ; s ( ll": A co! l III' M puiq luso dho 1- d' icGicand lwck lillo
dall" I al' o then given to, an a0k- lsr' d sigilcir Owl -o flhicdc, zw t. ay thoy wo roMov),v1d by
a sn' a"* nd wx; ilmvii 1U1hf) 6':fOd SligilaTille wild si lllal lcd' Pim' lOvo PwyI!::; utlll' zN" d by" llany of ow
clloiltsa a 1 pirolle' a I0111 fiGRIC), il' I III sl" Ikwv' 114 IS SC,,Ilo t13 GOIC4 gill-, Vdlilllla foii balkan6rIg, 

YU

emon d ow 

ME



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

the tasl', is dono b'," Greorgo 1, 1 His' Nnanci, M Accountant I he, C !it y M Lenicni G. over can conducil a
filloilrJu Mldil O fh(, fi' Ws alox"unit a any finie f0 OMSWC, ffiC illltOgl-ily Of VIC, XCOUIii#, 
iliik, settle" 604 -ns O' Rhin estal.',fishod firnits of KW-Mi' itf"j, and M111 consult wiflh, Phar, C4y of Lnrnon
C rnve reg airman g liwfl -, xceed the Ostall- flishod iimii Of auflioNy, Olf note— Go0i' ge
Hik, wflH adivolly vvuik On aH inegotiafiom vM1Nn tho, wilhoiity [ ponbod by Ono City 0f
q ninnoin Giro " o and - 1, 11aill forure aH api) ropiriato tckwscs, arid offici, do jing
docurinif" nits lorthe claiiin5fillo

Gnlm-go' Hillswilll 17' rovide a copw, of aH choolks, n,, ciuchers, oiwmiranil s dmv,,n Iby w' to pay 11bniniefills
of liar,,; Clply o f p onion Gwoo dain' ib, IInn addiflon, Gooige Hill: a prw,Jde a inionfil, dy
check/ vr,)LK, 1110i- uQq Steu of aN tiansw',firinS, inado Ui the pohod, 

Goir')iqo p Oil' a n. mid<mr:; aiids t1hin Cftf( of Nwnori Grovc uarosaH, ms tho 6ght to conduict a fiiianciiM dUCht
Of 010 ti' U' St WAXiLli' it b) ensui, o ffio intoigu' Oy r> f the accoi, irO

D. Data Products

Gon) iqo ifilis ha, devoioiji!! d a pioprietairy Best Practices Ciairns Hana"Vinci hfanuadwhich
all roquaslod steps oitkfinveid and ci:' nftrino( f bolow, AH G(,',wrqQ p g l g q S N C g p IS (, 1 u' S u 11 W St

inlfn' dv tho prr)a,(-, scrs and prociediucs outlined iin tho irrionw-ill in accordianco vvith ciao dient' s
spodifir, ruins, ipqujjkjtions, and equiranic! mts George 1110hs irser, statc- cifli-(o- ail claims

Sg' pffivaio O"VOS' ond Cilaiinas)- 111, oflh have ' cad of-( iy acros,, rolporfing, 
4 111 d a rio ho Clity of Lon -ion Gra, iicvwiill rconinue to bedific%dioini abififies unniatchied in the

p p o o, d by " 311 MSMI C a nis, 

Goorge iliflilis "%' ifl ijio" 6dr, za coninputoi6zed Ilos5 anallysis and SUMiTialy irport ow; h nion, 1111) as' 
iA,Mod and various iiasponrNe relports on dornand at no addifikmat chargo f1licaso 111CIrr" 11 Wjr) 

App,endiix A iiii TaID8 ciif f1hir, Irr p) onso i; oii sainjAc George Hilis" docirion i- naking repoits " OhOl
vo' tYpic") Hy provil- 10 ow pifl iiliic eintity Chorift; 

oaige 1IUls ,, 41111 providic, loss ii wi i data and raqikfirouJ iollmis for ajaJuJ- d o clv' 12j ri'-, J" , jjjdoijjag' ain 11, 
ariaiysi

Geoigc sort" N11` 0 " Y' Aoins ar", ftndows IPba, old, avaHabio 24 houns pcday, 7 days pioii
imverflk, anio abir, to pi- ovidr, ein' wW axclhianpis

Goorgo, ph; ruilently conitilaotsO/ R1111 syd eirna, who pprovndo!i; a " hiri5tod orivionivicnt" uotikzing
syn' km m ' as V111(." P uw"' t

HHL o" O pIlovide, "' nnljjplianico vl' itlhi rojj: xMing iir"C', uiionloift for H"') I) Hty' Irm' kidlrig
MISW" 111VIo, ond' m &- cfiori dI tl of ffic, Medicam, iikn( ficaid, an'd ' 3010111 F xtnin7, ioin Act of 20,07
OIINISFA' ), ' n w, toarn m-spondnwi s iioirateily lrn <, 1110111ts IlnaOrig any rjuro;"asfioiv, 

COHCOIMi' q" 11 chaliciigo"_" and i alk nnow , c saiiy pajj) enxvmk and docnimintation iS GOiTipiinied
ill" I Wricly a' aiwro" 

Hilks, ' lJll i" iw"' Pck" tiainin!::11, ,' uj" Ipoi'JaiO ro4h"Varo Pxc!::s o YtOir ( ity of
F4 -'k iYL"maqo k; u, Ijjp chinn iiOommfi) Iin and rt ha aF aoqunod mrid im

E. Additional Services

30- 

ewl "", I Ml' ( C' wo Im. 

Pmpo. rad r. a)' ny d"' nol ( OW" 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

G4) oiqo HIII., vnh attend hea6igs, sloftlei-ninint contiallairclos, confoloinces with deforisia coulmall" 
Sli' lalill dauiins coulit lxirx: leieidiiigs, and v115efings wlth i, Udfrstadff vifien loquiroiJ, 

Soq) ugi;! I- hils vvdll coirrinul-,Icaim vorNng, urally, oil IiIi lxrson—vv tli, tilic Clfy of 11 onion Gin),,,e
oiaff as I is an ( dernent or tho scivkxM cxjj) odcd, 

Geolgo W11h:„ U19d,eiist:::Wds allt leclords, Moo, tiiaiils, Iipts' < xmnlaullon a jpies arld officii, rna c;+kals on

dahms adiusting "Idl,"litV ick? V011011pouJ On 1111he C'llly of h 111111win, Grove ctaI1111, 6 isthe pllopletyl of the ( 
I

Iiy
of Lillinwpi Grove and u. wSt IDD ifllr)( gWGNNJ I1111 gooid ordor mond coricfi6M Up) 011ll ierinlination ofthis

collba' A u%'Ith thc wJ UStkug fillft Club of ienion Gii,ove sll' iali nii A Em ieqUmlto payaliy
adiiJitional, cosli II the [ jra, asfoji of filles the Ch' ( of I,, eirxirll Ginolve, 

Geoiige, Hills vvilill zMpind aIll Tirieciiings Wth th,il:! City ii!; f Laml Grove slaffas equested, 

Goioigo i His W1111 ba avalla( flo toii file audit by the CRU y whicin requested, 

Gcxngo i Rls wlli co1ojl) 1i imrrc vAlthi fili, i and prograrn audits viOli Cill! y ilesIgrrzrlled luditors, 

GeQigo t fills 1, 101111 bii a),,allallik to ii 1 sjoloi' 11111' jj! i) tenlially upoir shoit noircla, tic, a nnalo r a: Nnieigii mcy oir

catasticq llhe Involving poil,!!mfi-ai 11ainins Geoqe IIhills cari restroind iminedlaielly in the case of a
Callforroa id i sa all le l' 1/ 1; ata sl[ rio p) Ili i:! liavinc mirny offices and a ii! fiaep hendii oil: adjusterstIll' iloughout

Gin,arge i fills tiM111I toovldo q rnontlilkV clain iis dlairy, iof alt ojj::* n filles arld oiAer riavlew notes , m . Win
loplAing sysilern, 

30( qgr!n ifills i'0111 provl1d!: halinIng to the (., ilty of Lemoin Gllovo nminagois and, au pea0: 1: wllls Orl
goinelat IllahallHy issuos, k ilss l7oliniroll, waringemarit responslUlitios, aivi 11wactices to iininwove
m,diuiclkin of Mod dahnim, 

Gewgo 11 fills MI11 riovIde ainadl corninuinlralrorls fix the rtiasignated Clalins adjiust(m' to the Cri y of
Lemon Gircive staff

Gmgo lfiflka Mi plovide an achninh' irafive inalluai cm clailITIS pnmvrreaaSiin n, Il. 0 V11110 City ') I! 01111011u

Re 1,boniv ev Req-, fe, fior Mobo I .. z- Pw i AWV

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

arrange p fik Expanded SNih ogahort F:Recovery 11Irograrn fiat Ent kk-, 

Sub - Rosa and Fraud Investigations $ 85 per hour

Expanded Subrogation Recovery for Public Entities

Total Program Fee 30% of amount collected with a minimum of $ 250 per claim

Subrogation Recovery Services to include: 

Subrogation Recovery Client Set -Up
Meet with client and review organization structure ordinances

Coordination meeting with Department Heads to establish role and contact information
Development and review of Customized Policy and Procedures for client and staff
Review reporting requirements/ implement Standardized Forms

Subrogation Recovery Claim Handling Set -vices
Set up claim file on receipt of incident; maintain claim file on each polenfieYactual incident reported
Assess and evaluate the nature and extent of each claim

Prepare proofs of loss statement and forward to appropriate party
Iniltate settlement discussion with appropriate party through resolution
Provide an account manager and lead subrogation adjuster

Subrogation Recovery Reports
WeeklylQuarferly— showing number of cases, total lien amounts pending and total recovery obtained

iMetricsT' Business Intelligence Reports with Executive In -Person Debriefs, No charge

Lessons Learned" Round Tables for Public Entity Risk Management Teams No charge

Geotge M!His' 49f" tetirlci 1' 1` 1 Prcgrwn for Flubhr, Entifiirs

Galorgo Hills' GMot16cs' BushieS5 h1to6hgem" o, ROp) Wt:l iIdLide iin In pierson doWof hair a
momibc, ii d Gooiigo ! I Wk, 11:: x0cluflVa o@1111-- an rusk eadois, Gooiric, INNS

rl,a,, tflrowd Import Wfli tightly tarqc, lOd, on ch,, imand data for opOrr- wini ( 11t, p of Ornon
Gicvr foss qn l 1117* 00111b'( fl and ropq: Wmg, I ho (, Ry of 11 ennon Gr1W. 10

1, 4111 bc, a[ fle to cloairly Wonfify a ost diivos, monitoir D:) mqrami pmforilinavicc., go:) n, 9111d
oppoOuinities for, cost roducflon Rw,, ropoits wi(O iluItLl6fi, VO ',% dth ( 2,,, S)' 40- 11KIld CLIMO,r]"[ GkaiTrl d,-ita
td rnpWc,, rpaphs, chaits, and

Ge,orge Mills' ' i essono f earnedfRaund TaNE: 

Wo offeir pcarwd` nypor IwncoG In loond tabk fcwnM and in 010 W((),0CMqS tri

imp "' 116flical pJJWC icnflty rldvirris of c4fiickmdwand cost ooiMrrjls 1hoy' v,iM nlioO the (
7,

0y of I on- iOn
Gmve loci rio bAAo fwmro pirnvojlficr t, Gir" orge Mfls, mond taNer:, am barud or, ou (" Ik" nt' s no' ed

ind Tlhoy nwige ir, t, u. il7Ject twtatturfrovr hn, u t'e'a usc goro, raflod oss conuol frjil

SOLMd jusWwss dc( J3( on nlqkjng fo ccordinatOq JJXOf] 11@111', f0rU':, Qd W AS." Of " IICI) J` Cogy LO
Oilhancu cilIont1-JN6011v" y

N

32- 

lufrem u fips Pa av i Ĵoaft



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

11 " a kp 5

Quallty Conficil l2n) CEOIMS

z
SSAE, 16

WN) 
Ga w90 lNills has SSA11:::- 16' 1ype I Report Comp hance Status
1 h statolnent " m ":"Itandaids for Al tr,,!::'tatloiii, Eingagomlicints ( SS 16) replacvci GAS 70

C011difiCaH01111 qS OU1' 11Kh15hy' b presfigliDus mark of adirlle' vvininnil on June 15, 201' k (; eorgia Wls

lec::llvccf offid-M lype 1 Repolt Compharice St: amus hni 2012 and confilweto Inrousrrt and

exc'ood fl -in Rolx) it' s rkpmous wisUrRnon o) 

nlgc' kfillls' clliIarlts Of oUl' jrlfl' V'n' ojjjta'atj l.[ dlljg procedules, jjx!'uhicies, and colitmls, Goiolgo H1d115' 
Sa, All: p6 dypu I lRepoil C'ornphanco also lecogni,- es l) iur filn, n'! s bolt pracfice and

flas lhe ( monfloks ln jj ih<,e ' whoin osirig BPrhjnology to provlde amiratc, and secule I FIA and , 111=' A
firlancW lnficirlinailon, 

Coolge, fillls' piosiidi:: Int, Clalmis Adn-dinlistiaboin, Mii : Ranidy lRen( fig, R11:: 1A, CCIA, and & coa ge

p W115' Qualhity Asswainco Mall lagul" hlls' Katlhkepi VM1111lams, % A/ CCA, CFII:::, conduct Ilrost practice
oncrsglfl and lntcrnad clalnvlr n hand1ling aiudlts for aH of", (; oorge 1141113" dionts to ensuic, quallity
In anagromoinli and prolper resolulces are alvmys gat 0p') hlMlnl evels In allidifion, oiflsldn, chiallt
rendoil evaluatlans and ckilini awfiil: 1113% 110vv'! n; all' o COMIJUICO" O' d fol, CoMlstierwy In oxfolriofl

L- valuakln Croorqa KHS lf" Ihaappy is r, vark opqh t1ho C&y of 11- emiciri u3vo' voto develalp , spa 1ec: lficaHy
Wi ore d qw-AlifycorlhO ar, vlows all<] rnolrlcto sultthe CRyof I onionGiiove' s . podflcand unlkpw

noods

Gonirgr" Ill lllls' pirolplinfilly best prarllus, au" %virltion, lin our firin: s Clainis Procedares 41anuW
Nch set' bfoill' i poficles and piocedues that triust tw, falllow ud ln acroldaiu', ca % A ilfih Pic sjjpel

Ides anill e1jullir" lnontS Of OU" CHOHL 111 d t1l"") P al -0 da a+; plan' ZldpU' Ael, P011 ( 1:111111111, 

Cowpo HHL a cokvv Vstovn lo DIMHO' & CCURMO d,PW 11l WJpLlStOl' dk! 1NC,1S, 11lClUdlIlIg 1111110- 111Ufl

lowlir"'us l -, y filho ' adols' hnr rosjjponsOWo tri, any acc' ount, aunt' thin ACCOLHId l' 14ar], MY' F W11- IrM
Ill ledpiolirlatc  hose rovlovvi tako place al diffelloind fiwvn, incluidng vvIlhon lioss lw- is ale genelab

to Ibe celtmn the linfonYWhOlI ( OrNalded to ffie chent by ovay of Illat loss amus ln accunat<;n Dwns
an", rc' viowr' d wc. oWv— avld wilfll he rovkw' rd as sluch by Cl of AccountKanage 

ia) be all Clily oLnrion Clvv' " uo geffing Hilo attonlion they noed andCdr ser ve, d'' Fxlh
din,lyu.a vliw? inclucios an ull"Jid'lle of tho 11111an n4 Achon WOA), w g! wird iowald

wso[ atilon rO tuna caor, and rovlevv of u< sorvo odoquaicy, Each He dhmdd rontaln all thin

gr n, ai,-, ted, and documinlatk) n of had Lochveon irdevant jj ialllcs, Shoulda fio

11) o lnilis,,orig anytIn0g, t1ho A01LOUl' it Manager ' vl111 floficc and follov fl1hrough vOlth fllil' adpIjMcr
ns'qVqrlod to tho ac"' ounk

d wch 1' ecrce HhHs Orion No cooN rovk?vved Irrm, werOdy by Gromo HiPls Ros^ dcnt, 
Ronrhi CCL 5, 1 jrja¢ted MOOS JrC dMic QIU,: gat) Oy Tiin

kDVIOY'V' s mvJ alu1ts hcl4wjw9lgc: ond moasuf< lhn pertoumne of chlnnin ,,,, ork h Giclorgin flE

Md " vhrthe 4hw f :: tnndzmJ'!' imi bi-,-' l, l pmdccs ara ffidso

us wpm , v'NIhcui 0",, has effe: cpkaOyi

C"(' vv I Ili' (" odvqrarq dm, 

R" Io'iu" M jor Pnywa-' d u. tan at f "' vo( ovr" 

33- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

113cducod ovorolll pondlng cWns

ROducod fiflgatud filles peri& iq
4, Rediuciod the a voiajje Vo i1pan of hi!::Jho ca os

Established arKi manitmod dr-fense couirisO 11rudgeto

Reducod ftlgatlon exponses

Ton N10) filo-5 wie chcoon raindarrifly each quarteii for crach aefpmfeir and Should a filc

puce rrrrSGhg anythiling, there iS fOOCAN thiOlUgh v6fh t1he adjustirm assugnvd to Uric accolunt, 

AccounI teairns u1100t MMIthly ogarding Vic! INatch Ust" actnwno Ihiugh exposure cWms- fillos to, 

vavial, z(-, data accuracy, conipaMl thOUghts, or chalRengo challos ali' Wysb to enilhanco clalm
slaftlernent, 

At George l fift, "Sigivice ls t1l olperafive w-prd 0 dlenI 51owJces IIt is the foundatlon of Ow finn' s
cultuiv and pmcesses, WO rNiOrk wi a collaboroorve, cmW1111110010CUsed team with our chents" i' llok

nnanagemeint staffs our rrruluap intoint b6ng alcIpi, coniate ami fak, Sotionmints" Iharavelintparrn of

loss, and the lessening of the sievehlyraf clakns' SupjjpounIeid try tedinrflogy and rel.rodhig
rinodWes, George 11 WIS' CUMCNIM servlice toafvu gukios and supj:) oos dionts pun a firnely manner, 
fiainsftlioridng thimn hiito a bustud sysloinin and fostoiling vallued, pong tomr allong the
viray. As nientomd eairfien lilir t1irs response, Gooige 11 Us' GWrps Praceduies Marua/ seta fwth

ow poficuos, procedurcs and qLmltkt ssurair=: Icontrostops," 11, Istel lralow wa George dWts" 

bir, 1 p) u' arfirQ pflgjj) d' Y rimorlibored of whilch also assulance ( If optlioUol

CUStWTM' service ard offirlency. 

George pbftp hliglhly- rnoojjtOu red, qkmfity focused, cWmi xocesses are as foflovoa: 

M

34- 

11 , Wthihin me ( 1) III) LIShiess day of rer6pt ( if an assdgnmant and acknovOodgeineint of

inc6lot of the clhii- in assiginriroint fmi' ll the, Uty of Lernon Grove, FA Goorge HOIs cWros Me

wilIll !!) c act ulp, Goolr90 fills WlIll aftempil noNact WtIr : all leriowmm dlalrrvoits, and a dia4ri
6vastigatlon WN ljogan

2 WRIlilo two ( 2) Illamwmuriesa days of roccillot of assiginiment,, afp filler, M1111 Ilrua circ'atod and

resmied, and aH nocessary data V,41111 II) CI uFnl) Ut hlb') t1he claiim pnfmrnation sysiicn" n, 

3, A d4i), systiorin %vlH Ilbe estabfishaaJ to Pwmiro 1f.hat rack assigned caso pa re' llp"NPej on, a

011- 61cly loasis, 

4 T11he Gev) oqp, HlHa adjustor coninjilhtes ani inlfiall u, avle, vv of clalm MtWn fi,, e ( 6) lmsllness

days and nnartdtuas thie enfity Nvhothen thie cilalin c; tirninly and sufficiant - Fl, ils confirnns tho

danrn corr) jjollles voth ft nef'),orfing rorjulrominnts set Forth Ini, filhie Caldonnla Govomirtrent
Code, 

rorge ) IiMr Compmg 1w
Repfjfli"'/ u



m

5 PJ11 payment, resleivc, riivkiions, and 1Fillle 6oshngs v4H bo pon,iptly and acc;AmMe[ y rollpoftd

to thic, unflty in thic, ii- noriffilly clailinis status vepoil., pf iptlueled and Mfllh the dahns
clatallbasp, 

0. Sefflement autholldty S obtahied filmn the alnhty 41 flm inannor plrc5c iblod by die, entity
Im kw to negotiath, g sefflerm t, 

7 Setflemont checIlks vvtH Ilolo. Issued to ffic cliannant withn five ( 5) Ill!) iusiness days of

mceipt of the sgned umeIlease, 

8. AH Trefund aincl iiiokled choc4o; o4l be Ilmocessmnd MCWn three ( 3) bus4less days licif

9 George Hft' cnahns nmilwgerllsupeovisw WIll: unnn~afhllahi . separate dwues aswarnaanted and

other audR coirifiohs ripcessary to Tavlow andhor onsuio alill chaps s for Nraflhm!::,,s and
quahty asswaince in aH c aliirs Manilards aind epwfing reqOrniiincNs, 

0, F), Iynlenot aii ud tw.utiuu iie,sw nes NvM be coniprlsplcl of the c tegoa ics H." ted hl R 11::: P, 

1 Pir cinQj Mfl, R mcpwi' lted, recOlvc monthilly cWrn status reports wltllh detafled
breakdoms clif n?sevvcs, as splecNed„ adcliflonall categodes wflIN bie added at flue cwitfty' s

request, 

r 'mjxh`,r " orvp J)' O, I mf, 
Reipme m lRrqws1jbr hupowl(' , M of wmn (,- nw, 

35- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

MM

AH Gocirgc wpol' s hcqp Ow chc"nts rnanw'Yuthc r Prjgams by movdhig waV
Uno v., OlWy and Confi' M ( It thc,iiI- jjbrocossc" s ard pwcoduios, Goorgc H110s

repoits holp etern-kc 4 ophnimn crlaipn handr q 110',' dS airo, Ilbeling ' not and ' pf jj') 1r0p) PH rOSCUrcer, 
D110 issUed anid usiccl do a P: 6rncfly and dfickiM mannW CLHr GHCMu OpOWU, 3SSiSt limi tpjo! p) OSIJ- 
011' Wys s rovkwv of alll dahis, eIabfisihlk-ig cssons kmi-iied and qualfity coiliuril Oittirivomnant
jj dOhllz Ah George H& uenpnanrts are Sent to U110 cdhnnt k Wf 0g11) eg fon-riat, alul " 41 can be

Maoc av,ad able on 05k H pe, tyyDkC-, d f() u CUP dl( 11105 h') roc( Jvo bss nws olfhor inionthily, quaftidy, 
roi annuaffy, Ty (an ;:Jlovv riurnart valiiw oii ` wi of" a schodLhiud jj! x) inf in fin- io ( c, q , tho ond of
tho rinonth, qmrtor, or fiscaV yoai), Our rcponbnq rnoiftflO, A110' M rGp) O, ItS to rWl juji MUItii) 110
forniats, Tho abifity to adjiws the crfeda oll a wfo: iyoneums thall a chont dccvdes tho at! a

requested and ody tlimd data, If Jrw; iis no noied to fifteii out unwartod [ nfonnaficirn, Roport " iuns" 
can bo aye noiated rnoro of Moss Cifton, as poa chiont n." Ods, P,  rico oxha cost, Please See ffie

Ap,joendix A, hi Talli 8 for sarnp os of the Goolign, IHlillllrs unpunrteluated bek), v )/ Ve are happy 1Coi
6scusr, oflhoi, rejjarjiln, nooded for tho rAy of 11 mnon

SarniAe 11Zieport I Check Register Repod

Piovidos kidvkivap or aiulfiplio I) aymords r4i a dWm is a rocord fo 

O@dh chilin

1111, SaiinjjAe 111: heport 2. Claim 0:? egisfer Repon

11: lrovdes ntiulfi kno 4&) rirofirin for eachi clahi ,,Ath d0leient buckcAs of 11),- A) aivents and
fl mIlk,<m out for q,)bmium dc,, qid

SarnphR F( elliovt 3 Transactinn Register Report

1n:Mdos dahn payniic[( otthin a spcdfir, pw k) d, 

SarnIlDi4e 110, eport 4, Diary Report
Fliovidas sWn-j work ccompleted and/ onin jj xoross of conijAebon

Saml-Ae Relaort 6:: Preliminary Initial F' roperty Report

Saii7olille Ropwt Greliminary Flioperty Full CaptionedRPImp' t

Sample OvAeWcs 1111" Rell) oils. Detailed DaNi Report
F: 1i1ovkk, adrflilkjnap hnformafian for decl, ik) ir raking and foiecast mj

rwiay of Gemgo we wsc SPAS GhOvns" anil ODS" ' 10GIMOIbI9y JS aluir PulAic Filtdty
Awingoincoil :"/ Menis uy, p U j softvwru, Ilor rrooting cknt nolods For the COY

of d rm"n( jn Grovo vve vvNi cmWIL211' r tl0 jS10 ffp11" uJS COFOm% "', Tho usill of SPA'S, CWin" ` for thic COY
of 11 urrion Grove orfluailrOS CjLV' SCH" OAX! Vvir,60mv -Acirein co ,, and rustoin i io, 11jimfing cafxal) flfihe,' , 
allo,, Ang mal - time, accea , s to doci' s6;) n nrakhig dAi, and Uicinds', 11 or " read oily"' accoss, 
re jjor' pnuij, ari, l rnoc!Wcafion - iNfities io ni,in-'et the Ct V of 11 ciiinon Gwve' nr nloods, con tnchriology
offc,6mt , avo u. uu rrof,61hod The C Roy of Ixrnon Grove a4aff ' 6s - asnuvod ea sally aoccsfl) k! data
h1fornuflon vO flIfirl [ 111bainc," Ir wJng a beuura pn, n5„' aOWn d 0,6th dine'( 1, 11' Odd oilly" accoss thir" CH, r of

Omon Gilove, slWll can . olc'('Jfic c4rdronk cla rn Nos and nMe- No,,,flv at air y arld

goilinirato dot, Oed rkairm 11, 1fronlafinin and cw-,(oingzed vppoits, Our modulle Is highly
ciinfkjuraW wild can he aw4conized Iferunnoot dliont riec",-hu v"'W-11 dohdiDd dall1r,' informa6on arrl

Ciu,%timi, and Adhrc Ncpoi,, u, w, Hy 24 hoiuas of equr,,a, A A it cinthly dovmlpoad
of cihAnis Oduckria payllients rico a pred0orn- h) ed format Can albo uc', gonelato' d

20 ( 3071, bWnbde

M



2 b 7
IFees

g: upzsu 1

83per hour

Claim Services including offireloverhead expenses Capped at $ 15, 000 annually
In the unlikely event of catastrophe, the cap weft require further negotiation

excluding expenses

Mileage $
0 55 per mile ( IRS Approved) 

Pot Fiole Claims flat fee unless referrexl to Small Claims Court, at which point hourly 225 flat fee

fees will be charged

Photo Expenses
2 00 per photo

Photo Copy Fxpense
0 25 per page

Transcriptions of Recorded Statements 3,50 per page

Monthly Loss Run Reporting
Included

Data Processing
Included

1099 Preparation
Included

rovfor lArg 1 ljmV Ird Lt or
15

IncludedIncludedAnnual Administration Fee

Administration
i rjchaded

Data Management W Ivoe(1
Account Management

l, ludod
Claim Reporting ( online, fax, telephone) olcluded

Detailed Annual ' Stewardship Repot I' lnrlunio,l
Electronic Delivery of Monthly Loss Return

One rime Data Conversion/ Program Transition Charge Estimated $ 1, 000
Cost varies based on current system used, amount of open claims, at(, Capped at $ 1, 500

I Molp

Sub -Rosa and Fvaud Investigations 85 per hour

lie Entities

I otal Program Fee 30% ofarnount collected with a minimum of $ 250 per claim

Subrogation Recovery Services to include: 
Subrogation Recovery Client Set Up

Meet with client and review organization structure, ordinances

Coordination meeting with Department Meads to establish role and contact information
Development and review of Customized Policy and Procedures fol client and staff
Review repot ting requirementsfimplement Standardized Forms

Subrogation Recovery Claim Handling Services
Setup claim file on receipt of incident., maintain claim file on each polentiallactualinrident reported
Assess and evaluate the nature and extent of each claim

Prepare proofs of loss staternent and forward to appropriate party
Initials, settlement discussion with appropriate party through resolution
Provide an account manager and load subrogation adjuster

Subrogation Recovery Reports
WeeklylQuarterly— showing number of cases, total lien amounts pending and total recovery obtained

iMetrics I" Business Intelligence Reports with Executive In - Person Debriefs No charge

Lessons Learned" Round Tables for Public Entity Risk I' Aahaga. mri" Teams NocPwjige

37- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

M

Appen6ces

Appendix A, Georqelffflsf) ec siorp M,.,&ingHepodSF), olples

Appendix B., GoorgeMlfs 0 'A

Cew,, e HIM ( wyw( y lm 
vx,,twpew j,o j,, ), nbo, wi ( :/ tY y mi, r, Wre

38- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Appendix A, 

George 1--fillis Report Sampie I

Sample Check, Register Repoil

Provides individual or multiple payments on a claim; is a payment transaction record for

each claim. 

Check Register

In uu, uiluu: 1- IM I: UW— I m ' 0

39- 

I T' i

It' DON!" M 11, 1 111111111 It I 11: 1. xl,a, no

Mc I' MO 1" Ik Vj"- 110" 0 I9' I' 0' V' 11' 1' 11'" ' 11P* I

UIN"' O M r """ X( 17d t I AN F I d 1 W h"' Ifol" wvI I IN

VI Irl OG" 1, C' c. 1 I " I

Xj J40 I

0111 : 1) iliq W. t", ftA

2J1 -'V 941' M f I ( t I X"111111411 Mt " WIMAN, w LLAI I U, 116

Pd , M PI Hm

hrV' 2VI4 I 4 WO11 M IM I MI 11 & I MAI I I I 1; 0 0j

d w1UIG M1mur" dmmm, 6 0 0 ; W' WOO V"C: 1 M

A 0 r — W —5F — 8- M— N SSAE" I 639

39- 



m

MR

I' ll/ 10u

ftw—' 

I UI

rc

F p—, 

C 1" Y/ 1" (- cwd) rmjI bw' 

Re' Vwow I# Ropu' sl / w llrvyw"' W dJ
I ' is r, lvxv



LFEEM- MMO-ont- 

Mmo

Tlnr . Ilill, W, I

Groplir' d, I lills Comj oyg blf
Eqppmw / v R,,Pq1ers1, jor of i....;^ ivn Gmve

En



Giegq rge lIfills RepoO Sw°inf°mdlle 4

Sample Diary Report

Provides all work completed and/ or in process of being completed on a claim

d, i1Ylllliri^, u

Diaries

r „ wd uu W gP1, xO M plllluu'u- ur MO yTy, a U6gp- a M. W. CN— d D. W wk" ., 

h.. MMP"p M, %WMM 11 rf, W, 0M,. I^';mho
4 W, d. 

s ) hk ka . tl' uafl pgYWq Il u' Ii10.1rrnLIIAun, I pl po5

rt Vhf gMYlub I; . A' I MJu'dk' m^ Vl w, ru', xV V' a' G' drvdRsy V ma'Mu>" M ftkatt 11, Vv fade rum, 

IIV' I w'; n 4', IM w,, ur; uv n', mau vmril

0,". tlX N' WIlu1 I'y YdxWNhub

1011prM 5iIlUkl?" 7 r. rnv' 6Yr d e" I 6y., ow 0.W 01 1 uxn WsuMM I::' o M

YMOV' M" ma I11111War5' WwN i': b" b

W' r' p* dWN

8102014 qMCWDIM nn"1 1110i X. W m, l pna''. m' sr rv r. lulUwu' w I al tm i¢ 
iY" 

V" a d a WI,M M i" FYI^ AO AM

0. c'° a+ r;ge I [ ate ( , ozmprrrn" Nu. 

I' dt qo ar^ k'are R ry r f ) Ile r r+ / J imou C,"nwo

42- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Ipli0lUs IRelf. oirt Sarinple 6

PRELIMINARY INITIAL PROPERTY REPORT SAMPLE ( WITHIN 72 HOURS) 

Date

To

RE: Client: 

Claimant: 

Date of Loss: 

Client File: 

George Hills File: 

This is our initial and conclud

116CATION:  

TYPE OF

LOSS

George Hills000

rei7ort in re and to this inru ry claim, 

ASSIGNMENT: We were advised of this loss when the claimant filed a timely and
sufficient claim. 

INVESTIGATION: We received this claim on XXXXX. The claim was/was not timely
and sufficient and why. 
ESTIMATE: 

LIABILITY STATEMENTS: 

SUBROGATION: 

SUMMARY: 

COMMENT: This will conclude our investigation of this file. We will place this matter on

an extended diary until advised to close. 

Sincerely, 

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY, INC. 

Sr. Claims Adjuster

W

N .; Paaraa. ae to Regvaa p) r" Prrapowl rt 110 aa/ I, " llon (" MY

43- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Hfll iilRep ort Saniple 6

PRELIMINARY PROPERTY FULL CAPTIONED REPORT Sample ( Within 30 Days) 

Date VIA E- MAIL

To: 

RE: Client: Insurance Company
Claim #: XXX

Insured: XXXXXX, CA

Date of Loss: Early March, 2013
George Hills File: XXX

This is

LOOPS
t6clalive re ort on this claim

N: XXXXX, CA

TYPE OF Automobile impact into corner of old service station, 
LOSS

ASSIGNMENT: 

INVESTIGATION: 

SCOPE: 

BACK STORAGE ROOM: 

SALES OFFICE: 

ROOF: 

EXTERIOR: 

GENERAL: 

ESTIMATION: We computed the estimate in Xactimate. 

LIABILITY: 

SUBROGATION: 

SUMMARY: 

COMMENT: We thank you for this assignment and the opportunity to assist you in this
loss. 

Sincerely, 

GEORGE HILLS COMPANY, INC. 

Sr. Claims Adjuster

Al

44- 

Rs^spFamp," o. i; ° o¢°. tA" ara° 1' rv Sr u, rJ"(.. raU `"'., rtr rd r, aAvbl°" 



M

90

au

re

2r@60

50

r110111111

George  Us HOeti1cs 11,1 Reports- Sannpel

SAMPLE CLIENT

Claim Frequency by Fiscal Year
7/ 112006- 3/ 31/ 20I2

A, of 4/ 1/ 2012

U

lu

MONA401 MIJ1000 AYMi) 01Ya M019! A, 10 VAOIdOO AMP10112

Grol,P,, I U171 (' wwb( j,! u hu

Re, y5wue / o Rpppo' d1w hopovni CIVY o/ I , pnon ( ow, re

4

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

E

elm

Geouge HiMs IMetirk.- S' m Rqpoirts S,arnfAe 2

4, 000, W9

3" Am, wr) 

5' "' fiqxi' vin

S00, 000

Owxoo

SAMPLE CLIENT

Total Incurred by Fiscal Year
7/ l/ 2006- 3/ 31/ 2012

As of 4/ 1/ 2012

I

A0011200 RXM/ AAH) AWY) 001 amp wpol m

nnuuf" p- v,,. " D " o

OR hidel— My

A, R"' p"PO ¢ iq " V v d V610V



rw 5 mW„” 

51,=, wa

Y/ 

G ui e I fiH uvliAl Aire sI'll, 11 zqpoiits SarviqAle ' 

SAMPLE CLIENT

Total Incurred by Members
7/ 1/ 2006- 3/ 31/ 2012

As . 14/ V2012

d 1 9

z a rsr ry aa, Pmm ram. w,"/ a ,' rr d: 114 ql C mmnw i W,:, 

47- 



Geli m' giie IIIllift flMetficsl ' I FReporills — Sarnple 4

SAMPLE CLIENT

Total Incurred by Departments
7/ 1/ 2006- 3/ 31/ 2012

As of 4/ 1/ 2012

4, 000, 01CO 54, RW, 917

Effilmam

EM

to

EM



111411

P

IBri t Geoiitlle IINilllls Case F hidy II' xarrgplus

rg
C 0 M fl A V I Y

Claims and JPA rllanGri; c>mew Serr;hc'_r

George Hills TPA Experience& Expertise = Powerful Client ROI and satisfaction

George Hills Goal— Protect Client Assets with Insight and Influence

At George Hills, we are all committed to excellence, and we focus on returning measurable

bottom- line value to our clients through service, innovation, and industry experience. We feel
privileged to be a central component of our clients' integrated liability claims programs, helping
them to reduce the number of claims and claims paid amounts. George Hills' philosophy in

handling claims is values -based, ethical, and transparent. In short, our focus is finding out if we
owe on a claim. If we do, find out how much and pay it, If we do not, fight hard through trial. This
philosophy pays dividends in the long - run as payment of nuisance or unmeritorious claims
typically lead to more of the same. We take a hard stand on claims with no merit. For over six
decades, George Hills' expertise and consultative, hands- on approach have been a winning

combination, delivering powerful client results and satisfaction. We are proud to share below
several George Hills client success stories— and we are prouder still of the professional and

trusted role we played in helping our clients achieve favorable outcomes. 

Case # 1

George Hills' files " speak for themselves" with orderly, chronologically - managed reports and
documentation, including Plans of Action ( PAOs) and updated captioned reports, allowing us to

clearly see the point at which ' enough information is enough' to base a conclusion. " 

Facts: 

A lawsuit resulted in Northern California because of an accident at an intersection between a

county senior construction inspector ( defendant) and a private citizen ( plaintiff). The defendant
was stopped in the " number three" lane behind the plaintiff. The traffic signal turned green and

the defendant started to proceed forward. The plaintiff was still stopped. The defendant rear

ended the plaintiff' s vehicle. The County accepted 100% liability in this case as their driver failed
to proceed forward only when it was reasonably safe to do so and rear ended the plaintiff. 

George Hills Adjustors— Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and

Integrity

George Hills' adjustors acted swiftly and discovered that there was no damage to the
defendant' s vehicle and minor damage to the plaintiff' s vehicle. It was also verified that the

M Prrurwol ( rP^ re/ 1,, won ( 4,W", 

EM



plaintiff suffered low impact injuries to her neck, lower back, and left leg. Her damages included
chiropractic treatment of $ 4, 640 and MRI expense of $ 2, 305. 50 for a total pre -surgery amount
of $ 6, 945. 50. The plaintiffs miscellaneous out of pocket expenses were $ 261. 69 for total special
damages of $ 7,207. 19. She had no loss of earnings claim. George Hills' adjustors evaluated
this case and accepted the damages with a total settlement range of $ 14, 000 to $ 21, 000. The

plaintiff' s attorney presented a settlement demand of $ 556, 575. 50— which was based on an

alleged back surgery and total specials of $ 78, 100. 

George Hills' experienced adjustors were not convinced the plaintiff needed surgery as their
investigative work revealed she had been involved in two prior accidents and was claiming loss
of earnings due to surgery. Further, George Hills' IME report discovered the alleged surgery
was no more than an injection procedure— there was no incision. Also revealed through George

Hills' adjustor diligence: Multiple insurance companies and the FBI were concurrently involved in
an investigation and lawsuit of the plaintiff' s' surgeon'— i. e., a potential surgeon scam operation. 

George Hills' biomechanical expert determined the accident between the plaintiff and defendant

at the intersection was at an impact speed of 10 MPH— enough for a Delta 5, sufficient enough

for neck strain but not enough for disc disruption, which allegedly resulted in herniation and
protrusion. 

The arbitration result was an award of $ 15, 000 and the plaintiff rejected it. At mediation the
demand was $ 500, 000 and George Hills' initial offer was $ 11, 000. The plaintiff's counter

demand was $ 150, 000 & George Hills' final offer was $ 12, 500. 

At the Mandatory Settlement Conference, the plaintiff' s new demand was $ 250, 000. George

Hills advised the mediator we were ready to go to trial in five weeks. George Hills' only offer to
settle the case and avoid the trial was $ 20, 000. The plaintiff countered at $ 25, 000. George Hills

held firm with our only offer which was finally accepted. The property damage claim was settled
with the Insurance Company for $ 4, 273. 16. 

Case # 2

A George Hills' claim adjustor' s job is to investigate, document, evaluate, negotiate, and settle

claims. In order to effectively do so, each adjustor must handle every claim with a strategy, or
POA. " 

Facts: 

A California County' s snowplough engaged in snow removal operations on a winding foothills
road lost traction in a curve to the right, went over the centerline and collided with an oncoming
Ford Expedition. The Ford spun counter -clockwise off the curve and hit a tree with its right rear. 

The husband and wife occupants of the Ford came up with neck and upper extremity
complaints. The wife eventually had a three level cervical disc replacement, the husband a
single level cervical disc replacement and bilateral wrist surgeries. All of the surgical procedures

were financed by Medfin, even though each plaintiff had their own health insurance

policy. Medical specials between the two plaintiffs were claimed to be approximately $ 370, 000, 
based on the payments Medfin made and the liens it held in that amount. The husband was no

longer able to do his telephone company splicing work because of his wrist injury and a wage
loss of up to $ 805, 000 was asserted. 

P rr;„ ac I "ally C"wvpaavoy Carer, 

N,, e,veaaa. w / U R.,' eei/, ew1' rrr;" saws rty V/ I_iaxon r;mrrx

50- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

George Hills Adjustors— Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and

Integrity

George Hills helped the County defend this lawsuit on two fronts. We denied liability on the
basis that: 

1. The snowplough operator was meeting the
negligent

2. The medical specials were artificially inflated

3. The County should be liable only for
Hanif/ Nishihama rules

standard of care and was, therefore, not

medical specials allowable under the

On the second front, our retained medical billing expert " reverse - engineered" the billings and
estimated what would be allowed by most carriers, subject to reimbursement per

Hanif/ Nishihama. This came to be 25% of what was billed. 

George Hills' adjustors strongly asserted the provisions of Government Code Section 985, 
which provides for a post -verdict court hearing to determine, in the Court' s discretion, the extent
to which medical liens should be reimbursed. The president of Medfin was present at the

mediation where the case settled for $ 650,000 against an initial demand of $ 2, 000, 000. Both
Medfin and the plaintiffs' attorneys made significant concessions in order to settle the case. 

Case # 3

George Hills has been providing best practice liability and property claims administration and
litigation management services to the public and private sector since 9954." 

Facts: 

A claimant was stopped by the CHP for speeding in California County, but told by the CHP
Officer he was being arrested for another County Court FTA— for an unpaid 1995 traffic ticket. 
He was arrested. Claimant subsequently secured documentation from the Court that he had
paid his 1995 traffic ticket in a timely manner, As a law enforcement trainer, he wanted
compensation for improper arrest and imprisonment and compensation for future damages, as

the arrest reflected on his Department of Justice ( DOJ) record and could affect his career. 

George Hills Adjustors— Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and

Integrity

Working jointly and diligently with the County Counsel' s Office, George Hills helped accomplish
the difficult feat of getting the arrest itself off of the claimant' s DOJ record and the claim resolved
with no monetary payment. 

Case # 4

All George Hills public entity adjustors have extensive knowledge on current California
Government Codes and Legislation having direct effect on our client base. " 

Facts: 

r H" r N I d ld  +° d% . o idd, 

io V p sfar d r h dt dd P 2,^,n W () rove

51- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

George Hills had a case that involved " free standing condominiums"— legally described and
marketed as " condominiums." Our client was an insurer of primarily artisan subcontractors, and
their policy contained an exclusion which precluded coverage for any work performed by an
insured on a condominium project. Coverage was denied to the insured and a default judgment

of $ 2, 000, 000 was later entered against the insured. Following the resolution of the case, the
project developer sued our client in an effort to collect on the judgment. 

George Hills Adjustors— Protect Client Assets with Unmatched Insight, Influence, and

Integrity

George Hills' construction defect and construction liability TPA team worked with our client' s
counsel as the developer alleged that even though the homes were sold and marketed as

condominiums due to density requirements, that the homes were in fact single family homes. 

The developer argued that that condominium exclusion was ambiguous in that it did not define a

condominium. The trial court held that the statutory definition of a condominium includes free
standing structures and that the exclusion was not ambiguous. The appellate court upheld the
trial court decision. 

Important to note: This legal decision was recently published as " citable case law," concluding it
was a good case law for the insurance community in that it clarifies the intent of the exclusion is
to exclude all condominiums regardless as to how structured. 

X1,6 ", nw, 
pd v,' fin ° ya val d:. b f I_. ,nit ( 40t ? 

52- 



us a vakws Vtasi: md TF!"P, finri, 

WO mwkl be honcu' ed 11D ble the 01p, & A emon Grcv: i:?' s patnat io exce,10097CO

Ge.orffe Hills
C 0) P ANY

W. 66 

George Wis Compony Coo e Vbhdos

monc: viy 4& Integhly /. d w& I r 1::" 1 Jr " Alel dav ac:l PvWk s

cusgiomer' SaIISMOwn

condnuous hri; w a vamem 8cwull a ied: Parr in IY indC st' 

m



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No._ 1. G

Mtg. Date April 19, 201"6
Dept. Development Service Department

Item Title: Code Enforcement Hearing Officers Recruitment

Staff Contact: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer

David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

Appoint the three candidates to the Code Enforcement Hearing Officer Appeals Panel, 

Item Summary: 

On March 1, 2016, the City Council authorized staff to conduct a recruitment of hearing officers for
code enforcement citation appeal hearings. The City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code ( LGMC) 
Chapter 1. 24 provides the authority to issue administrative citations for violations of the City
municipal code. A recipient of an administrative citation may appeal the violation or whether he or
she is the Responsible Person for the violation. The appeal is required to be heard by a hearing
officer appointed by the City Council and chosen at random from a panel of three to six appeal
hearing officers. Staff requests that the City Council review the three applications herein and
appoint hearing officers. III

At the last City Council meeting, this matter was referred back to staff to consult with the City
Attorney about the possibility of a conflict of interest arising out of the potential appointment of a
current School Board member as a Hearing Officer. Staff has consulted with the City Attorney and
he does not see a significant issue arising out of the appointment of a sitting School Board member
as a Hearing Officer. 

Fiscal Impact: 

75. 00 Per Administrative Citation Hearing

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Applications

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

C. Administrative Citation Manual

1- 



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No.... G

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Item Title: Code Enforcement Hearing Officers Recruitment

Staff Contact: Paolo Romero, Code Enforcement Officer

David De Vries, Development Services Director

Discussion: 

On March 1, 2016, the City Council authorized staff to conduct a recruitment of hearing
officers for code enforcement citation appeal hearings. The City of Lemon Grove Municipal
Code ( LGMC) Chapter 1. 24 provides the authority to issue administrative citations for
violations of the municipal code. The LGMC provides for escalating fines and late payment
penalties for noncompliance and eventually, property liens when the fines and penalties
exceed $ 2, 000. A recipient of an administrative citation may contest the violation or
whether he or she is the Responsible Person for the violation. The City Council may fill a
panel of no less than three and no more than six code enforcement citation appeal hearing
officers from a list of candidates provided by staff. Currently, there is only one appeal
hearing officer authorized by Council. Staff requests that the City Council review the
attached applications and appoint the three applicants as hearing officers. The City
Manager will then select a hearing officer at random from the panel of hearing officers
selected by City Council for an administrative citation hearing. 

At the last City Council meeting, this matter was referred back to staff to consult with the
City Attorney about the possibility of a conflict of interest arising out of the potential
appointment of a current School Board member as a Hearing Officer. Staff has consulted

with the City Attorney and he does not see a significant issue arising out of the appointment
of a sitting School Board member as a Hearing Officer. 

The City Attorney considered two issues. First, is the Hearing Office an incompatible office
with the office of a School Board member? Second, is there a conflict or due process

problem in a Hearing Officer holding an office on the School Board? 

While the Offices of City Council and School Board are incompatible and no person can
hold both, the Hearing Officer position does not have the same conflicts. Code

enforcement matters relate to City code issues and seldom intersect with School Board
jurisdiction. They are subject to appeal to the City Council on city code issues only, not on
school board jurisdictional issues. Overall, school issues seldom, if ever, intersect with

code issues. A City Hearing Officer is not an incompatible office with the office of a School
Board member. 

On the conflict issue, the School Board member would be subject to the same conflict of

interest rules as any other appointed Hearing Officer. It is possible that the School District

will be involved in a code matter. However, the same could be true of any other
appointee' s job, neighborhood, residence or church involvement. In these rare cases, the

Hearing Officer with a conflict would be removed from the rotation for that matter. The most
likely conflict will be if the Hearing Officer either is related to a party or the alleged violation

3- 



Attachment A

is in their neighborhood. Disqualification is the option since every appointee who lives in
Lemon Grove will have that possibility. 

Finally, the conflict issue may raise a due process issue where potential bias may require
that a Hearing Officer recuse themselves. School Board membership is no more an
impediment than other occupations. For instance, an EDCO employee would be

disqualified from hearing a case involved alleged scavenging of recyclables. However, they
could hear other code matters that do not provide a benefit to their employer. The School

does not present different types of challenges than other occupations of local residents
applying to be a Hearing Officer. 

Rea uirem ents for -Code Enforcement Hearinq Officers

A hearing officer presides over citation hearings, reviews evidence, and makes an unbiased
judgment. A candidate is not required to be a resident of Lemon Grove and the distance in

which the candidate resides may be a consideration factor in determining his or her ability
to attend appeal hearings. A candidate must be able to conduct a hearing, analyze the
City' s municipal code, weigh evidence and make unbiased judgments based on evidence
and testimony presented. A candidate must possess effective verbal and written
communication skills. A candidate may not have been issued a code enforcement citation
with a fine for a period of eighteen ( 18) months from the time of applying for a hearing
officer position. In the event a hearing officer is issued an administrative citation with a fine
while serving a term, he or she shall be disqualified as a hearing officer. Lastly, a candidate
may not be a full or part- time employee of the City of Lemon Grove ( including paid
committee or commission members). 

Hearing Officer Service Term

The term of the hearing officer is no more than three years. However, the Council may re- 
appoint a hearing officer through this current selection process. To create an appropriate

conclusion of terms, the Council may decide to periodically, on a case- by- case basis, to
reduce the length of a term to two years to create staggered terms on the hearing officer
panel. 

Hearing Officer Compensation

A hearing officer is compensated $ 75 per appeal hearing. Appeal hearings include, but are
not limited to, all appeals consolidated into a single hearing and any subsequent
continuance or future dates until a final determination is rendered by the hearing officer. 
The compensation amount is for travel, preparation time, conducting the hearing, and

preparing the written decision. There will be no additional payment in the event the hearing
officer is requested to testify at a court proceeding. In the event the hearing is canceled
after the Notice of Hearing has been established, the hearing officer will be compensated

40. In the event the hearing officer is disqualified or recuses himself/ herself, no

compensation shall be paid. 

Conflicts of Interest

Hearing officers are required to disqualify themselves from serving as the hearing officer for
a particular case if they have a personal or business relationship or any other type of
relations, with any of the involved parties which might cause them to have a conflict of
interest, bias or prejudice in regards to the case to be heard. In the event that the hearing
officer believes that a conflict of interest does not exist but might be perceived, he or she is

required to disclose to both the City and the appealing party the nature of the relationship

E111



that might cause such a perception at least eight ( 8) days prior to the hearing date. Either

of the parties may then request that a new hearing officer be selected, provided that such
request is made known to the hearing officer within two ( 2) business days of such

notification. 

In the event that the hearing officer does not disqualify herself/ himself or does not
announce a relationship that might be perceived as a potential conflict of interest and either
party believes that a conflict of interest may exist, that party may request of the City
Manager that a different hearing officer be selected, provided such request is made within
five ( 5) days of the hearing date. The City Manager will determine whether or not to take
such action based on the evidence presented of a relationship, prejudice or bias that might
impede the hearing officer' s ability to provide a fair hearing. Failure to disclose a conflict of

interest as defined herein may result in the termination of the hearing officer's participation
on the panel. 

Response to Recruitment

The City received three applications and the candidates are listed below. The hearing
officer recruitment was advertised through news flash updates on the City' s website
homepage and City' s code enforcement webpage, the City' s Facebook and Twitter
accounts, e- mail list serve notifications to the Development Services Department list and

City press release list and a press release notification to local news agencies. Staff also

reached out to past hearing officers to gauge their interests. A one page application was

issued and the form asks applicants to provide information about work and community
experience ( including volunteer activities and experience or special knowledge). The

completed applications are attached ( Attachment B). 

Candidates

Franco Del Rosario

Katie Dexter

Anthony Jemison

Recommendation

Appoint the three candidates to the Code Enforcement Hearing Officer Appeals Panel. 



APPLICATION FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT

HEARING OFFICER

CONTACT INFORMATION

Name: Franco Del Rosario Home Address: 

WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE

Employer: Retired San Diego County Sheriff Title: Retired Deputy Sheriff

Statement of Occupational Experience: I worked for the City of Lemon Grove as a Motorcycle

Traffic as Deputy as well as the School DARE Officer at the Lemon Grove School

District. I honorably retired with 28 Years of Service from the San Diego County

Sheriff' s Department in 2009. 

List any past or current community or public service appointments with dates served; 
I worked in

Lemon Grove from 1989 to 1999. Motorcycle Deputy, Traffic Investigator, 

Accident Reconstructionist, DARE Officer, and Safety Patrol Officer, 

What experience or special knowledge can you bring as a Code Enforcement Hearing Officer? 

I have represented the Sheriff' s Department and the City of Lemon Grove in over

thousands of cases involving traffic citations, municipal code violations, and accident
11, 11, 111, 111,111, 11 ....... . 

investigations. My duties required me to know and interpret/ enforce codes, statues, 

and laws of the State of California, County of San Diego, and the City of Lemon Grove, 

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF

LEMON GROVE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE. 

Signature: Date: 03/ 15/ 2016

7- 



Attachment B

APPLICATION FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT

HEARING OFFICER

CONTACT,! PFORM ' ATJ, t) N

Phone:,, 

WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE

Errpbyer: —,-, 

Slata rvent ol() ccupatjona 

9y, 

Home Address: 

Ernail Address: 

1111( c j

T—.." .'..,;'
P1 --l' . ....... ............... 

6'1' r? lee

y p"Ist (A current conimufflty 01 Albl' l( ll. l; flr'0ue n[J"p"Dintments with dates served: 

I,/" e7t,4-.
r

17
rrennent Hearing Officer? 

Y r

Date: 

IFQI



arp-Tafffl!= 

APPLICATION FOR CODE ENFORCEMENT

HEARING OFFICER

Name: Anthony J. Jemison Home Address: — 

Phone: Email Address: 

WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE

Employer: General Dynamics NASSCO Title: Senior ManaQer Labor RelationsGeneral . . . ................ - Dynamics ............... 

Statement of Occupational Experience: I' ve been employed with Genera! Dynamics NASSCD since

List any past or current community or public service appointments with dates served: I currently, 

have harjjq pjrMrge e.......... 

of sarvin this Ca C t also s he Vice QhaJr q LkLA—, o snrauwt _ f,'lhulatLV"sa f3ciard ( it Ellks, 

I have served on the Board of Ethics since 2008. 1 served as a member of the City of the City of Chula

miga-'."na' Alm- 12AU- tinj _? ta07, 11 wAs the Ctrair frogi 2D04 2007, 

What experience or special knowledge can you bring as a Code Enforcement Hearing Officer? I serve

as k)r the devance and ar[,Mralion target of the U lipf — willum— g - k -- N

current P i yq, I have Incya 111al, 20 of hurnan resot ind adm0nistrafive

J 'AfILL, tLQ-f1Lc Atk-";bLj qnt'L c I

e dLinceAqd (; r0( k0J[ i! y i ma k .-by. # 1L g rip11, 

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
STA TEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF
LEMON GROVE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

gnalure: 

M

ate



CITYor

LEMON GKOVE

AdminlArative Citation

Frocedure,5 Manual

11- 



Attachment C

Admirii,5trativc itatior) Frocedures Marival

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I .................... Introduction ................ .................... 1

SECTION II.............. Violations Appropriate for Administrative Citation ..... m . 
1

SECTION III ............... Administrative Citation Issuance Policy . , ... a . , , .. , ... 1

A. To Whom Citations Can Be Issued

B. Service of Citation Procedures

C. Form of Citation

D. Fine Schedule

E. Satisfaction of Citation

SECTION IV .............. Appeal of Administrative Citation ..................... 4

A. Process of Appeal

B. Hardship Waiver
C. Selection of Hearing Officer
D. Request for Rescheduling a Hearing
E. Hearing Procedure
F. Administrative Enforcement by Stipulation
G. Hearing Officer Authority
H. Judicial Review

SECTION V ..,........,... Citation Fines ( Waivers and Penalties) , , ... , .......... 7

A. Failure to Pay Fines
B. Late Payment Penalty
C. Reduction of Cumulative Fines

SECTION VI .............. Hearing Officer Policy ........ , , ................... , . 8

A. Purpose

B. Requirements of a Hearing Officer
C. Selection of Hearing Officer Panel
D. Term of Hearing Officer
E. Hearing Officer Compensation
F. Conflict of Interest

SECTION VII ............. Other Procedures ............... , .............. w .... 
9

A. Hostile Encounters

B. Entry Upon Private Property
C. Release of Information

SECTION VIII- 12Exhibits .......................... .... ,.... a -- 12

A. Administrative Citation Form

B. Request for Appeal Hearing Form
C. Request for Hardship Waiver Form
D. Notice of Appeal Hearing

M1911



Attachment C

SECTION I —INTRODUCTION

Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 1. 12. 012 provides the authority to issue administrative
citations for violations of the City Municipal Code ( hereafter " City Code or " Code"). The City
Code provides for escalating fines for noncompliance. The Code also defines the service

procedures for issuing a citation, addresses hardship waivers, and identifies the process for
appeals. The purpose of this Code section is to induce compliance by applying a monetary
penalty for continuing violations. 

The purpose of this Procedures Manual is to establish the process by which Municipal Code
Section 1. 12. 012 is implemented by the City. The operational policies and procedures identified

in this Procedures Manual are compliant with applicable Municipal Code sections. 

SECTION II —VIOLATIONS APPROPRIATE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

The Code allows for the use of various tools to encourage or require abatement of Code
violations. The issuance of an administrative citation for a Code violation serves as a tool for
those violations that do not impose immediate health and safety risk. The issuance of a citation
should be used for violations that are clear-cut, relatively un -complex and easily correctable. As
with any enforcement tool, the decision to use administrative citations should include

assessment of how effective it is likely to be in gaining compliance and whether or not it is
appropriate to the situation. 

SECTION III — ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION ISSUANCE POLICY

A. To Whom Citations Can Be Issued

An administrative citation may be issued to the party responsible for the violation. In general, 

the Responsible Person as defined in the Municipal Code Section 1. 12. 012 will be one or more
of the following: 

1. The owner, tenant, or occupant of real property; 

2. The holder or the agent of the holder of any permit, entitlement, or review; 

3. The party or the agent of a party to an agreement covered by Chapter 1 of the
Municipal Code; 

4. The owner or the authorized agent of any business, company, or entity subject to
Chapter 1 of the Municipal Code; or

5. The parent or legal guardian of any such person under the age of 18 years and
who violates any ordinance, regulation, permit, entitlement, review, or agreement

described in the Municipal Code. 

14- 



Attachment C

Any or all of these persons or entities may be cited for the violation when a citation is
justified. 

B. Service of Citation Procedures

The issuance of an administrative citation should be on the appropriate City form
Exhibit A). The form should be completed in full and should be delivered to the

Responsible Person in the following manner: 

1. Personal Issuance — the enforcement officer shall attempt to personally serve the
Responsible Person with the citation and, if possible, obtain the signature of the
Responsible Person on the administrative citation form. If the Responsible

Person refuses to sign the administrative citation form, the citation will remain

valid. 

2. Service by Mail — if the enforcement officer is unable to locate the Responsible

Person, the administrative citation shall me mailed to the Responsible Person by
certified mail with a requested return receipt. The administrative citation shall

also be sent by first class mail. If the administrative citation sent by certified mail
is returned unsigned, the letter mailed first class shall be deemed effective

noticing of the violation. 

3. Service by Posting Notice — if the enforcement officer does not succeed in

personally delivering the administrative citation and certified mail and first class
mail fails to reach the Responsible Person, the enforcement officer shall post the

administrative citation on the property in violation. 

After the administrative citation has been served to the Responsible Person by any of
the means listed above, the enforcement officer shall complete a declaration of service. 

C. Form of Citation

The administrative citation form should include the following information: 

1. Date, approximate time, and address or definite description of the location or

property where the violation( s) was observed. 

2. The name of the Responsible Person( s) and, if possible, the signature of the

Responsible Person( s). 

3. The Code sections or conditions violated and a description of the violation( s). 

4. An order to the Responsible Person( s) to correct the violation( s) within a

specified time period. 

5. The amount of the fine for the violation( s), 

M



Attachment C

6. An explanation of how the fine is to be paid and the deadline for making payment
of the fine. 

7. A notification that the payment of the fine does not excuse or discharge the
failure to correct the violation. 

8. A notice of the right and process to appeal the administrative citation. 

9. The name and signature of the enforcement officer. 

D. Fine Schedule

The administrative citation form should indicate whether the administrative citation is a
warning or the amount of the fine. If the violation is not a critical health and safety risk, 
the enforcement officer shall first allow the Responsible Person( s) to abate the

violation( s) within a 15 -day warning period. 

In the event the violation( s) are not corrected within the warning period, fines shall be
assessed in the following amounts: 

1. $ 100 for the first administrative citation fine if the violation( s) are not corrected
within the specified time and/ or if the same violation occurs within the next 18 - 
month period. 

2. $ 200 for the second administrative citation fine if the violation( s) are not

corrected within the specified time and/ or if the same violation occurs within the
next 18 -month period. 

3. $ 500 for the third administrative citation fine if the violation( s) are not corrected
within the specified time and/ or if the same violation occurs within the next 18 - 
month period. 

4. $ 1, 000 for the fourth administrative citation fine if the violation( s) are not

corrected within the specified time and/ or if the same violation occurs within the
next 18 -month period. 

E. Satisfaction of Citation

If a warning administrative citation is issued and the violation( s) is corrected within the
specified warning period, the case shall be closed. However, if fines are levied, in order

to satisfy the administrative citation, the Responsible Person shall correct the violation
within the specified time and pay the fine within thirty ( 30) days from the correction date
listed on the administrative citation. Fines shall be made payable to the City of Lemon
Grove' s Treasurer. 

16- 



Attachment C

SECTION IV — APPEAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

A. Process of Appeal

A recipient of an administrative citation may contest the violation or whether he or she is
the Responsible Person for the violation. To contest the administrative citation, the

recipient must complete a Request for an Appeal Hearing form ( Exhibit B). The form

should be completed in full and returned to the City within thirty ( 30) days from the

correction date identified on the administrative citation. 

The request for an appeal hearing must be accompanied be either an advance deposit
of the fine or a Request for a Hardship Waiver ( Exhibit C). If the hardship waiver is
denied, the Responsible Person shall deposit the fine amount within ten ( 10) days of

receiving the notice of denial. 

In the event the administrative citation is excused by the Hearing Officer, the City shall
refund the deposited fine within three ( 3) business days. 

B. Hardship Waiver

A person filing a request for an appeal hearing may also request a hardship waiver of
the fine deposit by checking a box on the appeal form. To allow time for the review of

the hardship waiver request, the request for the appeal hearing shall be submitted to the
City within fifteen ( 15) days from the correction date on the administrative citation. 

The hardship waiver request must include a sworn affidavit, together with any

supporting documents or materials demonstrating the person' s actual financial inability
to deposit the amount of the fine. The hardship waiver will be considered by the City
Manager, or by his or her appointee. The City Manager will inform the Responsible
Person in writing of whether the waiver was approved. The City Manager' s

determination is final and is not subject to appeal or judicial review. 

If the hardship waiver is denied, the Responsible Person shall deposit the fine within ten
10) calendar days of the City Manager' s notice. Failure to deposit the fine shall cancel

the request for the appeal hearing and renders the fine delinquent. 

C. Selection of Hearing Officer

The Hearing Officer will be selected from a panel of Hearing Officers appointed by the
City Council ( see Section VI for policies related to the Council appointment of Hearing
Officers). The Hearing Officer shall be selected randomly by the City Manager, or by
his or her appointee, prior to setting the date of the appeal hearing. 

Any Hearing Officer residing or owning property within 500 feet of the subject property
of the appeal shall be excluded from the selection process for that specific appeal

hearing. 

17- 



Attachment C

D. Request for Rescheduling a Hearing

The City will accommodate requests made by the person requesting an appeal hearing, 
provided that the request is made at least five ( 5) days prior to the scheduled hearing. 
Requests for rescheduling within five ( 5) days of the hearing may be considered for
good cause ( illness, death, emergency situation, etc.) and must be substantiated. The

City Manager will consider whether to reschedule the hearing. This determination is

final and not subject to judicial review. 

E. Hearing Procedure

The following describes the rules and procedures for conducting an appeal hearing: 

1. The appeal hearing cannot occur until the following have been completed: 

a. An appeal hearing has been appropriately requested by the responsible
person by submitting a Request for an Appeal Hearing form. 

b. The Responsible Person has deposited the administrative citation fine in

advance or a hardship waiver has been issued. 

c. A hearing has been established not less than fifteen ( 15) days and not more

than sixty ( 60) days from the date of the request for the appeal hearing. The

Responsible Person shall be notified of the date, time and place of the

hearing, and the Hearing Officer' s name at least ten ( 10) days prior to the

hearing date. 

d. At least ten ( 10) days prior to the hearing, the City shall provide the
Responsible Person with copies of the citations, reports and other documents

that will be submitted to the Hearing Officer at the time of the hearing. 

2. City staff should not have contact with the Hearing Officer regarding the hearing
subject so as the Hearing Officer can maintain an attitude of neutrality and
objectivity at all times. 

3. City staff will arrange for the hearing, provide a hearing room and ensure that a
tape recorder is in place. 

4. The Hearing Officer shall conduct the appeal hearing and is responsible for
ensuring that order is maintained and that due process is provided. 

5. The person issued the administrative citation is entitled to bring legal

representation to the hearing. 

M



Attachment C

6. The Hearing Officer shall take testimony first from the Responsible Person. At

this time the Responsible Person will have the opportunity to present evidence
regarding the administrative citation' s issuance. 

7. Each party shall have an opportunity to question the other party' s witnesses, if
witnesses are included in the testimony. 

8. Each party shall have an opportunity to present rebuttal evidence. 

9. The Hearing Officer shall consider the evidence that is relative to whether the
violation( s) occurred and whether the Responsible Person has caused or

maintained the violation( s). 

10. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply.. 

11. The Hearing Officer may continue the hearing to request additional information
from the enforcement officer or the recipient of the administrative citation. 

12. The Hearing Officer may or may not issue a decision orally at the conclusion of
the hearing. Within ten ( 10) days of the hearing, the Hearing Officer shall provide
the City and the recipient of the administrative citation with a written decision. 
The decision shall briefly state the reasons for the conclusion of the Hearing
Officer. 

13. The City is not required to provide transcripts of the hearing, but is required to
provide copies of the tapes of the hearing at a cost determined by the City' s
Master Fee Schedule. 

14. If the Responsible Person, or his or her representative, fails to appear at the

hearing, the deposited fines shall be forfeited, the administrative citation( s) at

issue shall be deemed valid, and judicial review shall be precluded for failure to

exhaust administrative remedies. 

F. Administrative Enforcement by Stipulation. 

Occasionally, the City and the Responsible Person will reach agreement prior to a scheduled
hearing. When such an agreement is approved and executed prior to the hearing, the hearing
may be cancelled at the discretion of the City Manager and shall be entitled to an Administrative
Enforcement Order by Stipulation. When such an agreement is presented at the hearing, the

Hearing Officer may issue a finding which incorporates the agreement. Such a finding shall
authorize or approve the terms of the agreement to ensure its validity and shall be entitled to an
Administrative Enforcement Order by Stipulation. 

G. Hearing Officer Authority

After conducting an appeal hearing and weighing the testimony and evidence
presented, the Hearing Officer can make one of two decisions: 1) affirm the issuance of

m



Attachment C

the administrative citation, or 2) excuse the administrative citation. The Hearing
Officer' s decision shall be final. 

The Hearing Officer may impose conditions and deadlines to correct any violations or
require payment of outstanding penalties. The Hearing Officer may also assess
reasonable administrative costs for scheduling and processing of the hearing and
subsequent actions. The Hearing Officer does not have authority to reduce the fine. 

H. Judicial Review

Either the City or the person in receipt of an administrative citation may request review
of the appeal hearing decision with the San Diego Superior Court. Judicial review of a

citation may not occur without first exhausting all available administrative remedies. 

SECTION V — CITATION FINES ( WAIVERS AND PENALTIES) 

A. Failure to Pay Fines

If the Responsible Person fails to pay the fines imposed through the administrative
citation within the time specified on the citation, the City may file a claim with the Small
Claims Court or the Superior Court for recovery of the fine. In the event the courts are

used to recover fines, the City may also recover the costs associated with the Hearing
Officer, court fees, and collection costs. 

The City may also or in addition to court action, impose a code enforcement lien in the
amount of the fine plus interest and late charges, on the real property upon which the
violation occurs. Any lien imposed shall be recorded in the Office of the San Diego
County Recorder. 

B. Late Payment Penalty

Any Responsible Person that fails to pay a fine on or before the date payment is due
shall be liable for payment of a late charge in the amount of 25 percent of the fine. 

Delinquent fines shall also accrue interest at the rate of 10 percent per month, excluding
late payment penalties. 

C. Reduction of Cumulative Fines

If the violation is corrected within a reasonable time after the decision of the Hearing
Officer, the City Manager shall have the discretion to reduce cumulative fines that
exceed $ 1, 000. The City Manager may not reduce the fine amount to less than $ 1, 000. 

The determination of the City Manager shall be final and shall not be subject to appeal
or judicial review. 

I



Attachment C

SECTION VI – HEARING OFFICER POLICY

A. Purpose

The purpose of this section is to establish policies regarding the requirements, the City
Council selection procedures, the term, and the rate of compensation for Hearing
Officers. 

B. Requirements of a Hearing Officer

The following criteria are established as requirements to be considered for the position
of Hearing Officer: 

1. A candidate is not required to be a resident of Lemon Grove. However, the

distance in which the candidate resides may be a consideration factor in
determining his or her ability to attend appeal hearings. 

2. A Hearing Officer candidate must be able to conduct a hearing, analyze the

City' s Municipal Code, weigh evidence and make unbiased judgments based on
evidence and testimony presented. 

3. A Hearing Officer must possess effective communication skills— both verbal and

written. 

4. A Hearing Officer candidate may not have been issued a code enforcement
citation with a fine for a period of 18 months from the time of applying for a
Hearing Officer position. 

5. In the event a Hearing Officer is issued an administrative citation with a fine while
serving a term, he or she shall be disqualified as a Hearing Officer. 

6. A Hearing Officer may not be a full or part- time employee of the City of Lemon
Grove ( including paid committee or commission members). 

C. Selection of Hearing Officer Panel

The City Council may fill a panel of no less than three and no more than six Hearing
Officers. Hearing Officers may apply in writing for consideration for Council selection at
any time, if the panel is not full. The Council may conduct interviews with the full
Council or may appoint a sub -committee of members of the Council to administer the
selection process. The full Council must ratify the appointment of a Hearing Officer to
the panel. 

21- 



Attachment C

D. Term of Hearing Officer

The term of the Hearing Officer shall be no more than three years. However, the

Council may re -appoint a Hearing Officer through the selection process identified in the
previous section. To create appropriate conclusion of terms, the Council may decide
periodically, on a case- by-case basis, to reduce the length of a term to two years to
create staggered terms on the Hearing Officer panel. 

E. Hearing Officer Compensation

A Hearing Officer shall be compensated $ 75 per appeal hearing. For purposes of this

Section, an " appeal hearing" shall include, but not be limited to, all appeals consolidated
into a single hearing and any subsequent continuance or future dates until a final
determination is rendered by the Hearing Officer. This amount is for travel, preparation

time, conducting the hearing, and preparing the written decision. There shall be no

additional payment in the event the Hearing Officer is requested to testify at a court
proceeding. In the event the hearing is canceled after the Notice of Hearing has been
established, the Hearing Officer shall be compensated $ 40. In the event, the Hearing
Officer is disqualified or recuses him/ herself under Section F below, no compensation
shall be paid. 

F. Conflict of Interest

Hearing Officers are required to disqualify themselves from serving as the Hearing Officer for a
particular case if they have a personal or business relationship or any other type of relations, 
with any of the involved parties which might cause them to have a conflict of interest, bias or
prejudice in regard to the case to be heard. 

In the event that the Hearing Officer believes that a conflict of interest does not exist but might
be perceived, he or she is required to disclose to both the City and the appealing party the
nature of any relationship that might cause such a perception at least eight ( 8) days prior to the
hearing date. Either of the parties may then request that a new Hearing Officer be selected, 
provided that such request is made known to the Hearing Officer within two ( 2) business days of
such notification. 

In the event that the Hearing Officer does not disqualify her/ himself or does not announce a
relationship that might be perceived as a potential conflict of interest and either party believes
that a conflict of interest may exist, that party may request of the City Manager that a different
Hearing Officer be selected, provided such request is made within five ( 5) days of the hearing
date. The City Manager shall determine whether or not to take such action based on the
evidence presented of a relationship, prejudice or bias that might impede the Hearing Officer' s
ability to provide a fair hearing. 

Failure to disclose a conflict of interest as defined herein may result in the termination of the
Hearing Officer' s participation on the panel. 



Attachment C

SECTION VII - OTHER PROCEDURES

A. Hostile Encounters

An enforcement officer shall not initiate physical force to halt, restrain or attempt to

physically engage a code violator. If an enforcement officer is threatened by hostile or
aggressive behavior or with bodily harm during the course of performing his or her
duties, the enforcement officer shall leave the scene immediately, contact the Sheriff' s
Department, contact his or her immediate supervisor, and document the incident as part
of the code case file. 

If there is or has been past aggressiveness or hostility from a resident, the enforcement
officer shall not attempt to personally deliver notices and/ or citations without the
presence of a Sheriff deputy. Otherwise, the enforcement officer may deliver notices
and/ or citations by way of mail as specified in this manual. 

B. Entry Upon Private Property

No enforcement officer shall enter upon private property except in an attempt to contact
the owner or occupant of the property or to post or deliver a notice and/ or citation. The

enforcement officer may access the property with the consent of the property owner or
occupant or with a search warrant issued by the court. 

C. Release of Information

In order to preserve effectiveness and not jeopardize investigative activities and to

protect the privacy of residents, the following procedures apply to the release of
information, once a case file is created: 

1. Except in accordance with the direction of the City Attorney or to comply with a
subpoena, the City shall not disclose: 

a. That a complaint about a particular incident has been filed, 

b. The fact that a case is pending, or

c. That a particular complaint is under investigation. 

2. The City shall advise the complaining party that the complaint has been received
and is under investigation. 

3. Upon request, in accordance with the Public Records Act, the City shall disclose: 

a. The date on which a citation has been set for court trial, 

b. The date which has been set for a hearing before a Hearing Officer, 

23- 



Attachment C

c. The fact that a civil lawsuit has been filed and served. 

4. Upon the closing of a case initiated by a private party' s complaint, the

complainant will be advised of the result, if so requested by the complainant. 

5. Any information developed during the investigation shall be released only to City
personnel actively and directly involved in the enforcement action. 

24- 



EXHIBIT A — Administrative Citation For

CITY OF LEMON
I t

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION
M

A) TYPE OF VIOLATION

Circle One: Warning 16' Citation 2"® Citation 3' d Citation 40" Citation

100 $ 200 $ 500 $ 1, 000

Payment of $ is due no later than __ to the City o1 Lemon Grove. 
The City accepts cash, check or credit card. 

If the violation Is not corrected by the date specified therein and/ or payment is not received by the date
above, the next level of citation may be Issued, other enforcement actions may occur, and penalties may be
assessed ( 25% and Interest at the rate of 10% per month). Payment of fine does not excuse or discharge

the failure to correct violation identified below. 

B) RESPONSIBLE PARTY INFORMATION

Person Cited
Las me) ( First Name) 

Circle One: Property Owner Tenant Business Owner Other

Mailing Address; .. ............... ....... ......_-_ _ ..,... 

Business Name ( if applicable)_. ........ ............................ __
w..., 

C) VIOLATION( S) INFORMATION

Date ( Violation Observed) Time ( Violation Observed): ,, _ 

Location of Violation: 

Street Address) ( APN) 

Violation( s) Observed ( Code Section and Description): 

D) CORRECTION( S) REQUIRED ( with date to complete corrections) 

E) SERVICING CITATION INFORMATION

Enforcing Officer Name Phone No. Signature Date

Person Cited - Signature Acknowledging Receipt ... _..... 
Date) 

Citation Served ( circle one): In Person By Mail Posted on Property

This citation may be appealed within thirty (30) days from date of correction identified in Section D. To request an
appeal, a Request an Appeal Hearing form ( available at City Ball) should be completed and returned to City Hall. 
In the event a Hardship Waiver is requested, thq Request for an Appeal blearing and hardship Waiver forms are
required Within fifteen ( 15) days from the correction date idb i ' . in ction D. 

I



UYT- 47FTE-1147, ft—U&'7F111E
3232 Malin Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Telephone ( 619) 825- 3800

Fax ( 619) 825- 3804

go] AM L4 W-11 93 6110 1 F-3 I

Name: 

Address of Violation: 

Day Phone: 

Mailing Address ( if different): 

Violation of Code ( see Section C of Citation): 

Please state the reason( s) for the request. The Municipal Code allows the recipient of an Administrativ.- 

Citation to contest whether a violation( s) exist or whether they are the Responsible Person. If you requiry
more space, please attach additional sheets. 

Appefian-it"s -Statement

I declare under penalty of perjury that the facts stated are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Process for Submitting Request for an Appeal Hearing: 

1 ) An individual requesting an appeal hearing must submit this form to the City on or before 30 days from the date
of correction Identified In Section D of the Citation. 

2) The Individual requesting an appeal Mustd%apsA with the City the amount of the citation floe along with this
form. 

3) If the individual requesting the appeal hearing requests a Hardship Waiver, this form and the Request for a
Hardship Waiver are due sa_or befor Ia g from the date of correction identified in Section D or the Citation. 

4) A Request for Hardship Waiver form is available at City Hall. 
5) A hearing will be established between 15 and 60 days from receipt of this form with a Hearing Officer appointed

by the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove. 

MWARIM

Received on: Within Deadline: Completed Fwm 
Yoi or No

I". 



EXHIBIT C — Request for Hardship Waiver Form

Name: 

Address of Violation: 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Telephone ( 619) 825- 3800

Fax ( 819) 825- 3804

f , ` S
I A

10Z

i  

Day Phone: ...._. ............. Other Phone: 

Mailing Address ( if different): 

Fine Amount on Citation: Present Employer: 

Social Security #: Driver' s License # 

List of Family Members Living with You: 

Name Relationship Age m to r

Total Family Income ( before taxes and deductions from ALL sources): 

Employment: Child Support: It ..... 

Spouse Employment Spousal Support: 

Unemployment: $ 
mm— 

Pension/ Retirement: 

Welfare/ SSI/ ADC: Other: 

TOTAL INCOME:-
4

Monthly Expenses

Rent/ Mortgage': .....
www. 

Payroll Deductions: 
w.. 

Child Care: .. Medical Expenses: 

Transportation Costs: 

TOTAL EXPENSES: I

WAIA



Assets

Savings Account: ..— ----------------- __.. Checking Account: 
Other Cash Assets: Other Assets: 

TOTAL ASSETS: 

Submit with Request for Hardship Waiver form copies of ( if applicable): 

Last year' s tax return ( with W -2s or 1099s)  Utility billing with Lifeline rates
Pay stubs for last 2 -week period  Recent Chapter 7 Bankruptcy filing
Other

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information contained herein are full and true statements of my
assets and obligation to the best of my knowledge and belief. The undersigned authorizes the City of Lemon
Grove to contact my employer, if any, listed above without further notice. 

I understand that this hardship consideration is for the deferral of the administrative citation fine during the
appeal hearing process, If during the appeal hearing process the citation is found to be valid, the full amount
of the citation fine is due and payable. 

Print Name Signature Date

Process for Submitting Request for a Hardship Waiver: 

1) An individual requesting a Hardship Waiver must submit this form with the Request for an Appeal
Hearing on or before 15 days from the date of correction identified in Section D of the Citation. 

2) The Hardship Waiver will be reviewed by the City Manager, or his or her designee. 
3) The City Manager' s determination In granting the Hardship Waiver is final and not subject to appeal or

judicial review. 

4) If the Hardship Waiver is denied, the appellant is required to deposit the fine amount within ten ( 10) 
calendar days of the City Manager' s Notice of Denial. Failure to deposit the fine shall cancel the
request for an appeal hearing and will render the fine delinquent. 

OFFJCIAL LISE ONLY

Received on: ......., Within Deadline: 
ow

Goplpinted Form; 
ate Yes or No Yes or No

M. 



CITY OF LENQ0—- - 
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Telephone; 0! 

Fax ( 619) ; 0

110116-11011!, OR 1-1111 • 

Requestor: John Doe

1111 Anywhere Street

City, State zipcode

Please be informed that your request for an Appeal Hearing for Administrative Citation shall be heard as
follows: 

Time: 10: 00 A. M. 

Location 3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA

City Hall Conference -.. 

The hearing procedures shall be in accordance with the Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 1. 12. 012 and
the Administrative Citation Procedures Manual ( see attachment). 

You may have legal representation at the hearing. However, you must provide written notification to the

Hearing Officer and the City' s Enforcement Officer of the attorney' s name, address, and phone number at least
seven ( 7) calendar days prior to the hearing: 

Assigned Hearing Officer: Mr. or Ms. --.... , Hearing Officer
c/ o Robert Larkins

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Failure of the Responsible Person, either personally or through counsel, to appear at the appeal hearing shall
constitute a forfeiture of the fine and will exhaust his or her administrative remedies. As an option, you are

afforded one opportunity to reschedule the hearing, only if the request is made at least five ( 5) days prior to the
scheduled hearing. Requests for rescheduling within five ( 5) days of the hearing must be considered for good
cause ( illness, death, emergency situation, etc.) and must be substantiated. The Hearing Officer will consider
whether to reschedule the hearing, The request to reschedule the hearing must be made in writing and
delivered or received at the address above at least five ( 5) days before the scheduled hearing. 

6 NI



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. H

Mtg. Date , April 19, 2016

Dept. Developments Services

Item Title: Professional Services Agreement Addenda with CityPlace Planning, 

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) approving an addenda to a Planning Project Agreement
Attachment A — Exhibit 1) with CityPlace Planning. 

Item Summary: 

In 2015, the City contracted with Cal Poly San Luis Obispo' s Design Studio ( Cal Poly) team to
conduct public outreach and prepare a draft community profile and general plan update. 

Thereafter, the City contracted with CityPlace Planning to coordinate two community workshops, 
assist in the February 16, 2016 public hearing with City Council and assist in the preparation of the
Draft General Plan Update and in the selection of consultants for a Program Environmental Impact
Report ( PEIR) for the General Plan. These services were contracted for under the Purchasing

Ordinance provisions providing authority of the City Manager for contracts for professional services
under $ 30,000. A request for proposal was not conducted since CityPlace Planning prepared the
City' s 2014 Health & Wellness Element and was a firm exceedingly familiar with the City' s General
Plan. The City Manager may waive the requirements for solicitation of multiple proposals if only
one individual or firm can provide the professional services. A second addenda to the contract is

needed for CityPlace Planning to further assist the City in the review, preparation, and completion
of the General Plan Update and the PEIR and related public hearings and outreach. The

addendum for $26, 920 will allow for assistance through the adoption of the General Plan. The total
contract will now be for $ 56, 590. Additional costs anticipated for the General Plan Update include

the contract under consideration with Dudek for the preparation of the PEIR. The attached
Attachment A — Exhibit 1) includes the full contract with addendas and a budget and a scope of

work for completion by CityPlace. 

Fiscal Impact: 

26, 920 in additional professional services for the General Plan Update. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review ' Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING AN ADDENDA TO AN AGREEMENT WITH CITYPLACE PLANNING FOR

PLANNING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

WHEREAS, The Lemon Grove General Plan was adopted in 1996. Subsequently, the
City has adopted the 2001 Broadway Commercial Project Specific Plan, the 2005 Downtown
Village Specific Plan, the 2006 Bikeways Master Plan, the 2010- 2020 Housing Element, and the
2014 Health & Wellness Element; and

WHEREAS, General Plans are encouraged to be updated every 20 to 25 years per 2003
State Guidelines for General Plans; and

WHEREAS, the City Council identified an update to the Lemon Grove General Plan as a
priority goal in FY15- 16 and FY16- 17 and budgeted funding for the General Plan update; and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 2015- 3357
approving a sponsored project agreement with Cal Poly San Luis Obispo' s ( SLO) Design Studio
Team to conduct public outreach and prepare a draft community profile and general plan
update; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015 and October 6, 2016, the City Council formed a 14
member adhoc focus group to advise city staff and the SLO Design Studio on its efforts with the
general plan outreach and assist with identifying issues and opportunities; and

WHEREAS, In January 7, 2016, in order to build on the efforts of the SLO Design
Studio, city staff contracted with CityPlace Planning ( Circulate San Diego subconsultant) to lead
two community workshops related to the general plan and assist in the review of the SLO
Design Studio' s draft general plan and a subsequent addenda was executed on March 23, 2016

to further assist in the review and preparation of the draft general plan update and the

consultant selection and scope for the preparation of a Program Environmental Impact Report

PEIR) for the general plan update; and

WHEREAS, extensive public outreach was provided towards the preparation of the draft

general plan and community profile including: 1) SLO Design Studio contact with over 120 youth
and 500 adults through interviews and surveys both online and in person; 2) three focus group
meetings and related assignments; 3) On January 21, 2016, a community workshop was

conducted on community design and economic development by CityPlace Planning; 4) On
January 30, 2016, a community workshop was conducted on street development and circulation
by Circulate San Diego; and 5) On February 16, 2016, a joint community and City Council public
hearing was conducted and the City Council provided feedback related to the draft General Plan
update; and

WHEREAS, public notifications for workshops and hearings were sent via listserve, 
newsflash, and updates were posted on social media and the general plan update webpage and

focus group members and community workshop attendees were also notified upcoming events; 
and

WHEREAS, CityPlace Planning has special knowledge and expertise regarding the
Lemon Grove General Plan based on their recent experience preparing the City' s 2014 Health
and Wellness Element; and



Attachment B

WHEREAS, CityPlace Planning has agreed to the attached professional agreement
terms and scope of work as presented herein ( Exhibit 1); and

WHEREAS, staff believes that CityPlace Planning has and will provide adequate
assistance towards the preparation of a successful planning project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves a second addenda with scope of work to an agreement ( Exhibit 1) with

CityPlace Planning; and

2. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all contractual
documents. 



AGREEMERT

BY AND BETWEEN

AND

r,ffXPJ-, ACE PL.0-A1111VIG, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last

signature, by and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the
CITY"), and CITYPLACE PLANNING, INCa professional planning firm ( the

CONTRACTOR"). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide
professional planning services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is a

professional planning firm and is qualified by experience, specific project knowledge, 
and ability to perform the Project Manager and supporting planning services desired by
the CITY, and the CONTRACTOR is willing to perform such services, 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE
AS FOLLOWS: 

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to
engage the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to perform the
services hereinafter set forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained
herein, 

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will
be performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the
CONTRACTOR. 

2, SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONTRACTOR will perform services

for the Genaral Plan Update as further defined in the attached Exhibit "A" beginning on
page 13. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing community

outreach and policy document review services towards the completion of the General
Plan Update consistent with the budget and scope of work in Exhibit " A". The

CONTRACTOR shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as
authorized in advance by the CITY and as referenced in Exhibit " A" The

CONTRACTOR shall appear at meetings cited. 

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time
to time reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the

I

N



CONTRACTOR under

CONTRACTOR agree tit

corresponding reduction

in services. 

this Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the

meet in good faith and confer for the purpose of negotiating a
or increase in the compensation associated with said change

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION. 

Dave DeVries, Acting Development Services Director hereby is

designated as the Project Manager for the CITY and will monitor the progress and

execution of this Agreement, The CONTRACTOR shall assign a single professional

planner to act as the Project Director, or Principal in Charge, to provide supervision and

have overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for the
CONTRACTOR. Claudia Tedford, Principal thereby is designated as the Project
Director for the CONTRACTOR, 

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the

CONTRACTOR on8lb billingscomahng actual vvc" k performed. 
Billings uho|| include labor c18asMicadoDs, respective rates, hours worked and also

noahx[ ia| s' if any. The total cost for all VVV[ k described in Exhibit "A" shall not exceed the
base amount of $ 30' 670. without prior written authorization from the City' s Project
Manager. Monthly invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within thirty ( 30) 
days from receipt of invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with Exhibit

Y' emdetermined byand inthe sole discretion nfthe CITY. 

The CONTRACTOR ahoU maintain all bouks, doourn8nta, papers, 

employee time mheeCe, oCCOunUOW recordm, and other evidence pertaining to costs
incurred and shall make such RnaheUo| s available at its office at all reasonable times

during the term of this Agreement and for three ( 3) years from the date of final payment
under this AonaemeOt, for inspection by the QTY and for furnishing ofcopies tothe
CITY, <frequested, 

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. The duration of this agreement will be

until July 31, 2016 unless an eXhenSion is otherwise mutually agreed upon and
approved. 

O. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS, The

Mamonanda, Reports, K8aps, DFavin8s, P| anm. Speo oat ioD aDd oMher docurnents

prepared by the CONTRACTOR for this Project, whether paper or e| ecdrunic, shall
become the property of the CITY for use with respect to this Project, and shall be turned
over tothe CITY upon completion of the Project, or any phase thereof, as contemplated
by this Agreement. By accepting payment for connp| etion, filing and delivering
documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONTRACTOR discharges the City of all
of the City' s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement. 

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR
hereby assigns to the CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and
disclaims, any copyright in, and the right to reprodUce, all written material, drawings, 
plans, specifications or other work prepared under this agreement, except upon the

CITY' s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which authorization shall not be

2

6- 



Attachment A
unreasonably withheld, The CONTRACTOR shall, upon request of the CITY, execute

any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and disclaimer. 

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify, 

assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR' s
written work product for the CITY' s purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives

and disclaims any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989
relating to intellectual property and artistic works. 

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or

specifications prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from
liability under Section 14 but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse
by the CITY, or for any liability to the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY
for some project other than what was expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this
project, unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

7INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the

erformance of this Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as
gents, employees, partners or joint venturers with one another Neither the

CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR' S employees are employees of the CITY and
are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or privileges of the CITY' s employees, 
including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemployment, or workers' 

compensation insurance. 

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the

CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR' s employees, and it is recognized by the
parties that a substantial inducement to the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, 
and is, the professional reputation and competence of the CONTRACTOR and its
employees Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein may be assigned by the
CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY Nothing herein contained
is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as many
employees, or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may cleern necessary for the
proper and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR
with its subcontractor( s) shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable
terms of this Agreement. 

8CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees

shall have any control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the
CONTRACTOR' s employees except as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR

expressly agrees not to represent that the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR' s
agents, servants, or employees are in any manner agents, servants or employees of the
CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its agents, servants, and employees
are as to the CITY wholly independent contractors and that the CONTRACTOR' s
obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this Agreement. 

9 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW, The CONTRACTOR, in

the performance of f - s è'—rvice- --- oe—pro'vi—d'e"",d,-"h,-e-"-r-e--i, n-,- -sha-61 comply with all applicable
State and Federal statutes and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and

N

T 



regulations of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently
enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain

a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license prior to and during performance of
any work pursuant to this Agreernent. 

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and

covenants that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever

nature that are legally required to practice its profession The CONTRACTOR

represents and covenants that the CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, 

keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, any license, permit, or
approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR to practice its profession. 
Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to provide the

following documentation with the executed agreement will cause delay in the agreement
being executed by the City: 

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement, - 

B. Taxpayer Identification Number ( W- 9) 

http:// www. irs. gov/ pub/ irs- pdf/ fw9. pd -1
C. IRS Letter of Non -Profit 501 ( c) ( 3) ( If Applicable): 

D. City Business License; 

11. STANDARDOFCARE. 

W__ T_heC_0_N,T_RAC_T,OR, in performing any services under this
Agreement, shall perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill

ordinarily exercised by members of the CONTRACTOR' S trade or profession currently
practicing under similar conditions and in similar locations. The CONTRACTOR shall

take all special precautions necessary to protect the CONTRACTOR' s employees and
members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the nature of the work and/ or the
conditions of the work site. 

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this

agreement, the CONTRACTOR warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the

five ( 5) years preceding, been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in
debarment, arbitration or litigation proceedings concerning the CONTRACTOR' s
professional performance or the furnishing of materials or services relating thereto. 

C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unique
products, treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success
of the project the CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time

requirements of the CITY, or, when no time is specified, then within a commercially
reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY

otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products, materials, processes or

treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are reasonably
commercially available, Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence under
this sub -paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY' s later inability to obtain the specified items of any
reasonable substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time

frame specified or, when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. 
D_ City' s Right to Terminate for Default, If the CONTRACTOR

fails to perform or adequetly perform any obligation required by this agreement, the
CONTRACTOR' s failure constitutes a Default If the CONTRACTOR fails to

11111101*0





14, INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONTRACTOR

shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents
and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of

CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of

services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR' s duty to indemnify under this section
shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to
property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence or Willful
misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees. 

CONTRACTOR' s indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance
provisions of this Agreement. The CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any
payment, attorney' s fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an
injured employee under the CITY ' s self-administered workers' compensation is
included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this

section will survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement. 

6



1& LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the oth
party arising from any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or a
inaccuracies in any of the representations and warranties on the part of the other par
arising out of this Agreement, then in that event, the prevailing party in such action
O.ispute, whether by final judgment or out-of-court settlement, shall be entitled to ha
and recover of and from the other party all reasonable costs and expenses of

Sulincluding reasonable attorneys' fees

1T MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relat

to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, 
settle the dispute by Mutual negotiation between the principles, and failing that throu
nonbinding mediation in San Diego, California, in accordance with the Commerci

11- 



Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association ( the " AAA"). The costs of

mediation shall be borne equally by the parties, 

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any
way to the services provided under this Agreement, upon the City' s request, the
CONTRACTOR, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the
dispute or litigation. The CONTRACTORs assistance includes, but is not limited to, 

providing professioal consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials
or any event related to the dispute resolution and/ or litigation, 

19, NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or

permitted hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by
overnight mail ( Federal Express or the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requestecl or sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid,, or
telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall
be deemed received upon the earlier of ( i) if personally delivered, the date of delivery to
the address of the person to receive such notice, ( r) if sent by overnight mail, the

8
12- 



business day following its deposit in Such overnight rn8i\ faoUity, ( iii) if mailed by

negistenad, certified orordinary mail, five ( 5) days ( ten ( 110) days if the address is outside
the State of California) after the date of deposit in e post ohDue, nnai| box, nna|| chVbs. Or
other like facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal SarVium. ( iv) if given

bytelegraph orcable, when delivered tothe telegraph company with charges prepaid, 

or ( v) if given by te| ex, te| acmpy. hBcsiOli| m Or yaX, when sent, Any notice, [ eqUest, 

de[ 0/ Dd, direction or other communication delivered orsent es specified above shall be
directed to the following persons: 

To the CITY: David De Vdee, Acting Development Services Director
City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91845- 1701

TVthe CONTRACTOR: Claudia Tedford, Principal

QtyP| ace P| 8Mn| nQ Inc, 
501 West Broadway, Suite A- 143
San 0ego, CA 92101

Notice ofchange of address shall be given by written notice in the manner
specified in this Section. F< egacUun or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver

because of changed address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to
constitute receipt of the 0ohce, dennand, request or communication eeRL Any Dot| ce, 
neqUest, dernand, direction or other norVrnUnioaUon sent by omb| a, telex, bs| ecopy, 
facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty- eight ( 48) hours by letter mailed or
delivered asspecified inthis Section. 

20, CONFLICT

During -._ '_ - -' thi_ Agreement,OBLIGATIONS- 

perform services of any Kind for any person orentity whose interests conflict in any way
with those of the QTY OF LEMON GROVE. The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to

specify any prmduoi, treatrnent, process or material for the project in which the

CONTRACTOR has 8 material financial interest, either direct or indiFecd. without first

notifying the CITY of that tact, The CONTRACTOR shall at all times comply with the

terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lennon Grove Conflict ofInterest Code The

CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official position to
influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY mwhich the CONTRACTOR
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The

CONTRACTOR represents that ithas noknowledge of any financial interests that would
require it to disqualify itself from any rnoder on which it might perform services for the
CITY. 

If the CONTRACTOR violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these
provisions iothis section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this
Agreement. Further, the violation subjects the Contractor to liability to the CITY for

attorney fees and all damages sustained asaresult o/ the violation. 



M If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting
requirements of the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of

Interest Code. Specifically, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

1, Go to www. fr)r) c. ca. ciov
2. Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

3, Completely fill out the form
4. Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, 
costs or expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by
the CONTRACTOR, 

10

14- 



K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each

party is of equal bargaining strength, ( ji) each party has actively participated in the
drafting, preparation and negotiation of this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has

consulted with or has had the opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel
and such other professional advisors as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to
any and all matters contemplated under this Agreement, ( iv) each party and such

party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this Agreement, ( v) each party has agreed

to enter into this Agreement following such review and the rendering of such advice, 
and ( vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against
the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, or any portions
hereof, or any amendments hereto. 

L Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any
provision of this Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement
unenforceable. invalid, or illegal. 



UMMMMMA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exeUlted this

Agreerneni on the date and year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE CITYPI- ACE PLANNING, WC. ,— y I
i, , r4lnm ._ rwrww ul rvo corporate officers) 

Sole proprletorship — one signalure) 

By: By 
us, 

Acting ily Manager i Al

Title) 

F 0 R a

M

IN

By: 
Name) 

Title) 



EXHIBIT 64A99

ck
QuoN ? w PirWofislil Sou' vRe" i

p j
kn

P- sfjfn,, a"" J' a l000gj A G' p

501 QVIVIS

To: 1) 1" Yo) pireW

E Gw,,,-mi Ilar, &' ofm

I w w P ' a 111 11 g" I Sr o I I  I r, I, q J re cla N, 1" i I I [ In I , 1 11 , I pa I h I I, fA ll 11 J I ( I rl". u (,,' I I I, I I, J a r r a. marc. tc' t 4 rl rj

rh' p"" 4- " I' ll Iac rmf ra. r, "' i lo , 0" 60"', J% 

4"" w op " 4



Attachment A

E

Fealing exrolloW lylobibly choices and vibrara, lwamy noWwPxwmmja

F' roew Ckwwv san Dwgv

1, 11dl a w r, r. 4VI

X11 f9, •. A )? 0! 

5' 1" V Ph qd,, y A M: 
3, ao CA

i: GmI . wPkvl & a%, wmdavr, 

I D '( p, ', 4 ., , d ,, art l , ) o ( la,,, pla r, n, rP, nr4riql•, p, o0a,, ir.r„:a,. IC,Q. 1aa- a.,, ray t, o dc I mv 1 1, 1) 1, A) I re, to

QuWe for ProfeszOonM Geirvk. es

DOW MOS

I, i7= IIoJ J+' 7 q Pj 1, 



Attachment A

Per Section 2 or AGREEMENT, The CONTRACTOR and CITY uinflateraHy agree to the
fohowing increase in Scope of Services ( Exhibit " B") per AGREEMENT for professional

panning seMces reWted to the City of Lemon Grove GeinerW PWi Update, 

IN Wl"'I' NESS WHEREOF, the partues hereto have executed this

Ag re. erneint on the date and year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

By, 

r

APPROVED AS/ 1` 0 F( R/' 

f -'P

crrYPLACE PLANNING, INC. LX, 0*, f tom -W'cPr
GarporaHon — signatums of* ca rte ovicers) 

Partnership — one signature) 

Sole propHetorship — one sionaturu) 

19- 



Attachment A

EXHIBIT " B" 

Mardi , 2016

Mr. David De Vries, Development Services Director

I. of La rlrmmm mmGr( we

3232 Main StriNq

Lernon Grim!, CA 91,945

Re,,,. Contract Addendisin 1, Exhibit 8

Dear Miir'. Dip, Vrfev,, 

c
kqplacel'- 

LAN IN I G

This, letter proposal erA. gribes the, added servkesttiat make ijp ContractAddendum ., Albi' 

to the  r m : Ism .. firm the  m  temon Grow and CityPlace 14annin& Inc. to provide

professionalnal p µarm n servicxm lain support ofthe General IPlan Update. 

The aiddflJonal services wilil Incluide revierw of e draft Gmnie!,rmumlp Flamm subiniftted by time San Luis
Obispo raduate rAx mim mmmds, pireparation of the dfaft Geewal Flamm Elements, rooirdIinat u

the FIR consultant team and City staff, and other tasks ars requested

t lace, Plainningwill bill fortime aindmaterials at the same raties prcmided lin Exhibit A, at an

am m°mtm t not, to exceed $ 9,( 1,, O,, CRYPIBCe >O l rill Irig Will OTJy bill for se. r it ? a ested tyy the

Ity and provided byCityPtiarx, RWnning staff. 

Flease let mvm m knin. mu tiiavp an r"wrimmnts or quesUons. 

r

Pr'i' mil rpvri"ip

me



Attachment A

ADDENDA 2

Per Section 2 of AGREEMENT, The CONTRACTOR and CITY unilaterally agree to the
following increase in Scope of Services ( Exhibit " C") per AGREEMENT for professional

planning services related to the City of Lemon Grove General Plan Update. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

signatures of two corporate officers) 

0
Lydia Romero

City Manager
Title) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM

is
James P. Lough

City Attorney

CITYPLACE PLANNING, INC. ( Corporation - 

Partnership - one signature) 

Sole proprietorship - one signature) 

Name) 

Name) 

Title) 

21- 



Attachment A

EXHIBIT " C" 

OMMUEM

Mr, David De Vries, Development Services Director

City of Lemon Grove

Development Services Department

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91944

Re: Contract Addendum 2, Exhibit C

citq

VIVA 11111111111 "
1',,',',, 11

0

11 1

to the Agreement between the City of Lemon Grove and CityPlace Planning, Inc. to provide

professional planning services in support of the General Plan Update, 

The additional services will include the following: 

Review of the draft Program Environmental Impact Report ( PEIR) for compliance with

CEQA and State of California General Plan ( GPj Guidelines, including comments and
revisions; 

Review of the draft General Plan Update document for compliance with GP Guidelines

and feedback from the community and City Council, including comments and revisions-, 

Format the draft and final General Plan to match the formatting of the Health & 
Wellness Element; 

Attend and participate in up to four public hearings; 

Advise City staff on GP issues and opportunities; and
Perform other related dutres, 

CityPlace Planning will bill for time and materials, using the same rates found in Exhibit A at an

amount not to exceed $ 26, 920 00, CityPlace Planning will only bill for services requested by the

City and provided by CityPlace Planning or Circulate SanDiego staff. A detailed cost estimate is
attached. 

Please let me know if you have any comments or questions. 

Sincerely, 

Claudia Tedford, AlCP

Principal

Attachment: Cost proposal

22- 



i m
N i

ai 0 sk 0 C> 0
W C.M YGN' 0.,,,. B Q$' A U 6 0 C_"9 C> I,' D

00 13 

1' 
NFA flh ask

d 

A: I NCDCD

A` Jib f9'i 40 Q: B'N 1di' W.% V) sV) 0 to 0 4d Mi V) 40 Q) 

F`SpA 

60 61

C> 

cog Q l

1( q

Q' 69 4Kvs us 4A V 14 to

h d " b q% 4 " A r b 0"„' 0 C) 0 R

04  `; N L,% B, ti col
04 N b NRR a """' I

i spa Nm ti',, o N ew v

20 N

t

IE Eq vow m
E D

5

i-3

c, 

E

a u. ' CLET

UIJ If" F aIGV w U— rx. 
e UM

i G

ppp0  
fl . Cap CA II . 811 111111.. GJ

6 ' CW Q C3 2

fl. ... eLb Q J
rye  g:;  CA" A 9/ 0

0.,% w - y =: 
rd LL., 3 e

QycQ a 0 i
c.. 8/ e 4Ah 4' 9 fp7
2;, w

16, V3 C( 1 m V) 

m
Ni



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1 N

Mtg. Date Api_, 2016

Dept. C ev N pw remr t Services

Item Title: Professional Services Agreement with Dudek for the Preparation of a Program

Environmental Impact Report for the General Plan Update

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director: 

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) awarding an agreement with Dudek to provide a Program
Environmental Impact Report ( PEIR) with related assistance for the General Plan update. 

Item Summary: 

In support of the General Plan update efforts, the City invited firms to respond to a request for
proposal ( RFP) for the preparation of environmental compliance documents for the General Plan

update. The RFP was publically advertised on March 16, 2016. Three firms submitted proposals
and City staff, along with two outside panelists with related experience working with consultants on
environmental documents, conducted interviews with all three firms on April 6, 2016. Staff and the

panelists thoroughly reviewed each proposal. Based upon the proposals provided and interviews
conducted, staff recommends that an agreement ( Attachment B) is awarded to Dudek for an

amount not to exceed $ 142, 290. Dudek was viewed as having the most related experience with the
preparation of program environmental impact reports ( PEIR) for General Plan updates, had staff

available to expedite processing, provided policy analysis ( other firms did not), provided rational

tasks for completion within a tight time frame, made the greatest effort in understanding the

community, and they also presented the lowest cost of the three firms. The project budget includes
a contingency amount of $ 5, 500. Staff spoke with five individuals who have worked with Dudek and
the project managers and four of the five had positive remarks, while one cautioned their practice

with air quality analysis. Staff addressed the concern with Dudek and feels confident in their abilities
to do the work assigned. The attached ( Attachment A — Exhibit 1) includes the full contract and a

budget and a scope of work for completion. 

Fiscal Impact: 

142, 290 in professional services for the General Plan Update, 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None 0 Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Resolution with Agreement

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA: 

AWARDING AN AGREEMENT TO PREPARE A PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

REPORT FOR THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE

WHEREAS, The General Plan was adopted in 1996. Subsequently, the City has
adopted the 2001 Broadway Commercial Project Specific Plan, the 2005 Downtown Village
Specific Plan, the 2006 Bikeways Master Plan, the 2010- 2020 Housing Element, and the 2014
Health & Wellness Element; and

WHEREAS, General Plans are encouraged to be updated every 20 to 25 years per 2003
State Guidelines for General Plans; and

WHEREAS, the City Council identified an update to the Lemon Grove General Plan as a
priority goal in FY15- 16 and FY16- 17 and budgeted funding for the General Plan update; and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution 2015- 3357
approving a sponsored project agreement with Cal Poly San Luis Obispo' s ( SLO) Design Studio
Team to conduct public outreach and prepare a draft community profile and General Plan
update; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015 and October 6, 2016, the City Council formed a 14
member adhoc focus group to advise city staff and the SLO Design Studio on its efforts with the
General Plan outreach and assist with identifying issues and opportunities; and

WHEREAS, extensive public outreach was provided towards the preparation of the draft

General Plan and community profile including: 1) SLO Design Studio contact with over 120

youth and 500 adults through interviews and surveys both online and in person; 2) three focus

group meetings and related assignments; 3) On January 21, 2016, a community workshop was
conducted on community design and economic development by CityPlace Planning; 4) On
January 30, 2016, a community workshop was conducted on street development and circulation
by Circulate San Diego; and 5) On February 16, 2016, a joint community and City Council public
hearing was conducted and the City Council provided feedback related to the draft General Plan
update; and

WHEREAS, public notifications for workshops and hearings were sent via listserve, 

newsflash, and updates were posted on social media and the General Plan update webpage

and focus group members and community workshop attendees were also notified about

upcoming events; and

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2016, a request for proposals was publicly advertised and
three responses were received from Dudek, REC, and Rick Engineering; and

WHEREAS, Dudek has special knowledge and expertise related to General Plan PEIR' s
based on their recent experience; and

WHEREAS, staff concluded that Dudek submitted a responsive and responsible

proposal in the amount of $ 142, 290. 00; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest that an agreement for said
services is awarded to Dudek; and

WHEREAS, Dudek has agreed to the attached professional agreement terms and scope

of work as presented herein ( Exhibit 1); and



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, Cal iforn ia :hereby: 

1. Awards an agreement ( Exhibit 1) to Dudek for $ 142, 290. 00 ( optional items may be
considered by subsequent resolution); and

2. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute agreement and manage all



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE DOCUMENTS

RELATED TO THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE
BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AND

DUDEK

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, by
and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the " CITY"), and

Dudek, a professional environmental firm ( the " CONTRACTOR"). 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide professional
environmental services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is a professional

environmental firm and is qualified by experience, specific project knowledge, and ability to
perform the Project Manager and supporting environmental services desired by the CITY, and
the CONTRACTOR is willing to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS

FOLLOWS: 

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the
CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set
forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein. 

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will be

performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the CONTRACTOR. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONTRACTOR will perform services for the

preparation and certification of California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Compliance

Documents for the General Plan Update as further defined in the attached Exhibit " A" beginning
on page 11. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing services for the preparation and
certification of California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Compliance Documents for the
General Plan Update consistent with the budget and scope of work in Exhibit " A". The

CONTRACTOR shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as authorized
in advance by the CITY and as referenced in Exhibit "A". The CONTRACTOR shall appear at

meetings cited. 

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time to time
reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree to meet in good faith and
confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services. 

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION. 

David DeVries, Development Services Director, is hereby designated as the
Project Manager for the CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this Agreement. 
The CONTRACTOR shall assign a single professional analyst to act as the Project Director, or

Principal in Charge, to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the progress and

M



Attachment A - Exhibit I

execution of this Agreement for the CONTRACTOR, Carey Fernandes thereby is designated as
the Project Director for the CONTRACTOR. 

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the CONTRACTOR shall
be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings shall include labor

classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The total cost for all

work described in Exhibit " A" shall not exceed the base amount of $ 142, 290. 00 ( optional tasks
will be considered under a separate agreement), without prior written authorization from the

City' s Project Manager. Monthly invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within
thirty ( 30) days from receipt of invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with
Exhibit "Kas determined by and in the sole discretion of the CITY. 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all books, documents, papers, employee time sheets, 

accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such

materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and

for three ( 3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the

CITY and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested. 

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. The duration of this agreement will be until November

30, 2016 unless an extension is otherwise mutually agreed upon and approved. 
6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. The Memoranda, Reports, 

Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR
for this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with
respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or

any phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. By accepting payment for completion, 
filing and delivering documents as called for in this paragraph, the CONTRACTOR discharges
the City of all of the City' s payment obligations and liabilities under this agreement. 

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR hereby
assigns to the CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright
in, and the right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work

prepared under this agreement, except upon the CITY' s prior authorization regarding
reproduction, which authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONTRACTOR
shall, upon request of the CITY, execute any further document( s) necessary to further effectuate
this waiver and disclaimer. 

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify, 
assign, transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR' s written
work product for the CITY' s purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives and disclaims
any residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989 relating to intellectual
property and artistic works. 

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications
prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from liability under Section 14
but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to
the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was
expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

I[* 



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the performance of this

Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or
joint ventures with one another. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR' S

employees are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or
privileges of the CITY' s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemploy- 
ment, or workers' compensation insurance. 

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONTRACTOR and the

CONTRACTOR' s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement
to the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and

competence of the CONTRACTOR and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY. 
Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as
many employees, or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may deem necessary for the proper
and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR with its
subcontractor( s) shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this

Agreement. 

8. CONTROL, Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any
control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR' s employees
except as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR expressly agrees not to represent that the
CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR' s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner
agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its
agents, servants, and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent contractors and that
the CONTRACTOR' s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this
Agreement. 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONTRACTOR, in the performance

of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes
and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its

subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license

prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement. 

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that it

has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally
required to practice its profession. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that the

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR
to practice its profession. Submittals Required with the Agreement. Failure of the

CONTRACTOR to provide the following documentation with the executed agreement will cause
delay in the agreement being executed by the City: 

A. Insurance as specified in Section 15 of this agreement; 

B. Taxpayer Identification Number ( W- 9) 

httP1/ www, irs < ov/fib/ r r fJty I i , 
C. IRS Letter of Non -Profit 501 ( c) ( 3) ( If Applicable); 

D. City Business License; 

11. STANDARD OF CARE. 

A. The CONTRACTOR, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall
perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the CONTRACTOR' S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in



Attachment A - Exhibit I

similar locations. The CONTRACTOR shall take all special precautions necessary to protect
the CONTRACTOR' s employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the
nature of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site. 

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the

CONTRACTOR warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five ( 5) years

preceding, been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or
litigation proceedings concerning the CONTRACTOR' s professional performance or the
furnishing of materials or services relating thereto. 

C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unique products, 

treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the
CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, 
when no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the
CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products, 
materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are

reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence
under this sub -paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY's later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable
substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or, 

when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. 
D. City' s Right to Terminate for Default. If the CONTRACTOR fails to perform or

adequately perform any obligation required by this agreement, the CONTRACTOR' s failure
constitutes a Default. If the CONTRACTOR fails to satisfactorily cure a Default within ten ( 10) 
calendar days of receiving a written notice from the City specifying the nature of the Default, the
City may immediately cancel and/ or terminate this Agreement, and terminate each and every
right of the CONTRACTOR, and any person claiming any rights by or through the
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. The rights and remedies of the City enumerated in this
paragraph are cumulative and shall not limit the City' s rights under any other provision of this
Agreement, or otherwise waive or deny any right or remedy, at law or in equity, existing as of
the date of this Agreement or enacted or established at a later date, that may be available to the
City against the CONTRACTOR. 

12. NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS, The CONTRACTOR shall not

discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, 
ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or
medical condition. The CONTRACTOR will take positive action to insure that applicants are

employed without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include

but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in

conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided
by the CITY setting forth the provisions of this non- discrimination clause. 

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to
the CONTRACTOR certain confidential information to enable the CONTRACTOR to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein. The CONTRACTOR shall treat all such information

as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its
own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The

foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that ( i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( ii) is, through no fault of
the CONTRACTOR, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( iii) is



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

already in the possession of the CONTRACTOR without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) 

has been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONTRACTOR by a third party, but only to
the extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third
party; or ( v) is disclosed according to law or court order. 

The CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or
other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the

prior written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall

comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation. 

CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this
condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any

and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, and

subcontractors in the performance of services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR' s duty to
indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to
persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence
or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees. 
CONTRACTOR' s indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this Agreement. The CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any payment, attorney' s
fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the

CITY' s self- administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the

purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of
this Agreement. 

15. INSURANCE. The CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase

and maintain, and shall require its subcontractors, when applicable, to purchase and maintain

throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies: 

A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum
limits of $ 1, 000, 000 per occurrence. 

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during
the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000, 000 combined single

limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall include hired and non -owned vehicles. 

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $ 1, 000, 000

combined single limit per occurrence, covering all personal injury, bodily injury and property
damage arising out of its operation under this Agreement. Contractual liability shall include
coverage of tort liability of another party to pay for bodily injury or property damage to a third
person or organization. Contractual liability limitation endorsement is not acceptable. 

D. Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONTRACTOR' s employees. The
CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the provisions of the Worker' s Compensation Insurance
and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the
California Government Code and all amendments thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts

or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and
employees from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and

judgments of every nature and description, including reasonable attorney' s fees and defense
costs presented, brought or recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or

volunteers, for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by
reason of any work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. That policy

M



Attachment A - Exhibit I

shall provide a minimum of $ 1, 000, 000 of employer' s liability coverage, and the CONTRACTOR
shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against the City
and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers, 
employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to
any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty ( 30) days prior written notice
to the CITY of cancellation or material change. 

F. If any required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than

occurrence" form, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years

after expiration of the term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement. 
G. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a

current policy holder' s alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII
according to the current Best's Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is
approved by the CITY. 

H. Deductibles. All deductibles on any policy shall be the responsibility of the
CONTRACTOR

I. Specific Provisions Required. Each policy required under this section shall
expressly provide, and an endorsement shall be submitted to the City, that: 

1. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker' s compensation
policies, shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. The
CITY' s Additional Insured status must be reflected on additional insured endorsement form CG
2012, or equivalent, which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

2. The Policies cannot be canceled, non -renewed or materially changed except
after thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY by certified
mail, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY except for non- 
payment of premium, in which case ten ( 10) days' notice will be provided. 

3. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that

these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY. 
If the CONTRACTOR does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all
times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided
herein. 

4. The CONTRACTOR may obtain additional insurance not required by this
Agreement. 

16. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising
from any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the
representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then
in that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out- of- 
court settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable
costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

17. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, 

or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego, 
California, in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association ( the "AAA"). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. 

If a third part dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or relates in any way to the
services provided under this Agreement, upon the City' s request, the CONTRACTOR, its

agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the dispute or litigation. The

CONTRACTORs assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing professional consultations, 

M



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any event related to the dispute
resolution and/ or litigation. 

18. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by
the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30 -day' s written notice to the
CONTRACTOR. During said 30 -day period the CONTRACTOR shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR may terminate this agreement upon thirty
30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its

obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices. 

B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the
event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City' s satisfaction within a
ten ( 10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONTRACTOR in
connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to

perform services as directed by the CITY. 
C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of

Termination to the CONTRACTOR as provided for herein. 

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps, 

Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR, whether
paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and
the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages
caused the CITY by the CONTRACTOR' s breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written
material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6. 

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: 
1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONTRACTOR; ( 2) a reorganization of the

CONTRACTOR for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business

name or change in business status of the CONTRACTOR. 

F. The termination of the services shall be effective upon receipt of the notice by the
CONTRACTOR. 

19. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder

shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express
or the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or
sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of ( i) if personally
delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, ( ii) if sent by
overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, ( iii) if mailed

by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days ( ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the
State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like

facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv) if given by telegraph or
cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or ( v) if given by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other

communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons: 

11- 



Attachment A - Exhibit I

To the CITY; David De Vries, Development Services Director

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945- 1701

To the CONTRACTOR: Carey Fernandes, Principal
Dudek

605 Third St. 

Encinitas, CA 92024

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in
this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice, 

demand, request or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other
communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty- 
eight ( 48) hours by letter mailed or delivered as specified in this Section. 

20. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS. 

During the term of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall not perform services of any kind for
any person or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON
GROVE. The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or
material for the project in which the CONTRACTOR has a material financial interest, either

direct or indirect, without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONTRACTOR shall at all

times comply with the terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest
Code. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the
CONTRACTOR has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The

CONTRACTOR represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require
it to disqualify itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

If the CONTRACTOR violates any conflict of interest laws or any of these provisions
in this section, the violation shall be grounds for immediate termination of this Agreement. 

Further, the violation subjects the Contractor to liability to the CITY for attorney fees and all
damages sustained as a result of the violation. 

If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting
requirements of the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest

Code. Specifically, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

1, Go to www.fppc.ca. gov

2. Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

3. Completely fill out the form
4. Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or

expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the
CONTRACTOR. 

21. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date
Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, 
shall automatically be extended until 5: 00 p. m. Pacific
Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday. 

12- 

or time period provided for in this

state or legal holiday, then such date
Time of the next day which is not a



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the

same instrument. 

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this

Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, 
and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or
any provision hereof. 

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or
obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto. 

E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby
incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes. 

F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or

amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto. 
G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not

operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof. 
H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of California. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations
and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as

to the subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby. 

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal
bargaining strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and
negotiation of this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the
opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors
as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this
Agreement, ( iv) each party and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this
Agreement, ( v) each party has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and
the rendering of such advice, and ( vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, 
or any portions hereof, or any amendments hereto. 

L. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this
Agreement shall not render any other provision of this Agreement unenforceable, invalid, or
illegal. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written. 

13- 



Attachment A - Exhibit I

CITY OF LEMON GROVE DUDEK

Corporation — signatures of two corporate officers) 

Partnership — one signature) 

Sole proprietorship — one signature) 

Date- Date: 

By: .. .__. By= 
Lydia Romero ( Name) 

City Manager _ 
rifle) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Date: Date; 

In

14- 

By. 
James P. Lough ( Name) 

City Attorney

Title) 



EXHIBIT A

DUD,EK

r I' 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

7- aUe af C'brfer 

SEC" TIONS

I CoverLet-Ler --------------...... ... ... -------------------------_--------..... m

2 PnzeclPersonneL--.......... ---------------------------------------------....... 1

3 C8scussbnofSimUarProjects .--._..----..-...,....-~~.-.... -..--... .... .......... .... .......... ...... ... -~ A

4 Rate -. — --- - _^_.-.~--.~... ..... ...... ......... ........ —...... ' I5

5 Scope ofWork and Pnzjec --_...... .... --... ..... --... .... ..... _...... .... _-- ~-_ 17

6 Addiflona| Funding--..... ...... ....... ...... ....... 35

37



EXHIBIT A

N1 [. N HONA1_ I 1 1 1 BLANK

Awa f 11 ( Ca nrr71 Phan 1. 11 r1[ e I, 



EXHIBIT r

A ff 
v/ . LL./ 

David DeVries

City ofLemonGrove
Development Services Director

3232Main Street

L.ernorr Grove, California 9194.'.) 

Subject: City of L,emcnGrove Gemeii4UMan Update OR

Dear Mr. DeVhes

Duciekbexcited for the opportunity to supr,)ort. Uhe City of I ernoin Grove ( City' S) goal touodaLe its General Plan. 
Dudek planners are committ. ediohe| ping (-' a| Uomia' scities create, plan, and imp| ementa unique community

visxzn. As a m dd7ed firm, we riot only offer a depth and variety ofsemlces, butour project managers are
nimb|eproblem so|verswho stay invo|vedinclients' projects fromstart Lofinish

The Right Experience We urdersiand that the City wiU be updating its General Plan whh a focus on
implementing complete streets and multionoda| accessibility. An important component of the general plan
process in California is preparation of an environmental document that reviews and evaluates proposed new

land uses and infrastructure, as well as goals, policies, and implementation programs, A program environmental

impact report. ( B0r.hatisdesigned Uzfacilitate k/ turcUeringofprojects consisi. entwihthe General Plan Update

car) serve City staff vveU in slneam| ining future envirunmenta| review. As p|anning and [ a| Jornia Environmental
Quality Ac ( CEQA) experts, Dudek understands how to get the most out of pxogram-| eve| environmental

analysis Recent| y, our learn has successfully completed similar program level environmental documents for
Cities of La Mese' Escondido, Santee, Upland, and Sierra Madre as well as COLA- ity Of Imperial. This
experience and our depth of planning and environmental knowledge in Southern Ca| iforniawiU he| p us perorm
the requested work inadme|y, thorough, and cost. -effective mariner. 

Responsive arid Experienced Project Feal[Ti Our c,xperienced an(.] available protect rnanagernent reamwil| 

manage all aspeos ofthe piic je Caney Fernndes, AICR will serve asprincipal in, charge, Ms. Fernandes has over 19
years' experience in planning and environmental rnpact anak§ is, Ma, Fernandes has prepared specific plans, 
ordinances and 0EQAdocumentaiionfor cKiesand pubic clients thmughou Southern Cafforni including Lemon
Grove end neadm La Mesa Asha Bleier, project manager and main point cfcontact will make this conUac a top

priorityMsBleier has prepared numerous program - level CEQAdocumentsfor theSari Diego region She iswell

versed in implementing complete streetsand is actively Involved in Circulate San Diego asa k4oveAUiance member
lnaddidoqDudek' sexparienceascordract- p|anningstafffo/| oca| jurisdicLionsandpreparinggenera| p|ansandElRs
gives us a unique undeN.arick) g of how best to a(. c.-( ) rnphsh the City' s objectives fr..)r this project. 

Dudek is willing to enter into a mutual agreement and final scope of work with the City of Lemon Grove, We
look fonward ho this oppomunbyto wcik with your staff, If you have any queslions, please feel free bz contact
Carey Fernandes at cfernandes( Odr.rdek,coin or Asha 316er at ableier(Odudek. corir. 

Sinceejy, 

President

E) UDEK LIR / orGener- al PanUpdatem



EXHIBIT

IN I N11ONAI_ I_. Y LEFT BI INK

iioiiiiiaic„ ii i,aaaiaac, ia... , i, iiia, u,,,;,r ,,,,; ,>, ,, i, ic„ n a<i, r<i„c,, iii„aiiiiiiiac, ,,,,.,,; i

DL. E



Irojecf Persoid

Dudek has assembled a highly qualified 0eamwhh extensive experience in the San Diego reg c) ntoundertake
this project. We wi|| ud| ize our in- house emxronmenta| specialists to meet the needs of the project Dudek staff

members have recent experienceasconsulting planners or) general plans, specific plans, and large planned
developments, We have also inc| udedtraffic consu| tant Linscot:I, Law & Greenspan, Engineers ( LLG)' on our

teem, LLG has successfully completed traffic impecL reports and complete streets assessments for general p|an
uodatesthroughoutthe Sari Diego region. [ Xudekand LLGhave along history working together

Under the carefrr| direction ofour project manager and task leaders, our teamwill orov dethe City will) the

environmental experbse nacessaryto eNciendvcomp| ete a prognam-| eve| TR for the City' s General Plan
Update, The team organizaiiona| structure is shown in Figure I, Brief team member biographies are

provided below. 

Pr` nc l̂paU^ n Charge

Carey Fernaindes, AICP
C. arey Fernandes is a senior project manager with lQ years' 
pnofessiona| p| anning- re| aied experience specializing in the

planning, environmental, anddevelopment industries. Herdiverse
background of education and experience indudcs permit

prucessingvvhh | oca| juris& 1ions, coordinat)onwth pub|icagency

staff, prepanationofCEQAarid National EnvironmenU Policy Act
NEPA) documents, project management, due di| igence, and

leaslUlity analysis. 

1E) UCXnON

San Diego State Unrvemity
NIA, Public Adminietrafion. 1Q@@

Univerai yofCe| ifomie' Santa Borbana

BA. Eng| imh, 1883
CEIR" 0FVCA rAON

AmehcanlnmMkheofCeiififiedPlanners

A| CP), CerfiificalreNo, O1GOG7

PROIFE0S11ONA11 AlFfULAATMINS

Asaseniorproject manager, she has worked onanumberof ArnehnanPlannnQAssociation, Board o{ 

planning documents, such as specific plans, comprehensive Di» sotors' 2OD0- 2O82' 2OO5- Present. 

plans, and genera| plan updates. ln addition, she has served as 8 AummdeUon ofEnvimnmmnba| Pmfeeaiona| o

or) call p| anning siaiff for several public agencies, She hes also
semed as prpject manager an(.] primary author of many environmerita| review documenisthroughout San
Diego andlmperia| countiesShe also works Min several NativeAmerican tribes inthe \ Aies ern United States

in the preparation of tribal environmental documents, Through this experience, she has developed a broad

understandingofpolicy, p|anning, arid environmental issues, 

DUDEK EIR for General Plan update I



Pr. ect Manager

Asha Neier, AICP

Asha B| eor is a project manager With more lhan IO years' 

experience inenvironmental planning and | anddeve| c) pmenL Ms, 

Bleier hasexperience preparing planning reports, such as specific
plans and general plans, as vveU as pn..Ject- specific

recommendations concerning land use, 7oning, design, and

environmental issues, She has managed several projects including
master planned residential communities, mixed- use, commercial, 

active recreation, large- sca| e so| ar farm' s and public service

facilities, each requiring extensive environmental analysis, and
comp| ianceWith CEQAorNEPA

U Uln   vn 

ANDMWAIM

Univereycf California, SanlaBarbaru

BA, Envimnmenta| Studies, 

Gaogoaphy0rbonP| anninQ
Emphaaio. 2OO5

CURnIFUCAT11ONS

A| CP( issued2O12) 

American | nadtrbsclArcriiecbAssociate, 

No, 30528835

Leadership in Energymnd Environmental
Design ( LEED) Accredited Professional

Ms. Bleier currently serves as the professional development officer ( AP) Building Design and Construction

for lhe San Diego Section of the American Planning Association(
BD+ C) 

She isalso amemberofSan Diego' s Complete Street TaskForce PIROFIESS1101INAII AFFIII [ KnOINS

and co- author of the white paper, From Policy to Pavement American P| anningAaaodaUon

implementing Complete S1neels in the San Diego Region, Amehoan| neUnuteoyAruhitents

published in Sp/ ing 20I2. The white paper equips local US, Green Bui}dingCounoi| 

governments with a roadmap tosuccessfuUy imp|emenkoomp| ete WomeninArchifeCiune

streets and, in turn, achieve an interconnected multi- mc)da| 

nehwork1hroughoutthe region. Her expertise a|so led heir toserve asa pane| isi on Move San Diego' s Move

P|| iance, which endorses early stage deve|opmenL projects in the San Diego region that demonstrale a
comm) lmenLtotransit- orienteddeve| opmentand smart gnowthprinciples, 

CE Uv 

ShaninoinWages, AICF1

Shannon Wages, AK.? is an environmental planner with over l3 E1DUCATIION

years' experience specializing in managing | mng- range Planning UnivaSityufSouthemCalifornia

dmcumeNs as well as complex land use entitlement projects, Ms lVIA, Urban Plan ning8] esign. 2003

Wages has successfully managed the preparation of multiple BhghamYoung University
general plans, specific plans, zoning ordinances, housing BA, Hummni\ ies/ Spmnish. 2O8D

e|ements, downtown plans, visioning plans, corridor studiesand CERT8FVCATilONS

economic feasibility studies, receiving several awards from the U A|CP

AmericanPlanning Association for her planning projects Ms
Wages also hc| pscbiesimp| ementtheirp| ansihroughentNingdeve| opmentprcDectsor assis.t. ing withfunding
and financing mechanismsShe combines her experience in planning, urban design, development, and
community outreach to achieve desired projeUs that realize the community' s goals and objective,, lrom

planning and conceptual design, to certificates of occupancy, Ms. Wages is involved throughout Uhe process, 
facilitating positive grow-th and change in the communities she repiesenis

DUDEK ER for ( Deneral Plan Update 2



CuUturaVl Ilistairic Resources

Wcah HWe, FIND

tAicah Ha| e has over lG years' experience as a field directcx, 

ground stome ar4yal., flaked store analyst, invertebrate analyst, 

and authorOrHate currenL| yfunc1ions as a principa| investigator

in project oversight including pnoposa| s, research designs, 

fie| dwork, ar6tac1 ana ysis, and repod authorship. He hes

experienceconduc1ing hothacademicarid pnofessiona| research

in archaeology at the supervisory | eve| in California, Arizona, 
Nevada. and Oregon, including work for Nava| Faci| ilies

Engineering Command Southwiest Ca| ifornia Oepartment of
TnanspoAlaUoq Western Area Power Administsahion, California

State Parks, and various city and county agencies, and has worked

n nn n  

ElIDLCAT110IN

Unwemnyo[ CmUfomia. Dovis

FIND, 4mOrmpm| ngy. 2OO9

CaUomieState Univemiy. Sumamento
MA, Anthropology, 2801

University ofCe|icmmio. Davis
BS, Anthropology, 18BS
cEJ?,Tu:UCATMS

Register ofProfessional

Archaeo| ogisl,s. 20O1

Or, Ha| e has supervised numerous arge- scale surveys test ewcavabons, and data recovery programsHe has
authored vesearchdesigns, proposa| s, pne| iminaryand final repo s, historic preservakzntechnica| procedures, 

and donetoo| ana[ yses, Dr, Hale has integrated his personal research initerests into projects and parficipated in

professional symposia at| oca| and nationMvcnues, inc| Ang the Society for American Apchaeo| ogyand the

Society [ or Cdifornia Archaeo ogy. 

Ai r QNuaU^ ty/ GHG
Jeni-derIR.eed

ennher Reed is an errvironmeinta| panner w0h over 8 years' EDL)ICKTION

experience, She has been responsible for the management Unveirs| tyofCe| ifom| a. SonaBarbara

reseanch, and ana|ysis of projects subject to comp|iance eth the BA, Environmental Studies. 2OO7

CEQA and NEPA MsReed has comp|eted numerous BA. Geography, 2OO7

envirnnmenta| documents insupportofadr,,/erserange cfpublic PROFESSDNALAF::FyLUATUOINS

and private developments. She speciaUes in air gua| hy and AaemciaiionofEnvirunmenta| Pmfpuaiona| a

greenhouse gas ( GHG) emissions technical ana| yses, and U Airand Waste Managament& amodahon

continuesto be onthe forefront ofexo| ving science, emissions

mode| ing computer pnrgrams, and regulatory framework. Ms. Recd has prepared air quality and GSH 
assessments for a wide variety of development prcjec1s thmughout CoUfornia, including | arge residential
projects, commercia| and retail projects, industrial projects, mimed- usedeve| opments, co||egesand univeraiUes, 

heabhcave faci| rdes, energy projects, water and wastewater infrastn. xiune, and transpoxlatkrn impncivements, 

including Caltrans air qua|byanakoes. AddinonaUy, Ms. Reed has considerab| eexperience in project planning
and regulatory compliance pursuant to the California Coastal Act and has experience in land use permit
processing, constraints anatysis, dexe|opmentfeasibi| dyshudies, duedi|igence invesiigadons, and various clher
and- usep|anningpnojecty

D U I"!) IE K EIR for Gerioa F) anUpdate 3



am

NAike Greerie, Ul" JCE Bd. Cext, 

K4lkeGreene ls an envnznmenta| specla| ist/ acousticianwhh more

than 23 years' onzfessiona| expeience in acoustical analysis and

noise control engineering, Mr. Gireene has conducted and

participated in noise and vibration analyses for hundreds of

transportation, commercial, industria|, and residential

developments throughoutCa| ifo/ niaand the UnitejStates. 

EXHIBIT r

Ell'. QCAr0q

Un| vermtyofCaffornio. San Diego

3S, Applied Vieohonics, 1985

CEIRT| FICA"n0INS

WEBd, Cen, 

CnuntycJSan DiegoAppvoved

As a project or task manager, kJc Greene has conducted noise studies for industrial and conmeora| facilities

ranging from hospitals to manufacturing plants to supers fad| itres, He is experienced in the modeling
otexisting arid future roadwaynuise impacls using the Federa| HighwayAdministnationTnaffic Noise Modd| 
TW m) and is experienced with the use ofboth Soundl and CednaA, computer software pnzgramstor
prediction and assessment of noise levels inthe vidnityofindustria| facilities and cher noise sources such as

roadways, railways, and airports, 

Hydily/Geology
Dy4inCJuverge

Dylan Duverg6 is an ein0nznmenta| analyst and hvbnogeologist 1::::: DUCATO1N

with 7years' experience inthe environmentd| industry and 5years' San Francisco State University
experience pnmiding technical analysis, geographic information MS, 8eoaciences' 2O11

systems ( GIS) suppor[, and pr9ject management support for University of Ca| ifomim. entaCmz

renewable energy, water/ wastewater, and resource management BA, Environmente| Studiee. 2O05

pr9jectsthnzughout[ aHornia, He specializes inthe environmcnta| 

anehais of geologic and seismic hazards; soil, mineral, and paleontological resources; hydrology and
groundwater; and Visua| resources, Mc Duverg' s diverse experience includes suppor-fiing GEQA and NEPA
projects with geospatia| anakais and figure production in GlS, coordinating public notice and outreach, 
providing technica| review, and providing field support for environmenta| site assessments, sampling, and



Em
13rock Ortega

8mck Ortega has nnore than 23 years' experi(., nce as a wildlife

biologist He brings extensive expertise to his project teams in

many aveas, inc|uding mitigadon monitoring, permitting issues
related to we| and resources and ihnsatened or enclangered

species, wildlife. biology and management ecological assessment
environmenta| impact assessment and midgaiion, habiLat

remediation, endangered species management plan authorship, 

and pnojec1management. Mr Ortega has conducted over 20,000

hours of focused and general wi| d| Ne surveys during his
professiona| caecr. 

7-  EXHIBIT / r 

E11".) UCA' T0N

Humboldt State University
BS, Wildlife Biologyand

Management, 1991

CEIRTFUCAT| OINS

USFVVSFedend | DaSurvey F) errnitWn
TE - 813545- 5

PROFESSMNALAFF| LUXTUaqs

AmehcmnOmi o| ogieia' Union

Association ofField Ornithologists

ComperOmitho| ogima| Sooiay
Mr, Ortega is a recognized qualified surveyor for a number of VVl snnOnNlologicdSociety
listed and rare amphibian and mamma| species and has federal TheVNW| Ue Socely
permiis for several species, He is U. S. Fish and VVi| d| ifm Service Southern California Chapter ofThe Wildlife

USFVVS)— authurized as an arroyo toad ca60onIczis} U Sooioty, Board Member

emergencyhand| er, USFVVSand a| ifornia Department of Fish

and VVi| d| ife—qua| ihed to survey San Joaquin kit fox ( kblpe, nrao-oll.sn7utssj) Lhroughout its range; and

USFVVS and U. S. Forest Service ( USFS)—qua| ified to survey arroyo toad' California red - legged frog (/ la/ d.- 

diqy4ol- ifi), mountain yellow -|egged frog ( Piana n/ u000. J), and Coachella Valley fnnge- toed lizard ( LJma
throughou1their range, 

Johin Keating
k4c Keahng has 30 years of professional traffic engineering

experience, He has personally prepared participa. ed in or
directed the preparation of about lOOD traffic impact studies, 

parking studies, arid roadway pnojecis. 

E[ UCAT0IN

UnkemdYofWisconsin, Madison

BS, Civ| Engineering
CE:? T| 1F8CA' TMS

Civil

Mt. Keating has worked closely with other | s  M e - 
r~'~~'~'' Traffic Engineer, Co| homia( TR12O3

reparation and presentation of environmental documenta6on
Civi| Engineer, Arizona ( 27OG7) 

to citizens groups, local govemmer8 engineers and planners, U
Professional TraffioOuamiioneEnoineer

Transportation Commissions, Planning Commissions. and City
COunci| s He has also made presentabonstothe California [ oasta| Commission

Mr, Keadng has managed traffic studies for many of the highest profile pnojects in San Diego including the
Qua| oomm Stadium Expansion' San Diego Padres Ballpark, San Diego Airport Master Plan, San Diego

Convention (, enterExpansion, San Diego Zoo K4asterPlan, SeaVVor| d Master Plan, the Nodh Embarcadero

Visionary Plan, the Downtown Federal Courhouse ( under construction), the Sao Ysidno Border [ ossing

underconstnuction), the South Embercadero Urban Design Plan, and the Naval Air Station Noulh( s| and in

Coronado, and the ) el Mar FairgroundsMaster- Plan. 

t...) 11) 11E K FIR for General Plan rJpdate



Support Services

Dudek' s team for dhe General Plan Update BA will abo be

supported byourin- house GIS and technica| ed tinB and
pub| icationsteam

GIS

Our GIS pnzfe ss&) a| s pnoMe services kom G| oba| 

Positioning System AGPSymobi| e iPad data capture in the

Ne| d and high- end analysis arid mode| ing, tocomplex web
based app| icodon deve| opmentMh legacy integnationto
assist public agencies and prkated) ents in achieving their
goals, With an average of I,200 GIS basks completed

annua| yfor over 20O CaVornia- based clients, our staff is

practiced in providing pracdca|, cost -effecdveGlS so| utions. 

Ted-mical Edifing and Pubhcafioins
Once the technical review iscompleted, Dudek editors will

conduct an eckoria| review of each de| venab|e, fo||mwing
the agreed- upon style guidePrior to submittal to the ( Jty, 
each document Ml be formatted bvOudek' s publications

staff Dudek' s publications pi -(.Auction team verifies the

qua| ity of each formatted document before pub| ication- 
Dudek' s editorial team, in co||aboradon with the

pub| cadonsand informadontechno| ogy staff, will produce
arid pub| ishthe web versionsofproject de| iverab| es, 

ID U 13 11E K EJR for General Plan Update

7-  EXHIBIT /  



f- A

DI XIII EK ' III' k)r GeineirM Flian U:) dae



EXHIBIT A

IN I -EN rlONALI Y LEFTBLANK

WEIEK IR for cjlerrera Man upc, oe



EXHIBIT A

3 Dscussion of Sin4ar [ Irojects

11 eimon Grove 1'..") own town Special Treatnient Area Plain

Cfient: City of Nerrion Grove
Contact: Caroli Diick, PrincipaC Pianineir, 61.9. 25. 800, cdick@ iryiongrove, ca. gov

lProject CompNeCon Date: 2005

BUdget $ 150, 000

Principal Carey F: ernandEas, as a planineir formedy at Mooney Planningolla.-)borahve, was the ,.mirnary author of
the specific plan and associated envtf011ffientJl documentation for ( he revitalization of downtOWin I ernon Grove. 

he IDowntowrn Sj,,)eda1 I reatmerA Area Plan iriciudes an approximately 10 blod< por-tion of I eirnon Grove that
contains a San I ) iego trolley station, Cily [ W1 and other rnwii( Jj:) al buildings, and the origiicM business district, 
oriented around the intersection of I eirrion, Grove Avemie and Broadway, ResponsilAitieS indr!ded coordination
of subcornirriftee rineetings and two eveoing, xbic outreach \ A/ or-kSh0j.,)s, apl-Acation of transitoiriented
development policies to the specific plan, preparation of design g_Jddines and forr-n- based zoning code
suandards, and prejoaration of environryiental docnmenialion to analyze arid inforryi the specific j.-) 1an, 

11 a Mesa Mixed -Use Overlay i - i IEUIR

Ciiient, Oty of L, a Mesa
Con -tact: BM ChopyiI(, Planning and Development Services INrector, 61.R6671187, 

bchojpyA( @ci,] a -mesaxams

lPro.ject CornpI16on Date, 2008

Budget: $ 225, 000

Dudek assisted the City of I a Mesa ( 0ty) in Ifreparing an E[ Ft to aa110W fC) 1' " The EIR for the M U plan was

adoption of the City' s Mixed Use L) irb,:: in Overlay Zone ( I\ A( JUOZ), which a controversial project. You

would add regdadons arid standards to the 701' 1illg code to orripleryienr steered it through the

the objectives of the City' s General Elan, New deveicipment is then minefield with great skill

subJect to dr w...,lopment standards of the WJ( )OZ, involving residential) and grace."" 

density Ipedestriarn orientation, b0iding height, parkin(..), and open
uro

space,. rN.., objective of the \ AUL.)0Z encourages smart growth laind ( ise
jlrricia Flritledc, v, Plani

patterns, [) y orienting rinore density around existing p.iblic trard( ro(.Aes, such as the rroiley Nne. Irnpacts
analyzed in the F IR irx Ude traffic, air qr.,ialilty/ dimate change, and arrnriUtive impacts, 

61,20"R MRS"' W" ' N0% W11FRf1111r

Ut flIEK t for (, eneirall PI m U f) dak, 



X III 111 3) 1 A

Carlsbad General Plan Update EIR

Client: IDyett & 113hatia

Contact,. Rajeev 13hatia, President, 415. 956,4300, ra.ieev@dyet-taiidbhata. coirrr
Project Completion Date: Ongoing
Budget- $ 1, 75, 000

Dudek subcontracled to( Dyna & BhaLia ( Planners) to assist the process of the General Plan Updal.e for Lhe (...'ity
of CarlsN-A Dudek' s involvernent in the ul'.)date piocess included the following: 

Working Papers - Dudek prepared working papers that. served as a fOUndation for updahng the
goals, policies, and programs in the q:)en space arid natural environirneil, history, arts, and cultural
resources elements, Dudek also prepared the mckground and regulatory setting, and assisted with
policy develolornent: for energy, GI IG emissions, and dirna(e change, 

IMarn and Foficy Alternatives — Dudek was part of the consultant tearn that r.:)rovided direction
regarding potential environirriental constraints for the forrnulation of land use alLernatives, in
accordance with CEQA requirernents, 

Draft General Plan — Dudek worked closely with DyeH. & 1. 3hatia during the policy development of the
Draft: General F:11an, including develOPITernt of the. Preferred IDlan, 

ICnvironimental Revilew ( Draft and IElnal ( Progirarn ENZ) — Dudek is responsil,'..)le for the R:) llowing
elernents of the associated Prograrn LIR( biological resources; hydrology and flooding, air q(.jaliLy,- 
geology, soils, and se isrnidty, energy, GHGs, and dirnate change; public utilities and infrastructure
wastewater; historical, ar(, haeological, and paleontological resources; noise; and hazardous materials, 

Upland General IPlan Update and EIS

Client City of Upland
Contact: Jeff Zwadk, Development Services Director, 909, 931- 4148

Project CompIletion Date" 201S

Budget-, $ 350,000 ( GP Update and IE4Ry

Shannon Wages, while with her forrner fil- ITI FIlaceWorks, prepared the General F Ilan Update and E[ FR Me

prograrn EIR for the Ul.) land General Plan Update analyzed the environirnental irnf) ads associated with adotAion
Iand implernentation of the General Plan Update and associated plans, Key issues incIuded air quality, GI IG

Iemissions, historic resoi- irces, noise, and transportation and traffic, rhe EIR will hell,..) sh, earnline future

leve 1c) 1'.) r-nent projects that align with the General Plan, 

M) DEX, V i, Ir for ( jonerau l, Ian ulxi,-Ac, 



IK4[ RPR(| L| 

Sierra Madre General Rian Update and

Glent- City ofSierra Madre
Contact: Leticia Cardoso, Senior Nammer, 626355J7I35

Project Completion I .) ate: 201.4

Budget: $ I50. 000

Shannon Wages, while with her former firm PlaceWorks, was the project manager for the ofSierra Madre' s

Genera| Plan Updatepooject TheGenera| Plan Uodaiefocused on maintainingt.he Uv'ssmJU- towvnfee| and

preserving the character of existing neighborhoods, vvhi| e improving the neighborhoods and commencia| 

disiricts end enhancing aging str(Kiuresto meetcurrent bui| ding standards and contemporary market needs, 
SomeissuesthetwereimportanttotheGity' sresiderdsandbusinessmmneoihatwerespecifioa| lyaddressedin
the updated General Plan and BRwere consen/ ingopen space and / ura| characier, presemingand enhancing

are City' s historic fabric and resources, and ensuring adequate services and oommunhytu| turo| activities
continued tobeprovided, 

Olient: Sari Diego0n fied PortCNstHct

Contac. A., I esey Nishihiid, Senior RedeveUoprmemtPlanner, 619, 686k469, 
Unish h 8 z) poirtmfsamd ego,org

roject[ mnmpUefiom Date.- 2010

Budget: $ 1, 300, 000

The San Diego Un& ed Pod District hired Dudek to assist with the revision and recirculation, of complex and

high profile EIR for the Chula Vista Bayfront Master Pian, a large- scale master plan redeveloping 550 acres of

bayfront property, including state tidelands and uplands under the Oistric1' sjurisdicdon, as well as Uplands
under theCity ofChula Vista' s ( City' s) jurisdicLion

BR issues amended and/ or addressed for this project review include the following CEQA sections 

aesthe§ cs/ visua| qua| ity, air quality, biology, cultural and paleontological resources' seismic/ geologic hazards' 
hazards and hazardous materials/ public safety, hy(lro|c)gy/ drainage/ waie/ quality, land use, planning and
zoning' noise' public sen/ ices and energy, trafFic/ t ranspurtation/ parking, population and housing' g| oba| 
warming, cumu| adveimpacts' growth inducement an(] other EOA mandated sections, Theinitia| Draft BRfor
ttre projecIr was released for public review in September 2006, with the review period extended to January 2007. 

Adiscretionary action also inc/uded a land trade with. he Star(, LandsC.ommission' as well as coordination with
the California Coasta| Commiss)on and joint lead agencies of the District and City, Resource permit) ng and
coordination onthe prgjecLconUnues. 

lssues[ scingtheprojectinc| udedsignificantbio| ogica| impacis' whichinvo| vedintricatecommunicationsand

negotiations with wildlife agencies and local communitygroups Most recently, the Port Commissionand Chu| a
Vista iiy[ ounci| approved the Chula Vista Bavfront as( erPlan andaDna| BR, whichclears the pathfor

deve| opmeniofvvaterfrontproper ryihathas stood in| imbofor more than 30years. 



X U UT A

Calexico Zoning Code/ Map and General INan/ Zon' ng
Consistency Program
K] fient City of Calexico
Contact: Armando G. Villa, [) irectorof Plammlmg &. Community Development, 

76U68, 2IQG

Project Completion Date Ongoing
Budget-, $ 1..00, 000

The City of Calexico ( City) conhracted Dudek, in association With the Mooney Planning Collaborative ( Mooney), 
to inventory all 0 the zoning designaltions and districts identified in the existing zoning ordinance, as we.il as the
land use designations and associatedpo| iciesidentifiedinthegenera| p| an, Dudekandk400neya| socondu(. ted
iniemiewsvvii) key City staff to determine the effecLvenecs and/ or consistency of the planning tools offered in
both documents, and they also conduc1ed a public workshop to identify the community' s concerns. Further, 
both zoning and general plan rnaps wore revieWed to determine incx:)insistendes between the long rangevision
and the implementation program' and Dudek arid Mooneyrevievved legislative and judicial changes inzoning
thatoccurred duringthe past lOyears tm assurecomp| ianceFinally, the p|anningteam identified avariety of
zoning ordinance hamevvork approaches to documents, with special focus on issues relating to the
deve|opmeniofm)xed- usezones inthedowntown area, overlapping indusbia| zones vviih commercial uses, 
and stM.e mandatedbonus densities and second unit programinclusion

The data collected were compUed into a baseline report for the hx Planning Commission and hv council

review through wmrkshoos, A new ordinance wes subsequently prepared ba.sed on City officials' confirmation
on direction, inc|uding changes torhe Chv' szon)ng map using GIS software and in coordination withthe iiy' s

mapping staff, and incorporating approved subdivision and land use approvals. Finally, the [ Dudek/ Mooney
uam developed a public outreach program in cooperadon with City steftthet ensured maximum stakeholder

participation an(,.] effectiveness, 

Escondido General Plan Update

Client: Otyof Escondido

CmmtacU Jay Petrek, ClityofEscondido, 760,839,45S6
Project Conmp>efiom) ate 20I1, 

Budget: $ 142. 600

LLG prepared the Mobility l..-. lennent porhon of the [ ky' s General Plan ) odate. LbG was respondbc for an

inventory otc,xisting condkions, future yearLrafc model calibrations, preparing a traffic model forihe 203S
horizon year, focused model runs to selected areas of the City, and analyses of numerous scenarios A

omp| eke Streets mobility assessment vehicle miles traveled analysis and a technical report for incorporation

into the ElIF were also prepared. The traffic study for this project. won LLG ihe Association of Env)ronmenta| 
Professionals 7echnl o// y) oaofMe Kearin2Ol3



i I I3 I A

Santee Geriera ManUp.date
Client: City of Santee
Contact: I) OUg WRIfford ( former Santee PlIanning [ Nirectoir), City of lrvpine, 

949324. 6308

Project Coir nplletpon [) ate: 2001

13udget: $ 108, 000

G comploed the Crrcr. flarfon Element of the City of Santee Geneira6 Plan Future traffic VOlUrnes were

determnerd ushng the approriate SANDAG p raffic Forecast Model, Several alternative network scenarbs were
accessed. Fhe analysis of over 50 ilnterse( Aions and 50 street segments was conduciied for i,,.) otfr the exrsiling and
fLAUre turnery frames. All modes of transportation, were addressed. Recorinmeindaflons were made to ensure that

the proposed roadway nehivork could accommodate the forecasted volumes. 

County of ImperW General IPIIIan Update
Client'. City of CaleAco
Contact: Jurg leubeirger, County of Impeiriall, 760.482,4236
13roject Coirnppe6on Date: 2005

13udget: $ 49, 000

LG completed the Grcularion EleMent for the hniperial County General Plan Update, fraffic Volumes were

forecasted for over 1.00 roadways in the County. A depailed existing conditions ar4ysis was coirinpleted and an
analysis at build -out was condUCtr.A. Street classifications were recommended to accoff) nrodaiie buRd - ouii

traffic I evel of SeirOce capacities and cross secfions were recommended for each classification A fulll traffic

report. was COMpleted addressing all aspects of transportation in the County, LLG attended the Pbnning
Cormyrrssbr) and Board of Supervrsors t learing to discuss the project. 

lll) UDEK, [ iR I' or Gcnr%,A Pbri i, ipdate 3



EXHIBIT

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

i,,,,,,2iic,,,,;„,„ 
17

IJ ro E ,,” I IR k ) i



4 RaLe S,- ieet

ENGINEERING 91EIRVICE'S
ProecY Dlreck r

Fldrlcipn Dip  'i 11
pa I

Piograin Manages

seni( m Plotw', 4 Manager

Piqiecl Manager

Svnioi I . nqineiii III

S'erlicx Engineer I[ 

Senior Eingineei I

Proiect Engineer lVifechnicIan IV

Protect Engineer MfTechilichan III

PnoaecC Engineer 111/ 1 echintclan, 11

Prqed I ngilwer IfT echnicW) I

Folrqed Cmdtnalor

Engineering AssiVaill, 

EXHIBIT A

DUDEK

5155 00h

2016 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

COMPLIANCE SiEIRVfCI:::- S

I225 OWN

265 004ir Conripl[ Bince Dlredrx 205 OOAii

26500 it cunpIllulce Manager 145 00/ hr

225 00/hi CwrpHan(,,,e PrcVJed Coordinaiiw 105 00/ hr

2HI 00ftur Canpliance Malifor 95 00N

S205 041 r

205 00/ hr

S195 00/ hr

195 00/ hr

185 OOA) r

175 OOAlr

f65 00/ hr

150 00/ hI

V35 00/hr

120 00Yhr

9500,01hr

85 00/hr

ENVIRONIMEN fAL ' BEWCIES

5155 00h

1 240 00/hr

Seniu Prqer. 1 Vanager,` SpecidlisV 11 I225 OWN

Serwx PVqeci Manage. 6/ Specialist 1 215 Oft I

Environryienial Speciali[./ Phnne6 VI 195, 0041r

Envirecinellial SID ecia list/ pIril Irm V 175 00/ hr

Envin, wifyient' al Spedafistrclanner IV M 001hv

Enwairnerflal SpeciallsI/ Plhmnev HI 1, 55, 00AII, 

I.-. iV, Ai winental SpecialisUPlarinei H 135, 00/ hr

Envoi amnenlal SpecialiM/ Plairinei 1 112500th,. 

V)',.IIYM 111 115 00/hi

Analysi 11 10,`. OWN

Analyst, 1 95 00/hr

Planning 11 85 0041F

F: 1anning Asaistinil, 1 75 00/hr

COASTAL PLANIMING/ POL11CY SERVICI..-S

75 00/ hr

Semor F' rqecl ManagedCoastal Planner It 220 JUAir

Senior ProDecl ManageI/ Consial Planner I Urlo 00/ rIF

Environmental SpecialisU( Ccmstal (::' sander VI 200 00fhv

Envirmirnental Specialisli/ Coaatal Fllrinneo V 180, 00AIr

Enviruirvientel SpviaIisUCoA- sIaI Fllanineff 1\ 1 17000N, 

Envircyiniental SpecialiM/ Coaslal Fllannei 111 160 OWN

Environment, al SpecialistlCiiaashal Planner 11 150 009it

Envirminental SpecialisMoashil Planner 1 140 00/hi

ARC. HAEOLOGICAL

5155 00h

Senkw Pic ecl Managen' Archaeologist 11 215 ONN

Sciflog Project Manager/ Aychaeolcxgisl 1 205 00N

Envii onmenitil Specialkst/ ArchaeologisI M 1 F8. 500N

Enwronryminal Specialist/ Archaeologist V 165 00ft

EmArmcnental Spedelist/ Archaeologisr IV S15500A1, 

Environmental Speciialis((/ ArdiaeologiM ID 145 OOAir

Envirmi-nental 111 1. 3`. 100/ hr

Enviruninenial SpVxIa1vUAicl? aco1og11A 1 12.500/ hr' 

En' Arwinenial 111 165 001lir

1. Numunenlol 1 145 00,T) i

1:. maronlnen[Sl 1 125. 00 N, 

P" llefAilid1r 11c al leflmician M M5 00ft

Palemidmpcal Technician 1V 75 OOAir

Paleonldoqical Technician 1 55 001hr

Arcf) aeolcxjiM technician 11 75 00/ hr

Av, l, oqooq1s1[ I echillicion I S; V5 00hr

S[- RVWE: s

Senior Cowdruc( im Manamq

Selmy IArtylagel

ovistrucllon Manager

Piojed Manager

Resident Engineei

Cofis4i iiaoin longinocir

On- sk,, ovvi' m " Reps esv int ahve

con" trucilion InspecIor Ill

cm, Irijcfion finipv" kx III

Ccxi,, lru,,,NoVt firigpe0or I

I: li V¢ vallirq Vkagc! visj[ndor

D L) [) E 1( 

IlYDROGIE01LOGICAL SERVICES

5155 00h

principal 260 00/ hr

Principal 1 240 00/ hr

Sr I iydrogeVV1qqis(, IVIErigimeei V 225 00/ hr

Sr llydrogeolckgis¢ III/ Engine( w 111 210 00/ hr

Sr I iydroge*. xjNA liffingivieer H 195 Wit

Sr Hydrogeologvw4. I/ EngIneer 1 180 OOAir

I lydrogeologist VI/ Engineer %A 160 ooft

Hydrogeologist V/ Engheer V 150 00411

HydFogeolqfisl: IV IEngineer IV 14000/ hI

I lydIogeologIsr IlIffingnieei 01 130 00h, 

IlErigineerll, llydvogoo

oqij  
120 00fti, 

Hydrogeoujis / Engineer , 110 00/ h, 

feclunician 100 00/ hr

1::) isrR1C7IVIANAGIEWENT& OPERA IIONS
srriel Geneial Manager 185 00& ir

Districc Eirigineer 175 00/ hr

opel[o0ons Manager 150 004ir

Disfficl. Ser.'relary/ Accountint 100 001hr

CcAlections Systelin Managei 100 001411, 

Gre de V Op orW% 100 Mir

4@de 1\ 1 Operabor VJO Mir

Grade III OpwaWy 85 00AII

Grode 11 Operator 63 00h

Grade Y Operaiiai 55 00ft

Openal.cm in framing 40 00/ hr

Cdtlio i Maintenance Wmiter 11 60. 00/ hr

Cd ec ili Malintertance Worl( er I 4!., i 001hv

OFFICE Su: MACES

Techniraill ) raffingICADD

31:1 Graplik, At h5l 5155 00h

Semor Designer 145 00,br

Designer 135 00/ hr

AssWai:A Dslgner 130 001hr

GIS Progiaminei I Mo 00AIr

Gr
Speciallst 155 001h V

est 11GSSIpdai 45 00rh

CIS Specialist Il 135 Mir

GIS Speckalisk 1 125 00th, 

ADID OpenAof III 125 NI/ hr

CADID Operaky 11 120 004ir

CAIDID Opere( or 1 105 00iI- ir

CAIDD Drafler 95 00h

CAIDD iechnicign 85 ooftir

SUPPORT SERVICES
T,( Jwim.0 EdRor [ it 14b 00/ hr

Technical EdAcm il 130 00AII, 

Technical Ed 1 115 OWN

PublicROws SpecialW 111 5105 00h, 

Publication a SpecialW 11 595 00/ hr

Publications SjDeciitlisf I sab ouh

Clerical Administralkm 11 85 00411

Clerical Adminitstrallon 1 80 Offif

mromm"/ Y" " z 0, o/ w, eml

rj1-,, poi (-,(-, neral man up (- Jalc 15

160 NMI' 
F.— W. C— I

160 DoAll, exp. d Mr— s v, III b. Mad M 2, 00 [ Ima, n-- 1, at., 

150 Mir E— g— V .,, d lftlld. g - Kald—,, rtYd q, 01.. W, Vrs MI ba bibd . 1 1 75

140 00Mr
fl,— the urrirun al V. I. 

140 00/ hr

10M. I. V and fthld. S— Ao- — Sub - 111—. 1— Va, Mll d pd. V . 4111pm- 1

p.,.: W, p, Wud,, r d bi,,. jrmiI, U - Wda d. l. pV.,,,., VVhq - d — 1p. l., 
5135 00/bi servion etc , are diaiged at 1 15 lireifes the died r.a.si

130 00/hr
IRS aliobl,) rMos Pel' thetathevvhoreYn—. 1 tm— Mit- 9. at — 

125 00/ hi

VEn-
os

dg  stay Is h,,,Viv,. d is 01a1gad . 1 — 
Ch, t, q. All Nes M4 be bitted 1. CHWO — Ohly and Vit. 11 bd. 

115 ooft 10 py. bl,, p- — Vtipl. 4— iom are daImq,. V,, d ir - I paid Mlin 30 19ays

1 V, (Min I, 
Hh. W¢ nr ( h,, C 1. 0 Vig,.- I. pay a "(", Ihly hula V, I ., 9. lylaaV 1. T % pe, 

135 00/hr
Ah . 1 IN .. NWding W-- rAII paid k, Nil

A1111- lluera: as axs— IJ, 6,,.,. Ift, hnLd ( AhL— h. Ihevly Slf,, d. d A., ' MIJ

11.. ffocflve January 1, 2016

mromm"/ Y" " z 0, o/ w, eml

rj1-,, poi (-,(-, neral man up (- Jalc 15



FEE SCHEDULE

Effective November x. umm

ZZLE PER HO UR

mpincipals

Principal aigineo--............ --.----..... .................. ..... ..----,_' s5100

Assoviate Principal Engineer ...... -_..-................ .... -__...... ...... S 216 um

mniiningioosignManager ... ---... '..... ... ......... —' i 201 MO

Transporm** rs

Senior zransnmn^ 6vu.... .......... ....... --_................ ..- nnM

zrawsnomminuEmginen III ..... --__--.... ............... .................... .... - i 158z0

TrimqortmmmEngineer o--_ .... --....... .............. —... ..... .-..... -.-' 13100

Transportation Manners

Senior Transportation Planner ..... -----........ ............ m n&uo

Transportation Pl^ muerIII .............. _---...... ....... ....... ..... ........_....... S 133. 00

S 11 COO

mm= 
snipi^ eeang Associate r .......... ............ ... .-... ........ ........ s 113. 00

Engineering Associate .'~~.'-._—'... .... .......... ................. oxun

Engineering Computer Analyst -... ..... -.~-.-.... '........................ s 108. 00

E^ waeerivgComputer Analyst z .... ........ _-.._....... _..... D 85. 00

Senior CA000= ftmo........... --.............. -..~-._...................... m lopoo

oAoDorao* oz--........ ................... ................................................... S 102. 00

oAooDrafter o( GIS Specialist 1)'— .... -........ ......... ....... wuno

cADD D' ml erI ....... '----------'__--^--_--__-....... S 7zo

Senior Emgiaee6vgzc6md6nv--.... -------..... . Rmxno

Engineering Technician u ....... ---------..... ... ... 9 10100

Engineering Technician ---_--.... ......... rzno

Assislmm---~-.-....... -.__.--_-` 72. 0

Engineering Aide /--_.-...... _--.`--........ ..... ....... ---...... x 55. 00

mbcontra" km 5 ailld" flm pc ec wm eqm je-s wj III be J jlh-.do1 Cist jpjju^ 5% 

The, ^wv° mheo" I e Ioan^ I ca/ f/ unwo, ufime.~ ube dmgeom/ 50umx.%m° wmdmmmulym/ es. 
mw.limmadfrooflu * We=° w" uInneseuufor mmaued wcnk, rmo" a/ b., d wwmpjyjbI, 

preseliultmmale" jm. cl flamlgememiN we made afininmchmq"' nct 5%= rbe"/ mmcd Oachmmmonum

mpaiuIya/ ww" 

y7-  EXHIBIT /  
RAEE 

agW= aftmineifs

Timsponsfiu

POVIkilig



Scope of Work arid Project ' Strategy
This scope ofwork isbased or) our understanding ofthe project given the information provided inthe RFQasweUos

our conve sations with David DeVhes and Miranda Evans at the City, Ouciek understands Ifle [ bv is updating their

General Plan with a focus on compiete streets. Fine City aimsto provide all residences with, access to neighborhood

parks and bike, pedestrian and/ o/ equestrian pathways within O. 25mile The City plans toresonecertain properties to

park and commercial uses in order to achievethis goal, The Cry also wishes tocreate a pedestrian and bike master
plan, as well as an equestrian and trails masler plan as a part of the General Plan Update. 

l he fcAowing scope of work for preparaJoin of the General Plan Update Elf?, is divided into five major tasks Task
L Scoping, Task 2: Technical Studies, Task I Draft BR, Task 4: Final BR, MWRPand Findings, arid Task 5: Project
Management Meetings and Hearings, 

I he following assurorArOuS WC.re made in preparation of this scope of work

m Aclear deschpbcmofthe General Plan Update will be iDrovided LoDudek bvthe project team, 

m TheGenera| Plan Update does not propose substanda| changes in land use orincreases indensity. 
m 1 he General Plan Update is anticipated to nave a low level of public controversy. 
m The General P| an' sHousing Element was recently updated in 201. 0 and therefore, no changes are

proposed to die Housing E| ement. 
0 In order to keep costs to a minimum, the General Plan Update BR will build off ofthe I996 General

Ran Master BR to the greatest extent possible. Dudek staff WH work with the project team to obtain

updated information, where necessag\ for areas such asexisting conditions and setting, 
0 The City has a separate contract with Rick Engineering to prepare an expanded Down[ own Village

Specific Plan, including traffic arid land use analyses. The OowntovvnVillage area WH be p|aceho| der
as Special Trea1mentArea ( STA) inthe General Plan Update BR, and will not be analyzed as part of

this contract, 

0 Schedule extenskznsmay trigger additional scope ofwo <, arid cost

IlFask I.- Sco 

1, I iPrp.ject Initiation

ce.k, will coordinate aproject kickoff meeting with City staff toiinilhate the Elf,' process lhe purpose of the

meeting is to identify points ofoontacL, establish protocols for requesting information from the City or project
team, discuss cuo/ dinationwith responsible agencies, identify avai| ab| eproject data andenvironmente| reports, 
and / eviewthe pnjectschedule. 

OIdeknegards thistask asakey component of the woik effort, and we look forward toJiSCUssing key
envinznmeirta| and pmjecr pnoces inq issues Understanding of the project at this stage will facjftate

EDUDIEK PAR for Genor-A Plan Update



V.{] 

1' 2 [. 1roU^' n

Following project initiation, Dudek will prepare awritten project description that defines rhe whole of the action

to he evaluated in the BA, This documentwi|| be based on the Draft General [ Ilan prepared bvthe City and
project Leam. The description will include a list of permils and other approvals required for project

implementation and will identdythe agencies expected torely upon the BR

1. 3 Public Scop^rig and Notice of Preparation
D. i(Jek will piiepareaninitJA study ( IS) arid assisr City staff indrafting the Notice of Preparation ( NOP), The S wi| 
evaluate potentially significant environmental effects ( using Appendix G of the [ EQA Guide| ires), and wiU be

used to focus out any environmenta| issues that can be clearly demonstrated to have a less - than -significant
impact, based ori existing information. 

lndudedinthisISwiUbeacomparisonofthepnzposedGenena| P| angoa| sandpo| icies( ifavai| ab|e) compared

tothe curren1| yadopted plan. Differences in the goals and policies are not necessarily sign ficantenvironmerta| 
effects, buttheyshou| dbeconsideredintheElAana| ysis( padicu| ar| ythealternabvesanalysis). 

Dudek will assist the. City in posting and circu| aLingthe NOP, Duringthe 5O- daypub| ic review period for the

NOP, Dudek will coordinate with the City to conduct a public scoping meeting to receive comments from
responsible agencies and the public regarding the scope and content ofthe BR Dudek will assist the City in
preparing public scoping meeting matehaK Court lranscription senjces are nor included in this scope ufwork
but can bearranged at. therequest of(...'iiy aff, 

Dudek will deliver, I5copies ofthe NOP/ JS tothe Siate Clear inghouse for state agency review. Dudek will maintain
the ER notiMcation mailing list for local and federal agencies and the public, and will coordinate mailings ( the cos

of rqpiroduolion and postage will be d0errninerJ separately, and is not included in our cost esdrnat.e), 

I' ask 2- Techn~caU Work

xdek detemnined that sevena| technical studies listed in the ARQ— Scope of Work cover topics that can be

adequatdy analyzed within ffie context of rhe respective BR sections withcrA stand alone reports These topics

include geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, and hydrology and water quality. Through a robust
reguiatc)ry setting and analysis of potenflal impacts with respect to ilne thresholds of significance pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines, ihesetopics can befu|| yevaluated in a manner sufficient to provide e | ega| lydelensib| e ElROur ream

inc|udes key rechn)ca| staff who will act as the primary authors of ( he BQ sections, A brief description of the
techni( A approach to rhe,se topics is provided below, Ilhis approach will save the Cit.yvaluable firne and money, 

For the topics airqua| ity/ GHG emissions, biolcioica| resources cultural resources, noise, and traffic, stand alone

lechnica| shudieswi|| be prepared Eachtechnica| study will be included in the BR as an appendix, and wi| i be
used toiinformpreparation ofthe BRAdescrilotionofthe hochnica| studies isalso provided below

DUI[XIIEK I...-. iR for General Update



FVV{ lR AN|} PR(} U| 

2, 1 A^r QuaU^ ty/ GHG lRepart
I he Dudek Will prepare a technk.J report asaessing the air quatUy and GI IG emissions irnpacr.s of the proposed

project utilizing the significance thresholds in Appendix G of the [ EQA Guidelines, the San Diego Air Pollution
on(/ o| DO:ric1' s ( SDAPC[) emissions- basedthresho| ds, and the City' s guidance, Itis our understanding that

the City has not adopted numericihresho|dsor provided formal guidance toeva|uate potential air quality arid
GHG emissions impads under [ EQA. As such, we will work with the City to determine the appropriate

thresho| datoapply in the projectana| ysisPoteodz-)| options include rising the City ofSari Diego orthe County
of San Diego guidance, However, both the City of San Diego and the County of San Diego are curner| y

revising their GHG emissions thiesho| ds in | ight of a recent Supveme [ ouM. decision, so we will discuss

akernabve methodo|oBieswi|| ('.fly staff. 

Because the General Plan Master BR was prepared in I896, manycomponents of the air quality analysis are
outdated however, Dudek will incorporate relevant information to the extent applicable to ihe acdons

proposed inthe Genera| P| an Update. As GI emissionsand dimatechange impactswere pnevious| ynot

evaluated, the technical report. wi|| include a comprehensive GI G emissions environmental and regulatory

setting discussion to provide a so| id background for the impact assessment The analysis wi|| reference the
SDAKD' srules arid regu| ations, as appropriate. 

AMerrevievvinga|| avai| ab|eprcjed. materia| s, Dudekwi|| preparearequcstforanyoutstandingdaianeededto

conduct the ana| ysisif precise information on a particular factor is not available from the City and/ or its

representatives, Dudek wi|| make every effort to quantlfythese terns using the best avai| ab|e information for
comparable data sources, but in all cases vvi|| consu| tfirst with the [ ity regarding the irrformation needed, Details

of the analysis ( e.g, dai|ycriteria air po||uLantemission calculations and annua| GHG emission ca| cu|etions) will be
included inanappendix tothe technica| vepo. (- ontenlsofthe analysis are briefly discussed below. 

Air Quallity Inllpact A041ysiS
Local and regional c| ima1e, meteorology, and topography asthey affect the accumulation ordispersa| of air
po||utantswi|| be presented in the air civa| ityassessmen1. Currant air quality conditions and recent trends in the
San Diegu Air Basin and project area will be described on the basis o[[ a| ifornia Air Resources Board and US. 

Environmenid| Protection Agency annual air quality monitoring data summaries Federal, state, and local
regulatory agencies responsib| efor air quality management will be identified' and applicable federal, state. and
local airquality policies, regulations, and standards wiUbesummarized

Construction Impacts. Oudek will estimate emissions associated with construction of the project using the
California Emissions Estimator Mode| ([ a| EEMod) land rise and airemissions model, Ananalysis ofshort.-te/ m

conStruction emissions for the General Plan Update will be prepaned to the extent that inlormadon is available

regarding construction schedures of the friture phases, Dudek will work with L. O.Mon Grove Genera| Plan Update
teamio obtain an anticipated schedule ( eg' overall consIrucUon duraUon, phasing' and phasctiming). and
construcdnn activilies (e,g., construction equipmenitype and quantity, workers, and haul trucks) We Will refine
our approech based or) anticipated construction schedu| ing, considering ifmuhip|econsiruction phases would

occur con( urrendy or sequeniia| h, 11construdion details are too speculative [ r) determine, [ a| EEMod default

values will be app|ied based on the type of land uses ( eg, single - and mu|h- fami|y residential, commercial, 
retail, parks, and schools) and amount ofdeve| opment ( eg, tolA reoderAia| dwelling unks, squarehzotaye, 
acres, and sludents) As discussed previously, we will work with City staff to determine the appropriate

constnxiion emissions numeric thresholds to utilize for the analysis which may include emission - based

thnesho| dsestab| ishedbvthe City ofSari Diego orthe County ofSanDiego

DUDIEEK EP for Genr..,.ral Plan Updare 19



XI I- iU . . . .. .. A

per- ationa| bnpads. The long term opesationa| analysis wi|| quantity mobile source emissions created by

project- generalted traffic, and energy and area souue emissions caused by the operadon ofthe proposed
pnojectusing [ a) EEk4od. Dperal) ona| emissionswiUbeestimatedfor Ihefirst year offuUoperaltionafter bui| dout
oftheGenera| P| onUodate, Esiimatedmobi| eemissionswiUbebasedontripgenenaOonra1espresentedinthe

traffic study prepared for the project. Energy and area source emissions ( eg, natura| gas combustion and
consumer pro6ucts) vvi|| be estimated using the defau| ivalues in Ca| EEk4od, In addition tothe operationa| 
emissions eskmated kom buildout of the General Plan Updat Dudek will also e imaie the emissions from

operation of the existing land use pavce| s, which will be used to ca| cu| ahe the net change in criteria pollutants

associated with the proposed re7oning associated with the General Plan Update, As explained under the

construc1ionana| ysismethodo| ogy, ifpnojec1- specificassumptionsarenotavai| ab|e, Ce| EEk4oddefau| tva|ues
will be applied to esi.ima e operationa| emissions based on the type of land uses and amount ofdeve| opmeni

Dudek wiUUhencomparcestimaie6 prcject- generaLed emissions tothe thresholds selected by dxstaff. 

Basedonihctrafhcstudyp/ epanedfortheproposedpnojectOudekwi|| eva/uatevvhethertraMcassociatedvvbh
the Genena| Plan Update could lead Uo potential exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial localized

concentrations of air pollutant emissions, specifically carbon monoxide ( CA " hot spots", Oudek proposes to
COaddresshoispcts in a qualitative manner because increases in traffic associated with the project area

expededtobeminor Dudek wiUbase its evaluation ofthepotential for protect traffic tocauseaC{] holspoton

the screening criteria recommended by the Ca|Jornia Department ofTnansportation; akernative|y, the City of
San Diego or the County of San Oicgo CO hNspoi screening criteria cou|d be applied if preferable, For
budgetarypurposes, itisassumcdthat are study iniersec1ionswou| d riot exceed the screening crheriaarid a
refined CC) hotspotsanalysis would riot berequired. 

I lie air quality analysis wilk discriss ffie project' s consistency with plans airid strategies to rneet. amUent air quality
standards for ozone and parficu| ate matt r, both of which are nonaUainment poUutants in the San Diego Air

Basin, GrowthassociatedwiththepnjectwiUbecomparediotheregiona/ popu| aionforecastsuponwhichthe

SOAP0.) air qua| kyplans are based An evaluation of' the project' s curnrflative air qr.jality impacts would also be
included in the air quality technica| study, This evaluation wiU be based on Lhe project -level impac1s as a
measure of whether the project would result in a cumu| advely considerable contribudon to the San Diego Air

Basin' s ozone and particulate mallei nonattainmentstaius, as well as the prcjeU' s consisLencyvvith underlying
growth forecasts for the SDAPCD' s air qua| iiyp| ansLast/ y, the air quality analysis will discussthc potentia| hor
pr(?jec1- re|ated operational emissions to adversely affect nearby sensitme receptors, to cause obxec1ionab| e
odors, o/ toimpedea tainment, 

GreenhOUseGas Emissions Inolpact Am4Yysrs

TheUHGemissions assessmentwill indudeasetting and backgrounddiscussionconsisting ofasumma|yofrhe
greenhouse effect and global c| imatechange, potential changes toiheglobal c| ima0e systemand toCa| Jornia' 

and emission inwentoriesatthe national, state, and local levels ItwiUalso include asummary ofthe key federal, 
state, and local regulatory actions and programs to reduce GHG emissionsDudek wi|| esimate ihe GHG

emissions associated with construc1ion and ope/ ahon of the pu»ecr using [ a| EEk4od. Dudek will esiimate

consIruciion GI G emissions based onthe same construdion scena/ io utilized inthe air quahtyanalysis

Projectgenenatedoperaiiona| GI G emissions that will be estimated for the completed bui| doul of the General Plan

Upda0ewiU include thoseassociated with mcltorvehic| es, natura/ gas usage, electrical generation, water supply, 
wastevvate, and solid waste disposai Dudek mil also estimate openaUona| GHG emissions that would result

from rezoning of existing land uses parcel,, and will calculate ihe net change in 6HG emissions associated wkh
the Genena| P| an Update When prcject de1ai| s are not avai| ab| e, Ca| l FMod dehauk values Will be used to

calculate directand indirect source GHGemissions

DUDEK F] R for General Plan Update X) 



U A

O. iclekwill assess thesign ficamce of8heproject with respect to( he Appendix G Jhedholds; specifically, whether

he implementation of the project would generate GH6 emissionsthai may have a significant irT1I,') aci. dhe

environrnent. oi would conflict with ain applicable plan, policy or regulahon adopted for the purposeofreducing
theemissionsofGHGs. BoththeCiiyand[ ourityhaveprevious| yprcwidedguidencetopnepareabusiness- as- 

usua| ( BAU) ana| ysisro ensure the prcjec1' s consistency with the goals ofAssemb| y BiU 32, The BAU approach

has recently been addressed by the Supreme Court in the Center for Biological Diversity v. Cali ornia
OepanmentofFishmndVVi| d| ihedecisionontheNewhaURanchprcjectwhichindicaiedthatsubstanLia| 

evidence is needed to demonstnatethat a project level reduction of 29 percent for new pnojectsWou| d be

consistent vvkh the statewide goal of 29 percent reduction from BAU Accordingly, the use of City of Sari

Diego' s previous guidance target of 283 percent reduction and the Courity' s guidancetargeL of IG percent

reduction in GHG emissions from the BAU scenario may not be the [ ih/' s preferred approach, [ Uher

performance- baaedthresho| ds, such as an ef-ficiency metric( or service popu|ation) threshold, is potenda| lyan
option the City would use, however, information regarding the City' s GHG emissions inventory and population
projections ( both resi( Jential and employee population) would need to be determined, Based on these

considerations, we will work vvith City staff to determine( he appropriatethresho| d for evaluating the project' s
GHGemissions, Aqua| kaiiveana| ysisofthepnojec1' spo| entia| toconUictwithanapp| icab| eplan' po| icyor
regu| aiionvviU be provided inthe technica| repod

2, 2 B' oUog^caU lResources Assessment
TheCdyofLenxnGrove encoml,,sasae a 2, 483 acres, a| mosall ofwhich isurban silthlittle nabve

resources, Thc evaluation of potential impacts to biological resounces as a result of the pnojectwx|| be reported

within the E[ R Biological Resources section, No stand alone biological technical repod will be provided. A

reconnaissance level review of the area will occur, but no r0cused surveys or vve| and delineation Will be

performed due tothe area' s primari| y6eve| oped nature. Vegetation communides Will be mapped rising the

best avai| ab|eexisting data, wiLh| im[ edground- tmLhingtoconfirmAddidona| nesouueswill beused todefine
the resources present in the project area indudinq background inlormabun ( i, e, soils, aerial photos, 

topographic maps, other natural nesc) unce documentadcm, and avai| aNe data hOm the project area); [ a| Uomia

Natural Diversity Database repo¢ Ca| ifornia Native Plant 5odety database for rare plants; and species data
fromUSFVVS arid California Departrrieni. of Fish and Wildlife, Vc,getation conninunities and special status sleecie. s

wiU be described in terms ofiheir regional significance and presence on site, induding an e.stimate ofobsemed

spc, dalkstatus species' pol,'xilation size arid condition. A b6ef description of each vegetation corrirnuniLy rnapped
wkhin the pnojec1 area will Include information found in a | Reraiure review( a brief description of | ocadon, and

any notes peirtainingtohabitat quality orlevel ofdisturban( eAtable summarizingthe special -sLatusplant and
wildlife species that have potentiA to occur, in the project vicmitywill be included in an appendix toihe BR

Dudek will prepane maps using GIS trial show the extent of each vegetation communiLydetermined through
literature review, The BR section will include an impacts analysis based on the pnojec1 area, an assessmentuf

the potential signihcance of the impacts that may result from implementation of future projects under ihe
re7one' and app| icab| eand feasible miiiOationmeasures

2. 3 Whliira Resources Assessment

lnor( Jerioinlonnonthe developmento[ the cukura| resouneselenenofthe General P anUpdate, 

DUDIEK, ) I



EXI,iUB8" T A
PEDF VORKA DPK[)| E[| | RA| E Y

Records Searches

Dudek will begin by conducting a California Historica| Qesounes lnformakzn Systems records search of the
enena| Plan area at the South Coastal Information Center, which houses cultural resource records for San

Diego County, The purpose of the records search is to identify any previously recorded cultural resources
including boLhavchaeo| ogica| andbui| t- environmentresounes) thatmaybe| ocatedwkhintheGenera| Plan

area. In addition toa review ofpreviouslypepared site records arid reports, the records searchwill also review

historical maps of the pnojecl:. area, ethnognaphies, the National Register of Historic Places, the Ca| Jurnia

Register of Historica| Resources, the California Hisloric Prope0y Data File, and the lists of California State
Historica| Landmarks, California PointsofHistorica| lnterestarid Archaeological DeterminationsofE| igibi|by. 

Dudekwill also request pa| eontz| ogrce| resources records search homthe Ver-lebrate Paleontology Section of
the San Diego Natural History MuseumThe purpose of this records search is to determine whether there are

any known fossi| localities in or near to the General [) Ian area and to identify the geologic units present, This
information will be used to determine pa| eonto| ogica| sensrt vhv, Geologic maps and reports will also be

reviewed 10identify geologic units arid establish the area' s stratigraphy, 

Native American Group Coordiimatiori
Because the project includes a General Plan Update, 1he [ ity has a responsibi| hvto initiate consultation with
tnbes/ oroups listed on the California NativePmencan HerUage[ ommission' s officia| Senate BiU ( SB) 18contad

list for adoption of General Plan Amendment While SB l8 consultation is a government -to -government

process, Dudek will assist the City with requesting an updated SB 1.8 consultation list from the Native American
He/ tageCommissionandwiUpowidetheCityvvithkextfo/ subsequentLriba| outreacheforts. 

The proposed project is also sulb ecttocompliance with Assembly Bi|| ( 4B) 1152, which requires lead agencies to

provide tribes ( who have requested notification) with (.:, arly notification of the proposed prq]ect and, if
requested, consultation to inform the [ E{) A process with respect totriba| cultural resources, While AB 52 is a

government- to- governmeni process bebmeenthe CI -QA lead agency and California Native American Tnbes' 
Dudek will assist the City with the nodficahon processNo in person meetings orfo||ow- up phone ca/| s vvith
Native 4mericangroupsare included inthis scope ofwork. 

Cuftura Resmirces Constraints Aina' ilysis

Oudek will prepare a cultural and pa| eonto| ogica| resources constraints analysis that will summarize the results

of the records searches, and Nadvo American coordination As part. of this task, Dudek will conduct | imiLed

anchiva1 research to update and enhanceihe existing prehistoric, historic, and ethnographic contexts for the
Genera| Plan area This may indudevisidng local | ibrahes, archives, and repositories as warranted, The goal of
the constraints analysis is to irifcnryi the City on the existing conditions of cr.dtrjrM and paleontotogical reso(-irces, 
constraints' and levels of sensitivity throughout the General Plan areaThis analysis does not include a cultural or
pa| eonto| ogica| resource impacts analysis in consideration of a specific project under CEQA or any other
regulatory seNng, nor does it include recordation or eva| uadon of new resounceS, o/ updates to previously
recordedresources

2/ 4 GeoUogy and So' Us
All buildings in California are subject io the strict mqurements of the California BuiIding C xde to reduce risks
hoo seismic actvityand oihergeolooic hazards Dudek will bhefy describethe existing geology, geologic
hazards, and mineral resources in the City based on exisling information available from the exi.sting (.; ene| a| 

Plan, the State Division of Mining and Geology, and other existing published reports. We will assess the
pctenba| impacts onpopu| aUoqdeve| opment, and inhastruclu/ ehomgeologic hazards, 

DUEYIEK UR for General Plan Update



15 Hazards and Hazardous Materia ls

Dudek will identify any known hazards through | Uerahre review and using readily available i1101rnatmn
provided by the City. Dudek will provide a map using GJS to indicate location of known hazards, No stand- 
alone haza/ ds repodwiU be provide(], Phe information vviU be reported withinihe hazards section ofihe EIR. 

The section will include an impacts analysis based on the protect area, an assessment of the potential

significance of the impacts that may result from implementation of future pnojects under the rezone, and
applicable arid feasib| emidgadonmeasures, 

2, 6 1 lydr& Uogy and Water QuaU^ ty
Dudek will addiess hydrology and hydrau| cs within the hydrology section of the thl' Or.Agha thoroughreview

ofreceiving mater regional vmaterqua| hy improve merV plans, reg& ra| watershed and wa( erqua| Uyassessment

studies, and the regu| atoryseifingDudek will also perform acompnehenriwereview ofpermittingrequinemerits

relevant to hydrology and waterqua| kvthat would be necessary to carryout individual projects, No stand- 
alone hydrology repoil will be provided, Future projects developed under the proposed prcjec1 would be
subject to water que| ity design standards and regu| adons such as the Porter Cologne Water Quality Control
Act Sireambed A|ternat)on Agreement and local regulations such as the Stormvvater Management and

Discharge Control provisions of the City' s Municipal Code, The ElR hydrology section will ndude an impacts
analysis, an assessment of ( he potential significance of the impac1s ihat may result horn imp| ementadon of

futureprcyec1sunderiherezone, andapp| icab| eandfeasib| emiUgationmeasures

2, 7 No. se Assessment

Dudek will prepare thetechnical noise study in supporof the [ hy' s Geneia| Plan Update. VVewill use rhe results

of the Genera| Ran Update' s traffic analysis, along wkh aveUaUe in1omnabon about exisdmg and fAure nose
souncesinthe General Plan area | omodel potential noise impacts. 

Exisling ambient dayLime noise levels will be measured at up six short- term (+/— I5 minute) locations in the

re7one areas toestab| ish current base| ine noise levels, These | ocationswi|| bese|ec1eJ in consultation with City

Planning Dwision staff The daytime noise ieve|swiU be measured using a sound level meter that. saddiesthe
AmericanNaiiona| StandardslnstitutestandardsforaTypelorTypeZsound| eve| meter. 

Existing and future horizonyear34- hour noise levels will beca| cu| a( edfor represeniaive roadvvaysegmeils in
the rezone areas using lhe Federal HighWay Adrninistration [ raffic Noise Model ( I NM 2. 5) arid traffic volunries
fromthe tnaDlc report preparedforthe General Ran Update lhe model will calculate the average noise levels

at specific locations based on traUc vo| umes, average speeds, which will be used to eshmateihe existing and

future noise contours fnr noise contours ranging from 60 io 70 A- weightcd decibels Community Noise
Equivalent Level ( dBA [ NEU Noise levels homthe San Diego| roUey line as well as non- hanspoAaUon related
smirces such as construction norse and cornmerbal/ indrAstrial noise will also be addressed, 

Dudekvvi|| estab| ishthresho| ds based onthe current Noise Bement, the Municipal Noise Ordinance, and in

consideradon of federal and state guidance For any poienha| impacis that could exceed idenhfied
significance Lhresho| ds, after application of noise policies, feasible midgadon measures will be identified, 

which may include guidelines on construciion techniques or hours, changes' provision of0zmponaryor | ong- 
iermbarrie/ stonoisetransmission. or| imiiaUonsonuutdoornighttimeac1ivities Theresults ofihenoise level

impacts analyses will besummarizcdinabackground technical report. tothe Chyand also inc|udedaspart ot

the General Plan UpdateElR



18 1 raffic Study
A. Ynver tmry/ Exisfi rig Condffions

l, Revie\ A/ Inc current General Plan, major development traffic studies, and other applicable
traffic re| aied documents, 

2 Visit the project area and document exisjing conditions with respect to strceL widths, number of
lanes, traffic signo| |oca \onsand phasing, parking restrictions and any special traffic contro/ measures, 

3. C} biainthe most recent available Existing ADTand peak hour tnaMiccounts romCib/ records and
the Draft Downtown Village Specific Plan, 

4. Supplement City data wbh new counts ( intersections and street segments), which will be

conducted for major Gtythoroughtares. New traffic count data wiU be collected at up to a ( ola| of
up to eight (8) inf.ersecflons and ter) (10) street segirnents if existing data is unavailable, 

5 Determine the existing daily Levels ofService for intersectionsand for street segments using the
City' s current and proposed( if applicable) roadwaydassificaiiontable

GPreparetheexishngconditions section ofthe report, 

B. lf" mafficN/ okumMe Forecast

I, Utr ze the existing data collection per I ask Aasthe baseline traffic VOunnes for all Mobi| ityEleirnent
roadways, Sf,.jp[,:)IeiTrcr) I the existing data with information fmrndheSAN[) AG model baseline traffic
volumes and/ or data from other traffic snudfies in tho [ ky to arrive at an existing baseline to
forecast futurevo| umes, 

2. Review the SANDA(  traffic model and use and network inputs for the existing and forecast " off
the- sheW' model runsLand use and mobility nehwork inputs are assumed to be provided by the

kxaithe parcel level and/ or TrafhcAnalysis Zone | evei

3 Sinceitis not necommendedthat a base year model calibration effort be conducted, thefuture

year roadway volumes vvi|| be developed by applying the gnNh between the base year and
future year models iothe existing count data, No IT' Iffi( /nmoez-1runs anebmz efesy

4. Prepare colored graphics showing the forecast daily traffic volumes on all Mobility Element
roadwaysfor the proposed General Plan. 

C. M0bdlityEleriiemt RoadmmaxaindIntersection AinallysiG
I Conduct an AOT level comparative analysis of all Molt.Ahy Bement roadways within the City for

both the existing conditions and the Proposed General Plan to determine potential significant
impacts associated with the proposed changes. Eight ( 0) intersections and ten ( I0 individuA
segments are anticipated torequire ana| ysis, 

2 Make geomehc recornmendations to achieve LOS C or betlter operations using the WOume- bz
Capacitymethmd, consistent with current Genera| Plan on each MoN| dn Element madwav D is

assumed LOS C isthe target a| though L[} S Q iyconsidered the minimumaccepteb| e L[) S

3 Using Synchro 9 ( or latest edition/ Updates) for the study intersections ( 8 intersections budgeted)' 
the City' s Synchro model shall include the skeleton of a|| the prime and major roadways
intersecting as shown on the existing Mobility Element map for future as - needed analysis. Make
recommendations for intersection treatments or geometrics to maintain a General Plan goal for

LDS C Make recommendations to address any environmenta| constraints and for the | ocadon of
haf0csignals arid Ultimate intersection improvements. 

I 4-fic analy% will inclUde the following scenarios which shall be shown in a table: 

Existing Conditions, arid

Fo ecast Bui| douL Wit hl_ Proposed Mobility Bement Improvements Conditions ( 1Vo

altenxatimez ane sccoed / o be ana/ ocec gi/ antoatIu(. o a qualliatiwe chsrz sIom of
7 43, I.Drjif£ 11?) 

UDI:..: Alk E R, io General Plan Update 24



111X . ............ HBI I / 1

4the Mc)loiky Oei-nent Map in(kating the recommCMded classification of all roadways
5. Prepare co| or graphics iUustrating the recommended intersection treatments for ail impacted

intersections, 

D. Pmepare&. PirocessE11R, Mobility HenmemtTr 0spoirtation Study
LPrepareD f Transpo adonStudy for Otyreview. 

2. Revise the traffic study once based on City comments (. 1. 0 hours budgeted) and prepaire a
Fina| Tnansportation Study for inclusion in the Draft EIA, No ovrewsiona to

1heana l, buo(jelecl. 

3 Assistinres[) ondingtopub| iccomments/ eceivedontheOrafitBR( uptoIOhours) 

4 Attendance at one ( l) meeting with [ he dient/[ itystaff ( three hours per meeting) Attendance at

one ( I) pub| ichearing ( up tofour hours) Pai ticipationinuptothree ( 9) one -hour conference calls. 

ask I Draft EIR

Our approach to preparing the Ell Wil be to prepama analysis of the whoie, project. with the godi

o[ estab| ishing pedomnance standards that \ Afi|| streamknefuture environmental review and appiication processing
for subsequent pnojecis within the General Plan area, More specifically, fuh-ire sheam| ining oppoMunties may

occur pursuant tothe following, ( 1) Sechon 1. 5183 of the CEQA GuOdines for projects r1hat are consistenr witti the
densibesestab| ished6vexisiingzoning, 00mmunhyp| an, orgenera| p|enforwhichanElRwasceAified; (?) Secbon

151853 of the [ EQA Guide| ines, stveam| ining for in0{ exemptions purSuantto S8226 for transit priority projects
idenffied bvSANDAG, and ( 3) Section 15332, categorica| exempfionsforin- fiU deve| opmenL projects, Based on

our underslanding of the project, the fu||mwing issues W|| be addressed in the HR, Each technica| secdon of the
Onak BR will describethe exisdng physical conditions atffie prqject site based on planning documents ( inc| uding
the background repoA8 and comp| etedtechnica| studies, Re| evantfedera[ state, and | uca| | aws and regulations, 

inc|udingCity(.-enera| P| anUpdategoa|sandpo|ides' wi|| besummarizedinthenegu|ato/yseUingdiscussion. The
methodsofana| ysisandstandardsofsignificanceusedfordeterminingimpactsoftheprcjedvviUbedear| yand

exp|icidy described in each technica| section of the ElR, including any assumptions necessary to understand the
conc|usionsoftheanalysis Addibona||y, the BAwi|| discuss the afore -mendoned CEQAstreamlining oppor-tunibes
Section l5I83 for prcjec1s consistent withthe GP, Section l5lQ3.3for SB 226 transit priority projects identified by

SANDAG and Section IS332 for in fill projects) as pad of the regulatory setting and wiU inc| udethe procedural
framework as part of the ana| ysislnc| uded in this effod' Dudek \ A/ i|! eva| uate the proposed and use map

changes, and idenbK/ areas vvhere fuiure si/ eam! ining wi|| be appropriate as U re( ates to these CEOA

stream| ining opporlunities

Thestandards for dete/ mining impact significancewi|| be developed in coordinaiionwith [ itystaff based on

commonly accepted practice and prior standards used bvthe Oty. 

Dudekwill use inpu[ received duringthe N{] ppublic commentperiod toprepanethe screencheckdraitBR The

Di -aft BA wi|| be prepared in conformance with the criteria' standards, and provisions of CEOA of I970, 

a| iforniaPub| icResources[ odeSeciion2IOOOetseq, and[ he EQAguide| ines, 

Discussion in the ElR vviU indude environmenia| setting' project impacts' level of significance, and mibgadon
measune \ f requi/ ed The degree of reduction of impacts due to mitigation wiU be qua| itatweiy and' where

possible, quaNitatively dentificcl A clear- descriptron of in(-, intent arid i1he means by wNch the nritigaiiori rneasum
wiU be implemented' the timing and technioa| equimmerks, and identi0cation ofthe party or partieswhowiU be



U- F  
no v  

responsible for assuhng efecwe implementahon vw|| be provided. O(.Aek will work closely with the [ kx in the
process of developing mitigation measures, which rriayaLso inc| uderhe development ofmdideS for the GeoerA
P| anUpdateinanefforttocreateaseU- mNgatingBRTheBRwi|| a| soindudeasassessmen1ofa/ easonab/ e

nange of project alternatives ( LAID tothree 8\ induding the " No Project" abernadve) for all identified issue area
topics, and wi|| evaluate these alternatives against the project objecirves. The alternatives assessment wi|| induce

coordinahonWith LLC, for aqualitative look aithe traffic impactsincomparison tothe proposed projecL

Themmst recendvapproved state guidance orr significance thresholds ( Appendix G to 1he OF QA Guidelines) WiH

beappiiedLodetermine ifchanges are pot r ia| lysignificantor| essthansignificaniThe BRwill arm todisclose

and mitigaheaU potenha|| ysignihcant impacts, and provide a legally defensible documentfrom which future
individua| projec1soansuccesdL|| ytier, TieringwiUa|| mwsubsequentenvironmento| neviewtonejyontheBRfor

a discussion ofgenona| background and setting information for environmenta| topic areas, overall growth
related issues, issues that Avere evaluated in sufficient detail in the BR and for which there is no significant new

information or change in circumstancesthat wou|d require fuiitheranalysis, and | ong' termcumu|abve impacts
TheEIRwi|| a| soinc| udeana| ysisofconformancetotheSustainab/ eCommunifiesStrategyforSANDAG' s2O50
Regional TransportaUonPlan ( RTP) 

The Draft BR wiU include the issue areas ifiaithe IS determined could be potentially significant either with or
wit hout mir ation Based on our undeo nding of the pn ec so | we anticipate that the BR mmu address

ar least the following issue areas, 

0 Aesthetics

a Air qua| hv

m Biologrca| Resources

a Cukuna| resour(. es

m Hazards/ HazardousMa0eria| s

m Energyconsenvation

w Geology/ Soils
m GHG Emissions

0 Hazanisand Hazardous Materials

w LandUse/ Planning
mz/ se

Pomu| ador/ I- ousing
PubiicSemices

Recreation

Trafc/ Transportation

m Ud| kies

Cumulative Impacts

Alternatives ( uptoth/ ee) 

m Gnowth- inducingDrreversib| e[ mpacts

Oursoopeindudesbwo( 2) roundsofCUyreviewandrevskznstotheScneencheck Draft BR, Thefinal, second

nzundofscreencheckrevewisassumedtobetheDma| appnova| cf1hepnoofcopy; mzsubstantia| changeswiU
bemadeSoeenchecksubmiUa/ swill bede| iverede| edronica| y, 

Uponapp/ cma| ofiheOraMBRiobee4ease6forpub| icrevew, OudekwiUprepeveandpnovidethenotioeof

completion arid execrAivesummary toaccompany dheDraft BRfor review and signature. Dudek wiUdisNbrfle
the Dra0 BRfor pub|ic review, indudingthe 15 e|ectnoriccopies ([ Ds) tothe State C|earinghomse, and 15 hard

copies of1he executive summary, Our budger assumes electronic copies of the Draft EIR and appendices on| y
for the pub| ic review documents. Dudek vvi|| complete the Notice of Completion on behalf of the Ghylt is

assumed theCity Will be responsible for posling the noticeofcompletion atthe CouniyOerk' sOffice as well as
disiribubng the notice Lo all pub| ic review disiribuUon list recipients, The Notice of4vai| abi| iLy will indude ihe
webskcwhere documentscan bereviewed ( Durscope assumesihatthe City will notify thepub| ic, pursuantto
LE[}& SecUnn2I092' in a newspaper oflocal circulation



III ask 4- F` naU EIR espor,-ises to Comments, IWINARP aind F::'` nd^ l1gS

In preparing the Firra| BR, Dudek will review and prepare a rinatrix of the oornmentsreceived on the Draft IR
and will prepare responses to each comment If requested and defeendim, j on the riuMber of commeMs

received, Dudek will attend a meeting with City staff ics review substant ve commerils prior to submittal ofthe
administrative Final BR It is assumed that Dudek will respond to up to 20 substantive pub|ic comments on the

draft BR ( note that a single comment letter may contain mu| dp| e comments), Dudek wi|| also assemble text
changes to the Final BR' as appropriateIn order to meet the pnojecttime| ine, this task assumes one round of

revisions tothe Final BR based on City commentsIt is assumed that nochanges totechnica| repurlswou| d be
required atthis stage ofElQ processing, 

Thc,. Final EIR will contain an intro6, iction chapter that reviews the CEQA process for the project and summarfzes

any draft ElQtext edits made in iesponse to comments. Fhe Final EHR will also contain each comment l0ter with
individua/ comments in each letter bracketed and | abe|ed. Each comment letter will be followed by the

responses to those commentsFinally, the Final E] R will present the pages or the Draft. BR on which revisions
weremadeinresponse tocomments

As a part of this task, Dudek will prepare an WMRP to document the program for implementation of the

mitigation measures identified in the BRThe Mk4RP will be intabu| arform, with each mitigation measure

cleintified, inciuding timing, ent.ity responsible for implementation, and rinethod of verifying compliance, 

Dudek wilt also prepare the CEQA Findings of Fact and SLaiementofOverriding Considerations ( ifrequested). 

The Findings will provide a projed overview, document the project' s procedurdl history ( e. g., dates of' docurnent: 
dncu| ahon), describe the legal requirements under CEQAfor the Findings, provide definitions ofkey terms used
in the Findings, identifythe documents in the record of proceedings, and provide Lhe location and custodian of

those documcnts The Findings will list impacts determined to be less than signiricant will reach specific

conc| usions regarding impacts found to be significant, and will indude 11he effect ofthe mRigation measunas
associated with those signihcard impacts. These conclusions will be cosnsp ent with the required Findings in

EC} A Guidelines, Section l509I( a), and shall reference the specific substantial evidence in the record to

support each conclusion

Dudek will prepare the Findings for review and comment to the project team and tY staff prior to BQ

certificVion. Two munds ofC.ity review of the findings are inducled in this scope of work, 

r  t na K t ^ s and ` sManagement, .  ~^ 

Dudek views thistask with impoitancc and we believe that afocused well managed effort or) the part

of Dudek, the protest applicant, and the pnojectteam vviU be m key o achieving your processing goa| s
for this project We have assumed a G - month work effort for the BR process, with up to four team

meetings during the course of the work effort. 

This task includes participation in monthly conference calls and proagess reports to be submitted whh our

moNhhinvoice A key element cfDudek' s progress report pnocedures is iderUhicadon o[ key upcoming issues
and obsades' as well as a restatement of tasks completed during the previous month We believe this helps in

identifying issues asearly it) the process as possible arid maintaining prcyectmomenium, 

ERfor General Plan Update 37



EM 11 3 T A

For this task, Dudek wrU assist Gly staff it) presenflngthe Orafland Fina| EIR to the p anningcommission and city
council. Uptothree hearings are assumed. Oudeh 4U asss with ffie preparadon of presentation ma ehas and

U) eU~ verabUes Su00 

ihe following products wrII be subrn0ied to the City in fufikment of our proposed scope of worL 

NOPAS( 15Hard Copies mai ed to State Geahnghouseand IElectronic Copy for City) 
m AdministradveI. ) raft BR[ lEectronrc Copy) 

ScreencheckDraft BR ( I. E| ectronicCopy) 

Public Review Draft ElR ( 1. 5 Hard Copies of the E.xecuflve SUmmary and 1. 5 E.: IectroNc opies( CDs) 
mai|cdtoState C| earinghouse, lE|ectnonicCopy and Ilard Copy for City) 
Aweb -friend|ydigital version ofthe Pub| icReview Draft FIR

m ScreencheckFina| BR, indudingtheScreencheckResponsetoCommentsandFindingx( lE|ectnonicCopy) 
MWRP ( I E| ectronicCopy) 

Fina| ElR induding [ Response toComments, Findings, and k4NIRP [] O Hard Copies with technical reports

on Oand l E| ectronic Copy) 

Master Final BR, indudingTechnica| Studies, Response toComments, Findings, and MMRp ( I

Reproducib| eCopy) 

A vveb- friend| y digita| version ofthe Final E] R wi|| m| so be provided to the ChYThe electronic version of
theBRvvi|| indudeehyper| inkedtab|eofcontentsondvv0besuitab| e6orup|oadingkzthe City website. 
The mapsprepared bvOudek' s CIS staff (for indusicminthe General PWnand EIR) 

o Regiora| Locaflon

o Existing Land Use
o Airpoirt. lnMuenceArea( if app| icab| e) 
o Regiono| Transitand Bikeways( City toprovide bikeways) 
o TransportationAccident Map ( Gtytoprovide data) 
o Truck routesarid emergency evacuationroutes ( City toprovide routes) 
o Regiona| lydro oo

o 8kr ooica| Resources

o Parks and Open Space ( Chxkzprovide data) 

o Noise Measurement Locations

o ExisfingNoise [ ontouWS ( City to provide data) 
o Future NoiseContours

o Geologic Setting
o S| opeAna| ysis

o Seismic Hazards ( City to proAedata) 
o Fire HazardSeverityZones

o Flood HW.ardMap
o Darn Fai| ureHazardp1ep( City toprovide data) 
o Regiona| Active Faults ( City toprovide data) 



1. X I- i I B I T y1
KAN|} PR( iE[| 

So| types andlocations ( Cfty toorov& data) 

o Schoolkocations

o Loca1ionsofFire and Police PnztE' c1ion Faci| bies( City to pnovdedata) 

Cair-A. n 

Dudek recoirnmeindsplanning foir a continoem y fund ( typicdly 5% to 10% of ffie overall budget) to cover any
unftnesecnout- c)f scope work that might be necessary f0Ir VIe prcject. I lifs is built into the cost surnmary. 

Cost Suryurnary
Task1: Scoping_ --.,_-.-..... _-...... _'_.......... ..... ._~,...--...... ...... 6, 220

Task 2:" rechnicaUWork

Task Il:Air Quality and GHGEmissions Report ............... ---------........ I5, 500

Task 22Biological ResounesAssessment --....... --------...--.------..---.-.--.-'$ 4, 2OO

Task 23: Cultural Resources Asoessmen--...................... ....... -................. 9, 77O

Task 24: Geology and SoU............ ...... -------------...................... cost iindudedinTes 3) 

I ask 25: Hazards and HazanjousMaterials ... .... .'... ... .... ......... .... ... cost included inTask 3) 

Task 2. 6: and Water Que| hx..~....... .............. .... ..... ...... ... cost indudedinTask 3) 

Task 37: Noise Assessment ... --------------------............ -------.--........ Dl5OO

task 2J8: TrafWcStudy_ 28,000

Task I Draft IEIR.... ____________^__~._^,^_.~,,,_,~~,.~_,~-__-__--_-__----'._$] 6, 59O

Task /LFinal EIR, Responses toComments, K8W1RPand Findings ... ...... _---------_----_-$][ 5, OI0

Task 5: Project Management, Meetings and Hearings ...... -..... .... .... _-... ...... 8, 5OO

ContingencyFund. -..... ...... ...... ...... ---------....... ___ ....... ............ -~...... 55OO

Assummahzedabove, atotal | aborcos of$ I39,790will benecessary tocomokL the oudinedscope ofwork

All work, vw|| be billed in accordance wkh omr 201. 6 Standard Sdedu| e of Charges, a copy of which is attached
to this proposa| For this assignment directcosts will indude such hems asvo|ume nep/ oductioq photographs, 
rn leage, arx] deliveir es, and are not expected to exceed $ 2, 500, for a grand estimated tcAal of 1.42, 290. 

O' K U U Additional I asU s

This proposal cut| inesand defines the folknwnqif ive( 5) componentsthat arensquiredtoccxnoletE a[ omp ete

A, Compk, ieSbreetsVsionS atcmentandC"loab

B [ xisdng[ ondfikznsA,, sessmerii
Complete Stneets Po| kies

OSt e ichn emen tkznP Ian

EComp|ete StreetsConcepts Pbns



Xl IBUA

he tasks that are proposed to be completed wUhin each of the above components are included in this

proposal Thefo||owingScope ofWork was developed based oninhzmationprovided, review ofthe Comp ete
Streetsguide| ines, Comp| eteStveetslmp| ementaUonexperiencestromctherjurisdictionsandourrecent

experienceswithin the City, Given the above, and our overall sense and understanding of the Ssues, we
propose the foUowing tasks to comp| etethe required assessment for the iniUa| submittal tothe (- iiy

A Corin* tc.:! Streets Vision Staternent and Goa 5

Complete Streets Vision providesLhe basis arid foundation for the [ omp|eie Streets Initiative for LemonGrove, 
We propose the following Lasks to establish a Complete Streets Vis& r

L E) iscur; the City' s vision on elemerns related to Complete Streets, Active/[ eaNn/ LMng and Chid
Obesity prewentrvemeasurcs, 

2. Oeve| opmentoftheComp| eteStneetsVisionvvi|| a| soindudeareviewandassessmentofotherCityof

Lemon Grove planning efforts such as the completed Main Street Promenade extension, bike and
pedestrian master p| ans, 

I The Complete Streets Vbion Statement and Goals development will include an assessment of the

existing roadway netwmrkand thechallenges ofproviding complete streets Revising existing policies
and standards Ml be discussed, 

4Estalsksh a vision and policy frarnework for (Jeve| opnient of complete skeets polides and assessments, 
S Submit adraft white paper with Vision Statement and Goals

6 Prepare ahna| Complete Streets Vision Statementthat. wi|| establish a long range po| icydireciion and

basis for future roadway design and operation and is u| Umate| y intended to be effectively integrated
intotheGeneral Plan and othersubab| e dmcumenis. 

B Exisfing Conditions AssessiTient
Conduct EAstingCondritronsAssessments ifor the colored stteet sec ments in the attachedmap

I the existing non -motori7ed transportation' s r0u0e and faci| ie traffic contro| 

measures, hai| s, c| assificahonsand other perinentnon - motnri7edtransporlaflonfeatunea

2, Conduct field analysis arid data oo|| ection effori. Field - data coUection efforts will document physical

opportunities and challenges along the identified streets, with the goal of identfning the types of
improvements that would be needed to ensure the comko¢ safety and appeal of the route to an
average bicyclist and pedestrian, 

I Conduct pedestrian/ bike wo| ume counts at up to five ( 5) cridca| locations, if sukab| e counts are not

available ar the study locafloris. This data will L) e UtHized in analysis for the project. 
4, Assess existing street design features to evaluate iheir effectiveness in pomidinO safe, efficient and

aesthetically pleasing access toall modesofinansportaion Evaluate the. foUowingkey principles inthe
project area, 

Build for Everyone

Scale For People

Create Many Linkages
Streets have Multiple Uses

Sidewalks MuS beCmnnfortab| e

Streets Must beCrossed with Ease

m Keep UrbanTrat-kc Dispersedarid LowSpeed



IU31 A

Build Bike I anes

Build Compact lnlersecbons

Provide AID4Access

BuUdPublic Space

8ui| dVVith Proper Size and Scale

5. Review all transpod-ation and land use planning studies and plans which maybe relevant to pedestrian

and brcvc| ing drcu| abon ) n line Lemon Grove Athonough understanding of previous recommendahons

and studies, as well as upcoming public and private development projects is esseoiia| to determine
oppM.unitiesarid challenges associated wilththe P| an' sk.MurcrecommendetionsThisvviUgive our Team

a full piCture ofupcoming changesthat could impact the proposed routes, as well as previous data that
mayhavea| neadybeenco|| ecteda| ongeachroute( suchospedestrianandbicyc| ecounts) 

C Cammp lete Streets Pohclies
Complete 5beetsPo| cies pnzJdeaclear and consistentguidance for its resideNs, decision makers, planners, 

engineers and designers toensure thatmutimoda| e| ementsare incorporated into all projects. We propose

thefollowing tasks, which isentirely included within the scnpeofwork, toestablish omp| eteStreets Polices

L Review ExisiingCiou| adori/ tnansportat on polices

Coordinate with other planning efc)rtsarid review othercompleted plans inthejuriodicI. krn
3 Based or) the Complete StneeLsVision Statement establish po| iciesto enable contexr sensifive so| udons

based onthe general plan land uses. ThiswiU also enable I' Llturetransportation and land use projects

Loconsis ert| y evaluate, [ he opportunbiesto provide complete streets. These po|icieswiU comp|ywith
A8 1358 ( Ca| ifurnia' sComplete Streets Act). 

4If requied, provide added policies to enab| e additiona| deve| qpment

5 Submit adraft white paper with Complete S reetsPo| icies

G, Prepare final Comp|(.,Ie Streets Policies that vvU| establish a | ong- nange policy direction and basis for

frrture roadway design and operation and isultimately intended to be effectively integrated intothe
Genera| P| an and other suitable documents. The paper vviU Aso define contex- sensitko polices

associated vvhh thesefacility types to guide transportation ope/ adon and land deve| opmentdecisions

regardingtheuseofpub| ichght- of -way. 

D Strategic lmnp emnentation PUan
Strategic lmp| ementaflon Plan wiU articulate a dear strategy for implementation of the Complete Streets Vision

through an approach that includes an incremental combinaiion ofshort -term and | ong- term actions such as

regulatory changes, adminisirative changes, and capha| improvementsWe propose the foUmwing tasks to
establish Complete Streets St/ ategicImp| ementadon Plan. 

l. Propose asUategic plan for implementing the Cornpleile Streets V sionirnmrea| ry rhe 1. 

lmplementation Plan MU define and recommend regu| akzry and pn)cedunakadministrative changes

needed tofaci| itate imp| ementatimn of the complete s1reesvision, including cost estimaiesfor
recommondaUonsThis wiU give particular consideration to a phased or incnamenta| approach to

implementation in order o manage transition The Stmtegic Implementation Plan will identih/ and

prior67e roadway impruvemen1projects incoordination with the Pedesthan k4asterp| aq Bicycle Master
P| aq curxentcapita| improvement and other relevant projects. 

DUDEK FIR for General Plan updare 3 -.1- 



Z Develop afunding program that W01-11dhelpand nnairtainthe prioriti7ed roadway projecis
thnzughacomisinationofthe ( lapha|Improvement Pnogranl State and Fecera| fundsFormu| atea

process toapply for grants ioget addiUona| funds for these programs, 

3he StraLegic] mp|ementation Plan wiU also recommend a monitoring pnogramthotwould measurethe
impacls and effectiveness ofthe Complete Streets ] nitiaUwe This will be designed to inform and

improve the street p| anning. design and operation process over time, 
4. Strategy for phased or incvementa| imp|ementation of the S-omp|ete Streets Vision, Design Principles, 

GuideHnes arid standards irito the crinreN regulatory, administrative and proceduraj frarinevi/ ork
5 Prioritize schedule of short- term and | ong- term projects and programs for implementation of the

Complete Streets Vision, This will define brief scopes, schedules, imp| emen1adon ro| es and
nesponsibi| ihes, and rough costs

E Connplleil: BStreets Concept Plan ( 30% design pUms) 

Based on the Strategic Dnplemenjatjon Plan dendfy e project and prepare a oncepi Plan for the

project, Complete Streets Concept Plan vvi|| provide clear, consistent and contex- senskbeguidanceforthe

prqject corridor. MIX) design plans are also critical for future grant opportunities VVepropose the fo||mmingtasks. 

I Based onthe previous tasks, recommend cross- sections at severAlocations along One identified stucly
area indhe project vicinilt/ 

Z Prepare conceptual schenmahc plan for the preferred priority pnojecL The plans will include a

depiction of existing conditions and Uhe ecommended proposed improvements. These p| ans will be

designed to complement integrate or replace as appropriate the existing regulatory framework
guiding roadwaydesign. Plans will be reflective ofcontextua| land development patterns ( smishng and

envisioned) and will balance the needs of all userslhe plans will provide sufficient flexibility and
grJdance to enable detailed design to respond to site specific constraints and todeal with challenging
Uansitions from existing conditions to desired fr,iture develop- nent pattems

I Assess the impact of the improvements on other elements such as travel Ume, emergency response
times, noise, street diversion etc. 

4. Provide planning level cost estimaLefor the proposed alternative
S Identify appropriate grants forthe project, 
6 Provide project description thatcan utilized [ or file grants

Vehide Wes Traveled and SB ' 743

B ' 743 Compliance

On September 21, 20I3' Senate Bill ( SB) 743 was signed and adopted SB 745 creates a process to change the

way transportation impacts underthe California Environmental Qua| ityAct ( CEQA) are assessed, urrend 

reviewview ofiranspor tion impacts focuses on the delay that vehides experience at intersections
and on roadvaysegments, Thatdelay is usua| ly measured using a mebic known as " level of service," or LDS, 
Mitigation for increased delay often involves increasing capacity ( ie the width of a roadway or size of an
intersec1ion), which may increase auto use and emissions and discourage alternative forms of transportation

Under S8 743, the focus ofCEQA- prepared tranapodabon analyses will shift from drive/ delay to reduction of
greenhouse gasemissions, creation of mu|( jmc)da| networks arid promotion of mix of land usesihat reduces

1) U D 11:..: K EIR fo General Plan Update



B 743 does allow local agencies - o ud|[ze LOS in their Genens| Plans as the metrrc for which kansf:xrtadon

impact fees and/ or capital improvementprojec( sare imp| emented However, Vehicle NUesTrave| ed( VM I) wiU

be the primary means of measuring significant transporlaikon- ne| atcd environmenta| impacts for new
development pmojecisunder [ EQA. 

Draft guide| ines have been published bvthe Office of Planning and Research (] PR) and will be eflec rve by late

20I6 early 201. 7 an(,] WiU be optional for at | eastatwo - year period. Agencies are being encouraged to establish
VMT policies, however, the information avai|ab|edescribing this process is riot yet dear|ydefined In prepasbon
ot the opt in period for SB 743, the following scope has been prepared based on our uriclerstandi rig of S13 743
and its p|annedimp| ementation, 

l, UdUze the City' s Geneira| Pan, upcoming Bcvde/ Pedesbian k4ashs Plan, 2014 HeaNh Eement and
LbG- pepared Complete S0Mets Assessment, to devekzp WT reducing objectives, policies, and goa| s
consistentwith SB 743 targets, 

2. Research and review other agency guide| ines using VMTtransportation analysis thresholds as means of

determining a pnojec1' s | eve| of impact on the transportation syscm (| oca| agencies that. have adopted
the draft. SR743guide| fnes City of San Francisco, ih/ of Pasadena) 

3. Suggest measures ofeffectiveness for all proposed mitigation measures, eg. S8 743 recommends

measuring VMTper capita, peremp| oyee, orperperson- irip. 
4. Based on the reviewed informadun' suggest a City- wide VK4T neduchontarget for futue development

romp|iancewith the City' s Environmenta| Po| icy6uide|ines. ( Cur/ entSB375 Sustainab|oC.ommunities
Strategies achievement level set atI"YY6 reduction over ^ mgiona|^ Vk T) 

S Research creative mKigation measures to reduce YMT and recommend the imp| ementaUon ofmu| d- 

moda| p| ans and Transportation Demand Management ( TDM) plans reflective of the City' s Mobility
Element, [ omp| eteStreets Assesrmentand SANOAG' sSuAainab| eCommuniUesStrategy

G. Summarize the recommended VmTthresholds and midgation measures, and make recommendz4ionc

forfurtCity'sheringthe City' s goa| s in reducing Vk4Tthrough to use ofother p| anning documents ( e g, 
Standards and Prac1ices, Tnanspodadonimpact Fee Program, etc ) 

U113EK BRfor GenerallPlan Update B



cSIJ0
Ul

E

rEw0

Cf S

an

ul

all ¢ oD

TO

aj

6/ 1

ro

U

D

0

D
D 0

E s
4:: D

lu

gym) GSS
c- 

Q) 

oC.) U

0 a.i

Q I



EXHIBIT A

6 Aci _' f`o n a | FN i d ' g
The[ aUfcvnO Strategic Girowth [ ouinci and Sustainabe [ ommunrties' s pn7gramahave fundingfor plannlng

prqeds that support the sustaimob| e communtes goal. The program aims to imp ement the vrsion of the
People of[ a|Jorniatofosterthe deve|opmentofsusUnab| ecommunhiesthroughout Ca| fornia Itisdesigned

tohe| p| oca| govcrnmensmeetthechoUengesofadopting| andusep| ansandintegrafing strategies in Order to
Lrensbrmcommunhiesand create | ongherrn pmspertxSustainab| ecommuntiespromotes equhK strengthen

the econorny, protect the erMironiment arid promote healthy, safe. comMUNfies. 

Webs te: hRps// ww* ca, gov/ 



EXHIBIT A

IN FEN I: IONAI_ I_ Y I_ IFI BLANK

DUD



ARM "wom

1. n s .-j Ilr

a n c e

illy - yyv) 

A CC? R L'> CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
CSLQCc2D13

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODIIA", ER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

714-110RTAW9 the c4wtflicom hokip? N, an Arfl!,A7K' lr*" lN5VRf34' 6the policy( les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVC0, 040v to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not conferrights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such

rlwnq jh 14f DO( j  ", a IiArr 01l, XNIE Kiera Maciel

MICHAEL J. HALL & COMPANY
dd501_ 5,g i- 3700 (

360) 

5983703AICINSURANCE SERVICES ............................ . . . .......... .. . . . ....... . . . ..................................... 
kmaciel@hallandcompany. com

19660 10TH AVENUE N. E. .... ... . ................ 

POULSBO WA 98370
W"" Nqtiv.) ANFORDING COWRAG(F 4AIC # 

Aqev, ry 1., 0792445jqo( r, rj' r j, American Automobile Insurance Co. 2101119

Dudek Greenwich Insurance Company 22322

606 3Rd Street

Encinitas, CA 920243613

ISIORLA F

Ira. uk I I, I

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE P` UMIElf-, fl, VIJ`, A'0MREVISION NLIBER: 

Pf MODTHIS IS TORICEIEFY ILMI 1111 POl I A, ;, " ll
I

0: Sfl,,f  H' C — D 70 NALlr[ l I () I I II 11

Iuo; ol, u n IriCr1 m i IsiAIIIDINF, ANY I dll ( DIPW 1141 1\ 1 I, II IIIA Okl 11(.) 11 01 Al"[ 11 1 OP OMITT W) ONII NU / M III Id 011 CI 10 " WK ' 1, 1 DIM', 

rAHRICAII Irfm,( - Er: 6ur.00R, MAY PIlflAll" I IIII I N S1 IPANICA AF[ OPPID JY IH ' 0II( JI ) F',( 1k' 1R1Sl IVINI IN l I() ALL IIII lHHU", 

rs: rnTYPE OF INSURANCE IV"!, MV POLICY NUMBER
N", 4, f, V LIMITS

A MZG80960804 0828/ 13 08/ 28/ 14 FAFAi OGM RIP - NICE $ 1, 000, 000

X CONI ME ROAL. GENERAL I A811 I TV P R, " M (,, F
100, 000

IC1, 11IMS MADE.  X JOCCUR 01 1  F XP (! bilr 011fl 101000

OCIld( cu, SEPI) PERSONAL& ADVINJURY $ 1, 000, OUO

S', 1F ... — fl,, v- 6 GENEHALAGGT ERI. 6A$ 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

JMH APPLIES PER, NK)DIff" 111 C( jMP/ 01jACn i 2, 000, 000

XI l . .. ....... . . . ................ ..... ... 
POLJCY 

l)( 
LOG $,,,,,,, 

Frorremr

I A AUTOMOBILE LIABRITY MZG80960804 08/ 28/13 08/ 28/ 14 (' E' $ 1, 000, 000

X hipAUTOBUFAL Y INJURY ( Pw P—' a") $ 
mj, OWNED M ` V, rl I I, 

mmify mIjuRy ....... 
AI^ 

tf{ f

X All TO I ' X 41 . . ...................................... 
q 51 BCD ..... ..... . ..... 

X l,( V - l- ................................ 

A " OF( FLLA R` Hrlla CGU32044109 0808113 08/ 28114 FAGHOCCURIMINIA $ 1, 000, 000

kxcv- ss HAB „
r C, F1 [ r, A I F 1, 000, 000

DED [ X IiljF.NTl( A 4̀ j' .................................................................. .... $ 
FT F

A 100 RKERS CO ' P W', A 10N WZC81014322 08t28/ 13 08/ 28/ 14 ' 
AND EMPLOYERS' UA811.( rV

ANc jimi iriL ri ormij? ni wr Ydoij vr
L L EACHACCIF) FNT ..... . ....... 1, 000, 000

0 MrAJOA 14M R 1 ACHMI W F I DISEASE` EA EkOkOYLL i 1, 000, 000

E L DISE. M.; L POLICY LIMIT $ 1, 000, 000

B PECO02403106 0828113 08/ 28114 $ 1, 000, 000 Per Claim Retro Date: 

2, 000, 000 Per Aggregate Jan. 01, 1970

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS fWlllC LES CM - h ACORD 101, Addition al R.— flis Sd- hfl., if more qwc. is requireAj

CERFOICATE IFOLOER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

For Information Only THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

z
Attention

Kiera Maciel

ACORD 25 ( 2010(05) IRRI3, 201D AC, F) SO C( 5unrarlom NII oforilt o' er k1f v vd, 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

mosaww1wo k

W.Y[) EK. EIR for General Han Updale / 



EXHIBIT A

INIFNPONALINLITI BLANK

DUIDEIK EIR loi CleincrJ llan Lj,, Jdate



2016 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

ENGINEERING Sll..RVICII.. S

Project oiroomr.._...-`.-`----' ' unsonm, 

Principal Engineer m' uosoom, 

Principal Engineer n_----_----- ... 000nomr

Principal Engineer 1--------------_---.-$ 215 00m, 

Program Manager , 20500m, 

Senior Project Manager ----_-,-----------$ onaoom, 

1on. nom, 

Project Manager 1oo. 00m, 

Senior Engineer m- 1e500m, 

Senior Engineer o__----__-_--_----... 18500m, 

Senior Engineer |__-_---.------------_$ 17000m, 

noonmr

Project Engineer IV/ Technician m--------_---- m/ ou, 00m, 

10500m, 

Project Engineer III/ Technician m-------------.$/ onnom, 

eoonmr

Project Engineer II/ Technician 11 __ __ ..... ..... 135 00/ hr

Project |.... .------.-..-.-'$ 1mznnm, 

7500mr

Project Coordinator .------- onm, 

Engineering Assistan_ no. 00m, 

EINVnROImMENTAII SERVICES

nmoipu ...~...-._..-......... ... ..... u* nonm, 

Senior zu000m, 

Senior -_---....... 215n0mr

Environmental Specialist/ Planner v|-------- 1oanom, 

Environmental Specialist/ Planner v .............. ------ 17500mr

snwmnmomu| avooialm/ Planne w----- ----. 1on. nom, 

Environmental 111-----__----'$ 155o0m, 

140 00/ hr

Enwmmnonm| n---_-- - - 135 onm, 

Environmental Specialist/ Planner |..... -----------$ 1uzoom, 

165u0m, 

Analyst III ..... ......... ..... __- noonmr

Analyst n.-.-.-...'.-....-.-._.-.-^--.~..' 10500m, 

Analyst |.... ....... ... ____-_--_------_ eoonmr

Planning Assistant n msnom, 

Planning Assistant |.... ..... ....... -...'... .... _-. 7500mr

COASTAL PLAww| mm/ PmuuvSsn*| csS

nsnnm, 

Senior Project Manager/ Coastal Planner n ...... -------$ mmo, 00m, 

55 00/ hr

Senior Project Manager/ Coastal Planner /-------- mum. unmr

EnvironmentalSpecialist/ Coastal Planner VI_ --_---- uu0000m, 

EnvironmentalSpecialist/ Coastal Planner v- ..... __---$monom, 

Environmental Specialist/ Coastal Planner | v----, 170. 00m, 

Environmental Specialist/ Coastal Planner III ...... -'----$ 1wnom», 

Environmental Specialist/ Coastal Planner n 150o0m, 

Environmental Specialist/ Coastal Planner I ... 140, 00/ hr

Senior Project n--.- ........ 215o0m, 

Senior Project |.-~.......... 205o0m, 

Environmental Specialist/ Archaeologist w--'------$ 1aonomr

1e0u0mr

Environmental v---..... 165o0mr

Environmental Specialist/ Archaeologist m' 155o0mr

Environmental Specialist/ Archaeologist m--- --. 14500mr

Environmental Specialist/ Archaeologist n_ -----_--$ 10000m' 

140 00/ hr

enwmnmmnm| |. -.- 1usoomr

Environmental Specialist/ Paleontologist m 165u0m, 

Environmental n------ 4500m, 

Environmental Specialist/ Paleontologist |....... 12500mr

Paleontological Technician III ---_--'---_--' 85. 00111r

Paleontological Technician o-, ...... ----- -_-- ronom, 

Paleontological Technician 1 saoom, 

Archaeologist Technician x------- ' --. '- nsnnm, 

Archaeologist Technician 1, 55 00/ hr

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES

1oo» om' 

Pnncimm ----. -'-' -.-- 1* 500m, 

Senior Construction Manager 1e0u0mr

Senior Project Manager -----------------'* 1m000m, 

1oaoomr

Construction Manager 1oonom, 

Project Manager, 1* 000m, 

Resident Engineer, 140 00/ hr

Consxucnnenoimmr--------- 135 00mr

Owner' s 130 00m, 

Construction Inspector III -...... 12500mr

Construction Inspector n 115o0m, 

Construction Inspector 1 10500m, 

Prevailing Wage Inspector mzmonm, 

CmMPmANCsSERVICes

1oo» om' 

Compliance Director. -..---_---...... -..... 20mnnm, 

Compliance Manager..._..--.-..-.... 14mnnm, 

Compliance Project Coordinator. .... ..... ---........ 1oaoomr

Compliance Monitor -... -...... ....... _- 9moomr

HYDIROGEm OG| CA' SERVICES

1oo» om' 

Principal ,-----.---,--_-----.... ... om. nnm/ 

Principal nor/- --'------- u* o, onm, 

srnymnov| vn| st m------------' 225o0m, 

arnvmovo| un| otIII/ Engineer III ..... -----------'$ m1uoomr

100. 00m, 

nr. n-'----------- 195o0m, 

1e0, 00mr

1wioom, 

nv mumvmnmxvKe^ nmee w-._--_-._-_-'. 160o0mr

nyumnov|" gexwenwinemv---_--_----_--_-* 1oo. nomr

0000m, 

Hydrogeologist IV/ Engineer m 140. 00m/ 

Hym000| voistnxeno| noo III ... -_--.---------'$ 1uo oomr

nym000| oouxII/ Engineer n--__--_--------'$ 1u000mr

105o0mr

uxxEnoinee/|------------ 110G0m/ 

Collection Maintenance Worker 45. 00/ hr

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT & Ope* mnO^ S

1oo» om' 

District General Manager --........ ........ ----_ un. 00mr

District Engineer -.... --... ....... 175, 00mr

Operations Manager---------------'$ 150o0m' 

1anoomr

District Secretary/ Accountant ..... ... -..... -......... 100. 00m, 

onllecm, msvstammanaMer-------- 100. 00m, 

Grade Operator.-_-....-..---..~._.-.----$ 100o0/ x

1wioom, 

Grade IV Operator _ 0000m, 

Grade III Operator _.... ......... ....... ...... -_----_ 0000m, 

Grade 11 Operator.. ... -....... ,..... -.^_-.-- oo. 0om, 

Grade | Operator --.--~--.-_--.._..-....... 55nom, 

Operator in Training--_ .... 

105o0mr

Collection Maintenance Worker II_ 60. 00m, 

Collection Maintenance Worker 45. 00/ hr

OFFICE SERVICES

TechnicmllDra0ngvCADD8enxces

ooGraphic Artist. ... ____ 1oo» om' 

Senior Designer ..... ...... ... 14o. 0om, 

Designer_ ...... ........ ..... 1n000mr

Assistant Designer -_.--- 1anoomr

GIS Programmer i-, ....... 1aooumr

GIS Specialist w- .... .-_.-_- 1o5. onmr

GIS Specialist III ........ ... 1wioom, 

GB 13500m, 

GIS Specialist I---------'-.'_-_-- 1msnomr

CAooOperator III .... ---._ 1au. nnmr

caooOperator n_ ......... 1unoomr

oxoo Operator I._--_.--.-~--.-- 105o0mr

CAooDrafter ...... - 95. 001h/ 

SUPPORT SERVICES

Technical Editor III ---_--_---__-._--_... 1* o. 0nm, 

Technical Editor n. 130. 00m, 

Technical Editor |-_--.-_.-.-_.- 115. nnm, 

Publications Specialist m- 10e, 00mr

Publications Specialist u-------------------$ 95. onmr

Publications Specialist o----_- - e000mr

Clerical Administration m- 85 oomr

Forensic Engineering and interrogatories as

expert witness will be billed atu00 times normal rates

Emergency and Holidays - Minimum charge mtwo hours will b° billed "' 1 , n

ommmynormal rate

Material and Outside Services - Subcontractors, mmm of special equipment, 

special reproductions andm no outside data processingmnd computer

services, erc, are charged at 1 15 firnes line direct cost

Travel Expenses - Mileage at current IRS allowable rates Per them where

overnight stay is involved is charged at cost
In voi ces, Late Charges - All fees will be billed to Client monthly and shall be due
and payable upon receipt Invoices are delinquent if nor paid within 30 days from

the dale of the invoice Client agrees to pay a monthly late charge equal to 1% per
month of the outstanding balance until paid in full
Annual Increases - Unless identified otherwise, these standard rates will increase

3% annually

N N * n. 10
w~ w m 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



OFFICES

San 04gc'), 

Change Counq

liiilarrl II, iirripiin,,u

Los Angdes

VaHey

WWI Coast

Say A rea
I i  / Y

Saiciraiirrteri[ tc,, 

n , ddl A 1 9

lema FoWhM5

EXHIBIT A

ONUNE

I 9ufd/, ( ()!' i



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. L) 

Mtg. Date Azul - 91L0 i

Dept. _ Dever of tmrrr nt Services Qgpartrnpnt

Item Title: : Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150- 0003, 
Tentative Map TMO- 000-0062, General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003, and
Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004 Authorizing a 25 -Lot Subdivision and
Construction of 22 Dwelling Units on 2. 064 Acres at the Southwest Corner of
Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. 

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; 
2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003

and certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16- 02; 
3) Introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 440 ( Attachment C) approving

Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 500- 0004); 
4) Adopt a resolution (Attachment D) approving Tentative Map TMO- 000-0062; and
5) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment E) approving Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 

0003. 

Item Summary: 

The proposed project is located on the southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas on a 2. 064 acre vacant site in the Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium Zones. 

The request is to: 1) amend the General Plan Land use designation from Transportation to

Medium Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units per acre); 2) amend the Zoning District
from Residential Low ( RL) and Residential Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) to Residential Medium ( RM); 3) 

approve a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 25 -lot subdivision, including 22 residential
lots, one private street lot ( 0. 310 acres), and two common area lots; and approve a Planned

Development Permit for development of the site. The attached staff report ( Attachment A) 

describes the project in detail. The project, as proposed and conditioned in the resolutions

Attachments D & E), complies with the Municipal Code. 

Fiscal Impact: 

No fiscal impact. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review  Negative Declaration

Categorically Exempt ® Mitigated Negative Declaration



Public Information: 

None Newsletter article ® Notice to property owners within 500 ft„ 

Notice published in local newspaper ® Neighborhood meeting

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution ( GPA -150- 0003); 

C. Ordinance 440 ( ZA1- 500- 0004) 

D. Resolution ( TMO- 000- 0062) 

E. Resolution ( PDP -150- 0003) 

F. Mitigated Negative Declaration ND16- 02

G. Vicinity Map

H. General Plan Tables CD -1 & 2

I. Letter from the Applicant

J. Exhibit " A"— Project Plans



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 2

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Attachment A

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0003, 
Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062, General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003, and
Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0004 Authorizing a 25 -Lot Subdivision and
Construction of 22 Dwelling Units on 2. 064 Acres at the Southwest Corner of
Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas: 

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Application Summary: 

M

Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, 8109 Santaluz Village Green South, 
APPLICANT/ OWNER: 

San Diego, CA 92127

PROPERTY The site is located on the southwest corner of Palm Street and

LOCATION: Camino De Las Palmas ( APN: 503- 252- 42- 00). 

PROJECT AREA: 
2. 064 acres ( 89, 908 square feet) gross and 1. 757 acres ( 76, 542

square feet) net

EXISTING ZONE: Residential Low ( RL) & Residential Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) 

GENERAL PLAN
Transportation ( Special Treatment Area VII, Troy Street/ SR- 125

LAND USE
Planning Area) 

DESIGNATION: 

North: Single- family residential

SURROUNDING South: Single-family residential
PROPERTIES: East: Vacant Caltrans property and State Route 125

West: Liberty Charter High School and single- family residential

A Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will

be filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the

ENVIRONMENTAL
proposed project by the City Council. The Initial Environmental Study

IMPACT: 
prepared for this project identified potential impacts with appropriate

mitigations associated with: Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water

Quality, and Noise. A draft MND was filed with the County Clerk prior
to the City Council public hearing. 

M



Attachment A

Discussion: 

Site and Project Description

Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC filed a complete application on February 10, 2016. 

The property is a vacant 89, 908 square foot ( 2. 064 gross acre) parcel, which is a former

Caltrans right- of-way that remained after construction of State Route ( SR) 125. The proposed
project is a request to: 1) amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation to

Medium Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units per acre); 2) amend the Zoning District
from Residential Low ( RL) and Residential Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) to Residential Medium ( RM); 3) 

approve a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 25 -lot subdivision, including 22 residential
lots, one private street lot, and two common area lots; and 4) approve an associated Planned

Development Permit. This staff report provides a description of the existing site, the proposed
project and the conformance to the regulatory framework. 

The project proposes six single- family units and eight twin -homes ( two attached single- family
units on separate legal lots) for a total of 22 dwelling units. It is designed to provide three
detached single- family residences along the Palm Street cul- de- sac and three additional
detached single- family residences at the northwest end of the project site on Palm Street
adjacent to Liberty Charter High School. The remaining 16 dwelling units are composed of eight
twin -homes, which are located along the remainder of the site that is adjacent to Palm Street, 
along Camino De Las Palmas, and in the center of the site. The subdivision proposes 22

residential lots ranging in size from 1, 351 square feet to 9, 674 square feet and three additional
lots, including a lot for the private street, a lot providing open space ( Lot B), and a common

private parking lot ( Lot C). The open space lot will provide 2, 268 square feet of common usable

open space directly accessible from the private street, including a toddler play structure, turf, 
picnic table, bench, and a barbeque. The open space lot will also include a public art element, 

up -lighting, and enhanced landscaping at the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas. Additionally, each unit has private open space ranging from 156 to 336 square feet, or
a total of 5, 425 square feet. Total net area of the development ( excluding the private street) is
1. 754 acres. The maximum density for the proposed Medium Residential land use designation
is 14 dwelling units per acre, or a maximum of 24 dwelling units. The proposed density is 12. 5
dwelling units per acre, 22 total dwelling units. 

The proposed private street will take access from the cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street at two
locations. The private street provides sidewalks on both sides and rolled curb and gutters with
increased widths in various areas to provide an enhanced pedestrian environment. Required

guest parking will be provided by one on -street parallel parking space and a common parking
area with five parking spaces and a bike rack. Other improvements for the project include a
project monument sign on the cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street, hardscape, landscaping and
irrigation, lighting, a detention basin at the southeast corner of the site, a six- foot high sound
wall behind the proposed units on Lots 1 through 9 and the open space area, and stairs and a

walkway that provide access from the project to Palm Street to the north. 

The State has established Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) targets for each city in
order to ensure adequate housing stock. The RHNA targets create a threshold for cities in order
to obtain grant and transportation funding. This project works towards the City' s goals of
meeting its RHNA figures. Staff projects that these homes will be available to households of
above -moderate income level. The project also meets housing policies of the Housing Element
as it relates to promoting a mix of housing types and encouraging a balanced mix of housing. 



Attachment A

Land Use Designation

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for

transportation facilities and associated rights- of-way. The proposed project includes a General
Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium Density Residential ( up
to 14 dwelling units per acre). The General Plan Special Treatment Area overlay acknowledged
that a future general plan amendment would be required after Caltrans sold excess right- of-way
subsequent to construction of SR -125, and anticipated the same designation as the designation

of adjacent properties. The residential properties directly across the Palm Street cul- de- sac to
the south of the project are designated Low/ Medium Density Residential ( up to 7 du/ ac). The

properties across Palm Street to the north have a Transportation land use designation and

further north and northwest have a Low Density Residential designation ( up to 4 du/ ac). The

site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high trafficked collector
street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is within a quarter mile of a bus stop
which is located at Sweetwater Road and Troy Street. There is vacant Caltrans right- of-way
across Camino De Las Palmas to the east. 

Zoning District Amendment and Regulations

The property is currently zoned Residential Low and Residential Low -Medium ( up to 7 du/ ac). 
The project proposes a Zoning Amendment to Residential Medium ( up to 14 du/ ac). 

The Lemon Grove Municipal Code allows applicants to request deviations from development
standards through the Planned Development Permit process where it can be found that the
project provides equivalent benefits and/ or achieves efficiencies in use, structures, 

transportation and/ or utility systems. The applicant proposes a pedestrian - oriented infill

development with a mix of housing types ( single- family homes and twin -homes); large setbacks

from Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas; bicycle racks for each residence and sited
throughout the development; an enhanced common open space that provides a recreational

area for the project; enhanced landscaping throughout the site; a public art feature; and

residences that exceed energy efficiency standards. In order to accomplish this project design, 
the applicant requests various deviations from the Zoning and Subdivision Codes, including
deviations to the building envelope, setbacks, lot size and dimensions, open space, building
height, and public street requirements. 

The following table describes the development standards of the Residential Medium Zone

C. rteria Residential Medium ( RM) 

J

Proposed Development

Zone Development Standard Standard and Deviations

Open Space 12, 000 sq. ft. total common 2, 268 sq. ft. common usable

usable open space open space, plus 5,425 sq. ft. 
private open space

Min. Lot Area 6, 000 SF ( allows multi -family Lot size ranges from 1, 351

units on one lot) square feet to 9, 674 square feet

Min. Lot Width/ Depth 60 -feet by 90 -feet 24 -feet by 45 -feet minimum

provided

Setbacks 25 -feet ( front) 3 -feet ( front)* 

5 -feet ( side) 0 -feet ( side)* 

20 -feet ( rear) 5 -feet ( rear)* 

Minimum provided. 

M



Attachment A

A total of six detached single- family residences are proposed. The single-family residences are
positioned along the Palm Street cul- de- sac and adjacent to the school providing a density
transition buffer between the existing single- family neighborhoods to the south and west
transitions from single- family residences to twin homes). Five different floor plans are provided

for the single- family dwellings, which range in size from 1, 753 to 2, 226 square feet of living
area. Two units are two- story and the remaining units are three stories. All the single- family
units have four bedrooms and between two and one- half to four bathrooms. The remaining 16
dwelling units consist of eight twin -homes. Two different floor plans are provided for the
twinhomes, which range in size from 1, 803 to 1, 834 square feet of living area. All the twinhomes
have three bedrooms and three bathrooms and are three stories. 

In total, there are seven different floor plans for the 22 units. The elevations show each floor

plan varies in roof and siding materials, window treatments, doors, garage doors, decks, pop
outs, and covered patio areas, as well building massing. The neighboring properties to the south
are single- family residences with varying forms and sizes and largely have stucco siding with
asphalt shingle roofing with varying window treatments and siding accents consisting of stone or
vertical or horizontal wood siding. All of the proposed plans have varying earth tone colors. The
project proposes roof and siding and window treatments as follows: 

Plan Type (# of units) Description

1A ( 1 unit) Two- story single- family residence with concrete Spanish style tile roof, 
stucco siding, and shutter window treatments. 

1 B and 1X -B ( 2 units) Two ( 1 B) and three ( 1X -B) story single- family residences with concrete
flat style tile roof, stucco and board and batten siding, and an

alternative shutter window treatment. 

1X -C ( 1 unit) Three story single-family residence with an alternative concrete flat
style tile roof, stucco and horizontal wood siding, and a planter style
window treatment. 

2A ( 2 units) Three story single- family residence with concrete Spanish style tile
roof, stucco siding, and shutter window treatments. 

3A ( 8 units) Three story twin homes with concrete Spanish style tile roof, stucco
siding, and shutter window treatments. 

ME



Attachment A

3B ( 8 units) Three story twin homes with concrete flat style tile roof, stucco and
shingle siding, and an alternative shutter window treatment. 

All the units have attached two -car garages with varying styles and colors, 

Grading

The site is vacant and consists of a relatively flat pad bounded almost entirely by descending
slopes that allows for view lots to be created. The slopes vary in gradient from 2: 1 ( horizontal to
vertical) above Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, to gentler slopes at gradients of

approximately 3: 1 to 4: 1 above the southernmost frontage of Camino De Las Palmas and along
the Palm Street cul- de- sac. Existing slope heights vary up to approximately 30 feet, with the
tallest slopes near the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. The entire site is
proposed to be graded to provide lots that step down gradually along Palm Street from west to
east and along Camino De Las Palmas from north to south. Three- to six- foot retaining walls

will be provided to accomplish the changes in grade ( approximately 13. 4 feet change in finished
pad elevations). 

Landscaping/ Screening

Projects located in residential zones are required to landscape 15 percent of the total lot area. 

The project proposes a total of 42, 123 square feet of landscaping or approximately 47 percent
of the gross lot area. Proposed landscaping includes 33 street trees on Palm Street, Camino De
Las Palmas, and the cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street. The 17 existing palm trees along the
public streets will be retained, with 16 new street trees installed along the three adjoining public
streets. An additional 78 trees will be planted on the property including five citrus and plum trees
as required by the new landscape provisions. All landscaping along the street and on- site will be
maintained by a private Home Owners Association ( HOA). 

Traffic

The Trip Generation Analysis that was prepared for this project estimates the project will
generate approximately 220 average daily trips ( ADT) per day. Based on the San Diego Traffic
Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) and the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document

SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a traffic impact

study is not required because the project' s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1, 000
ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. Additionally, the Trip Generation Analysis determined
that the ADT and number of peak hour trips generated by the proposed project does not trigger
Caltrans' threshold for a requirement to analyze State highway facilities. 

Approximately 90 percent of the trips generated by the proposed project are expected to be
distributed onto Palm Street Street, with approximately 50 percent heading west into Lemon
Grove and 40 percent heading east toward Spring Valley (County of San Diego). Palm Street is

designated as a Class II Collector in the Mobility Element of the General Plan, and the addition
of approximately 220 vehicle trips is not expected to have any significant traffic impacts. 

Off -Street Parking

The off-street parking requirements for projects in the Residential Medium zone are noted in
the table below. The project proposes a mix of six detached single- family residences and eight
twin -homes ( duplexes, for the purpose of the City' s parking requirements). Single- family

residences require two parking spaces per dwelling unit, with the spaces required to be
garaged. Duplexes of one bedroom or more require two parking spaces per unit, one of which
must be covered. Duplexes also require guest parking at the rate of one space per four dwelling
units. 



Attachment A

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Use ( RM Zone Proposed) Number of Units Parking Spaces

Ratio Required

Single -Family Residential Six Single -Family 2/ Unit 12

Residences Garaged
a a . 

Duplex ( 1+ Bedrooms) 16 Units 2/ Unit One of 32 ( 16 must

which must be covered) 

be Covered

Guest Parking ( Duplex) 16 Units 1/ Four Units 4

Total Required 8. ............ . 
m

Parking Provided On- site 22 Units 2. 27/ Unit 50

The project proposes two -car garages for all units, plus a total of six guest parking spaces, 
including one parallel space on the private street and five spaces within the private parking area
located on the north side of the property. A celling- mounted bicycle parking space is provided
within each garage, and bike racks will be provided in the common open space area and the
private parking area. 

Noise

State Route 125 and Palm Street are the primary noise sources within close proximity of the
project. A noise study was conducted for this project. It shows that predicted exterior noise
levels at the proposed building facades and outdoor of the several lots generally along Camino
De Las Palmas would all exceed the maximum 65 dB CNEL. As a mitigation measure, a six-foot

sound wall will be constructed adjacent to these lots. In addition, the noise study showed that a
windows open" condition will not provide adequate interior noise mitigations at all units. 

Therefore, a " closed window" condition is required for all units subject to noise levels above 60
dBA CNEL to reduce interior noise levels to comply with the City of Lemon Grove requirements. 
The " windows closed" condition requires that mechanical ventilation be installed to move air
within the structure. As a mitigation measure, specific construction assemblies and mechanical
ventilation are required to ensure that the interior levels are reduced below 45 dBA CNEL. 

These mitigation measures have been included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of
Approval. 

Public Street Dedication and Improvement Requirements

There is existing curb, gutter, and sidewalk along the frontages of Palm Street, Camino De Las
Palmas and the Palm Street cul- de- sac. Additional street trees and landscape are proposed

within the four to five foot wide landscape parkway behind the sidewalk. 

Appropriate street dedication is already provided on Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. 
There is an existing 52 foot right- of-way width on the Palm Street cul- de- sac where a 56 foot
right- of-way width could be required. Staff felt the existing street width was adequate to provide
on -street parking, sufficient vehicle travel lanes, and sidewalk and landscape parkway to not
warrant additional right- of-way dedication. 

Appropriate requirements have been included in the Draft Resolution of Approval. 

Undergrounding of Overhead Utility Lines

Existing overhead utility lines located within the boundaries of the property or within the one- half
right- of-way abutting the subject property are required to be placed underground. There is

M



Attachment A

existing power poles located on the property. The service on these poles is to be placed

underground, as well as any new services to the project. A condition has been included in the
Draft Resolution of Approval requiring the undergrounding of all new services to the proposed
project. 

Drainage/ Water Quality

The applicant prepared a Hydrology Report, a Hydro Modification Plan ( HMP), and a Major

Stormwater Management Plan ( Major SWMP) for this project. Low impact design, including
permeable pavers in driveways and a detention basin will be used to minimize new stormwater

created from this project. According to the Hydrology Report prepared for this project, the
increase in flow is not anticipated to have significant impacts on the downstream storm drain
facilities. The Hydromodification Plan prepared for this project determined that the post - 

construction hydrologic characteristics of the project simulate the pre -development hydrologic
characteristics at the point of compliance, and the project is not required to manage

Hydromodification impacts. 

The implementation, construction and on- going maintenance of the project components
recommended in these reports are included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of Approval. 

Expiration Date of the Planned Development Permit

The Tentative Map and Planned Development Permits will expire within two ( 2) years if the final
map has not been recorded. This requirement has been included in the Resolution of Approval. 
The General Plan Amendment will be effective after approval and Zoning Amendment will be
effective upon second reading of the zoning amendment ordinance. 

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the March 24, 2016 edition of the East County
Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. 

A Native American Tribal Government Consultation was conducted pursuant to Government

Code Sections 6540. 2, 65092, 65351, 65352. 3, 65352. 4, 65562. 5 et. seq. 

Additionally, the applicant did conduct a neighborhood meeting to answer questions of nearby
property owners. 

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental
Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the Council at the time of

the public hearing with any comments that may come in past the distribution of the staff report. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the public hearing, introduce and conduct first
reading of the Ordinance ( Attachment C) and approve the resolutions ( Attachments B, D, and
E). 

BE



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT GPA -150- 003 AMENDING THE GENERAL

PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM TRANSPORTATION TO MEDIUM DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL FOR A PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PALM

STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMS, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for approval of a General Plan Amendment ( GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 
500- 0004) on February 10, 2016 to amend the General Plan from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units per acre) and to amend the Zoning District from
Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium to Residential Medium as part of a request for

approval of a Tentative Map ( TM0062) and Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 0003) to
authorize the subdivision of 2. 064 acres of land into 25 parcels, including 22 residential lots with
22 dwelling units, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot for common open
space; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was

filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the General Plan Amendment is in accordance
with Government Code Sections 65350 to 65359 and is consistent with the goals and policies of

the General Plan and Chapter 18. 40 ( General Plan Conformity) of the Municipal Code: 

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for
transportation facilities and associated rights- of-way. This site was formerly Caltrans
right- of-way which was sold after completion of SR -125. The proposed project includes a
General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium Density
Residential. The General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment

would be required after Caltrans sold excess right- of-way subsequent to construction of
SR -125. The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high
trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is within a
quarter mile of a bus stop; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are

declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Certifies the adequacy of the Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental
Impact ND16- 02; and

11- 



Attachment B

SECTION 3. Approves General Plan Amendment GPA -150- 0003 amending the General Plan
Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density Residential ( up to 14 dwelling units
per net acre) for property located at the southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las
Palmas ( APN No. 503- 252- 42- 00). 

12- 



Attachment C

ORDINANCE NO. 440

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING ZONING AMENDMENT ZA1- 500- 0004 AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT

FROM RESIDENTIAL LOW ( RL) AND RESIDENTIAL LOW/ MEDIUM ( RL/ M) TO

RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM ( RM) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for approval of a General Plan Amendment ( GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 
500-0004) on February 10, 2016 to amend the General Plan from Transportation to Medium
Density Residential and to amend the Zoning District from Residential Low and Residential
Low/ Medium to Residential Medium as part of a request for approval of a Tentative Map
TM0062) and Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 0003) to authorize the subdivision of

2. 064 acres of land into 25 parcels, including 22 residential lots with 22 dwelling units, a lot for a
private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot for common open space; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was

filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2016, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings required to approve a
Zoning Amendment can be made in accordance with Section 17. 28. 080( 6) of the Municipal
Code: 

1. That the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan, in accordance
with Government Code Section 65860, as amended. 

The existing General Plan land use designation is Transportation, which provides for
transportation facilities and associated rights- of-way. This site was formerly Caltrans
right- of-way which was sold after completion of SR -125. The proposed project
includes a General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to

Medium Density Residential. As a part of the Special Treatment Area overlay, the
General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment would be

required after Caltrans sold excess right-of-way subsequent to construction of SR - 
125. 

2. That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption of the
proposed amendment. 

The site is conducive to a higher density due to its location, which is on a high
trafficked collector street, it is directly adjacent to a school on the west, and it is
within a quarter mile of a bus stop. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS
FOLLOWS: 

13- 



Attachment D

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Approve Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500-0004 amending the Zoning District from
Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium to Residential Medium for property located at the
southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas (APN No. 503- 252-42- 00). 

14- 



Attachment D

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING TENTATIVE

SUBDIVISION MAP TMO- 000- 062 ( PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) AUTHORIZING THE

SUBDIVISION OF A 2. 064 ACRE PARCEL INTO TWENTY- TWO RESIDENTIAL LOTS, ONE
COMMON LOT FOR A PRIVATE STREET, ONE COMMON LOT FOR PARKING, AND ONE
COMMON LOT FOR OPEN SPACE ON AN UNDEVELOPED SITE AT THE SOUTHWEST

CORNER OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, LEMON GROVE, 

CALIFORNIA. 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for a Tentative Map ( TMO- 000- 062) on February 10, 2016 to authorize the subdivision of 2. 064
acres of land into 22 residential lots, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot
for common open space as part of an application for a Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 
0003), a General Plan Amendment ( GPA -150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 500- 0004); 
and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was

filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map is consistent with the Lemon
Grove General Plan because it proposes lots for 22 dwelling units at a density of 12. 5 dwelling
units per acre on a 1. 757 net acre parcel of land in the Medium Density Residential land use
designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan which allows a maximum of 14 dwelling units per
net acre; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map complies with the findings of
fact required to approve this project pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 400 because the

project complies with the time limitations of the State Subdivision Map Act; the existing lot is a
legal lot; the proposed subdivision creates more than five lots; the proposed subdivision

complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance; the map and design or
improvements are consistent with applicable general and specific plans; the site is physically

suitable for the type of development; and the site is physically suitable for the proposed density
of development; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning Department, City Engineer, and the Lemon Grove Fire Department with respect
thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to insure
that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, rules, 

and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning, Engineering, and Stormwater Divisions, and the Heartland Fire District with
respect thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to

M



Attachment D

ensure that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, 

rules, and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 
0003 including site, architectural, and landscape plans dated received February 10, 2016

associated with Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0062; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16. 12. 280, the City Council finds that it is
impractical in this particular case for this subdivision to conform fully to the Design Standards of
the Subdivision Ordinance because the Subdivision Ordinance does not account for lots sized
for planned developments and waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found

to conform to the spirit and purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision
Ordinance of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes the following findings: 

1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause
substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife
or their habitat because the property has no environmentally protected resources as
discussed in the Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

2. The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map ( TMO- 000- 0062) is consistent with the

Medium Density Residential land use designation ( up to 14 -dwelling units per net
acre) of the General Plan; and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development because
public and private utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause serious

public health problems because public services ( e. g., sewer, water, gas, and

electricity) will be provided to the subdivision; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements do not conflict with

easements, acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of property
within the proposed subdivision as defined under Section 66474 of the Government
Code, State of California; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map comply with the
requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the Subdivision Ordinance
except as specifically waived or modified for the requested deviations in accordance
with Section 16. 12. 280 and pursuant to the Planned Development Permit process; 

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are

declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Waives or modifies the following Design Standards in accordance with Section
16. 12. 280: 

1. Section 16. 12. 22013 ( Minimum Lot Area of 6, 000 sq. ft.) to allow 22 planned

development lots with areas ranging from 1, 351 square feet to 9, 674 square feet. 

2. Section 16. 12. 220C ( Lots Shall Front on Dedicated Street) to allow 22 planned

development lots to not front on a dedicated street. 

16- 



Attachment D

3. Section 16. 12. 220D ( Minimum Lot Width and Depth of 60 feet by 90 feet) to allow 22
planned development lots with minimum dimensions of less than sixty feet by ninety feet. 

4. Section 16. 12. 220H ( The side lines of all lots shall be at right angles or radial to the

street upon which the lots front with a maximum deviation of up to ten degrees allowed) 
to allow planned development lots accommodating for garage access and enhanced
pedestrian paths. 

5. Section 16. 12. 2201 ( Lot depth shall be no greater than three times the average width) to
allow slope and open space behind proposed residences to be a part of individual

residential lots, but maintained by the Homeowner' s Association. 

SECTION 3. Conditionally approves Tentative Map TM -000- 0062 in association with Planned
Development Permit PDP -150- 0003 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans
dated received February 10, 2016 ( incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit " A") pursuant to

the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision Ordinance (Title 16 of the Municipal Code) and contingent
upon the second reading and final approval of an ordinance approving Zoning Amendment ZA1- 
500- 0004. The approval conditionally authorizes the development of a vacant site with a 22 unit
planned development with an associated private street and common area located on the
southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, Lemon Grove, California ( APN
No. 503- 252- 42- 00). The subdivider shall comply with all applicable provisions of the
Subdivision Map Act, the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision Ordinance, and the following
conditions of approval: 

NO PARCEL SHOWN ON THIS APPROVED TENTATIVE SUBDIVITION MAP SHALL BE
LEASED, SOLD, CONVEYED, OR TRANSFERRED, UNLESS AND UNTIL A SUBDIVISION
MAP APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER HAS BEEN FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER. 

A. WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF APPROVAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Submit the appropriate payment for the CEQA filing fee ( Department of Fish and
Game MND and County Clerk Processing Fee). 

2. Pay all outstanding fees for City permits related to this project. 

B. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A GRADING OR IMPROVEMENT PERMIT AND/ OR
DURING GRADING ACTIVITY, THE SUBDIVIER/APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

February 10, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they
are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. Obtain a grading permit from the City prior to any grading activities. The grading
permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which is described or
illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications

approved by the City Engineer. 

3. All grading permit fees and deposits shall be paid and all actions necessary
preceding the issuance of the grading permit shall be completed. 

4. Coordinate with Helix Water District for the installation of water facilities and ensure
that all of the appropriate permits are obtained. 

17- 



Attachment D

5. Obtain an encroachment permit for the installation of private facilities and/ or for
grading work in/ or adjacent to the public right- of-way. 

6. Building permits shall be submitted with the grading plans for retaining and
freestanding walls where required. Except as noted in this condition, building permits
shall be termed building permits for post -grading activities in the resolutions
approving this project. 

7. Safety fencing shall be required at the top of retaining walls and slopes and shall be
shown on all Grading Plans where appropriate. 

8. A private Storm Water Facility and Best Management Practice maintenance
agreement shall be recorded for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed

private drainage and storm water treatment. The City will provide the template for the
agreement. 

9. As a part of the grading permit submittal, a private improvement, grading, and

drainage plan shall be submitted showing all of the proposed and existing on- site
improvements. The plan shall be prepared in accordance with the City' s standard
requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. All necessary measures for prevention
of storm water pollution and hazardous material run- off to the public storm drain
system from the proposed development shall be implemented with the design of the
grading. 

10. A public improvement plan as a part of an improvement plan check, shall be

submitted with applicable deposit showing all of the proposed and existing
improvements within the public right- of-way. The plan shall be prepared in

accordance with the City' s standard requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. 

11. As -built drawings shall be submitted to SDG& E to energize all of the required street
lights. 

12. Submit the street improvement and grading plans to Helix Water for review and
signature. 

13. All utilities shall be shown on the grading plans. 

14. Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to cover the City' s
expenses, costs, and overhead for the field inspection, office engineering, and

administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. The
amount of the deposit shall be as determined by the City Engineer. 

15. All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan. 

16. Evidence indicating that arrangements have been made for the preservation and/ or
relocation of existing monuments shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to the
issuance of a grading permit. 

17. Grading plans shall be prepared and submitted with the grading permit application in
accordance with the city engineering standards and the requirements of the City
Engineer. 

18. All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil
engineer. 

19. Conditions imposed by the city engineer shall be shown on the grading plans under
the heading " General Notes." 

18- 



Attachment D

20. The subdivider shall execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and a

Subdivision Improvement Security in accordance with Section 16. 12. 200. A cost
estimate for all of the proposed grading, drainage, street improvements, landscaping, 
and retaining and freestanding walls work proposed shall be submitted with the
grading and improvement plans. A separate cost estimate shall be submitted for
work proposed within the public right- of-way. Templates for these agreements are
available from the City. The applicant shall post a security with the City comprised of
a cash deposit of a combination of cash deposit and corporate surety bond of a
surety authorized to do business in the state. An instrument of credit or other security
pledging the performance of the work, may be submitted in lieu of the surety bond to
insure installation of required structures, drains, landscaping, irrigation and other
improvements shown on the grading plan. Such funds are trust funds for the

purposes of satisfying the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created
by the work or lack of maintenance thereof. An irrevocable standby letter of credit
issued by a financial institution subject to the regulation by the state or federal
government may be posted in lieu of the surety bond, instrument of credit or other
security. The estimated cost of the work shall be determined by the City Engineer
after reviewing the civil engineer' s estimate. The total amount of the security shall be
equal to one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of the grading work
authorized by the permit plus an additional sum equal to one hundred percent of the
estimated cost for the construction of drainage structures or facilities, including

standard terrace drains, slope planting, irrigation system, erosion control devices, 
retaining walls and similar facilities authorized by the permit. 

21. Submit improvement plans and enter into a secured agreement for public street

improvements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

22. Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the
application of a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and
contain all information applicable to the project in accordance with generally

accepted geotechnical engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report
shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements outlined within 18. 08. 120 A. All

recommendations outlined in the soils report shall be imbedded into the grading

plans. The grading plans shall include site monitoring and inspections to ensure
recommendations of the Geotechnical Evaluation are adhered to. The Evaluation

recommends that undocumented fill, colluvium and bedrock be removed. Removal

depths are estimated at two to seven feet with variation. Properly designed site
drainage is required to reduce erosion damage to the planned improvements. Typical

erosion control measures will be required during site grading. 

23. The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove General Plan in preparing the reports required in
18. 08. 120. 

24. Recommendations contained within approved reports and technical analyses shall

be incorporated into the grading plan and specifications and shall become conditions
of the grading permit. 

25. Submit a truck hauling route with diagram showing streets. This should include the
source of borrow and/ or disposal and any BMPs tied to the imported material. 

26. Obtain written letter of conditional approval from FEMA for development within Flood

Plan X. 

19- 



Attachment D

27. Submit a final Hydrology Report and Storm Water Quality Management Plan
SWQMP) to determine and analyze the increased volume of storm water runoff as a

result of the proposed design. Analysis of the downstream onsite detention basin

must be based on hydrology calculations. Any modifications must be reflected on
the plans. This report should contain calculations and diagrams of pre and post - 
development conditions. The SWQMP shall be completed and approved prior to the

issuance of any other permits. Grading and site improvements shall be in
accordance with the SWQMP for the proposed project. The SWQMP shall specify
implementation of BMPs required in 8. 48 and 18. 08 of Municipal Code and the BMP
Design Manual. Provide evidence that treatment Best Management Practices

BMPs) are adequately sized for the increase in impervious surfaces. 

28. Plans for an erosion control system shall be prepared and submitted for the review

and approval of the City Engineer and Water Quality Coordinator as a part of any
application for a construction permit. The erosion control system shall comply with
the requirements of the latest state general construction stormwater permit and any
amendments thereto, the MS4 Permit, Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 8. 48, 
and 18. 08. 170. 

29. A private Stormwater Facilities and Best Management Practices maintenance
agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed

private drainage and stormwater treatment facilities prior to the issuance of a grading
or improvement permit. 

30. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding district
will be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. 

31. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future street improvement district will

be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. 

32. The developer shall submit erosion and sediment control plans with construction
Best Management Practices ( BMPs) and an irrigation plan for review and approval

by the Water Quality Coordinator, which will be required to be abided by during
grading activities. 

33. The applicant shall submit sewer lateral plans with the improvement plans. These

sewer lateral plans shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

34. The structural pavement section for the private access located on the subject

property shall be based on the soils report prepared by a Geotechnical Engineer to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

35. Parking spaces shall be of the dimensions outlined in Chapter 17. 24. 010 of the
Lemon Grove Municipal Code unless specified otherwise by the Development
Services Director. 

36. Improvements, where applicable, shall conform to the San Diego Regional Standard

Drawings unless otherwise specified by the City Engineer. 

37. The subdivider shall provide proof satisfactory to the Director of Public Health that
there exists an adequate potable water supply available to each lot or parcel, and
that the subdivider install or agree to install water supply pipes of a minimum six
inches in diameter, provided that the City Engineer may required such other diameter
of water supply pipe as may be recommended by Helix Water District. 

20- 



Attachment D

38. Sight distance requirements along streets and at all intersections shall conform to the
intersectional sight distance criteria as provided by the Caltrans Highway Design
Manual. 

39. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with letters from the serving utility
companies stating that arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to
serve all parcels created. No letter will be required from the Pacific Bell Telephone

Company. 

40. A private Sewer Maintenance Agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and

rehabilitation of the proposed private sewer prior to the issuance of grading or

improvement permits. The City will provide the template for the agreement. 

41. The Sewer main for this project shall be designated as private, not public. 

42. Each dwelling unit of the proposed subdivision shall be connected to a sewer of the
Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

43. Provide the City with a final drainage/ hydrology report indicating that the site design
is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

System ( NDPES) permit. On- site drainage shall be in compliance with the NDPES
permit. 

44. Submit a maintenance agreement for the on- going maintenance of the private street
and access improvements, parking and other proposed paved areas, fencing, 
landscape and irrigation ( private and within the public right- of-way along the

property' s frontage), drainage and water quality facilities required by the SWAMP, 
and recreational and other facilities as specified to be reviewed and approved by the

City Engineer and Director of Development Services. This maintenance agreement
shall be adhered to by the HOA and incorporated into the CC& Rs to the satisfaction
of the Director of Development Services and City Engineer. 

45. All plans and technical studies required to be submitted to the Engineering
Department for review and approval shall be prepared by a California Registered
Professional Engineer or applicable utility provider. 

46. The permittee shall be responsible to maintain in an obvious and accessible location

on the site, a copy of the grading and improvement permit and grading plans bearing
the approval of the City Engineer. 

47. After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving
grading, brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre -grading meeting. Prior to pouring
curbs and gutters or placement of base materials, there shall be a pre -paving
meeting held on the site. The permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the City
Engineer at least two working days prior to the meeting and shall be responsible for
notifying all principals responsible for grading and paving related operations. The

Storm Water Coordinator shall be a part of the meeting. 

48. All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by the permit. 

49. The property owner shall pay the City for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or
maintaining a city -owned facility within the public right- of-way when the city facility
has been damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the

owner' s land development work during the progress of such work. The costs of
placing, replacing or maintaining the city -owned facility shall include the cost of

M



Attachment D

obtaining an alternate easement if necessary. The City may withhold certification of
the completion of a building or other work where a notice has been issued. 

50. The subdivider shall submit record drawings ( as- builts) and engineering

documentation with applicable fees for all public improvements to the City to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

51. In accordance with Municipal Code Sections 12. 10. 080 and 16. 12. 240, the property
owner( s) shall underground all existing utility distribution facilities, including
telecommunication lines, on and along the frontage of the subject property as
required by the City Engineer. The property owner( s) shall make the necessary
arrangements with each of the serving utilities, including licensed communication
operators for the installation or relocation of such facilities. No new overhead poles

shall result from undergrounding activities. 

52. Submit street improvement plans with roadway cross- sections with rolled curb
configuration to the Fire Marshal for review and approval. Minimum 20 foot fire lane

for emergency access required. 

53. Prior to combustibles being brought to the site, the developer shall provide written
certification from the Water Purveyor, dated within the last thirty days, that: 
a. All public fire hydrants required of the project have been installed, tested, and

approved by the Water Purveyor; and

b. Are permanently connected to the public water main system; and

c. Are capable of supplying the required fire flow as required by Heartland Fire & 
Rescue. 

54. Group R- 3 and U Occupancies: An approved water supply capable of supplying the
required fire flow for fire protection shall be provided to all premises upon which
facilities, buildings, or portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into or

within the jurisdiction. When any portion of the facility or building protected is in
excess of 400 feet ( 122 mm) from a water supply on a public street, as measured by
an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on- site fire hydrants
and mains capable of supplying the required flow shall be provided when required by
the Fire Code official. The size of fire hydrant outlets shall be a minimum of one 4

inch and one 2-'/ 2 inch NST outlet or greater as required by the Fire Code official. 

55. In order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontological and
archaeological resources the following conditions shall be complied with: 

a. The subdivider/applicant shall conduct a cultural resources records search and a
Sacred Lands File search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for

on- site Native American cultural resources. A copy of a letter regarding the
records search shall be provided to the Development Services Department prior

to issuance of grading or improvement permits. The report shall provide

recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be
implemented as a part of the mitigation measures. 

b. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the pre -grading meeting to
consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified paleontologist is

defined as an individual with a Bachelor' s or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures. 

22- 



Attachment D

c. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at all times during the original
cutting of previously undisturbed sediments of the Mission Valley Formation. 
These monitors shall inspect an excavation which exposes sediments of the

Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as they are
uncovered. 

d. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
grading to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains. If cultural resources are
discovered during site preparation and/ or grading, then any further work shall
cease and programs and procedures shall be initiated as outlined in CEQA
guidelines 15064. 5. 

e. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall document the stratigraphic and geologic

context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains. 

f. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and

artifacts for eventual donation. 

g. Prior to final inspection, a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of the
mitigation program and submitted to the Development Services Director. This

report will include a discussion of methods employed, fossils and artifacts

recovered, geologic context of fossil and artifact remains and the significance of

the mitigation program. 

h. Donate all curated fossil and artifact specimens to an institution with a proven

history of professional, long term care and storage of paleontological and
archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History Museum. 

56. One temporary on- site sign legible from the major vehicle travel lanes adjacent to the
project shall be shall be posted on the property for the duration of all construction on- 
site. The sign shall be a minimum of six feet high, six feet wide, and not to exceed 64

square feet total for two sides or 32 square feet for one side. Such sign shall include

the permit numbers, property location and APN number, a site plan and description
of the project, project name, and the developer' s name, address and telephone

number. Such sign shall be removed prior to grading permit final. Signs shall be
maintained in good condition at all times. 

57. Private residential, public residential, commercial and industrial fire access roads

shall provide an access roadway with a minimum unobstructed width of 20 -feet wide
and a minimum 13' 6" vertical clearance. All fire apparatus access roadways must be

maintained unobstructed and drivable by fire apparatus throughout the construction
process. Access roadways shall be capable of holding an imposed load of 75, 000
pounds including in adverse weather conditions. 

58. Grades for driveway and fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10 percent. 
Fire Department approval and additional conditions are required for grades up to 20
percent maximum. Angle of approach and departure for driveways shall not exceed

five ( 5) percent. 

59. Fire lane designations shall be required for all fire access roadways as determined

by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs shall be required for all fire access



Attachment D

roadways as determined by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state

FIRE LANE, NO PARKING" shall be installed every 50 feet. Curbs shall be painted
red and stenciled with white letters indicating the same on the face and top of any
curb as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue. All fire lanes shall be marked and

identified prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Fire lane maintenance must be

addressed in the CC& R' s for the project. 

60. All required fire apparatus access roads, fire lanes, fire department turn -around and

entry/exit drives shall have a minimum 28 -foot turning radius for fire apparatus
depending on size, location, and type of project. Site plans shall provide a fire
department turning radius template along the access roadway or within a detail
confirming that the radius meets Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements. 

61. Fire apparatus access roads ( all roads in the project) shall be paved, accessible and

fire hydrants shall be capable of flowing required GPM and shall be tested and
accepted by the Fire Department prior to dropping any lumber for construction. 

62. Roadway design features ( speed humps, bumps, speed control dips, etc.) which may
interfere or delay emergency apparatus responses shall not be installed or allowed to
remain on the emergency access roadways. 

63. Any gate or barrier across a fire access roadway, whether manual or automatic, must
meet the Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements and have specific plans and permits

approved prior to installation. Knox brand key -operated electric key switch keyed to
Heartland Fire & Rescue specification are required. The Knox switch shall override
all gate functions and open the gate. Other access control systems such as Opticom, 
siren, etc. shall be permitted with the approval of Heartland Fire & Rescue. 

C. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT
SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

February 10, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they
are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. Pay all outstanding fees prior to issuance of a building permit( s) for new dwelling
units authorized by this tentative map. 

3. Per Ordinance 372 a Uniform Transportation Mitigation Fee for each unit must be

paid at the time of building permit issuance. The fee is subject to annual increase
and the actual fee will be calculated at the time of payment. 

4. Obtain sewer permits and pay capacity fees for 22 dwelling units or as modified by
the Lemon Grove Sanitation District prior to the issuance of a building permit. The

permit requires a capacity fee plus prorated sewer service fees be paid at the time of
permit issuance. 

5. Pay appropriate school, parkland, diversion deposit, and other fees as applicable. 

6. Submit for Development Services Director approval, a detailed landscape and

irrigation plan. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion
control plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements including, but not
limited to, the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, 

botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all
plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back- flow devices; and soil

amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section

24- 



Attachment D

17. 24. 050( B) and Chapter 18. 44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be
in substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan. 

7. Water supply, access, and fire protection system requirements shall meet City of
Lemon Grove Fire Department standards. 

8. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two -car
garages. Driveways shall be a minimum of 18 feet wide by 19 feet deep if used for
parking. 

9. Future development shall comply with all applicable California Building Codes. 

10. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of the current California Building
and Fire Codes. 

11. All new utility distribution facilities, including cable television lines, within the

boundaries of any new subdivision or within any half street abutting a new
subdivision shall be placed underground. The subdivider shall coordinate with the

necessary cable television operators for the installation of such facilities. 

Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, concealed ducts, and other

facilities necessarily appurtenant to such underground utilities and street lighting
systems may be placed above ground unless directed otherwise by the City
Engineer. All proposed structures on the subject property shall connect to the utility
system via underground system. 

12. Submit a written statement signed by the civil engineer reporting that the site is
rough graded in conformance with the approved grading plan, as modified or

amended by any construction changes approved by the city engineer, and which
specifically states the items which were performed under his/ her supervision, and are
shown correctly on the as -graded drawings. 

13. Prior to issuance of building permits, incorporate best management practices

including site design, source control and treatment control, construction and on- going
maintenance identified in the SWAMP and Drainage Report into the Building Plans. 

14. Provide the City with, upon completion of the grading, a compaction report from the
geotechnical firm and a letter from a licensed civil engineer that the grading and
elevations of the pad were done in accordance with the approved grading plans and

prior to the issuance of building plans. 

15. Provide plans on Auto CAD ( any release) for pre -fire planning use by the Fire
Department. Information shall include locations of all exits, stairwells, and roof

access. Also, gas, electrical, water, fire sprinkler, and standpipe valves and shutoffs, 

and elevator and electrical equipment rooms, fire alarm panels, remote annunciators, 

and RTU/ HVAC detectors. 

D, DURING GRADING ACTIVITY AND PRIOR TO GRADING PERMIT FINAL APPROVAL, 

THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement
and related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes. 

2. All trash, debris, and waste materials should be disposed of offsite, in accordance

with current local, state, and federal disposal regulations. Any materials containing
petroleum residues encountered during property improvements should be evaluated
prior to removal and disposal, following proper procedures. Any buried trash/ debris

M



Attachment D

encountered should be evaluated by an experienced environmental consultant prior
to removal. 

3. Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of organochlorine pesticides in soil shall
be performed. 

4. Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of lead in soil shall be performed. 

5. For any work within the public right- of-way, the subdivider shall secure an

encroachment permit to work within the City right- of-way and place a special deposit
with the City to ensure that any damage to the existing roadway or other public
improvements is repaired in a timely manner. The subdivider shall be responsible for
all unforeseen costs related to work performed in the right- of-way. 

6. The development and preparation of the site shall conform to all recommendations of

the approved geotechnical reports submitted to the City. 

7. The drainage structures, bioretention areas, underground storage pipes, and outlet

structures identified in the Standard Water Quality Management Plan ( SWAMP) shall
be installed. Any modifications to the bioretention areas shall require modifications to
the SWQMP and review and approval by the City Engineer. 

8. Provide the City with a final drainage/ hydrology report/ letter indicating that the site
design is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System ( NPDES) permit. 

9. The fire hydrant system shall be tested to ensure adequate fire flow. The required
fire hydrant flow shall be 1, 500 GPM for a 2 -hour duration at 20 PSI residual

operating pressure. Documentation is required from the Water Purveyor verifying
that the system is capable of meeting the required fire flow prior to building permit
issuance. If the system is not capable of meeting the required fire flow
documentation shall be provided showing financial arrangements have been made
and water system improvement plans have been submitted and approved by
Heartland Fire & Rescue and the Water Purveyor to upgrade the existing system
prior to release of building permits. The terms and conditions of the Tentative
Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the permittee and all persons, firms, and
corporations having an interest in the property subject to this Planned Development
Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of each of

them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and districts. Fire hydrants
shall be painted per Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor

standards and be maintained free of obstructions. Blue reflective raised pavement

markers shall be installed on the pavement at approved locations marking each fire
hydrant. 

10. Public and private water utility mains must provide the level of reliability/ redundancy
determined necessary by Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor
Engineer. 

11. The subdivider shall construct or shall cause to be constructed, at his/ her own cost, a

street lighting system conforming to the City standards. 

12. Street signs for private and public streets meeting the requirements of the City
Engineer standards shall be installed at all intersections prior to final occupancy
approval. 

13. A street naming request application shall be completed to rename the Palm Street
cul- de- sac to Palm Court or another mutually agreed upon name by the effected



Attachment D

property owners. An additional request shall be completed for the proposed private

street. Appropriate signage shall be required to be installed. 

14. The installation of gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and any other below surface
utilities is required to take place before the installation of any concrete curbs, gutters, 

sidewalks, and surfacing of the streets ( including repair or replacement). Sewer and

water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this subdivision. 

15. Metallic identification tape shall be placed between the bottom layer of the finished

surface and the top of all irrigation lines in the public right- of-way. 

16. The contractor/permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be responsible
for controlling dust created by its grading operation or activities at all times. 

17. Reporting for earthwork, asphalt, and concrete testing shall be required and
prepared in accordance with the latest version of the " Greenbook" Standard

Specifications for Public Works Construction. Reports shall be submitted to the City
for review and approval prior to the applicant' s request for final inspection on the

grading or improvement permits. The reports shall be signed and stamped by a
California registered engineer. 

18. All flammable vegetation shall be removed from each building site with slopes less
than 15% at a minimum distance of thirty ( 30) feet from all structures or to the
property line, whichever is less to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal and
Development Services Director. 

19. A pad certification and compaction report shall be submitted to the City for review
and approval prior to the applicant' s request for final inspection on the grading
permit. 

20. Submit a certification letter stating that the grading was done per the approved plan
or an as -graded version of the grading plan ( as -graded drawings) prepared, signed
and dated by the responsible civil engineer which shall include original and " as - 

graded" ground surface elevations, pad elevations, slope ratios, and elevations and

locations of all surface and subsurface drainage facilities, location and scaled

sections of all buttress/ stabilization and fills, subdrains and general location and
depth of all areas or removal of unusable soil. 

21. Submit a final soils engineering report prepared by a soil engineer, including type of
field testing performed, compaction reports, final pad elevations, suitability of utility
trench and retaining wall backfill, the maximum allowable soil bearing pressure and
the required pavement structural sections, summaries of field laboratory tests and

other substantiating data, and comments on any changes made during grading and
their effect on the recommendations made in the preliminary soils engineering report. 

Each field density test shall be identified, located on a plan or map, the elevation of
the test, and the test method of obtaining the in- place density described. 

22. Final approval shall not be given until all work, including installation of all drainage
facilities and their protective devices, required irrigation system installed protective

devices, required planting, and all erosion control measures have been completed in
accordance with the final approved grading plan and the as -graded drawing, required
reports and statements of compliance consistent with section 18. 08. 030 and Chapter
18. 44 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code have been submitted. 

23. The Developer and Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the
recommendations of the requirements of the Storm Water Quality Management Plan

27- 



Attachment D

SWAMP) prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator. 

24. The exterior boundary of the subdivision and all lot corners shall be monumented
with permanent monuments in accordance with Section 16. 12. 250 to the satisfaction

of the City Engineer. 

PRIOR TO BUILDING FINAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the project, including public street improvements, shown on
the approved building, landscape, grading, improvement and related plans shall be
located substantially where they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance
with appropriate City Codes. 

2. Permanent residential three- dimensional street numbers, minimum 4 inches in

height, shall be provided on the address side of the building at the highest point and
furthest projection of the structure. The address shall be visible form the street and

shall not be obstructed in any manner. 

3. Comply with the new " solar ready" requirements in Title 24 ( Section 110. 10). This

includes reserved solar zones on the roof, conduit installation, 200 amp service, etc. 
4. Prior to Fire Department clearance for occupancy, an automatic fire sprinkler system

shall be installed. The system shall comply with NFPA # 13- D Standard for Automatic

Fire Sprinkler Systems -Single Family Dwelling. Three ( 3) sets of plans, hydraulic
calculations, and material specifications sheets for all equipment used in the system

shall be submitted by a State of California Licensed C- 16 Contractor for review, 
approval, and permits issued prior to commencing work. 

5. Demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director that the
required noise barriers/ sound walls as shown on Exhibit " A" have been installed and

provide noise mitigation at or below the City of Lemon Grove 65 dBA CNEL exterior
noise level standards for the outdoor areas as described in the Noise Evaluation
Report ( dated November 10, 2015) prepared for this project. 

6. All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24. Exterior walls and roof assemblies shall have a STC rating of 46 or
better in accordance with the acoustical analysis. Exterior doors shall have a

minimum STC rating of 28 in accordance with the acoustical analysis. The glass
assemblies ( windows, fixed windows, and glass doors) of the perimeter units having
direct line of sight to State Route 125 shall require a Sound Transmission Class
STC) rating of 31 to reduce the interior noise levels below 45 dBA CNEL in

accordance with the acoustical analysis. Other glass assemblies shall be dual - 

paned with acoustical sealant around the exterior edges to have an STC rating of 26
or higher in accordance with the acoustical analysis. 

7. A closed window condition is required with mechanical ventilation installed to move
air within the structure in accordance with the acoustical analysis. 

8. The developer/ owner shall be required to repair and/ or replace any damaged public
improvements fronting the project and within 100 feet to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. 



Attachment D

F. PRIOR TO RECORDATION OF A FINAL MAP, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL

COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

All physical elements of the project, excepting improvements for buildings, including
public street improvements, shown on the approved building, landscape, grading, 
improvement and related plans shall have obtained final approval or appropriate

securities associated with such improvements shall be provided for in accordance

with appropriate City Codes. 

2. Submit a copy of the Preliminary Title Report, Subdivision Guarantee and Tax
Clearance Certificate no more than 60 days in advance of the recordation of the

Final Map to the City Engineer for review. 

3. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with one reproducible Mylar copy of
the final map for recordation. 

4. Each parcel shall be subject to inclusion into the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting
District which includes an annual assessment. 

5. A formal written request to add street lights to the Lemon Grove Lighting District shall
be submitted to the City of Lemon Grove Lighting District prior to permanently
energizing. If required, a deposit for the initial operation costs expended by the
Lighting District for the subject property shall be submitted until the units are placed
on the Tax Assessor' s yearly statement. 

6. Water improvement plans shall be approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue prior to

recordation. The developer shall furnish Heartland Fire & Rescue with three ( 3) 

copies of the water improvement plans designed by a Registered Engineer and/or
Licensed Contractor. On- site fire service mains shall have a minimum of eight ( 8) 

inch water mains with six ( 6) inch laterals and risers. Larger pipes may be required to
meet required fire flow requirements. Fire hydrants shall provide one 4 -inch port and

2- 2'/ z ports and must be an approved fire hydrant type. 

7. Backflow prevention devices for private building sewers shall be required pursuant to
Section 710. 0 of the CBC ( 2000 UPC). 

8. Pay $ 85 for the preparation and recordation of each document as required for the

subject permit. 

9. The subdivider shall comply with Section 66436 of the Government Code by
furnishing to the City Engineer a certification from each public utility and each public
entity owning easements within the proposed subdivision stating that: a) they have
received from the developer a copy of the proposed final map; b) they object to/ do
not object to the filing of the map without their signature. In addition, the subdivider
shall furnish proof to the satisfaction of the City Engineer that no new encumbrances
have been created that would subordinate the City' s interest over areas to be
dedicated for public road purposes since submittal of the tentative map. 

10. The protection of the public interest requires that the subdivider, contractors, 

builders, lot or parcel owners, and other persons, firms, and corporations concerned

with the development of said subdivision conform to the following standards, and all
permits required by the City of Lemon Grove will be issued pursuant to such
standards: 

a. All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from Helix Water

District. 

I



Attachment D

b. All buildings constructed for this subdivision shall be connected to the public

sewer system of the Lemon Grove Sanitation District. 

c. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of Title 15 ( Buildings and
Construction. 

d. Sewer and water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this
subdivision. 

e. Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to prevent

ponding and/ or storage of surface water and shall be in compliance with the

NPDES permit to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Coordinator and the City
Engineer. 

11. The final map shall show or provide for the following: 
a. The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in

substantial conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

b. The final map shall indicate that this project is a planned development for twenty- 
two ( 22) dwelling units. 

c. The final map shall include the signature of the Development Services Director
prior to recording. 

d. The final map shall identify any easements indicated within the Title Report, 
proposed on the approved Tentative Map, and as required by the Lemon Grove
Fire Department or City Engineer. 

e. The Final Map shall include all easements as shown on Tentative Subdivision
Map TMO- 000- 0062, including but not limited to private sewer, drainage, utility
and open space, and public access and emergency access easements. The
subdivider shall provide a public access easement for the proposed pedestrian

access way through the site from the Palm Street Cul- de- sac to Palm Street. 

f. A note shall be placed on the final map indicating that domestic water supplied
for this project shall come from Helix Water District. 

12. Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions ( CC& Rs) shall be submitted to the City for
review and shall be written to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director

and the City Engineer. The CC& Rs shall include the conditions herein to the

satisfaction of the Fire Marshal, Water Quality Program Coordinator, City Engineer, 
and Development Services Director and shall be recorded prior to or concurrent with

the final map and shall include but not be limited to the following: 

a. The Developer, Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the CC& Rs
approved for this project. 

b. The formation of a home owner's association ( HOA) with maintenance

responsibilities is required. 

c. A Best Management Practices ( BMP' s) and a Private Driveway and Drainage
Maintenance Agreement to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The

maintenance and the preservation of drainage and BMP facilities shall be
included. 

d. The CC& Rs shall identify and implement the BMP' s identified in the SWQMP
prepared for this project and state that the Developer, Current and Future

30- 



Attachment D

Property Owners shall comply with the recommendations of the SWQMP
prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator and the City Engineer. Funding of the long term maintenance of all
facilities required by the SWQMP shall be included in the annual HOA budget. 

e. A long- term operation and maintenance program ( OMP) will be a requirement
and the responsibility of HOA to maintain. Funding for the program is required to
be accounted for in the annual budget of the HOA. 

f. The CC& Rs shall include on- going maintenance of landscaping and irrigation
private and within public right- of- way) of slopes, parkways, open space and park

areas as illustrated on approved landscape and irrigation plans ( Exhibit A). This

Exhibit A shall be included in the CC& Rs. All landscaping shall be well
maintained in a healthy growing condition at all times in substantially the same
condition as approved in accordance with the approved landscape and irrigation

plans. Sprinkler heads shall be adjusted so as to prevent overspray upon the
public sidewalk or the street. The proposed sprinkler heads shall be installed

behind the sidewalk, and the irrigation mainline upon private property only, as

required by the City. The HOA or, its successors or assigns, shall remove and
relocate all irrigation items from the public right- of-way at no cost to the City, and
within a reasonable time frame upon a written notification by the City Engineer. 
An Encroachment, Maintenance, and Removal Agreement shall be signed and

recorded prior to recordation of the final map or building permitting. The City will
provide the template for the agreement. 

g. Immediate removal of graffiti and any other type of offensive debris is required. 

h. All garage doors shall be automatic roll -up type doors and equipped with remote
control devices. 

i. All garages shall be available for required off- street parking ( 18 foot wide by 19
foot deep interior clear space) at all times. 

j. No parking is permitted within the private street, pedestrian pathways, or

designated fire lane area at any time. Parking on- site is only permitted within
designated parking spaces and within the dwelling units' garages. 

k. Maintain the drainage facilities and any access easements ( where they occur) on
the property. 

I. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light

downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

m. The property shall comply with all performance standards relating to the
generation of noise, glare, dust, and odor. 

n. If any fire hydrant is taken " OUT OF SERVICE," Heartland Fire & Rescue shall

be notified immediately and the hydrant marked, bagged, or otherwise identified
as " OUT OF SERVICE" as directed by the Fire Marshal. 

o. Designated fire apparatus streets and turn- arounds shall be maintained

accessible and usable by emergency vehicles. Usable conditions include but are
not limited to the following: 

An all- weather road surface shall be maintained. 

Road shall support imposed loads of fire apparatus at 75, 000 pounds. 

31- 



Attachment D

iii. No parking -fire lane signs shall be repaired or replaced as needed. 

iv. Fire lanes shall remain free at all times of any obstruction including but
not limited to: vehicles, storage, debris, etc. 

V. Fire lane or hammerhead turn -around shall maintain an unobstructed
width of 20 feet and a minimum 13' 6" vertical clearance. 

p. Trees shall not grow within five feet of any proposed chimneys. 

q. Safety features including fire sprinklers, ignition resistant construction, smoke
and carbon monoxide detectors and fire resistive landscaping shall be

maintained in accordance with California Fire Code, California Building Code, 
California Vehicle Code ( fire lanes), City Municipal Code and any other
applicable codes. 

r. All trash and recycling receptacles are required to be within the individual
residences of the proposed planned development at all times, except that one

recycling container and one refuse container per dwelling unit is permitted
directly outside of the individual dwelling unit' s garage within ten hours of the
trash pick- up times specified by EDCO waste and recycling company. 

s. Rooftop mechanical equipment, including but not limited to heating, air

conditioning and ventilating equipment, shall be screened so that it may not be
seen from the level of adjacent streets and sidewalks. 

t. The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates, or walls is

prohibited. 

u. Ongoing maintenance of the onsite private sewer is required. 

v. The CC& Rs shall clearly establish the responsibilities of the individual home
owners and the HOA with regard to the continuing maintenance and preservation
of the project. 

w. The CC& Rs shall specifically limit the number of dwelling units to twenty- two ( 22) 
on the site. 

x. The CC& Rs shall give the City the right but not the duty to enter the premises to
do maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to
maintain said facilities, and shall forbid amendments to the CC& Rs without

express written consent of the City. 

y. Common open space areas shall be well maintained at all times ( e. g., bike racks, 

barbeques, tables, landscape, signage, and public art features). 

z. Street trees along the roadway shall not obstruct the ability of fire apparatus
access and fire department aerial operations. Tree height and type should be
considered in the ultimate landscape design. 

G The terms and conditions of the Tentative Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0003 and the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal

corporations, public agencies, and districts. 

H, This Tentative Subdivision Map approval expires on April 19, 2018 or such longer period
as may be extended by State Law or through time extensions approved by the
Development Services Director or City Council. A Final Map must be recorded within

ON



Attachment D

two ( 2) years ( excluding extensions granted by State Law) from the date of approval
unless time extension is granted. 

The subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the City and any
agency thereof, and/ or any of its officers, employees, and agents from any and all
claims, actions, or proceedings against the City, or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul, 
an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, advisory agency, 
appeal board, or legislative body, including actions approved by the voters of the City, 
concerning the project. City shall promptly notify the applicant/ subdivider of any claim, 
action, or proceeding brought within this time period, and City shall further cooperate
fully. 

No



Attachment E

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP -150- 0003 AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A

TWENTY- TWO UNIT PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ON A 2. 064 ACRE UNDEVELOPED SITE
AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF PALM STREET AND CAMINO DE LAS PALMAS, 
LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA. 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Chris Dahrling, Vista Azul, LLC, filed a complete application
for a Planned Development Permit ( PDP -150- 0003) and a Tentative Subdivision Map ( TM0062) 
on February 10, 2016 to authorize the subdivision of 2. 064 acres of land into 25 parcels, 
including 22 residential lots, a lot for a private street, a lot for common parking, and a lot for
common open space, and construction of 22 dwelling units, as part of a request for approval of
a General Plan Amendment ( GPA - 150- 0003) and a Zoning Amendment ( ZA1- 500- 0004) to
amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density

Residential and to amend the Zoning District from Residential Low and Residential Low/ Medium
to Residential Medium; and

WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact will be

filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project by the City Council. 
The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no
significant effect on the environment because identified potentially significant impacts
associated with Cultural Resources, Hydrology & Water Quality, and Noise will be mitigated to
below a level of significance. A notice of intent to adopt a mitigated negative declaration was

filed with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following Planned Development
Permit findings of fact, as required by Section 17. 28. 030( C), can be made as follows: 

1. That the development is not detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, or general
welfare. 

a. The City Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will be
made to comply with all of the applicable requirements of the City Zoning Ordinance
relating to public safety and no such detriment should occur. 

2. That the development complies with applicable provision of the Zoning Ordinance ( Title
17) and/ or deviations that comply with applicable provisions in subsection D of the
Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28. 030). 

a. The City Council finds that the proposed project complies with, or conditions have
been included for this project to require it comply with the Zoning Ordinance
requirements relating to off-street parking, screening, and landscaping and waivers
or modifications to the minimum lot area, width, and depth, setbacks, usable open

space, and landscape requirements are offset by the provision of enhanced
pedestrian and bicycle improvements and recreational/ outdoor amenities. 

3. That the development is consistent with general plan policies and standards and other

applicable plans or policies adopted by the City Council. 

M



Attachment E

a. The City Council finds that the Planned Development is consistent with the General
Plan policies and standards because the project includes a General Plan

Amendment to Residential Medium which allows the residential development at the
form and scale proposed; and

4. That the development density or intensity does not exceed general plan limitations
a. The City Council finds that the Planned Development is consistent with the Lemon

Grove General Plan because it proposes 22 dwelling units at a density of 12. 5
dwelling units per acre on a 1. 757 net acre parcel of land in the Medium Density
Residential land use designation of the Lemon Grove General Plan which allows a

residential development with a maximum of 14 dwelling units per net acre; and
5. That the existing infrastructure such as utilities, transportation systems, and

communications networks adequately serve the development or will be upgraded to
efficiently accommodate the additional burdens imposed. 

a. The City council finds that appropriate public services ( e. g., sewer, water, gas, and

electricity) exist to the subject property and that improvements proposed for the
project allow for safe circulation of pedestrian, bicyclists, and motor vehicles and

improve the general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following deviations as permitted
by the Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28. 030D) are adequately offset by
equivalent benefits associated with enhanced pedestrian, landscape, bicycle, and public art
improvements and recreational/ outdoor amenities: 

1. A deviation of Section 16. 16. 291A ( Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the

reduction of the minimum building envelope ( minimum 28' wide by 50' deep is required, 
25- 11" wide by 35'- 6" is provided); and

2. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D3 ( Minimum Yards) to allow reduced setbacks

minimum 25' front, 3' side, and 20' rear is required, minimum 3' front, 0' side, 5' rear is
provided); and

3. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D1 ( Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size

minimum 6, 000 sq. ft. required, minimum 1, 367 sq. ft. provided); and

4. A deviation of 17. 16. 030D2 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot

dimensions ( minimum 60' wide by 90' deep required, minimum 25' wide by 45' deep
provided); and

5. Deviations of Section 16. 12. 220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street, 
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows: 

a. Minimum 56' wide public street right- of-way required; 29. 5' private street lot width
provided; and

b. Minimum 5' landscaped parkways required; no landscaped parkways provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

6. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D5 ( Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced

open space ( 12, 000 common usable open space required, 2, 268 sq. ft. provided); and

7. A deviation of Section 17. 16030D4a ( Maximum Building Height) to allow increase in
building height ( maximum 25' allowed, maximum 33'- 8" provided); and

M



Attachment E

8. A deviation of Section 16. 12. 230E to allow reduced street entrance separation ( 200' 

required, 190' provided); and

9. A deviation of Section 16. 12. 2201 to exceed the maximum depth to width lot ratio ( 3: 1

maximum required, 5. 2: 1 provided); and

10. A deviation of Section 17. 24. 010F to allow a reduced parking aisle ( 24' required, 22. 5' 
provided); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Tentative Subdivision Map TM -000- 0062, 
associated with Planned Development Permit ( PDP150- 0003); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council ' of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are

declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Approves the following deviations of Development Standards in accordance with
Section 17. 28. 030D ( Deviations): 

1. A deviation of Section 16. 16. 291A ( Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the

reduction of the minimum building envelope ( minimum 28' wide by 50' deep is required, 
25'- 11" wide by 35'- 6" is provided); and

2. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D3 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced

setbacks ( minimum 25' front, 3' side, and 20' rear is required, minimum 3' front, 0' side, 

5' rear is provided); and

3. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D1 ( Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size

minimum 6, 000 sq. ft. required, minimum 1, 367 sq. ft. provided); and

4. A deviation of 17. 16. 030D2 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot

dimensions ( minimum 60' wide by 90' deep required, minimum 25' wide by 45' deep
provided); and

5. Deviations of Section 16. 220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street, 
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows: 

a. Minimum 56' wide public street right- of-way required; 29. 5' private street lot width
provided; and

b. Minimum 5' landscaped parkways required; no landscaped parkways provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
on parallel space; and

6. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 030D5 ( Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced

open space ( 12, 000 common usable open space required, 2, 268 sq. ft. provided); and

7. A deviation of Section 17. 16030D4a ( Maximum Building Height) to allow increase in
building height ( maximum 25' allowed, maximum 33'- 8" provided); and

8. A deviation of Section 16. 12. 230E to allow reduced street entrance separation ( 200' 

required, 190' provided); and

9. A deviation of Section 16. 12. 2201 to exceed the maximum depth to width lot ratio ( 3: 1

maximum required, 5. 2: 1 provided); and

10. A deviation of Section 17. 24. 010F to allow a reduced parking aisle ( 24' required, 22. 5' 
provided); and

M



Attachment E

SECTION 3. Conditionally approves Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0003 in conjunction
with Tentative Map TM -000- 0062 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans dated
received February 10, 2016 ( incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A), except as noted

herein. This approval authorizes the development of a 2. 064 acre parcel into 22 dwelling units
with associated common area improvements and a private street on an undeveloped site at the

southwest corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, Lemon Grove, California ( APN No. 

503- 252- 42- 00). Except as amended, the approval of this project shall be subject to the

following conditions: 

A. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP - 150- 0003: 

All physical elements shown on the approved plans shall be located substantially where
they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance with the Municipal Code. The

Development Services Director has the authority to allow modifications to the approved
plans when the modifications are found to be in substantial conformance ( minor

deviations in colors, roof and siding material acceptable) and in compliance with the
Municipal Code and General Plan. 

2. Pay parkland fees, school fees, Helix Water District Capacity fees, Regional

Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( RTCIP) fees, sewer connection fees, 

and other applicable development fees. 

3. Record the Final Map for TM -000- 0062 unless otherwise determined by the
Development Services Director. 

4. A two -car garage is required for each single- family residence with appropriate access. 

5. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two -car garages. 

6. All garage doors shall be equipped with an automatic roll -up garage door and remote
control. 

7. Show the location, height, and materials of all fencing. 
8. Submit a landscape documentation package for landscape on- site and within the public

right- of- way. The documentation package shall include a detailed landscape and

irrigation plan for the entire project. Provide reference sheets for the grading and
landscape erosion control plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements

including but not limited to the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, 
walkways, botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and

location of all plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back-flow devices; and
soil amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section
17. 24. 050( B) and Chapter 18. 44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be in

substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan. 

9. The building plans for the proposed residential units shall include a color and materials
board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

10. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

11. Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. 

12. Each dwelling unit in the development shall be protected with an approved automatic fire
suppression sprinkler system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

38- 



Attachment E

13. The private driveway is to be designated as a Fire Lane. Fire lanes ( 20 -foot clear with

no parking) and fire lane markings shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Lemon
Grove Fire Department along the private vehicular driveway within the project. The fire

lane will be designated per City Fire Department standards and shall be marked and
posted " No Parking -Fire Lane" and the curb shall be painted red to the satisfaction of the
City of Lemon Grove Fire District. A final inspection by the Fire Department shall be
required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to the construction with

combustible materials and final occupancy. 

14. All access roadways and driveways shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance of 13'- 
6" to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

15. Install only high efficiency appliances, use only high -efficiency watering technologies, 
and landscape using low -water -use plants as follows: 

a. Install the following indoor fixtures: 

i. High -efficiency toilets ( 1. 28 gallons or less per flush); 

ii. High -efficiency dishwashers ( Energy Star, WaterSense or equivalent); 

iii. High -efficiency clothes washers ( 3. 7 water factor or lower); and

iv. Low -flow shower heads ( 2. 0 gallons per minute or less). 

b. Install dedicated meters for common area outdoor water use. Enroll all new irrigation

meters ( except those at single- family residences) in the Helix Water Budget Program
and provide documentation of irrigated landscape area at the time of meter

purchase. 

c. Install automatic irrigation controllers with a rain sensor that utilize either

evapotranspiration ( weather - based) or soil moisture data and install high -efficiency, 
matched -precipitation rate sprinkler nozzles at all residential landscapes and

common areas. 

16. The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California Building Code. 

B. PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION

AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP -150- 0003: 

1. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved building, landscape, and
related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes to the satisfaction
of the Development Services Director. 

2. The color palette shall be consistent with the conceptual drawing on the approved plans
dated February 10, 2016 and the color and materials board to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director. 

3. Schedule a Helix Water District inspection for compliance with water efficiency
requirements. 

4. E -file FAA Form 7460- 2 to the Federal Aviation Administration, Notice of Actual

Construction or Alteration within five days after the construction reaches its greatest

height. 

C, UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE WITH TENTATIVE MAP REVISION: 

1. Comply with all of the Conditions of this resolution and the requirements of Tentative

39- 



Attachment E

Map TM -000- 0062, as applicable. 

2. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement, 

building, landscape, and related plans shall be maintained and located substantially
where they are in accordance with appropriate City Codes. 

3. The City approved CC& Rs shall be abided by at all times. 

4. All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all times. The
landscaping located on the subject property shall be maintained in a healthy and
growing condition at all times. All on- site & off- site landscaped areas shall be planted

and irrigated by a permanent irrigation system. 

5. The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the California Fire Code
to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

6. All screening fences/ walls and retaining and sound walls on the subject property shall be
maintained in good condition at all times. 

7. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

8. All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely matches the color of
the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the discovery of the graffiti. 

9. Provide water -use efficiency data upon request to the Helix Water District for six years
following installation/ development. 

10. Any deviations proposed from the approved plans relating to the construction of facilities
and maintenance of improvements shall substantially conform to the approved plans
dated February 10, 2016 to the satisfaction of the Development Services Department. 

D, This approval of this Planned Development Permit will expire two ( 2) years from the date

of approval or such longer period as may be extended by State Law ( the Planned
Development Permit will be extended automatically with any extensions required of
Tentative Map TM -000- 0062 in accordance with State Law). 

E, The terms and conditions of the Planned Development Permit shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to this Planned Development Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public

agencies, and districts. 

40- 



Attachment F

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND16- 02

Project Title: PDP -150- 0003, TMO- 000- 0062, GPA -150- 0003, ZA1- 500- 004

2. Lead Agency Name and Address: City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

3. Contact Person and Phone Number: David De Vries, Development Services

Director

619) 825- 3812

4. Project Location: Southwest corner of Camino De Las Palmas and Palm Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Assessor' s Parcel Number: 503- 252- 42- 00

5. Project Sponsor' s Name and Address: Christopher Dahrling, Vista Azul LLC, 8109
Santaluz Village Green South, San Diego, CA 92127

6., General Plan Designation: The subject property is located in the Transportation Land
Use Designation in the Community Development Element of the General Plan. It is also
located within the Special Treatment Area ( STA) VII, Palm Street/ SR- 125 Planning Area. 

7. Zoning: The subject property is located in the Residential Low ( RL) and Residential
Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) zones. It is also located within the Special Treatment Area ( STA) 

VII, Palm Street/ SR- 125 Planning Area. 

8. Description of the Project: The project site is former Caltrans right- of-way from
the State Route ( SR) 125. The proposed project is a request to amend the General Plan

Land Use Designation from Transportation to Medium Density Residential; to amend the
Zoning District from Residential Low ( RL) and Residential Low -Medium ( RLM) to

Residential Medium ( RM); a Tentative Subdivision Map to authorize a 25 -lot subdivision
on an 89, 908 square foot ( 2. 064 gross acre) parcel, including 22 residential lots, one
private street lot ( 0. 310 acres), and two common area lots; and a Planned Development

Permit. Total net area excluding the private street is 1. 754 acres. The maximum density
for the Medium Residential land use designation is 14 dwelling units per acre, or a
maximum of 24 dwelling units for this 1. 754 net acre site. The project proposes a total of
22 dwelling units, including six single- family units and eight twin -homes, and common
open space with a play structure and benches. The proposed private street would take
access from the cul- de- sac portion of Palm Street at two locations. Required guest

parking will be provided by on -street parallel parking and a common parking area. 
Private street improvements include sidewalks on both sides of the street, rolled curb

and gutter, and decorative street lights. A detention basin is proposed at the southeast

corner of the site. A total of 13, 620 cubic yard of grading is proposed, including 3, 850
cubic yards of fill and 9, 770 cubic yards of export. Proposed landscaping includes street
trees on Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas; landscaping on the project' s

M



perimeter slope areas, and internal landscaping on all private

Home Owners Association areas. A public art feature with enhanced landscaping is
proposed on the corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. 

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The project site is in a developed urban

residential area. It is a roughly triangular shaped undeveloped lot located on the
southwest corner of the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, west of
State Route 125 ( SR -125). Properties to the south and north are developed with single- 

family residences; property to the east is vacant Caltrans right- of-way; and property
southwest of the site is a school ( Liberty Charter High School). 

10. Other public agencies whose approval is required ( e. g. permits, financing
approval, or participation agreement): None known. 

EN



Attachment F

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

DETERMINATION: ( To be completed by the Lead Agency) 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the

environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

XX I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the

environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the

project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED

NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and an

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a " potential significant impact" or " potentially

significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but a least one effect ( 1) has

been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, 
and ( 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as
described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, 

but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addresses. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the

environment, because all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed in and
earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards and ( b) have

been avoided or mitigated to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including
revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing
further is required. 

l _ - David De Vries. Development Services Director, Cit of Lemon Grove March 23. 2016
Printed Name Date

43- 



EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact" answers that are

adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses
following each question. A " No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the
referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects
like the one involved ( e. g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A " No Impact" 

answer should be explained where it is based on the project -specific factors as well as

general standards ( e. g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, 
based on a project. 

2, All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off- site as well as
on- site, cumulative as well as project level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as

well as operational impacts. 

Once the lead agency has determined that a particularly physical impact may occur, 
then the checklist answers must indicated whether the impact is potentially significant, 
less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially Significant
Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If

there are one or more " Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is
made, an EIR is required. 

4, " Negative Declaration: Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated" applies

where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from " Potentially
Significant Impact" to a " Less Significant Impact". The lead agency must describe the
mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than
significant level ( mitigation measures from Section 17, " Earlier Analysis," may be cross- 
referenced). 

5, Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR or other CEQA
process, and effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative
declaration. Section 15063 ( c) ( 3) ( d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the
following: 
a. Earlier Analysis used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 
b. Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were

within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to

applicable legal standards, and state whether such effect were addressed by
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis. 

C. Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less than Significant with Mitigation

Measures Incorporated" describe the mitigation measures which were

incorporated or refined from the earlier document and extent to which they
address site- specific conditions for the project. 

6, Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information

sources for potential impacts ( e. g. general plans, zoning ordinances, etc.). Reference

to a previously prepared or outside document should where appropriate, include a

reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated. 

7 Supporting Information Sources: a source list should be attached and other sources use
d or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

44



Attachment F

8, This is only a suggested form and lead agencies are free to use different formats: 
however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that
relevant to the project' s environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9. The analysis of each issue should identify: ( a) the significance criteria or threshold used

to evaluate each question; and ( b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the
impact to less than significance. 

ISSUES AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1. AESTHETICS. Would the Project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to trees, rock

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic? 

C) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its
surroundings? 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The site is located in a developed urbanized area. The subject property is not located in or near
a scenic vista or scenic highway. It is undeveloped and previously graded, with a few shrubs on
a portion of the south property line that will be removed. Landscaping is proposed on the
project' s perimeter slope areas, and internal landscaping will be provided on all private
Home Owners Association areas. A public art feature with enhanced landscaping is proposed
on the corner of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas. The project will be required to comply

with the City' s landscape requirements. The two existing overhead utility distribution lines are
required to be placed undergrounded prior to approval of the final map. The project proposes
construction of 22 two- and three -stories residences, which, since the site is currently vacant, 
will change the look of the property. Night time lighting of new residences may occur as a result
of this project. Glare onto adjacent public -rights -of -ways is required to be reduced to a level of
no impacts. Aesthetic impacts are expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 3, 10

2. AGRICULTURE RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts to agricultural

resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model ( 1997) prepared by the
California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts
on agriculture and farmland. Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance

Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and

Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency to non- agricultural use? 
b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 
C) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land ( as defined in Public

Resources Code section 12220( g)), timberland ( as defined by Public Resources Code

45- 



section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production ( as defined by Government
Code section 51104( g))? 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non -forest use? 
C) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, 

could result in conversion of Farmland to non- agricultural use? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is located within a developed urban residential area. The property is not located in
an area used for agricultural purposes and no such impacts will occur. 

Source: 1, 2

3. AIR QUALITY: Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable
air quality management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the
following determinations. Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 
b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air

quality violation? 
C) Results in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the

project region is non -attainment under any applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard ( including releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone
precursors? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 
e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project may result in a slight increase in traffic and no significant impact on air resources is
likely to occur. While the proposed project may result in a slight increase in vehicular traffic and
a slight increase in air quality impacts to the region, the Master Environmental Impact Report
MEIR) for the City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan anticipates air quality impacts associated

with the build out of Lemon Grove but not to a level of significance. The cumulative air quality
impacts will remain significant and unmitigated. However, this project is not considered to result

in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Standard conditions of
project approval will require the control of dust during site grading and construction. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect either directly or through habitat modifications on any
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional

plans, policies or regulations, or by the California Department of fish and Game or U. S. 
Fish and Wildlife service? 

46- 



Attachment F

b) Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plan, policies, regulations or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or U. S. Wildlife service? 

C) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section
404 of the Clean Water Act ( including but not limited to march vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident, migratory wildlife species or
with established native resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native
wildlife nursery sites? 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a
tree preservation policy or ordinance? 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural

Conservation Community Plan and other approved local, regional, or state habitat

conservation plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The subject is located in a developed urban area with surrounding single- family residential and
school land uses. This site is a former Caltrans right- of-way and the entire site was previously
graded as part of construction of SR -125. The MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan
confirms there are no known sensitive biological resources, riparian habitat, or wetlands on the

subject property. No impact is expected. 
Source: 1, 2

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as

defined in Section 15064. 5? 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource

pursuant to Section 15064. 5? 

C) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature? 

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The subject property is currently vacant. There are no known cultural resources located on the
property. There are no known human remains or those interred outside of formal cemeteries on
the subject property or in the surrounding area. Two prehistoric sites were recorded by Caltrans
within STA VII during the evaluation of the " Area of Potential Effect" for the proposed SR -125. 
Neither site was determined to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic

Places. The presence of prehistoric resources within a portion of this STA indicates there may

be the potential for additional resources. In addition, the site is underlain by Tertiary ( Eocene) - 
age sedimentary bedrock, belonging to the Mission Valley formation, which has a medium to



high potential to contain paleontologic resources. This formation typically contains a rich middle
Eocene molluscan fauna. The geotechnical investigation prepared for this project determined

that grading and trenching of the project site is expected to impact the Mission Valley formation. 
In order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontologic and archaeological
resources the following conditions will be included in the project approval requiring: 1) The

project proponent shall conduct a cultural resources records search and a Sacred Lands File

search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for on- site Native American cultural

resources. A copy of a letter regarding the records search shall be provided to the Development
Services Department prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. The report shall
provide recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be

implemented as a part of the mitigation measures. 2) A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, 

and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the
pre -grading meeting to consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified

paleontologist is defined as an individual with a Bachelor' s or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures. 3) A qualified

paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource
knowledge shall be present at all times during the original cutting of previously undisturbed
sediments of the Mission Valley Formation. These monitors shall inspect an excavation which
exposes sediments of the Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as

they are uncovered. 4) The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native
American with cultural resource knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
grading to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains. 5) The paleontologist, archaeologist, 

and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource knowledge shall document the
stratigraphic and geologic context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains. 6) The paleontologist, 

archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with cultural resource knowledge shall
clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and artifacts for eventual donation. 7) Prior to final

inspection a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of the mitigation program and
submitted to the City of Lemon Grove Development Services Director. This report will include a
discussion of methods employed, fossils and artifacts recovered, geologic context of fossil and
artifact remains and the significance of the mitigation program. 8) Donate all curated fossil and

artifact specimens to an institution with a proven history of professional, long term care and
storage of paleontological and archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History
Museum. With implementation of the mitigation measures specified above, potential impacts to
cultural resources would be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 5, 10

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project: 
a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of

loss, injury or death involving: ( i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on

the most recent Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State
Geologist for the area based on the other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer

to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. ( ii) Strong seismic ground
shaking? ( iii) Seismic - related ground failure, including liquefaction? ( iv) Landslides? 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

C) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a

result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off- site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

d) Locate on the expansive soil, as defined in Table 18- 1- b of the Uniform Building Code
1997), creating substantial risks to life or property? 

48- 



Attachment F

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative
waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste

water? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

New structures on the subject property will be required to comply with the current seismic
requirements of the California Building Code. Like most urban areas in Southern California, 
Lemon Grove is subject to earthquakes. The project site is not located in an Earthquake Fault

Zone according to the Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act and no active faults or ground
ruptures have been mapped underlying the site or within the City of Lemon Grove. Active
regional faults may cause ground shaking in Lemon Grove. 

There are no known unstable soils in the area of the subject property. According to the
Geotechnical Evaluation, the site appears to be underlain with Eocene -age sedimentary

bedrock, consisting of interbedded sandstone and claystone belonging to the Mission Valley
Formation. Thin, surficial deposits of colluvium and undocumented fill overlie bedrock locally, 
within the southern and southwestern portions of the site. Due to the relatively compressible
nature of undocumented fill, colluvium, and weathered bedrock, these materials are considered

unsuitable for the support of the settlement -sensitive improvements ( i. e., residential foundations, 
concrete slab -on -grade floors, site walls, exterior hardscape, etc.) and/ or engineered fill in their

existing state. As such, the Geotechnical Evaluation recommends that these materials be
removed ( removal depths are estimated at two to seven feet, with variation), moisture

conditioned, and recompacted prior to foundation and improvements. 

According to the Geotechnical Evaluation, site soils are considered erosive. Thus, properly
designed site drainage is necessary in reducing erosion damage to the planned improvements. 
Typical erosion control measures will be required during site grading. 

The subject project will be required to be connected to the Lemon Grove municipal sewer
system. 

Incorporation of the recommendations presented in the Geotechnical Evaluation into the design

and construction considerations of the project would reduce the mitigation to below a level of
significance. 

Source: 1, 2, 5, 10

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment? 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing
the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

Potentially Significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

49



Discussion: 

The City of Lemon Grove is located within the San Diego County Air Basin. The six greenhouse
gases are carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and

sulfur hexafluoride. The project will not generate significant GHG emissions. During grading
and project construction, a temporary increase in operational emissions may occur. Operational
emissions include mobile source emissions and building emissions. The San Diego Air
Pollution Control District Rule 55 requires compliance with standard fugitive dust control best

management practices which will be required as a part of normal practices. The impact is

expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 3, 10

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine

transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials? 
b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous
materials into the environment? 

C) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one- quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites complied
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962. 5 and , as a result would it create a

significant hazard to the public or the environment? 
e) For a project located within an airport land use plan, or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result

in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the area? 
f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip would the project result in a safety

hazard for people resident or working in the project area? 
g) Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response

plan or emergency evacuation plan? 
h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland

fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas, or where residences
are intermixed with wildlands? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The site is to be developed as a residential project and will not create a hazardous environment
through the use or transport of hazardous materials. There are no known hazardous material

sites within the City. 

The site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport or
public use airport and no such detriment should occur. 

The proposed project will not impair implementation of or physically interfere with any
emergency response plan or evacuation plan because the project design and access has been
reviewed and approved by the Fire Department. 

IIS



Attachment F

The project is located within an urbanized area and there are no wildlands located within the

vicinity of the subject property. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 
b) Substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater

recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the
groundwater table level (( e. g. the production rate of pre- existing nearby wells would drop
to a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits
have been granted)? 

C) Substantially alter existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would resulting a
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate of surface

runoff in a manner which would resulting flooding on- or off-site. 
e) Create or contribute runoff which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned

stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted

runoff? 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 
g) Place housing within a 100 -year floodplain on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or

Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 
h) Place within a 100 -year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect

flood flows? 

i) Expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project does not substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge. Low impact design, including permeable pavers in driveways and a
detention basin will be used to minimize new stormwater created from this project by proposed
impervious roof surfaces. According to the Hydrology Report prepared for this project, under
conditions proposed by the project, the increase in flow is not anticipated to have significant
impacts on the downstream storm drain facilities. The design of the project has been reviewed

by the City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department in order to assess the need for drainage
improvements, which have been included into the design of the project. The subject property is
not located within a flood zone and is not subject to flooding. 

The Major Stormwater Management Plan ( Major SWMP) concluded that the project does not

pose an " exceptional threat to water quality" and is not required to use Advanced Treatment
BMPs. The Hydromodification Plan prepared for this project determined that the post - 

construction hydrologic characteristics of the project simulate the pre -development hydrologic

characteristics at the point of compliance, and the project is not required to manage

M



Hydromodification impacts. The Major SWMP determined that it is a " priority development
project" and requires a standard urban storm water mitigation plan ( SUSMP). Standard best

management practices will be adhered to. 

Drainage patterns will be altered as a result of the project, but not to a level of significance, and

the project to be designed and constructed consistent with the conceptual grading plan and
drainage study. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10

10. LAND USE PLANNING. Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community? 
b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agency with jurisdiction

over the project ( including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating
environmental effect? 

C) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural communities' 

conservation plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is proposed to be constructed on an existing parcel and will not divide the
community. The surrounding land uses include single- family residential across Palm Street to
the north and across Palm Street ( cul- de- sac) to the south of the site, vacant property and SR - 
125 to the east, and a high school to the southwest of the site, with driveway access off the
Palm Street cul- de- sac. The existing General Plan designation for this property is

Transportation, which provides for rights- of-way for transportation facilities. This site was

formerly Caltrans right- of-way which was sold after completion of SR -125. The proposed project
includes a General Plan Amendment to redesignate the site from Transportation to Medium

Density Residential. The General Plan acknowledged that a future general plan amendment
would be required after Caltrans sold excess right- of-way subsequent to construction of SR -125, 
and anticipated the same designation as the designation of adjacent properties. The project

proposes a residential land use designation of Residential Medium ( up to 14 du/ ac). The

residential properties directly across Palm Street to the south of the project are designated
Residential Low -Medium ( up to 7 du/ ac). The properties across Palm Street have a

Transportation land use designation and Residential Low designation ( up to 4 du/ ac). The

project is adjacent to a school, within a quarter mile of a bus stop and is adjacent to a high
trafficked collector street; factors which are more conducive to higher density residential
development. The project is designed to provide detached single-family residences along Palm
Street cul- de- sac across from the existing single- family residences to the south, and three
additional detached single-family residences at the northwest end of the project site across from
the single-family residences on the north side of Palm Street. The remaining 16 dwelling units
are composed of eight twin -homes, which are located along the remainder of Palm Street, along
Camino De Las Palmas, and in the center of the site. Impact is expected to be less than
significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 10

NO



Attachment F

11. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the
region and the residents of the state? 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally -important mineral resource recovery site
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

There are no known mineral resources of value located within the City of Lemon Grove. No
impact to mineral resources is expected. 

Source: 1, 2, 5

12. NOISE. Would the project: 

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in the
local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

b) Expose persons to or generate excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise
levels? 

C) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity

above levels existing without the project? 
d) Result in a substantially temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the

project vicinity above levels existing without the project? 
e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public use airport, would the project expose people

residing or working in the area to excessive noise levels? 
f) For a project within vicinity of a private airstrip would the project expose people residing

or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

Potentially significant Impact
X Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project which is single- family residential in nature will not introduce significant
noise sources in the vicinity that are inconsistent with the existing residential development of the
area. State Route 125 and Palm Street are the primary noise sources within close proximity of
the project. Figure N- 2 ( 2015 Noise Contours) in the General Plan indicates that the subject

property is located within an area of 70 dB CNEL or less noise levels. The MEIR for the General
Plan states that projects with existing noise levels below 60 dB CNEL are normally acceptable
or satisfactory for the area and no conditions are required, but that noise studies are required for
projects exceeding 60 dB CNEL. A noise study was conducted for this project. It shows that
predicted exterior noise levels at the proposed building fagades and outdoor of the units
adjacent to Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas would be between 64 and 68 dB CNEL. 

Proposed lots 1 through 7, which are adjacent to Camino De Las Palmas and directly parallel to
Sr -125, Lot B, which is the open/ recreation space, and Lots 8 and 9, which are on Palm Street
just west of the intersection of Palm Street and Camino De Las Palmas, all exceed the

maximum 65 dB CNEL. As a mitigation measure, a six- foot sound wall will be constructed

we



adjacent to these lots. The noise study showed that a " windows open" condition will not provide
adequate interior noise mitigations at all units. Therefore, a " closed window" condition is

required for all units above 60 dBA CNEL to reduce interior noise levels to comply with CCR
Title 24 and the City of Lemon Grove requirements. The " windows closed" condition requires
that mechanical ventilation be installed to move air within the structure. As a mitigation

measure, the noise study determined that a Sound Transmission Class ( STC) rating of 31 will
be needed for the glass assemblies ( windows, fixed windows, and glass doors) of the perimeter

units having direct line of sight to SR 125 to reduce the interior noise levels below 45 dBA
CNEL. The remainder of the proposed units will have noise levels that are 5 dBA CNEL lower
and STC ratings of 28 for those glass assemblies would reduce the noise levels below the 45
dBA CNEL threshold. Conformance with the City' s Noise Abatement and Control ordinance
Chapter 9. 24 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code) is required for operation of any single or

combination of powered construction equipment at any construction site. With implementation of
the mitigation measures specified above, potential noise impacts would be less than significant. 

The subject property is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. 
Source: 1, 2, 9, 10

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly ( for example, by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly ( for example, through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)? 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing units elsewhere? 

C) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is considered in a minor increase in potential population that will not induce
substantial population growth. The site is undeveloped and the project does not displace

existing housing units or numbers of people. The population and housing impact would be less
than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 8

14. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts

associated with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for
new or physically altered government facilities, and the construction which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, 

response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 
a) Fire protection? 

b) Police protection? 

C) Schools? 

d) Parks? 

e Other public facilities? 

Potentially significant Impact

54- 



Attachment F

Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in the demand for public services
and facilities. The Fire Department, San Diego Gas & Electric, EDCO disposal service, Helix

Water District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, School Districts, and the Sheriff' s

Department have reviewed the proposed project and determined that existing services are

adequate to serve the increase in households proposed by the project. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

15. RECREATION. Would the project: 

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would
occur or be accelerated? 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of

recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not likely cause a significant increase in the demand on recreational
services in the community. Standard conditions of approval require the developer to pay a
Parkland dedication in lieu fee for each proposed dwelling unit. In addition, the project proposes
an on- site common open space with play equipment and seating areas. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

16. TRANSPORTATION/ TRAFFIC. Would the project: 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of

effectiveness for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all

modes of transportation including mass transit and non -motorized travel and relevant
components of the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, streets, 
highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to
level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established

by the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways? 
C) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a

change in location that result in substantial safety risks? 
d) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature ( e. g. sharp curves or dangerous

intersection) or incompatible uses ( e. g. farm equipment)? 
e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 
f) Conflict with adopted policies plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or

pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

HE



No Impact

Discussion: 

The Trip Generation Analysis that was prepared for this project estimates it would generate
approximately 220 average daily trips ( ADT) per day. Based on the San Diego Traffic

Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) and the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document

SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a Traffic Impact

Study is not required because the project' s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1, 000
ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. Additionally, the Trip Generation Analysis determined
that the ADT and number of peak hour trips generated by the proposed project does not trigger
Caltrans' threshold for a requirement to analyze State highway facilities. 

Approximately 90 percent of the trips generated by the proposed project are expected to be
distributed onto Palm Street/ Troy Street, with approximately 50 percent heading west on Palm
Street into Lemon Grove and 40 percent heading east on Troy Street toward Spring Valley
County of San Diego). Palm Street/ Troy Street is designated as a Class II Collector in the

Mobility Element of the General Plan and is forecasted to carry 9, 000- 10, 000 trips per day. The
addition of approximately 220 vehicle trips is found to not have an impact on adjacent roadway
segments and intersections. 

Project access is proposed from two private driveways on the southerly cul- de- sac segment of
Palm Street. The Fire Department and Engineering Department have determined that access is
adequate for emergency vehicles. The proposed project meets the City' s parking requirements. 
The project as designed complies with standard private street design requirements as it relates
to the travel lanes. A sight distance analysis was provided and indicates there are no potential

sight distance issues that will result from project improvements. The subject property is not
located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. Transportation and traffic impacts
are expected to be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 10

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: 
a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality

Control Board? 

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or

expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant

environmental effects? 

C) Require or result in the construction of new storm drainage facilities or expansion of

existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
effects? 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements
and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment facilities which services or may
serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project' s projected demand in
addition to the provider' s existing commitments? 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project' s
solid waste disposal needs? 

g) Comply with the federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

l



Attachment F

No Impact

Discussion: 

The subject property is served by the City of Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The proposed
project will not result in a substantial increase in the demand for sanitary services. Standard
conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain sewer permits, pay sewer

service and connection fees, and connect to the Sanitation District. 

The existing site is a dirt pad with steep areas sloping down toward the existing streets. A larger
pad will be graded to construct the proposed project which will require retaining walls in various
locations within the project site. The proposed dwelling units will drain onto the proposed
permeable paver driveway ( the private internal street), where the runoff will be conveyed via

curb and gutter on both sides of the street and will enter an on- site storm drain system. The
storm drain will discharge into the proposed on- site detention basin with an outlet structure, 

which is connected via storm drain to the existing curb inlet on the corner of Palm Street and
Camino De Las Palmas where it enters the existing storm drain system. Runoff from the

rooftops will be directed to the landscaped areas before being conveyed onto the permeable
paver driveway. The graded slopes will be planted and irrigated and flat areas will be

landscaped to help reduce runoff from the site. The Major SWMP prepared for this project

determined that it is a " priority development project' and requires a standard urban storm water
mitigation plan ( SUSMP). The project is not within the environmentally sensitive areas as

defined on the maps in Appendix A of the County of San Diego Standard Urban Storm Water
Mitigation Plan for Land Development and Public Improvement Projects. Temporary
construction Best Management Practices ( BMPs) will be implemented during construction of the
project. Standard conditions of approval will require that the project constructs improvements

consistent with City Engineering requirements. 

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in demand for domestic water
supplies. Standard conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain water

service permits, pay the water service and connection fees, and connect to the Helix Water
District. 

The proposed project will not result in a substantial increase in the generation of solid waste. 

The project will be required to comply with all federal, state, and local statutes and regulations
regarding solid waste. Impacts to utilities and service systems are expected to be less than
significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. 

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, 

substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife
population to drop below self- sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal
community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or
animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or

prehistory? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

57- 



Discussion: 

The site was previously disturbed as a part of the State Route - 125 construction. The proposed
project will not degrade the quality of the environment because it is located in an area that is
developed with single- family residential land uses in an urban community. The development of
the site does not support or influence critical habitat or sensitive vegetation or wildlife and there

is no evidence of California history or prehistory on- site. 

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively
considerable? ( Cumulatively Considerable" means that the incremental effects of a

project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of the past projects, 
the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project will result in a slight increase in the number of residents located within an urban
community, but will not have significant impacts that are cumulatively considerable. 

C) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects

on human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not cause a substantial adverse effect on human beings. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

58_ 



Attachment F

In view of the above analysis, it is determined that the project will not have a significant

impact on the environment and an environmental impact report is not required. 

EARLIER ANALYSIS

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, 
one or more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. 
Section 15063 ( c)( 3)( D). 

Earlier Documents prepared and utilized in this analysis are listed below. All of the documents

are available at the City of Lemon Grove, Development Services Department, 3232 Main Street, 
Lemon Grove. 

Reference # Document Title

1. City of Lemon Grove General Plan
2. Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General

Plan

3. City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code
4. Firm Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 06073C1910G

May 16, 2012
5.. Geotechnical Evaluation, by GeoSoils, Inc. ( 10/ 2/ 2015) 

6. Hydrology Report, by Landmark Consulting ( 09/ 23/ 2015) 
7. Major Stormwater Management Plan, prepared by Landmark

Consulting ( 02/ 04/ 2015) 
8. Hydro Modification Plan ( HMP), prepared by Landmark Consulting

09/ 18/ 2015) 

9. Exterior and Interior Noise Evaluation, by LDn Consulting, Inc. 

11/ 10/ 2015) 

10. PDP- 150- 0003/ TMO- 000- 0062/ GPA- 150- 0003/ ZA1- 500- 004

Application Packet

Individuals and Orqanizations Consulted

David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Jeremiah Harrington, Assistant Engineer, City of Lemon Grove
Chris Jensen, Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire and Rescue

Kurt Culver, President and CEO, Esgil

Patricia Bluman, City Place Planning

FA



Attachment G

VICINITY MAP AND AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Vista Azul

I   ° ilk  
laf' d' w, '   

r I

f   

yY/r, i  „  
a „ „ 

wuww"'^ W  

I. 

4 v+ i b r / x 

v, 

v    
v N / i 9" r I/   

v  

b 
Y  i  / iii

mw

i I  
p 

aid " 

r

E , u 6rw i /%arm , f  it

Legend" 

Subbed V° arc @ Iu

Feet

0 50100 200 300

M



Attachment H

TABLE CD, I

011olo T"vol "I

Mlvr"?) pmt Wil w' fo m Poll O m l (AlN'alu pr

wmr Cpm"lpr^ a' l"pr d I' ll Nwm, w r k, 1.' w" mr moCP ide Lms a ac:"° SAN

O' l c! w ate Wup;- iOugmlM4" Id ivoml m ,, j : 1 may cane ^ o iulple- m

r: x, ce, pwbi Nou" r" a " A" wd t - doh mi4

rwm641h aTby slum'  I: mrm .. p e." riiv wr. P p' W6. p ; wgr1; l 

NmewwP iboo l. 

w r * i md. m r p Z, p w 6 m .... ... r.miDralr;rmFxj Ih0,g w .
M"

mr° fir P. Vw 4mm" rAO a mm"w mm' rm h 1 

mi;" mi Pdw ,,. mm I'w bo It 0

P .` w mw P   mgr'I. a lri4mG mz eardrkis, r"or'nm tr. 03oli,m's.. m. a i nl wl' W" t rf 

mi P'' m Wo reia Pil g1a ourmww. mrws hinny
m uw%r wMr; X. 

1, f
Pmwmmy.' uw y 1° I . sus aue, ( 84 Z, e" A""-u,"95l lViwmmac,;' 4,4! owfw hOf& w m au mnuufu o m mmlBili-< Pwummllmaiwwis. w mm m

0"! 4 olrmrw. u. P 1114 rwa` m lwlugimma, am w ay, i1 w , ru<Juimlr w rN w 4Prd

IP' di" lircuN Yv, op x, V s irmC mJPPro a ', 4Ak,, P. v mf

r. rm r, mrlw rm aw. P iw mrAt r ! fe G Iw

Iflaice" imp. tfi, F IP m. CP Vf" A , u o: rTmmh ar od or'nPmw s

rrroe, 1m . 4uroo m,; rrwmp 111 olh Ili Ill the ml4£ m, wmrw.,,;l  
l pfim mw 1

N 11. 4 9 DIJ w u x 4, N ' C i ., mw gl het.![ml ' s, nwNdeww"* frN'w2 s arf

wlm' s& e 000.,oa. r̀ D apair'mmwY' mom"mts,,. TsVPiu;: ". 4ims PwruOa: 114 umom - wPomaml h dIIa

I"!, md0, 1t ai;li 1,' 5mr y' d' e'Hin SII vilt s, c?' fJTDA" ;. Z` 094 , Urdu! 

1n" Vim0 t" @' A0 IPNuR, Y P ",(,, wx° w Pmmm rew m, r vm rr" m . n11lmir w' mw

P* ch aurum comrwilb4 4v h Wa „ igirUm. mmwLrq, 

a ry w fu^ wP

r,M r si a ill momaml' a' a rJ A! ma wr" iuniU. rurI* ewt bmmw n wPm u1W

mr. rAsc ar r,3` r" w" r1" a mr Ukd Ob p r . >... 

r u m' mm 

P f" ll MgNl, 

ami

II 11D hl wmlam . o, mlf U mm" I" In ' mw  m tl mm Pm mm . wm- 
r

m um Wllwp ztilvm PgoilWe m'" av w w p ( 

m1Pm ;' m. m dlm& IYm err Ig" T,( iu" m. mw Mw u d Pmrmw ww m, iif" w

mF

m,'' hg iw cur w,,.

k .. L,
I. mit llg ow krruma

o  lbmm dlu m , m IPdm " mi D rsil& 11 f 0 c wrof W w . 
a ,,.. 

Wm7Pemif Y,.; arvwpwm' m r m b, w, N tP 1 A41 Remi, w. ,, rod wbmPr'& € m; m: m, m° A'JuN iP A IPrm. ww uwmpowr W pm°And m alYrd

@ ww il m ccp bay ru""". Irh"ai, m Pua ir4iiP

Mwm mar i mem" mG.. Pltl'mtl. rm.^ r"d Vi lgm" aN"kpf i. ummi" rllm w" P w r r' ma"' V" mSn tlB

wrJrv% IPpwrwmlm: ! m wr w^; orm 5,!, 1W tt., ' 1" s wnw „ m , w R;" uirw, Il u, W  M.. m'' NY IN"•,  

mm liV" am too nP mwamwaP9" tiv' IPrsi gl' wxz aTle JIw C nojf. mmed
1w ,,,,,.. ,.. m.. W- — ....:.... 

a ^

mwnir 7ASo u

u , mlr a Ai wP m mmwim mPIlk I rw wmw1iwwxmww u' m r'wwm r rgILm4m'° s N.. f w IF; w " r aP a Erd' IP' m mm mm
7t

5m1Y. w hl p mDdi_; u. x." wa and

wm n ki O II[Admwlm& mr mVm1omw. w m4P m wrm IN uwufl wu I! IC w icm Prmuua lu Qusl i
u uw m

M



EN. O'l

it Not Aoma Pw hmr A04 I wn"I We Cewliumary [ 71051cirfpik' n

D 7 1 OlF I f A I mhaue W rarwamwom PM& WAV, WWWWMM? j

wd aMm MUM, rici M- P. ax,o Yrimtv* z,, 

erk"' n, mag" Ilit POP, OWMams ba raMidanics wid tasa','( 
ga wl' 4

M t Ir 44 R Who i F141, 01
7 ........................ . . . 

Vir: kms ar" d Same WIM. wash all
d: 1( tEamre a9ffo" M u0d ,- rl nl4, w jjjpitjts Ji'- 1jr0ilias" a. w . It

vICS LUWf, fin ayj Ay 000NOMMht gUnov) 
S6611A

OW FAR 0 bt FAR CWWmallr!' wad hormwiplin

Wild

W aA S reellc!! a rr! eaay wrd R: vacft-' 
hug humhow — 00d6 mw4dy ( M5 ww a5mcilved
wightpail- wall, 11 AM= covimMis deveMornew

vd, irmi I iq emv: ard ol,-Sz rd s,'9, 

commWem. wd wmmnf ma NOM mow

6! 01,12 V!' p V & dNA: dtrlli: 

Spy ca: W ' T iiea kj-" a Rw qggejmI% , Dnqiij,V% 
Cmanywn VOMV

pillassad slaiiiialpf

IT silllw. gia; vl* 

v ' Oo" Puslairra Cam"MAlarlw mk Haiti al k4i t ,O
q

Vt

mwwmXW 74're
E351AT" m

h m lora mmlBm,, wmd r,pjrjkjjanjijjA al ImPavlawS im •Amelby manc pow Awn luima. asa, Thav mom, of nora. 
wommud IMO qm" ri3O j jjpv" 11111. papd ulIpj % m mm" ap IAM. Mal sm Om emam or NoW, nnw an" yo Wo 4mj
atww

lb, Th* nsmarum OXIMMINY lb Wwwm IVavd of Armowmiun" Ism win amw an mmwav pwzwx
IS ml

ThPOWmAn dmeW, Yvaw n wn mmww a awsQuo" va" bw jw, Q, l Q, ,, I, , jd , A% M, M, N,,,; 

MOTWO WK MAJ11 dalliallmd' or !!, ary Kia prownswins m Samnin 55P 11 ol mo c IkQ" qe cip" apny" I cuig', 
fj V hw@ ' 1110' 1*! 1, 2mIhm tali a wa Y h' ffi : 6%voinp, ( 6"' r 114' jj" Oilipf"' d, 10 " UDWO awl

mx x,,, u in a w

nmmnMmdmve: almm, mwo maipw'. 111i' nIlallaiN w. 1` ldyt w8V)' 

IN" wd " m rMMOO&O, "" M & 0, Ww, m , ij Wmaa p1m I 134 11 h n I I ad ' n g m id 1111 " r, dmil irm, 

Aoih

wanwo Darriq a" Mi WITM W 1 Zram rlmyvmv ar -' aiaw !-' m firsm,% mg, dwoiaAropwrwk

ho mwai Mmmm AMW M& MROYL # I MMI W mumillivollick 01% lah Ulllv xiimalk-, vn Clignaiar., il Vw°u

m



r. 
z
A

Attachment H



Attachment I

VISTA AZUL PROJECT

LETTER TO CITY COUNCIL

FEBRUARY 17, 2016

Our development group, Vista Azul, LLC, has been working closely with the City Staff
over the past year to develop our proposed Vista Azul project located at the intersection
of Palm Street and Camino de las Palmas. Vista Azul is a pedestrian oriented

community clustering a total of 22 homes with beautiful views of Mt. Miguel and the hills
of South Bay. This project will promote resident interaction within the community as
well as resident connectivity outside the community. The combination of single family
detached homes and twin -homes will be designed with front porches, covered stoops, 

patios, balconies and decks. A pleasant and expanded sidewalk will be sweep along
both sides of the internal road connecting the homes along that roadway. In the center

of the neighborhood will be a common area greenspace with benches and tot lot
equipment. Bike racks will be located in the common greenspace as well, 

The community will have broader setbacks from the public streets with enhanced
landscaping. The setbacks will vary to create a more interesting building edge along
the public streets including over thirty street trees and landscaped slope areas. There
will be an elaborate public art feature cascading down the landscaped slope at the
intersection of Palm Street and Camino de las Palmas, In addition, there will be a

public sidewalk that connects the current Palm Street cul de sac to Palm Street along
the western boundary of the Liberty Charter School. 

The homes will have articulated elevations with appropriate and consistent details that

reflect the varied design styles of the elevations on all sides of the homes. These

details include shutters, siding, out -lookers, knee braces and glass balcony guardrails. 

The homes will have three ( 3) different elevation styles including Spanish Revival, 
Craftsman and light Contemporary each with varying materials and five ( 5) distinct color
schemes. The roofs are varied with both flat and barrel tile. The intent is to have our

new community blend into the existing fabric of the surrounding neighborhood yet with a
fresh and updated appeal. 

The building elevations also have varying heights from two stories at 24 feet and three
stories at 33 feet. These heights are in concert with the expanded street setbacks and

are offset from many of the building planes. In addition, the homes have an abundance

of covered front porches, patios, covered and uncovered decks and balconies that

create additional outdoor living space for the homeowners to enjoy. 

To accommodate additional bicycle storage, each home will be equipped with bicycle

racks or hooks in the private two car garages. To keep the neighborhood common area
free from large, unsightly trash dumpsters, all of the trash and recycling bins will have a
storage space within the confines of each garage. 

67-. 



The homes will exceed the minimum green standards with energy efficient materials
such as windows, roof materials and insulation. The heating and air-conditioning units
will be high efficiency meeting or exceeding the Title 24 requirements. High efficiency
plumbing fixtures and fittings, Energy Star appliances and lighting fixtures will be
included as standard features for resource oonservation. 

The landscape is designed with drought tolerant plants and trees with efficient irrigation

system' s, The streetscape will be enhanced along the three ( 3) public streets abutting
the community with a significant number of tree canopies. 

here are a total of five () Equivalent Benefits per Code 17. 28- 030 and four ( 4) 
Additional and Enhanced Benefits included with in our project submittal. Most ofthose

benefits have been articulated in this narrative, A complete list is located on the front
page of the Tentative Map, 

In addition, three ( 3) significant power poles and approximately 400 feet of overhead
electric lines will be undergrounded as a part of the overall project design enhancing the
view for all the residents in this area of the City. 

We look forward to the Vista Azut project being approved by the Lemon Grove City
Council and becoming a beautiful addition to the Palm Street and Camino de las
Palmas neighborhoods. Thank you. 

in erey, 
p. 

Chris Dahrfing ._. 
Fists Azul, LLL - Member

no



Attachment J

EXHIBIT " A" - PROJECT PLANS



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3
Mtg. Date dpL119,, 2016
Dept. - tv0o ,, ment Services De pJrnent

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0002 and
Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0061 to Authorize a 14 -lot Subdivision with 12 Single - 
Family Homes on a 1. 59 -Acre Parcel at 6800 Mallard Street. 

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; and
2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving Tentative Map TM -000- 0061 and certifying

Negative Declaration ND16- 03; and

3) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment C) approving Planned Development Permit

PDP150- 0002. 

Item Summary: 

The proposed project is located at 6800 Mallard Street on a 1. 59 acre vacant lot. The project is

requesting a Tentative Subdivision Map and a Planned Development Permit to authorize a 14 - 
lot subdivision on a 1. 59 acre parcel, including 12 residential lots, one private street lot and one
common area lot, with a total of 12 detached single- family dwelling units ( four restricted to
moderate -income households as a part of a density bonus request), common open space, 

pedestrian paths, all -ages play equipment, lighting, landscaping, and other improvements. The
attached staff report ( Attachment A) describes the project in detail. The project, as proposed

and conditioned in the resolutions ( Attachment B & C), complies with the Municipal Code. 

Fiscal Impact: 

No fiscal impact. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorically Exempt

Public Information: 

None Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution ( TMO- 000- 0061) 

C. Resolution ( PDP - 150- 0002) 

D. Negative Declaration ( ND16- 03) 

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 500 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

E. Vicinity Map

F. Applicant Letter

G. Exhibit " A" — Project Plans



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 3

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Attachment A

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Planned Development Permit PDP150- 0002 and
Tentative Map TM -000- 0061 Authorizing Construction of a 14 -lot subdivision
with 12 Single Family Homes on 1. 59 Acres at 6800 Mallard Street. 

Staff Contact: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Application Summary: 

APPLICANT/ OWNER: 
Lorraine Weiland, Infill Development Company, 771 Jamacha Rd., 

516, EI Cajon, CA 92019

PROPERTY The site is located at 6800 Mallard Street, north of Mallard Street and
LOCATION: west of 69th Street ( APN: 479- 402- 23- 00) 

1. 59 acres ( 69, 438 square feet) gross and 1. 24 acres ( 53, 794 square
PROJECT AREA; 

feet) net

EXISTING ZONE: Residential Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) 

GENERAL PLAN

LAND USE Low/ Medium Density Residential ( up to 7 dwelling units per net acre) 
DESIGNATION: 

North: Single- family residential ( City of San Diego) 

SURROUNDING South: Single- family residential ( City of San Diego) 
PROPERTIES: East: Single- family residential ( City of Lemon Grove) 

West: Single- family residential ( City of San Diego) 

A Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact will be filed

subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project

ENVIRONMENTAL by the City Council. The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this
IMPACT: project found that the proposed project could not have a significant

impact on the environment. A draft Negative Declaration was filed

with the County Clerk prior to the City Council public hearing. 

N



Attachment A

Background: 

The property is a 69,438 square foot vacant parcel ( 1. 59 gross acre) located on the north side of
Mallard Street directly across from the intersection of Springfield Street and Mallard Street, 
approximately 140 feet west of 69th Street. To the north, south, east and west are detached
single- family residential land uses. The site is rectangular, with the exception of a 140 -foot long, 
seven -foot wide strip to the east that connects the main portion of the site to 69th Street. 

In 2008, the City Council approved a request from a different applicant to authorize the
subdivision of the property into nine condominiums and a common lot to include a club house, 
off- street parking, and associated improvements ( Tentative Map TM0057 and Planned
Development Permit PDP07- 005). After the project' s approval by City Council, the project was
never pursued. 

In June 2015, Infill Development Company purchased the proposed project and thereafter
applied for a new tentative subdivision map and planned development that would allow 12
single- family detached homes. Since the project did not substantially conform to previous
approvals, new applications were required. 

This staff report provides a description of the existing site, the proposed project and the
conformance to the regulatory framework. 

Discussion: 

Project Description

Lorraine Weiland, Infill Development Company, filed a complete application on March 17, 2016

The proposed project is a request for approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map and a Planned
Development Permit to authorize a 14 -lot subdivision, including 12 lots with 12 detached single- 
family homes, one private street lot, and one common area lot. 

The subdivision proposes 12 residential lots ranging in size from 2, 715 to 4, 307 square feet, a
lot for a private street, and a lot providing common open space and storm water detention
facilities. The proposed project consists of 12 detached single- family dwelling units, four of
which will be restricted to moderate - income households as a part of a density bonus request. All
the proposed dwelling units are two- story and have an attached two -car garage and a two -car
driveway ( allowing for four cars per lot) consistent with the surrounding single- family homes in
the area. 

The 15, 254 square foot open space lot is located along the east side of the site and includes
three bio -retention areas, decomposed granite ( dirt trail style) walking paths around the
detention area and out to 69th Street, site furnishings, natural climbing structures allowing for all - 
ages passive and active recreational uses, benches, site lighting, and gathering spaces. The
common open space area is accessed from the development via a walkway along the southern
property line of Lot 12 or via 69th Street along the seven foot wide property strip. Additionally, 
each unit has private open space ( back yard) ranging from 759 to 2, 248 square feet, providing
an additional 13, 132 square feet of private usable open space. 

The proposed private street will be accessed from Mallard Street. Along the main entry portion, 
the private street provides four -foot wide sidewalks and a four -foot wide planted parkway with
enhanced street lighting, parking is not allowed on either side of the private street. The project
requires a 30 -foot dedication along the Mallard Street frontage and a three-foot dedication along
69th Street. 

The State has established Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) targets for each City in
order to ensure adequate housing stock. This project works towards the City' s goals of meeting



Attachment A

its RHNA figures by providing four housing units to moderate income households ( restricted
covenant required) and eight units affordable to above - moderate income households ( market
rate). 

Land Use Designation and Density Bonus

The General Plan Land Use designation for this site is Low/Medium Density Residential which
allows detached single- family homes ( up to seven ( 7) dwelling units per net acre). The property
is a 69, 438 square foot vacant parcel ( 1. 59 gross acre). After subtracting the required street

dedication along Mallard Street to allow for a 60 foot right- of-way width and the area of the
private street and adjoining sidewalks and landscape parkways, the net area of the site is 1. 24
acres. Based on the maximum allowable density of the Land Use designation, a maximum of
8. 68 units would be allowed. With the proposed density bonus allowed through the City' s
Density Bonus Ordinance and required by State Density Bonus Law, 12 units are allowed, four
of which will be required to be restricted to moderate income households as a part of the density

bonus provisions. The proposed density for this project is 9. 7 dwelling units per acre, which
includes the proposed density bonus. This project is consistent with the City' s General Plan
because it works toward the Housing Element goals of providing detached single- family homes
and provides housing towards the City' s Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) goals. 

Zoning District Regulations and Equivalent Benefits

The property is zoned Residential Low/ Medium which allows single- family homes, parks, 

schools, and related uses. Generally, lots in this zone are required to be larger with homes
setback from the streets and related provisions for back yards, fencing, and landscape. The
Municipal Code allows applicants to request deviations from development standards through the
Planned Development Permit process where it can be found that the project provides equivalent
benefits and/ or achieves efficiencies in use, structures, transportation and/ or utility systems. The
applicant proposes a pedestrian - oriented single- family residential development with an
enhanced common open space area that provides open space, gathering and recreational

opportunities into a needed storm water retention area. The common open space area includes

enhanced drought -tolerant landscaping that exceeds minimum requirements, as well as five
citrus trees, decomposed granite walking paths, benches with dog bag waste stations, play
equipment, an all -ages natural climbing and seating area consisting of large boulders and logs; 
and homes that exceed energy efficiency standards. In addition, a community library kiosk will
be provided adjacent to the private street. In order to accomplish this project design, the
applicant requests various deviations from the Zoning and Subdivision Codes, including
deviations to the private usable open space ( back yard), building envelope, setbacks, lot area, 
lot dimensions, and public street requirements. The following table describes the development
standards of the Residential Low/ Medium Zone and the project' s proposal. 



Attachment A

Min. Lot Width/ Depth 60 -feet x 90 -feet 34 -feet minimum width

67 -feet minimum depth

Setbacks
m

25 -feet ( front) 17- to 20 -feet ( front) 

5 -feet ( side) 4 -feet ( interior side) 

20 -feet ( rear) 10 -feet ( exterior side along
Mallard Street) 

15- to 35 ( rear) 

Building Height 25 -feet maximum

feet ,,,,,.,
a,,,, e . ..................................................... 

Plan 1: 24'- 2" 

Plan 2: 24'- 11" 

Bicycle Parking Two required, One ceiling mounted bike rack
within the garage ( per PDP

condition of approval for

Equivalent Benefit") 

Building Design

A total of 12 detached single- family residences are proposed, with two different floor plans, both
of which are two- story. Floor Plan 1 provides 1, 430 square feet of living area, including three
bedrooms and two -and -one- half bathrooms, and a 479 square foot two -car garage/ laundry area. 
Floor Plan 2 provides 1, 619 square feet of living area with either three bedrooms plus a loft area
or four bedrooms and two -and -one- half bathrooms, and a 446 square foot two - car

garage/ laundry area. Both plans are Mission style and the materials are a combination of

stucco, painted wood siding, plaster columns with stone bases, and asphalt composition shingle
roofing. Plan 1 is designed with a gable roof style, while Plan 2 is designed with a hipped roof
style on the front and side elevations, and a gable roof viewed from the rear elevation. 

The majority of the residences that abut the site on the west and north ( on Madroncillo Street) 
are two stories, while those to the south ( across Mallard Street) and the east ( on 69th Street) are
one story. The majority of the surrounding structures have exterior stucco siding and asphalt
shingle roofing materials. 

Grading

The site is vacant and generally slopes to the east and north, with a shallow valley on the east
side. Elevations range from 442 feet above Mean Sea Level ( MSL) in the northeast portion of
the site to 466 feet above MSL at the south end of the site. Proposed earthwork includes 1, 000

cubic yards of cut, and 5, 000 cubic yards of fill, requiring 4, 000 cubic yards to be imported. The

site will be graded to provide building pads that gently slope down the lots towards the private
street, with an overall change in finished pad elevation of 3. 5 feet. Storm water will flow from

the private street and Mallard Street into the storm water retention common open space area to

the east. Retaining walls are proposed along portions of Mallard Street, along the west and
south property lines of the site, between the rear property lines of proposed Lots 8 through 11
and the open space area, and within the common open space just west of the middle storm
water retention area. 

Landscaping and HOA

Projects located in residential zones are required to landscape a minimum of 15 percent of the
total lot area. The landscaping proposed for the 12 residential lots ranges from 16. 9 to 44. 4
percent per lot. The total amount of landscaping proposed for the entire project, excluding the
area to be dedicated, is 29, 762 square feet, or approximately 48 percent. Landscaping will be

N



Attachment A

provided and maintained by the Home Owners Association ( HOA) for the parkway of the private
street and along Mallard Street at the property' s frontage, within the front yards of the residential
lots, and throughout the common area. All private street and open space facilities will also be

maintained by an HOA. Seventeen trees are proposed on the 12 residential lots; eight street
trees are proposed in the landscaped parkway of the private street; 10 street trees are proposed
in the landscaped parkway of Mallard Street; and 22 trees are proposed within the common
open space areas including five citrus trees as required by the new landscape ordinance. All

existing on- site trees will be removed to accommodate the change in grade ( 11 total). 

Fencing and Screening

The project proposes five- foot high wood fences on top of the retaining walls along the west and
south property lines and between each proposed residential lot. Five- foot " view" fences are

proposed along the rear lot lines of proposed Lots 8 through 12 to provide views from the
residences onto the common open space area to allow for Crime Prevention Through

Environmental Design ( CPTED). 

Traffic

The project is located on the north side of Mallard Street on the westerly boundary of the City of
Lemon Grove. Areas directly south, west, and north of the project area are located in the
Community of Encanto in the City of San Diego. The project includes a private street which will
provide access to the residential lots. The project will generate approximately 120 average daily
trips ( ADT) based on a trip generation rate of 10 ADT for a single-family residence, or 120 trips
for 12 single- family residences. Based on the San Diego Traffic Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) 
and the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for

Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego Region, a Traffic Impact Study is not required because
the project' s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1, 000 ADT and less than 100 peak
hour trips. The project does not increase the volume -to -capacity ratio by more than 0. 02 per the
significance threshold of both the jurisdictions and therefore would not have an impact on

adjacent roadway segments. The 69th Street/ Mallard Street intersection is projected to operate
at Level of Service ( LOS) C or better with and without project conditions; therefore, the

proposed project would not have a significant traffic impact under future conditions. 

Parking and Bicycle Storage

Single- family residences require two parking spaces per dwelling unit, with the spaces required
to be garaged. The project proposes two -car garages for all units, which meets Code

requirements. In addition, each unit is designed with an 18 -foot wide by 20 -foot long driveway
capable of providing off-street parking for two additional vehicles ( 4 spaces per unit). There will

also be eight additional on -street parking spaces provided along Mallard Street. 

One rack or other secure device for at least one bicycle is required for every 10 parking spaces, 
or two for this project. A condition of approval has been included in the Planned Development

Permit resolution to require a minimum of one ceiling -mounted bike rack within each garage. 
This condition is considered an additional equivalent benefit toward providing a pedestrian- and

bicycle -friendly infill development. 

Public Street Dedication and Improvement Requirements

The subject property has approximately 246 feet of frontage along Mallard Street and
approximately 14 feet of frontage along 69th Street. Mallard Street is located within the City of
San Diego. The City of San Diego designates Mallard Street as requiring a 30 -foot one-half
right-of-way width, similar to Lemon Grove' s Class III Collector Street with a required 30 -foot
one- half right- of- way width. The Mallard Street frontage of the subject property is currently not



Attachment A

dedicated to the required City of San Diego standard of 30 -foot one- half right- of-way width. The

Mallard Street frontage is proposed to be dedicated with the required 30 -foot one- half right- of- 

way width and improved with new curb, gutter, sidewalk, a five foot wide landscaped parkway, 
10 street trees, paving improvements, and the undergrounding of public utilities. A street light

exists at the southeast corner of Springfield Street and Mallard Street and no additional street

lights are required by the San Diego Lighting District. Current public improvements along the
Mallard Street frontage of the subject property include street paving improvements and utility
poles only. There is no existing curb, gutter, or sidewalk. 

The City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department is requiring a three- foot dedication along the
69th Street frontage of the subject property. The Engineering Department is not requesting
public street improvements within the 14 feet fronting on 69th Street because the improvements
may create a safety hazard installed in such a small area. 

Undergrounding of Overhead Utility Lines

The Municipal Code requires that all of the overhead utility distribution facilities located within
the boundaries of the subdivision or within any half -street width abutting the subdivision be
placed underground. There is one overhead utility pole located within the half -street width of
Mallard Street abutting the property. A condition has been included in the Resolution which

requires that the overhead utilities along Mallard Street and 69th Street abutting the subject
property be placed underground. A condition has also been included requiring that the utility
connections to the proposed single family dwellings be placed underground. 

Sanitation District

The existing project site is within the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, but is not connected to
the City' s sewer system. The City requires that all new dwelling units of the proposed
subdivision be connected to a sanitary sewer system. Since the site is surrounded by the City
of San Diego on three sides and by Lemon Grove along the 69th Street frontage, the project
could either connect to the City of Lemon Grove' s or the City of San Diego' s sewer system. The

applicant opted to connect to San Diego' s sewer system. Conditions in the Resolution require

that the subdivider obtain a sewer permit prior to the issuance of a building permit for the new
residences. The onsite sewer main is required to be private. 

Drainage/ Water Quality

The applicant prepared a Drainage Study and a Stormwater Management Plan for this project. 
The site runoff will be collected within the private street and conveyed to storm water retention

areas within the open space area along the east side of the site. According to the Drainage
Study prepared for the project, there are no major diversions of drainage that will create
nuisances downstream. The project will detain the proposed runoff so that the amount leaving
the site will be equal to or less than the amount leaving the site in the existing condition. This
will be accomplished by the proposed storm water retention areas on the east side of the project
site. The implementation, construction and on- going maintenance of the project components
recommended in these reports are included as conditions in the Draft Resolution of Approval. 

Expiration Date of the Planned Development Permit

The Tentative Map and Planned Development Permits will expire within two ( 2) years if the
tentative map is not recorded. This requirement has been included in the Resolution of
Approval. 

E 



Attachment A

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the March 24, 2016 edition of the East County
Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. 

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing and Environmental
Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the Council at the time of

the public hearing with any comments that may come in past the distribution of the staff report. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the public hearing and approve the resolutions
Attachments B & C). 

IE



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE : CITY COUNCIL APPROVING TENTATIVE MAP
TMO- 000- 0061 AUTHORIZING THE SUBDIVISION OF A 1. 59 ACRE PARCEL INTO TWELVE
RESIDENTIAL LOTS, ONE COMMON LOT FOR A PRIVATE STREET, AND ONE COMMON
OPEN SPACE LOT ON AN UNDEVELOPED SITE AT 6800 MALLARD STREET, LEMON
GROVE, CALIFORNIA. 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Lorraine Weiland of Infill Development Company, filed a
complete application for a Tentative Map ( TMO- 000- 0061) on March 17, 2016 to authorize the

subdivision of 1. 59 acres of land into 12 single- family residential lots, a lot for a private street, 
and a lot for common open space as part of an application for a Planned Development Permit
PDP -150- 0002; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ( ND16- 03) will be filed

subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project. The Initial Environmental

Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no significant effect on the
environment. A notice of intent to adopt a negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk
prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the project qualifies for a 35 percent density
bonus in exchange for four of the 12 units restricted to Moderate Income households in

accordance with the Density Bonus Ordinance and Government Code Section 65915 ( Density
Bonus Law) and therefore the Subdivision and Planned Development are consistent with the

Lemon Grove General Plan ( density calculations round up as a part of bonus calculations). The

proposed density for this project is 9. 7 dwelling units per acre, which includes the proposed
density bonus. The maximum density in the Low/Medium Residential Land Use Designation is 7
dwelling units per net acre absent a density bonus. This project assists the City in meeting
Housing Element goals of providing detached single- family homes and provides housing
towards the City' s Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA) goals; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has requested no incentives in accordance with the Density

Bonus Ordinance or the State Density Bonus Law, only modifications and deviations in
accordance with the Subdivision Ordinance and Planned Development Permit provisions; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the tentative map complies with the findings of
fact required to approve this project pursuant to Municipal Code Section 16. 16. 400 because the

project complies with the time limitations of the State Subdivision Map Act; the existing lot is a
legal lot; the proposed subdivision creates more than 5 lots; the proposed subdivision complies

with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance; the map and design or improvements are
consistent with applicable general and specific plans or as allowed to be modified; the site is

physically suitable for the type of development; and the site is physically suitable for the
proposed density of development; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered said Tentative Map and recommendations
of the Planning Department, City Engineer, and the Lemon Grove Fire Department with respect
thereto and has determined that the conditions hereinafter enumerated are necessary to insure
that the subdivision and the improvements thereof will conform to all ordinances, plans, rules, 

and improvement and design standards of the City of Lemon Grove; and

11- 



Attachment B

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 
002 including site, architectural, and landscape plans dated received March 17, 2016

associated with Tentative Map TMO- 000- 061; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 16. 12. 280, the City Council finds that it is
impractical in this particular case for this subdivision to conform fully to the Design Standards of
the Subdivision Ordinance because the Subdivision Ordinance does not account for lots sized
for planned developments and waivers granted as part of the approval of this project are found

to conform to the spirit and purpose of the Subdivision Map Act and of the Subdivision
Ordinance of the Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby makes the following findings: 

1. The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements are not likely to cause
substantial environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or
their habitat because the property has no environmentally protected resources as
discussed in the Negative Declaration; and

2. The proposed Tentative Subdivision Map ( TMO- 000- 0061) is consistent with the

Low/ Medium Density Residential ( up to seven ( 7) dwelling units per net acre) Land Use
Designation of the General Plan because of density bonuses allowable through the
Density Bonus Ordinance and State Density Bonus Law; and

3. The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development because public
utilities will be available to serve the proposed density; and

4. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not cause serious public

health problems because public services ( e. g., sewer, water, gas, and electricity) will be
provided to the subdivision; and

5. The design of the subdivision or type of improvements do not conflict with easements, 

acquired by the public at large, for access through, or use of property within the
proposed subdivision as defined under Section 66474 of the Government Code, State of
California; and

6. The design and improvements of the proposed subdivision map complies with the
requirements of the State Subdivision Map Act and the Subdivision Ordinance except as
specifically waived or modified for the requested deviations in accordance with Section
16. 12. 280 and pursuant to the Planned Development Permit process; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Certifies the adequacy of the Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ND16- 
03; and

SECTION 3. Waives or modifies the following Design Standards in accordance with Section
16. 12. 280: 

1. Section 16. 12. 220B ( Minimum Lot Area of 6, 000 sq. ft.) to allow 12 single- family
residential lots with areas ranging from 2, 715 sq. ft. to 4, 307 sq. ft. 

2. Section 16. 12. 220C ( Lots Shall Front on Dedicated Street) to allow 12 single- family
residential lots to not front on a dedicated street. 

M



Attachment B

3. Section 16. 12. 220D ( Minimum Lot Width and Depth of 60 feet by 90 feet) to allow 12 lots
with minimum dimensions of less than sixty feet by ninety feet. 

SECTION 4. Approves Tentative Map TMO- 000-0061 in association with Planned Development
Permit PDP -150- 0002 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans dated received
March 17, 2016 ( incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A) pursuant to the City of Lemon
Grove Subdivision Ordinance ( Title 16 of the Municipal Code). The approval conditionally
authorizes the development of a vacant site with a 12 unit planned development with an
associated private street and common area located at 6800 Mallard St., Lemon Grove, 

California ( APN: 479- 402- 23- 00). The subdivider shall comply with all applicable provisions of

the Subdivision Map Act, the City of Lemon Grove Subdivision Ordinance, and the following
conditions of approval: 

NO PARCEL SHOWN ON THIS APPROVED TENTATIVE SUBDIVITION MAP SHALL BE
LEASED, SOLD, CONVEYED, OR TRANSFERRED, UNLESS AND UNTIL A SUBDIVISION
MAP APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER HAS BEEN FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY RECORDER. 

A. WITHIN FIVE DAYS OF APPROVAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY
WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Submit the appropriate payment for the CEQA filing fee ( Department of Fish and
Game ND and County Clerk Processing Fee). 

2. Pay all outstanding fees for City permits related to this project. 

B. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A GRADING OR IMPROVEMENT PERMIT AND/ OR
DURING GRADING ACTIVITY, THE SUBDIVIER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

March 17, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are
shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. Obtain a grading permit from the City prior to any grading activities. The grading
permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which is described or
illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications

approved by the City Engineer. 

3. All grading permit fees and deposits shall be paid and all actions necessary
preceding the issuance of the grading permit shall be completed. 

4. Coordinate with Helix Water District for the installation of water facilities and ensure
that all of the appropriate permits are obtained. 

5. Obtain an encroachment permit for the installation of private facilities and/ or for

grading work in/ or adjacent to the public right- of-way. 

6. Building permits shall be submitted with the grading plans for retaining and
freestanding walls where required. Except as noted in this condition, building permits
shall be termed building permits for post -grading activities in the resolutions
approving this project. 

7. Safety fencing shall be required at the top of retaining walls and slopes and shall be
shown on all Grading Plans where appropriate. 

13- 



Attachment B

8. A private Storm Water Facility and Best Management Practice maintenance
agreement shall be recorded for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed

private drainage and storm water treatment. The City will provide the template for the
agreement. 

9. As a part of the grading permit submittal, a private improvement, grading, and

drainage plan shall be submitted showing all of the proposed and existing on- site
improvements. The plan shall be prepared in accordance with the City' s standard
requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. All necessary measures for prevention
of storm water pollution and hazardous material run- off to the public storm drain

system from the proposed development shall be implemented with the design of the
grading. 

10. A public improvement plan as a part of an improvement plan check, shall be

submitted with applicable deposit showing all of the proposed and existing
improvements within the public right- of-way. The plan shall be prepared in

accordance with the City' s standard requirements by a Registered Civil Engineer. 

11. As -built drawings shall be submitted to SDG& E to energize all of the required street
lights. 

12. Submit the street improvement and grading plans to Helix Water for review and
signature. 

13. All utilities shall be shown on the grading plans. 

14. Prior to the issuance of a grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to cover the City' s
expenses, costs, and overhead for the field inspection, office engineering, and

administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. The
amount of the deposit shall be as determined by the City Engineer. 

15. All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan. 

16. Evidence indicating that arrangements have been made for the preservation and/ or
relocation of existing monuments shall be submitted to the City Engineer prior to the
issuance of a grading permit. 

17. Grading plans shall be prepared and submitted with the grading permit application in
accordance with the city engineering standards and the requirements of the City
Engineer. 

18. All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil
engineer. 

19. Conditions imposed by the city engineer shall be shown on the grading plans under
the heading " General Notes." 

20. The subdivider shall execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and a

Subdivision Improvement Security in accordance with Section 16. 12. 200. A cost
estimate for all of the proposed grading, drainage, street improvements, landscaping, 
and retaining and freestanding walls work proposed shall be submitted with the
grading and improvement plans. A separate cost estimate shall be submitted for

work proposed within the public right-of-way. Templates for these agreements are
available from the City. The applicant shall post a security with the City comprised of
a cash deposit of a combination of cash deposit and corporate surety bond of a
surety authorized to do business in the state. An instrument of credit or other security
pledging the performance of the work, may be submitted in lieu of the surety bond to

14- 



Attachment B

insure installation of required structures, drains, landscaping, irrigation and other
improvements shown on the grading plan. Such funds are trust funds for the

purposes of satisfying the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created
by the work or lack of maintenance thereof. An irrevocable standby letter of credit
issued by a financial institution subject to the regulation by the state or federal
government may be posted in lieu of the surety bond, instrument of credit or other
security. The estimated cost of the work shall be determined by the City Engineer
after reviewing the civil engineer' s estimate. The total amount of the security shall be
equal to one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of the grading work
authorized by the permit plus an additional sum equal to one hundred percent of the
estimated cost for the construction of drainage structures or facilities, including
standard terrace drains, slope planting, irrigation system, erosion control devices, 
retaining walls and similar facilities authorized by the permit. 

21. Submit improvement plans and enter into a secured agreement for public street

improvements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

22. Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the
application of a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and
contain all information applicable to the project in accordance with generally

accepted geotechnical engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report
shall include, but not be limited to, the requirements outlined within 18. 08. 120 A. All

recommendations outlined in the soils report shall be imbedded into the grading

plans. The grading plans shall include site monitoring and inspections to ensure
recommendations of the Geotechnical Evaluation are adhered to. The Evaluation

recommends that undocumented fill, colluvium and bedrock be removed. Removal

depths are estimated at two to seven feet with variation. Properly designed site
drainage is required to reduce erosion damage to the planned improvements. Typical

erosion control measures will be required during site grading. 

23. The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove General Plan in preparing the reports required in
18. 08. 120. 

24. Recommendations contained within approved reports and technical analyses shall

be incorporated into the grading plan and specifications and shall become conditions
of the grading permit. 

25. Submit a truck hauling route with diagram showing streets. This should include the
source of borrow and/ or disposal and any BMPs tied to the imported material. 

26. Submit a final Hydrology Report and Storm Water Quality Management Plan
SWAMP) to determine and analyze the increased volume of storm water runoff as a

result of the proposed design. The SWQMP must be revised to incorporate all

comments presented within the March 25, 2016 letter from DMax Engineering. 
Analysis of the downstream onsite detention basin must be based on hydrology
calculations. Any modifications must be reflected on the plans. This report should
contain calculations and diagrams of pre and post -development conditions. The

SWQMP shall be completed and approved prior to the issuance of any other permits. 
Grading and site improvements shall be in accordance with the SWQMP for the
proposed project. The SWQMP shall specify implementation of BMPs required in
8. 48 and 18. 08 of Municipal Code and the BMP Design Manual. Provide evidence

that treatment Best Management Practices ( BMPs) are adequately sized for the
increase in impervious surfaces. 

M



Attachment B

27. Plans for an erosion control system shall be prepared and submitted for the review

and approval of the City Engineer and Water Quality Coordinator as a part of any
application for a construction permit. The erosion control system shall comply with
the requirements of the latest state general construction stormwater permit and any
amendments thereto, the MS4 Permit, Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 8. 48, 

and 18. 08. 170. 

28. A private Stormwater Facilities and Best Management Practices maintenance

agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and rehabilitation of the proposed

private drainage and stormwater treatment facilities prior to the issuance of a grading
or improvement permit. 

29. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future utility undergrounding district
will be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits
frontages on 69th Street and Mallard Street will be considered to be a part). 

30. An agreement not -to -oppose the formation of a future street improvement district will

be required to be submitted prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits
frontages on 69th Street and Mallard Street will be considered to be a part). 

31. The developer shall submit erosion and sediment control plans with construction
Best Management Practices ( BMPs) and an irrigation plan for review and approval

by the Water Quality Coordinator, which will be required to be abided by during
grading activities. 

32. The applicant shall submit sewer lateral plans with the improvement plans. These

sewer lateral plans shall be submitted to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

33. The structural pavement section for the private access located on the subject

property shall be based on the soils report prepared by a Geotechnical Engineer to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

34. Improvements, where applicable, shall conform to the San Diego Regional Standard

Drawings unless otherwise specified by the City Engineer. 

35. The subdivider shall provide proof satisfactory to the Director of Public Health that
there exists an adequate potable water supply available to each lot or parcel, and
that the subdivider install or agree to install water supply pipes of a minimum six
inches in diameter, provided that the City Engineer may required such other diameter
of water supply pipe as may be recommended by Helix Water District. 

36. Sight distance requirements along streets and at all intersections shall conform to the
intersectional sight distance criteria as provided by the Caltrans Highway Design
Manual. 

37. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with letters from the serving utility
companies stating that arrangements satisfactory to the utility have been made to
serve all parcels created. No letter will be required from the Pacific Bell Telephone

Company. 

38. A private Sewer Maintenance Agreement shall be submitted for the future repair and

rehabilitation of the proposed private sewer prior to the issuance of grading or
improvement permits. The City will provide the template for the agreement. 

39. The Sewer main for this project shall be designated as private, not public. 

40. Provide the City with a final drainage/ hydrology report indicating that the site design
is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

16- 



Attachment B

System ( NDPES) permit. On- site drainage shall be in compliance with the NDPES

permit. 

41. Submit a maintenance agreement for the on-going maintenance of the private street
and access improvements, parking and other proposed paved areas, fencing, 
landscape and irrigation ( private and within the public right- of-way along the
property' s frontage), drainage and water quality facilities required by the SWQMP, 
and recreational and other facilities as specified to be reviewed and approved by the
City Engineer and Director of Development Services. This maintenance agreement
shall be adhered to by the HOA and incorporated into the CC& Rs to the satisfaction
of the Director of Development Services and City Engineer. 

42. All plans and technical studies required to be submitted to the Engineering
Department for review and approval shall be prepared by a California Registered
Professional Engineer or applicable utility provider. 

43. The permittee shall be responsible to maintain in an obvious and accessible location

on the site, a copy of the grading and improvement permit and grading plans bearing
the approval of the City Engineer. 

44. After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving
grading, brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre -grading meeting. Prior to pouring
curbs and gutters or placement of base materials, there shall be a pre -paving
meeting held on the site. The permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the City
Engineer at least two working days prior to the meeting and shall be responsible for
notifying all principals responsible for grading and paving related operations. The

Storm Water Coordinator shall be a part of the meeting. 

45. All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by the permit. 

46. The property owner shall pay the City for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or
maintaining a city -owned facility within the public right- of-way when the city facility
has been damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the

owner' s land development work during the progress of such work. The costs of
placing, replacing or maintaining the city -owned facility shall include the cost of
obtaining an alternate easement if necessary. The City may withhold certification of
the completion of a building or other work where a notice has been issued. 

47. The subdivider shall submit record drawings ( as- builts) and engineering

documentation with applicable fees for all public improvements to the City to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

48. In accordance with Municipal Code Sections 12. 10. 080 and 16. 12. 240, the property
owner( s) shall underground all existing utility distribution facilities, including
telecommunication lines, on and along the frontage of the subject property as
required by the City Engineer. The property owner( s) shall make the necessary

arrangements with each of the serving utilities, including licensed communication
operators for the installation or relocation of such facilities. No new overhead poles

shall result from undergrounding activities. 

49. Submit street improvement plans with roadway cross- sections with rolled curb
configuration to the Fire Marshal for review and approval. Minimum 20 foot fire lane

for emergency access required. 

17- 



Attachment B

50. Prior to combustibles being brought to the site, the developer shall provide written
certification from the Water Purveyor, dated within the last thirty days, that: 
a. All public fire hydrants required of the project have been installed, tested, and

approved by the Water Purveyor; and

b. Are permanently connected to the public water main system; and

c. Are capable of supplying the required fire flow as required by Heartland Fire & 
Rescue. 

51. Group R- 3 and U Occupancies: An approved water supply capable of supplying the
required fire flow for fire protection shall be provided to all premises upon which
facilities, buildings, or portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into or

within the jurisdiction. When any portion of the facility or building protected is in
excess of 400 feet ( 122 mm) from a water supply on a public street, as measured by
an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on- site fire hydrants
and mains capable of supplying the required flow shall be provided when required by
the Fire Code official. The size of fire hydrant outlets shall be a minimum of one 4

inch and one 2-'/ 2 inch NST outlet or greater as required by the Fire Code official. 

52. The subdivider/ applicant shall conduct a Sacred Lands File search of the project
area to determine if there is likelihood for on- site Native American cultural resources. 

A copy of a letter regarding the records search shall be provided to the Development
Services Department prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. Additional
mitigation measures may be required as a result. 

53. If cultural resources are discovered during site preparation and/ or grading, then any
further work shall cease and programs and procedures shall be initiated as outlined
in CEQA guidelines 15064. 5. 

54. The geotechnical engineer shall monitor and inspect cuts into the soil. If cuts are

found to impact the Mission Valley Formation ( currently not anticipated), then, in

order to mitigate any impacts that grading may cause to paleontological and
archaeological resources, the following conditions shall be complied with: 

a. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at the pre -grading meeting to
consult with the grading and excavation contractors. A qualified paleontologist is

defined as an individual with a Bachelor' s or higher degree in paleontology or
geology experienced in pale ontological techniques and procedures. 

b. A qualified paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American
with cultural resource knowledge shall be present at all times during the original
cutting of previously undisturbed sediments of the Mission Valley Formation. 
These monitors shall inspect an excavation which exposes sediments of the

Mission Valley Formation. Said monitors shall salvage remains as they are
uncovered. 

c. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall be allowed to temporarily direct, divert or halt
grading to allow recovery of fossil and artifact remains. 

d. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall document the stratigraphic and geologic

context of salvaged fossil and artifact remains. 

5no



Attachment B

e. The paleontologist, archaeologist, and culturally affiliated Native American with
cultural resource knowledge shall clean, repair and sort salvaged fossils and

artifacts for eventual donation. 

f. Prior to final inspection, a report shall be prepared summarizing the results of the
mitigation program and submitted to the Development Services Director. This
report will include a discussion of methods employed, fossils and artifacts

recovered, geologic context of fossil and artifact remains and the significance of

the mitigation program. 

g. Donate all curated fossil and artifact specimens to an institution with a proven

history of professional, long term care and storage of paleontological and
archaeological collections, such as the San Diego Natural History Museum. 

55. One temporary on- site sign legible from the major vehicle travel lanes adjacent to the
project shall be posted on the property for the duration of all construction on- site. The
sign shall be a minimum of six feet high, six feet wide, and not to exceed 64 square
feet total for two sides or 32 square feet for one side. Such sign shall include the

permit numbers, property location and APN number, a site plan and description of
the project, project name, and the developer' s name, address and telephone

number. Such sign shall be removed prior to grading permit final. Signs shall be
maintained in good condition at all times. 

56. Private residential, public residential, commercial and industrial fire access roads

shall provide an access roadway with a minimum unobstructed width of 20 -feet wide
and a minimum 13' 6" vertical clearance. All fire apparatus access roadways must be

maintained unobstructed and drivable by fire apparatus throughout the construction
process. Access roadways shall be capable of holding an imposed load of 75, 000
pounds including in adverse weather conditions. 

57. Grades for driveway and fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10 percent. 
Fire Department approval and additional conditions are required for grades up to 20
percent maximum. Angle of approach and departure for driveways shall not exceed
five ( 5) percent. 

58. Fire lane designations shall be required for all fire access roadways as determined

by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs shall be required for all fire access

roadways as determined by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state

FIRE LANE, NO PARKING" shall be installed every 50 feet. Curbs shall be painted
red and stenciled with white letters indicating the same on the face and top of any
curb as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue. All fire lanes shall be marked and

identified prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Fire lane maintenance must be

addressed in the CC& R' s for the project. 

59. All required fire apparatus access roads, fire lanes, fire department turn -around and

entry/ exit drives shall have a minimum 28 -foot turning radius for fire apparatus
depending on size, location, and type of project. Site plans shall provide a fire

department turning radius template along the access roadway or within a detail
confirming that the radius meets Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements. 

60. Fire apparatus access roads ( all roads in the project) shall be paved, accessible and

fire hydrants shall be capable of flowing required GPM and shall be tested and
accepted by the Fire Department prior to dropping any lumber for construction. 

19- 



Attachment B

61. Roadway design features ( speed humps, bumps, speed control dips, etc.) which may
interfere or delay emergency apparatus responses shall not be installed or allowed to
remain on the emergency access roadways. 

62. Any gate or barrier across a fire access roadway, whether manual or automatic, must
meet the Heartland Fire & Rescue requirements and have specific plans and permits

approved prior to installation. Knox brand key -operated electric key switch keyed to
Heartland Fire & Rescue specification are required. The Knox switch shall override

all gate functions and open the gate. Other access control systems such as Opticom, 
siren, etc. shall be permitted with the approval of Heartland Fire & Rescue. 

C, PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT, THE SUBDIVIDER/APPLICANT
SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated

March 17, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are
shown and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City
Codes to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. Pay all outstanding fees prior to issuance of a building permit( s) for new dwelling
units authorized by this tentative map. 

3. Per Ordinance 372 a Uniform Transportation Mitigation Fee for each unit must be

paid at the time of building permit issuance. The fee is subject to annual increase
and the actual fee will be calculated at the time of payment. 

4. Pay appropriate school, parkland, diversion deposit, and other fees as applicable. 

5. Submit for Development Services Director approval, a detailed landscape and
irrigation plan. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion
control plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements including, but not
limited to, the design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, 

botanical and common names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all
plantings; all irrigation lines including valves and back-flow devices; and soil

amendments. Said landscape plan shall comply with the requirements of Section
17. 24. 050( B) and Chapter 18. 44 of the Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be

in substantial conformance to the approved landscape concept plan. 

6. Water supply, access, and fire protection system requirements shall meet City of
Lemon Grove Fire Department standards. 

7. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two -car
garages. Driveways shall be a minimum of 18 feet wide by 19 feet deep. 

8. Future development shall comply with all applicable California Building Codes. 
9. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of the current California Building

and Fire Codes. 

10. All new utility distribution facilities, including cable television lines, within the

boundaries of any new subdivision or within any half street abutting a new
subdivision shall be placed underground. The subdivider shall coordinate with the

necessary cable television operators for the installation of such facilities. 

Transformers, terminal boxes, meter cabinets, pedestals, concealed ducts, and other

facilities necessarily appurtenant to such underground utilities and street lighting
systems may be placed above ground unless directed otherwise by the City

NN



Attachment B

Engineer. All proposed structures on the subject property shall connect to the utility
system via underground system. 

11. Submit a written statement signed by the civil engineer reporting that the site is
rough graded in conformance with the approved grading plan, as modified or

amended by any construction changes approved by the city engineer, and which
specifically states the items which were performed under his/ her supervision, and are
shown correctly on the as -graded drawings. 

12. Prior to issuance of building permits, incorporate best management practices

including site design, source control and treatment control, construction and on- going
maintenance identified in the SWQMP and Drainage Report into the Building Plans. 

13. Provide the City with, upon completion of the grading, a compaction report from the
geotechnical firm and a letter from a licensed civil engineer that the grading and
elevations of the pad were done in accordance with the approved grading plans and

prior to the issuance of building plans. 

14. Provide plans on Auto CAD ( any release) for pre -fire planning use by the Fire
Department. Information shall include locations of all exits, stairwells, and roof

access. Also, gas, electrical, water, fire sprinkler, and standpipe valves and shutoffs, 

and elevator and electrical equipment rooms, fire alarm panels, remote annunciators, 

and RTU/ HVAC detectors. 

D. DURING GRADING ACTIVITY AND PRIOR TO GRADING PERMIT FINAL APPROVAL, 

THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement
and related plans shall be located substantially where they are shown and shall be
constructed in accordance with appropriate Lemon Grove City Codes. 

2. All trash, debris, and waste materials should be disposed of offsite, in accordance

with current local, state, and federal disposal regulations. Any materials containing
petroleum residues encountered during property improvements should be evaluated
prior to removal and disposal, following proper procedures. Any buried trash/ debris
encountered should be evaluated by an experienced environmental consultant prior
to removal. 

3. Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of organochlorine pesticides in soil shall
be performed. 

4. Soil sampling and analysis for the presence of lead in soil shall be performed. 

5. For any work within the public right-of-way, the subdivider shall secure an

encroachment permit to work within the City right- of-way and place a special deposit
with the City to ensure that any damage to the existing roadway or other public
improvements is repaired in a timely manner. The subdivider shall be responsible for
all unforeseen costs related to work performed in the right- of-way. 

6. The development and preparation of the site shall conform to all recommendations of

the approved geotechnical reports submitted to the City. 

7. The drainage structures, bioretention areas, underground storage pipes, and outlet

structures identified in the Standard Water Quality Management Plan ( SWAMP) shall
be installed. Any modifications to the bioretention areas shall require modifications to
the SWQMP and review and approval by the City Engineer. 

M



Attachment B

8. Provide the City with a final drainage/ hydrology report/ letter indicating that the site
design is in accordance with the report and the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System ( NPDES) permit. 

9. The fire hydrant system shall be tested to ensure adequate fire flow. The required
fire hydrant flow shall be 1, 000 GPM for a 2 -hour duration at 20 PSI residual

operating pressure. Documentation is required from the Water Purveyor verifying
that the system is capable of meeting the required fire flow prior to building permit
issuance. If the system is not capable of meeting the required fire flow

documentation shall be provided showing financial arrangements have been made
and water system improvement plans have been submitted and approved by
Heartland Fire & Rescue and the Water Purveyor to upgrade the existing system
prior to release of building permits. The terms and conditions of the Tentative
Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the permittee and all persons, firms, and
corporations having an interest in the property subject to this Planned Development
Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of each of

them, including municipal corporations, public agencies, and districts. Fire hydrants
shall be painted per Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor

standards and be maintained free of obstructions. Blue reflective raised pavement

markers shall be installed on the pavement at approved locations marking each fire
hydrant. 

10. Public and private water utility mains must provide the level of reliability/ redundancy
determined necessary by Heartland Fire & Rescue and the local Water Purveyor
Engineer. 

11. The subdivider shall construct or shall cause to be constructed, at his/ her own cost, a

street lighting system conforming to the City standards. 

12. Street signs for private and public streets meeting the requirements of the City
Engineer standards shall be installed at all intersections prior to final occupancy
approval. 

13. A street naming request application shall be completed for the proposed private
street. Appropriate signage shall be required to be installed. 

14. The installation of gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and any other below surface
utilities is required to take place before the installation of any concrete curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, and surfacing of the streets ( including repair or replacement). Sewer and

water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this subdivision. 

15. Metallic identification tape shall be placed between the bottom layer of the finished

surface and the top of all irrigation lines in the public right- of-way. 

16. The contractor/ permittee conducting any earth moving operation shall be responsible
for controlling dust created by its grading operation or activities at all times. 

17. Reporting for earthwork, asphalt, and concrete testing shall be required and
prepared in accordance with the latest version of the " Greenbook" Standard

Specifications for Public Works Construction. Reports shall be submitted to the City
for review and approval prior to the applicant' s request for final inspection on the

grading or improvement permits. The reports shall be signed and stamped by a
California registered engineer. 

18. All flammable vegetation shall be removed from each building site with slopes less
than 15% at a minimum distance of thirty ( 30) feet from all structures or to the

22- 



L

Attachment B

property line, whichever is less to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal and
Development Services Director. 

19. A pad certification and compaction report shall be submitted to the City for review
and approval prior to the applicant' s request for final inspection on the grading
permit. 

20. Submit a certification letter stating that the grading was done per the approved plan
or an as -graded version of the grading plan ( as -graded drawings) prepared, signed
and dated by the responsible civil engineer which shall include original and " as - 

graded" ground surface elevations, pad elevations, slope ratios, and elevations and

locations of all surface and subsurface drainage facilities, location and scaled

sections of all buttress/ stabilization and fills, subdrains and general location and
depth of all areas or removal of unusable soil. 

21. Submit a final soils engineering report prepared by a soil engineer, including type of
field testing performed, compaction reports, final pad elevations, suitability of utility
trench and retaining wall backfill, the maximum allowable soil bearing pressure and
the required pavement structural sections, summaries of field laboratory tests and
other substantiating data, and comments on any changes made during grading and
their effect on the recommendations made in the preliminary soils engineering report. 

Each field density test shall be identified, located on a plan or map, the elevation of
the test, and the test method of obtaining the in- place density described. 

22. Final approval shall not be given until all work, including installation of all drainage
facilities and their protective devices, required irrigation system installed protective

devices, required planting, and all erosion control measures have been completed in
accordance with the final approved grading plan and the as -graded drawing, required
reports and statements of compliance consistent with section 18. 08. 030 and Chapter
18. 44 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code have been submitted. 

23. The Developer and Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the
recommendations of the requirements of the Storm Water Quality Management Plan
SWQMP) prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program

Coordinator. 

24. The exterior boundary of the subdivision and all lot corners shall be monumented
with permanent monuments in accordance with Section 16. 12. 250 to the satisfaction

of the City Engineer. 

PRIOR TO BUILDING FINAL, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH
THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the project, including public street improvements, shown on
the approved building, landscape, grading, improvement and related plans shall be
located substantially where they are shown and shall be constructed in accordance
with appropriate City Codes. 

2. Permanent residential three- dimensional street numbers, minimum 4 inches in

height, shall be provided on the address side of the building at the highest point and
furthest projection of the structure. The address shall be visible form the street and

shall not be obstructed in any manner. 

3. Comply with the new " solar ready" requirements in Title 24 ( Section 110. 10). This

includes reserved solar zones on the roof, conduit installation, 200 amp service, etc. 

me



Attachment B

F

24... 

4. Prior to Fire Department clearance for occupancy, an automatic fire sprinkler system
shall be installed. The system shall comply with NFPA # 13- D Standard for Automatic

Fire Sprinkler Systems -Single Family Dwelling. Three ( 3) sets of plans, hydraulic
calculations, and material specifications sheets for all equipment used in the system

shall be submitted by a State of California Licensed C- 16 Contractor for review, 
approval, and permits issued prior to commencing work. 

5. All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24. 

6. The developer/ owner shall be required to repair and/ or replace any damaged public
improvements fronting the project and within 100 feet to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. 

PRIOR TO RECORDATION OF A FINAL MAP, THE SUBDIVIDER/ APPLICANT SHALL
COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. All physical elements of the project, excepting improvements for buildings, including
public street improvements, shown on the approved building, landscape, grading, 
improvement and related plans shall have obtained final approval or appropriate
securities associated with such improvements shall be provided for in accordance

with appropriate City Codes. 

2. The property owner shall execute an agreement imposing restrictions on real
property within the development in which the Owner agrees to reserve four ( 4) 

parcels with dwelling units as provided in Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0061 in association
with Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0002 ( hereafter called the " affordable
units") in the Project exclusively for sale and/ or occupancy by moderate -income
households whose annual income does not exceed 80 to 120 percent of the San
Diego area median income ( AMI) as determined by the California Department of
Housing and Community Development ( HCD). The affordable units shall be

maintained for 45 years for owner -occupied dwelling units and 55 years for rentals. 
The moderate income households occupying the affordable units shall expend no
more than 30 percent of the gross household income on all housing costs related to
their designated affordable unit as determined by the Development Services
Department. These covenants or restrictions shall be recorded in the office of the

County Recorder for each unit of real property subject to this subdivision in a form
acceptable to the City Attorney. Notwithstanding any other provision of the law, these
covenants or restrictions shall run with the land and shall be enforceable against the

original owner and successors in interest by the City or the community. The

affordable units shall be dispersed so that no two affordable units are directly
adjacent to one another. Certification of household income shall be established by
the Director. 

3. Street right-of-way shall be dedicated to the City prior to recordation of the final map. 
Specifically, the dedication shall include the 30 -foot frontage along Mallard Street
and the 3 -foot frontage on 69' h Street. The City will prepare the dedication
documents for signature. 

4. Submit a copy of the Preliminary Title Report, Subdivision Guarantee and Tax

Clearance Certificate no more than 60 days in advance of the recordation of the
Final Map to the City Engineer for review, 

5. The subdivider shall provide the City Engineer with one reproducible Mylar copy of
the final map for recordation. 



Attachment B

6. Each parcel shall be subject to inclusion into the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting
District which includes an annual assessment. 

7. A formal written request to add street lights to the Lemon Grove Lighting District shall
be submitted to the City of Lemon Grove Lighting District prior to permanently
energizing. If required, a deposit for the initial operation costs expended by the
Lighting District for the subject property shall be submitted until the units are placed
on the Tax Assessor' s yearly statement. 

8. Water improvement plans shall be approved by Heartland Fire & Rescue prior to

recordation. The developer shall furnish Heartland Fire & Rescue with three ( 3) 

copies of the water improvement plans designed by a Registered Engineer and/ or
Licensed Contractor. On- site fire service mains shall have a minimum of eight ( 8) 

inch water mains with six ( 6) inch laterals and risers. Larger pipes may be required to
meet required fire flow requirements. Fire hydrants shall provide one 4 -inch port and

2- 2 % ports and must be an approved fire hydrant type. 

9. Backflow prevention devices for private building sewers shall be required pursuant to
Section 710. 0 of the CBC ( 2000 UPC). 

10. Pay $ 85 for the preparation and recordation of each document as required for the
subject permit. 

11. The subdivider shall comply with Section 66436 of the Government Code by
furnishing to the City Engineer a certification from each public utility and each public
entity owning easements within the proposed subdivision stating that: a) they have
received from the developer a copy of the proposed final map; b) they object to/ do
not object to the filing of the map without their signature. In addition, the subdivider
shall furnish proof to the satisfaction of the City Engineer that no new encumbrances
have been created that would subordinate the City' s interest over areas to be
dedicated for public road purposes since submittal of the tentative map. 

12. The protection of the public interest requires that the subdivider, contractors, 

builders, lot or parcel owners, and other persons, firms, and corporations concerned

with the development of said subdivision conform to the following standards, and all
permits required by the City of Lemon Grove will be issued pursuant to such
standards: 

a. All domestic water supplied for this subdivision shall come from Helix Water

District. 

b. All buildings constructed for this subdivision shall be connected to the public

sewer system ( proposed to connect to City of San Diego sewer system). 
Appropriate sewer permits shall be obtained with payment of capacity and
related fees. 

c. The project shall comply with applicable provisions of Title 15 ( Buildings and
Construction. 

d. Sewer and water lines shall not be laid in the same trench in any part of this
subdivision. 

e. Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this subdivision as to prevent

ponding and/ or storage of surface water and shall be in compliance with the
NPDES permit to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Coordinator and the City
Engineer. 

25- 



Attachment B

13. The final map shall show or provide for the following: 

a. The design and area of all lots and the design of the final map shall be in
substantial conformance to that shown on the approved tentative map to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

b. The final map shall indicate that this project is a planned development for twelve
12) dwelling units. 

c. The final map shall include the signature of the Development Services Director
prior to recording. 

d. The final map shall identify any easements indicated within the Title Report, 
proposed on the approved Tentative Map, and as required by the Lemon Grove
Fire Department or City Engineer. 

e. The Final Map shall include all easements as shown on Tentative Subdivision
Map TMO- 000- 0061 in association with Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 

0002, including but not limited to private sewer, utility, drainage, and open space, 
and public access and emergency access easements. 

f. A note shall be placed on the final map indicating that domestic water supplied
for this project shall come from Helix Water District. 

14. Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions ( CC& Rs) shall be submitted to the City for
review and shall be written to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director

and the City Engineer. The CC& Rs shall include the conditions herein to the
satisfaction of the Fire Marshal, Water Quality Program Coordinator, City Engineer, 
and Development Services Director and shall be recorded prior to or concurrent with

the final map and shall include but not be limited to the following: 
a. The Developer, Current and Future Property Owners shall adhere to the CC& Rs

approved for this project. 

b. The formation of a home owner' s association ( HOA) with maintenance

responsibilities is required. 

c. A Best Management Practices ( BMP' s) and a Private Driveway and Drainage
Maintenance Agreement to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. The

maintenance and the preservation of drainage and BMP facilities shall be

included. 

d. The CC& Rs shall identify and implement the BMP' s identified in the SWQMP
prepared for this project and state that the Developer, Current and Future

Property Owners shall comply with the recommendations of the SWQMP
prepared for this project to the satisfaction of the Water Quality Program
Coordinator and the City Engineer. Funding of the long term maintenance of all
facilities required by the SWAMP shall be included in the annual HOA budget. 

e. A long- term operation and maintenance program ( OMP) will be a requirement
and the responsibility of HOA to maintain. Funding for the program is required to
be accounted for in the annual budget of the HOA. 

f. The CC& Rs shall include on- going maintenance of landscaping and irrigation
private and within public right- of-way fronting the property) of slopes, parkways, 

open space and park areas as illustrated on approved landscape and irrigation

plans ( Exhibit A). This Exhibit A shall be included in the CC& Rs. All landscaping
shall be well maintained in a healthy growing condition at all times in substantially

sm



Attachment B

the same condition as approved in accordance with the approved landscape and
irrigation plans. Sprinkler heads shall be adjusted so as to prevent overspray
upon the public sidewalk or the street. The proposed sprinkler heads shall be

installed behind the sidewalk, and the irrigation mainline upon private property

only, as required by the City. The HOA or, its successors or assigns, shall
remove and relocate all irrigation items from the public right-of-way at no cost to
the City, and within a reasonable time frame upon a written notification by the
City Engineer. An Encroachment, Maintenance, and Removal Agreement shall
be signed and recorded prior to recordation of the final map or building
permitting. The City will provide the template for the agreement. 

g. Immediate removal of graffiti and any other type of offensive debris is required. 

h. All garage doors shall be automatic roll -up type doors and equipped with remote
control devices. 

i. All garages shall be available for required off-street parking ( 18 foot wide by 19
foot deep interior clear space) at all times. 

j. No parking is permitted within the private street, pedestrian pathways, or

designated fire lane area at any time. Parking on- site is only permitted within
designated parking spaces and within the dwelling units' garages. 

k. Maintain the drainage facilities and any access easements ( where they occur) on
the property. 

I. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light

downward, away from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

m. The property shall comply with all performance standards relating to the
generation of noise, glare, dust, and odor. 

n. If any fire hydrant is taken " OUT OF SERVICE," Heartland Fire & Rescue shall

be notified immediately and the hydrant marked, bagged, or otherwise identified
as " OUT OF SERVICE" as directed by the Fire Marshal. 

o. Designated fire apparatus streets and turn- arounds shall be maintained

accessible and usable by emergency vehicles. Usable conditions include but are
not limited to the following: 

An all- weather road surface shall be maintained. 

ii. Road shall support imposed loads of fire apparatus at 75, 000 pounds. 

iii. No parking -fire lane signs shall be repaired or replaced as needed. 

iv. Fire lanes shall remain free at all times of any obstruction including but
not limited to: vehicles, storage, debris, etc. 

V. Fire lane or hammerhead turn -around shall maintain an unobstructed

width of 20 feet and a minimum 13' 6" vertical clearance. 

p. Trees shall not grow within five feet of any proposed chimneys. 

q. Safety features including fire sprinklers, ignition resistant construction, smoke
and carbon monoxide detectors and fire resistive landscaping shall be

maintained in accordance with California Fire Code, California Building Code, 
California Vehicle Code ( fire lanes), City Municipal Code and any other
applicable codes. 

M



Attachment B

r. All trash and recycling receptacles are required to be within the individual
residences of the proposed planned development at all times, except that one

recycling container and one refuse container per dwelling unit is permitted
directly outside of the individual dwelling unit' s garage within ten hours of the
trash pick- up times specified by EDCO waste and recycling company. 

s. Rooftop mechanical equipment, including but not limited to heating, air

conditioning and ventilating equipment, shall be screened so that it may not be
seen from the level of adjacent streets and sidewalks. 

The use of barbed wire or razor ribbon on any fences, gates, or walls is

prohibited. 

u. Ongoing maintenance of the onsite private sewer is required. 

The CC& Rs shall clearly establish the responsibilities of the individual home
owners and the HOA with regard to the continuing maintenance and preservation
of the project. 

w. The CC& Rs shall specifically limit the number of dwelling units to twelve ( 12) on
the site. 

x. The CC& Rs shall give the City the right but not the duty to enter the premises to
do maintenance and levy assessments if the home owners fail or refuse to
maintain said facilities, and shall forbid amendments to the CC& Rs without

express written consent of the City. 

y. Common open space areas shall be well maintained at all times ( e. g., bike racks, 

barbeques, tables, landscape, signage, and public art features). 

z. Street trees along the roadway shall not obstruct the ability of fire apparatus
access and fire department aerial operations. Tree height and type should be
considered in the ultimate landscape design. 

G. The terms and conditions of the Tentative Subdivision Map shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to Planned Development Permit PDP -150-0002 and the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal

corporations, public agencies, and districts. 

H, This Tentative Subdivision Map approval expires on April 19, 2018 or such longer period
as may be extended by State Law or through time extensions approved by the
Development Services Director or City Council. A Final Map must be recorded within
two ( 2) years ( excluding extensions granted by State Law) from the date of approval
unless time extension is granted. 

The subdivider shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless, the City and any
agency thereof, and/ or any of its officers, employees, and agents from any and all
claims, actions, or proceedings against the City, or any agency or instrumentality
thereof, or any of its officers, employees, or agents to attack, set aside, void, or annul, 
an approval of the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, advisory agency, 
appeal board, or legislative body, including actions approved by the voters of the City, 
concerning the project. City shall promptly notify the applicant/ subdivider of any claim, 
action, or proceeding brought within this time period, and City shall further cooperate
fully

Wil



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING PLANNED

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP -150- 0002 AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A

TWELVE UNIT SINGLE- FAMILY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PROJECT ON A 1. 59 -ACRE
UNDEVELOPED SITE AT 6800 MALLARD STREET, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA. 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Lorraine Weiland of Infill Development Company, filed a
complete application for a Planned Development Permit Modification PDP -150- 0002 in

association with and a Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0061 on March 17, 2016 to authorize

development of a 12 unit single- family planned development in association with the subdivision
of 1. 59 acres of land into 12 residential lots, a lot for a private street, and an open space lot on

an undeveloped site located at the 6800 Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, California; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact ( ND16- 03) will be filed

subsequent to its adoption and the approval of the proposed project. The Initial Environmental

Study prepared for this project found that the project would have no significant effect on the
environment. A notice of intent to adopt a negative declaration was filed with the County Clerk
prior to the City Council public hearing; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on April 19, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following Planned Development
Permit findings of fact, as required by Section 17. 28. 030( C), can be made as follows: 

1. That the development is not detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, or general
welfare. 

a. The City Council finds that the design of the proposed project complies, or will be
made to comply with all of the applicable requirements of the City Zoning Ordinance
relating to public safety and no such detriment should occur. 

2. That the development complies with applicable provision of the Zoning Ordinance ( Title
17) and/ or deviations that comply with applicable provisions in subsection D of the
Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28. 030). 

a. The City Council finds that the proposed project complies with, or conditions have
been included for this project to require it comply with the Zoning Ordinance
requirements relating to off-street parking, screening, and landscaping and waivers
or modifications to the minimum lot area, width, and depth, setbacks, and usable

open space requirements are offset by the provision of enhanced pedestrian oriented
design and a direct pedestrian connection to 69th Street, open space and

recreational/ outdoor amenities, and the provision of four affordable housing units.. 

3. That the development is consistent with general plan policies and standards and other

applicable plans or policies adopted by the City Council. 

a. The City Council finds that the planned development is consistent with the General
Plan policies and standards because the General Plan allows residential

development at the form and scale proposed; and

4. That the development density or intensity does not exceed general plan limitations. 

N1



Attachment C

a. The City Council finds that the planned development of 12 single- family dwelling
units at a density of 9. 7 dwelling units per acre in the Low/ Medium Density
Residential land use designation of the General Plan, including the requested density
bonus to allow four affordable dwelling units pursuant to California State law, is
consistent with the General Plan because it complies with density bonus regulations
and provides affordable housing pursuant to the goals of the City' s Housing Element; 
and

5. That the existing infrastructure such as utilities, transportation systems, and

communications networks adequately serve the development or will be upgraded to
efficiently accommodate the additional burdens imposed. 

a. This Commission finds that public improvements proposed on Mallard Street allow
for safe circulation of pedestrian, bicyclists, and motor vehicles and improves the

general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the following deviations as permitted
by the Planned Development Permit regulations ( Section 17. 28.020D) are adequately offset by
equivalent benefits associated with enhanced pedestrian and bicycle improvements, landscape, 
open space and recreational/ outdoor amenities: 

1. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 020D3 ( Minimum Yards) to allow reduced front setbacks
minimum 25' is required, 17' to 20' is proposed); the side setback ( minimum 5' is

required, 4' is proposed); and the rear setback ( minimum 20' is required, 17' to 35' is
proposed); and

2. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 020D1 ( Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size

minimum 6, 000 sq. ft. is required, minimum 2, 715 sq. ft. is proposed); and

3. A deviation of 17. 16. 020D2 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot

dimensions ( minimum 60' wide by 90' deep required, minimum 34' wide by minimum 67
feet deep provided); and

4. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 020D5 ( Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced

open space ( minimum 1, 500 sq. ft. per dwelling unit or 18, 000 common usable open
space required, 12, 771 sq. ft. of common usable open space for the project or an
average of 1, 064 sq. ft. per lot provided); and

5. A deviation of Section 16. 16. 291A ( Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the

reduction of the minimum building envelope ( minimum 28' wide by 50' deep is required, 
minimum 26' wide by 37' deep provided); and

6. Deviations of Section 16. 12. 220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street, 
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows: 

a. Minimum 56' wide public street right-of-way required; 20' and 36' private street lot
width provided; and

b. Minimum 5' wide landscaped parkways required; 4' wide landscaped parkways

provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0061 associated
with Planned Development Permit PDP - 150- 0002; and



Attachment C

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the ; City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California hereby: 

SECTION 1. Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2. Modifies the following Development Standards in accordance with Section
17. 28. 020D ( Deviations): 

1. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 020D3 ( Minimum Yards) to allow reduced front setbacks
minimum 25' is required, 17' to 20' is proposed); the side setback ( minimum 5' is

required, 4' is proposed); and the rear setback ( minimum 20' is required, 17' to 35' is
proposed); and

2. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 020D1 ( Minimum Site Area) to allow reduced lot size

minimum 6, 000 sq. ft. is required, minimum 2, 715 sq. ft. is proposed); and

3. A deviation of 17. 16. 020D2 ( Minimum Site Width and Depth) to allow reduced lot

dimensions ( minimum 60' wide by 90' deep required, minimum 34' wide by minimum 67
feet deep provided); and

4. A deviation of Section 17. 16. 020D5 ( Minimum Usable Open Space) to allow reduced

open space ( minimum 1, 500 sq. ft. per dwelling unit or 18, 000 common usable open
space required, 12, 771 sq. ft. of common usable open space for the project or an
average of 1, 064 sq. ft. per lot provided); and

5. A deviation of Section 16. 16. 291A ( Residential Lot Design Standards) to allow the

reduction of the minimum building envelope ( minimum 28' wide by 50' deep is required, 
minimum 26' wide by 37' deep provided); and

6. Deviations of Section 16. 12. 220 related to all units fronting on a dedicated public street, 
where instead a private street is provided with pedestrian paths on both sides as follows: 

a. Minimum 56' wide public street right- of-way required; 20' and 36' private street lot
width provided; and

b. Minimum 5' wide landscaped parkways required; 4' wide landscaped parkways

provided; and

c. Parking on both sides of street required; no parking on private street provided except
one parallel space; and

SECTION 3. Conditionally Approves Planned Development Permit PDP -150- 0002 in conjunction
with Tentative Map TMO- 000-0061 and the grading, site, landscape, and architectural plans
dated received March 17, 2016 ( incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A), except as noted

herein. This approval authorizes the development of a 1. 59 acre parcel into 12 single- family
residential units with associated common area improvements on an undeveloped site at 6800
Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, California. Except as amended, the approval of this project shall

be subject to the following conditions: 

A. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PDP -150- 0002: 

1. All physical elements shown on the approved plans dated March 17, 2016 shall be

located substantially where they are shown, except as noted herein, and shall be

constructed in accordance with the Municipal Code. The Development Services Director

has the authority to allow modifications to the approved plans when the modifications are

M



Attachment C

found to be in substantial conformance ( minor deviations in colors, roof and siding
material acceptable) and in compliance with the Municipal Code and General Plan. 

2. Pay parkland fees, school fees, Helix Water District Capacity fees, Regional

Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( RTCIP) fees, and other applicable
development fees. 

3. Record the Final Map for TMO- 000- 0061 unless otherwise determined by the
Development Services Director. 

4. A two -car garage is required for each single- family residence with appropriate access. 
5. An 18 foot wide by 19 foot clear space is required within all required two -car garages. 

6. All garage doors shall be equipped with an automatic roll -up garage door and remote
control. 

7. Note a minimum of one ceiling -mounted bike rack shall be provided within each garage. 
8. Show the location, height, and materials of all fencing. 
9. Submit a landscape documentation package in compliance with Chapter 18. 44. The

documentation package shall include a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the
entire project. Provide reference sheets for the grading and landscape erosion control
plans. The plan shall indicate all surface improvements including but not limited to the
design and locations of all walls, fences, driveways, walkways, botanical and common
names of all plant materials, number, size and location of all plantings; all irrigation lines

including valves and back- flow devices; and soil amendments. Said landscape plan

shall comply with the requirements of Section 17. 24. 050( 6) and Chapter 18. 44 of the
Municipal Code. The landscape plan shall be in substantial conformance to the
approved landscape concept plan. 

10. The building plans for the proposed condominium units shall include a color and
materials board to the satisfaction of the Development Services Director. A minimum of

four color schemes shall be provided for proposed wood siding, lower roofs, and

composite shingle roofing; three schemes shall be provided for stone columns; and two
color schemes shall be provided for garage doors and wood trims. 

11. All dwelling units shall comply with the interior noise level requirements of California
Code Title 24. 

12. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

13. Vehicular sight distance of all driveway entrances shall be to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. 

14. Each dwelling unit in the development shall be protected with an approved automatic fire
suppression sprinkler system to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

15. The private driveway is to be designated as a Fire Lane. Fire lanes ( 20 -foot clear with

no parking) and fire lane markings shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Lemon

Grove Fire Department along the private vehicular driveway within the project. The fire

lane will be designated per City Fire Department standards and shall be marked and
posted " No Parking -Fire Lane" and the curb shall be painted red to the satisfaction of the
City of Lemon Grove Fire District. A final inspection by the Fire Department shall be
required to confirm compliance with this requirement prior to the construction with

combustible materials and final occupancy. 

WN



Attachment C

16. All access roadways and driveways shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance of 13'- 
6" to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal. 

17. Install only high efficiency appliances, use only high -efficiency watering technologies, 
and landscape using low -water -use plants as follows: 

a. Install the following indoor fixtures: 

i. High -efficiency toilets ( 1. 28 gallons or less per flush); 

ii. High -efficiency dishwashers ( Energy Star, WaterSense or equivalent); 

iii. High -efficiency clothes washers ( 3. 7 water factor or lower); and

iv. Low -flow shower heads ( 2. 0 gallons per minute or less). 

b. Install dedicated meters for common area outdoor water use. Enroll all new irrigation

meters ( except those at single- family residences) in the Helix Water Budget Program
and provide documentation of irrigated landscape area at the time of meter
purchase. 

c. Install automatic irrigation controllers with a rain sensor that utilize either

evapotranspiration ( weather - based) or soil moisture data and install high -efficiency, 
matched -precipitation rate sprinkler nozzles at all residential landscapes and
common areas. 

18. The project shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California Fire Code and the
California Building Code. 

B, PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION
AUTHORIZED BY PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT MODIFICATION PDP -150- 
0002: 

1. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans dated March

17, 2016 except as noted herein, shall be located substantially where they are shown
and shall be constructed in accordance with applicable Lemon Grove City Codes to the
satisfaction of the Development Services Director. 

2. The color palette shall be consistent with the conceptual drawing on the approved plans
dated March 17, 2016 and the color and materials board to the satisfaction of the
Development Services Director. 

3. A minimum of one ceiling -mounted bike rack shall be provided within each garage. 

4. Schedule a Helix Water District inspection for compliance with water efficiency
requirements. 

5. E -file FAA Form 7460- 2 to the Federal Aviation Administration, Notice of Actual

Construction or Alteration within five days after the construction reaches its greatest

height. 

C, UPON ESTABLISHMENT OF USE IN RELIANCE WITH TENTATIVE MAP REVISION: 

1. Comply with all of the Conditions of this resolution and the requirements of TMO- 000- 
0061, as applicable. 

2. All physical elements of the project shown on the approved grading, improvement, 

building, landscape, and related plans shall be maintained and located substantially
where they are in accordance with appropriate City Codes. 

3. 

M



Attachment C

4. The City approved CC& Rs shall be abided by at all times. 
5. All landscaping shall be well maintained and adequately watered at all times. The

landscaping located on the subject property shall be maintained in a healthy and
growing condition at all times. All on- site & off- site landscaped areas shall be planted

and irrigated by a permanent irrigation system. 

6. The proposed facility shall fully comply with the requirements of the California Fire Code
to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief. 

7. All fences and walls on the subject property shall be maintained in good condition at all
times. 

8. All light fixtures shall be designed, shielded and adjusted to reflect light downward, away
from any road or street, and away from any adjoining premises. 

9. All graffiti shall be removed or painted over with a paint that closely matches the color of
the exterior of the building within 48 hours of the discovery of the graffiti. 

10. Any deviations proposed from the approved plans relating to the construction of facilities
and maintenance of improvements shall substantially conform to the approved plans
dated March 17, 2016 to the satisfaction of the Development Services Department. 

D. This approval of this Planned Development Permit will expire two years from the date of
approval or such longer period as may be extended by State Law ( the Planned

Development Permit will be extended automatically with any extensions required of
Tentative Map TMO- 000- 0061 in accordance with State Law). 

E, The terms and conditions of the Planned Development Permit shall be binding upon the
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property
subject to this Planned Development Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public

agencies, and districts. 

34- 



1

2. 

0

CI

5. 

6. 

7. 

Attachment D

NENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FORM

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND16- 03

Project Title: Tentative Subdivision Map ( TMO- 000- 0061), Planned Development Permit ( PDP -150- 

0002) 

Lead Agency Name and Address

Contact Person and Phone Number: 

Project Location: 

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

David De Vries, Development Services Director

619) 825- 3812

6800 Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Assessor' s Parcel Number: 479- 402- 23- 00

Project Sponsor' s Name and Address: Lorraine Weiland, Infill Development Company, 771
Jamacha Rd., # 516, EI Cajon, CA 92019 Phone: ( 619) 334- 5200

General Plan Designation: The subject property is designated as Low/ Medium Density Residential
4. 1 to 7 dwelling units per acre) on the Land Use Element of the General Plan. 

Zoning: The subject property is located in the Residential Low/ Medium ( RL/ M) zone. 

8. Description of the Project: The proposed project is a request for a Tentative Subdivision Map and
a Planned Development Permit to authorize a 14 -lot subdivision on a 1. 59 acre parcel, including 12
residential lots, one private street lot and one common area lot, and a Planned Development Permit

with a total of 12 single- family dwelling units ( four restricted to moderate -income households), 
including common open space, pedestrian paths, all -ages play equipment, lighting, landscaping, and
other improvements. The project site is a vacant lot located at 6800 Mallard Street, Lemon Grove, 

CA. 

9. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: The subject vacant parcel is located on the north side of

Mallard Street directly across from the intersection of Springfield Street and Mallard Street
approximately 140 feet west of 69th Street. To the north, south, east and west are single- family
residential land uses. 

10. Other public agencies whose approval is required ( e. g. permits, financing approval, or

participation agreement): None known. 

35- 



Attachment D

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: 

The environmental factors highlighted below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at leaSL
one impact that is a " Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages. 

Aesthetics Greenhouse Gas Emissions Population/ Housing

Agricultural --------- -- - .. _,.__, - ricu ltu I Resources
Hazards & Hazardous

Public Services
Materials

Air Quality Hydrology/ Water Quality Recreation
a . .....-- 

Biological Resources

1. .............. -- . ...... 

Land Use/ Planning Transportation/ Traffic

Cultural Resources Mineral Resources Utilities/ Service Systems

Geology/ Soilsgy s Noise Mandatory Findings of
Significance

DETERMINATION: To be completed by the Lead Agency) 
On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

X I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will

not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agree( 
to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

find that the proposed project MAY have a " potential significant impact" or " potentially significant
unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but a least one effect ( 1) has been adequately
analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and ( 2) has been addressed
by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to
be addresses. 

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because
all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed in and earlier EIR or NEGATIVE
DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards and ( b) have been avoided or mitigated to that
earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are
imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

David De Vries. Develor-,mientmServices Director City of Lemonm Grove
Printed Name For

March 24, 2016

IIS



Attachment D

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact" answers that are adequately

supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each
question. A " No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show
that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved ( e. g. the project falls outside a
fault rupture zone). A " No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on the project - 

specific factors as well as general standards ( e. g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to
pollutants, based on a project. 

2, All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on- site, 
cumulative as well as project level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational

impacts. 

3„ Once the lead agency has determined that a particularly physical impact may occur, then the
checklist answers must indicated whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant
with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is
substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more " Potentially
Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. 

4, " Negative Declaration: Potentially Significant Unless Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the

incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from " Potentially Significant Impact" to a
Less Significant Impact". The lead agency musty describe the mitigation measures, and briefly

explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level ( mitigation measures from Section
17, " Earlier Analysis", may be cross- referenced). 

5. Earlier analysis may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR or other CEQA process, 
and effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063

c) ( 3) ( d). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 
a) Earlier Analysis used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 
b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were

within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to
applicable legal standards, and state whether such effect were addressed by mitigation
measures based on the earlier analysis, 

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures

Incorporated" describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined

from the earlier document and extent to which they address site- specific conditions

for the project. 

6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for

potential impacts ( e. g. general plans, zoning ordinances, etc.). Reference to a previously prepared
or outside document should where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the

statement is substantiated. 

7. Supporting Information Sources: a source list should be attached and other sources use d or
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8. This is only a suggested form and lead agencies are free to use different formats: however, lead
agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that relevant to the project' s
environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

37- 



Attachment D

9. The analysis of each issue should identify: ( a) the significance criteria or threshold used to evaluate

each question; and ( b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less tha, 
significance. 

ISSUES AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1, AESTHETICS. Would the Project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to trees, rock outcroppings, and
historic buildings within a state scenic? 

C) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings? 
d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or nighttime

views in the area? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X_ Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The subject property is not located in or near a scenic vista or scenic highway. The site is currently vacant. 
Eleven mature trees exist onsite that are proposed to be removed. Forty- nine new trees are proposed to be
planted. The project is proposed to be built at a height permitted by the General Plan and the development
standards of the Zoning Ordinance. The project proposes 12 single-family residences, which, since the site
is currently vacant, will change the look of the property. Night time lighting of new residences may occur as
a result of this project. Glare onto adjacent public -rights -of -ways is required to be reduced to a level of nc
impacts. Aesthetic impacts are expected to be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

2, AGRICULTURE RESOURCES: In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land
Evaluation and Site Assessment Model ( 1997) prepared by the California Department of

Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. Would
the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland or Farmland of Statewide Importance ( Farmland), as

shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency to non- agricultural use? 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 
C) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result

in conversion of Farmland to non- agricultural use? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is located within a developed suburban residential area. The property is not located in an area
used for agricultural purposes and no such impacts will occur. 
Source: 1, 2

38- 



Attachment D

3. AIR QUALITY: Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality
management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. 
Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 
b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality

violation? 

C) Results in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project
region is non -attainment under any applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard ( including
releasing emissions, which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors? 

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project may result in a very slight increase in traffic and no significant impact on air resources is likely to
occur. While the proposed project may result in a slight increase in vehicular traffic and a slight increase in
air quality impacts to the region, the MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan anticipates air quality
impacts associated with the build out of Lemon Grove but not to a level of significance. The cumulative air

quality impacts will remain significant and unmitigated. However, this project is not considered to result in a

cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Potential temporary impacts could occur
due to grading, building construction, and paving. Standard conditions of project approval consistent with
the San Diego Air Pollution Control District' s Rule 55 will require the control of fugitive dust during site
grading and construction. 

Source: 1, 2

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect either directly or through habitat modifications on any species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or

regulations, or by the California Department of fish and Game or U. S. Fish and Wildlife service? 
b) Have a substantially adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community

identified in local or regional plan, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and
Game or U. S. Wildlife service? 

C) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the
Clean Water Act ( including but not limited to march vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, 
filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any resident, migratory wildlife species or with

established native resident migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery
sites? 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree

preservation policy or ordinance? 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Conservation

Community Plan and other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

on



Attachment D

Discussion: 

The subject property is currently vacant and located in a developed suburban area consisting of single
family residential land uses. The MEIR for the City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan confirms there are no
known sensitive biological resources, riparian habitat or wetlands on the subject property. 
Source: 1, 2

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project. 
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in Section

15064. 5? 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to
Section 15064. 5? 

C) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature? 
d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The subject property is currently vacant. There are no known cultural resources located on the property. 
There are no known human remains or those interred outside of formal cemeteries on the subject property
or in the surrounding area. The site is underlain by the San Diego formation which has a very high potential
to contain paleontological resources. This formation typically contains important marine mammal and
invertebrate fossils. Grading will occur on- site, but will not impact the San Diego Formation. 

A standard condition of approval will require the project proponent to conduct a cultural resources records
search and a Sacred Lands File search of the project area to determine if there is likelihood for on- site

Native American cultural resources. A copy of a letter regarding the records search shall be provided to the
Development Services Department prior to issuance of grading or improvement permits. The report shall
provide recommendations for further analysis and those recommendations shall be implemented as a part
of the mitigation measures. Potential impacts to cultural resources will be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2, 5

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury
or death involving: ( i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent

Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area based on the
other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special
Publication 42. ( ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ( iii) Seismic - related ground failure, including
liquefaction? ( iv) Landslides? 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 
C) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of

the project, and potentially result in on- or off- site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 

liquefaction or collapse? 

d) Locate on the expansive soil, as defined in Table 18- 1- b of the Uniform Building Code ( 1997), 

creating substantial risks to life or property? 
e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water

disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? 

N



Attachment D

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The subject property is currently vacant. Site development will consist of removal and compaction of the
upper three feet of the soil in the area of proposed construction. The proposed structures will be required to

comply with the current seismic requirements of the California Building Code. Like most urban areas in

Southern California, Lemon Grove is subject to earthquakes. The project site is not located in an

Earthquake Fault Zone according to the Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act and no active faults or
ground ruptures have been mapped underlying the site or within the City of Lemon Grove. Active regional

faults may cause ground shaking in Lemon Grove. Liquefaction is considered unlikely at this site. 
Landslide and earth movement is not a likely hazard to the site. There are no known unstable soils in the

area of the subject property. Typical erosion control measures will be required during site grading. No

significant geotechnical or geologic constraints exist. New structures on the subject property will be
required to comply with the current seismic requirements of the California Building Code ( CBC). The subject

property will be connected to the Lemon Grove municipal sewer system. Compliance with the CBC and the
City' s building permit process and inspection would result in less than significant impacts. 
Source: 1, 2, 5

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact
on the environment? 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the
emissions of greenhouse gases? 

Potentially Significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The City of Lemon Grove is located within the San Diego County Air Basin. The six greenhouse gases are
carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulfur hexafluoride. The
project will not generate significant GHG emissions. During grading and project construction, a temporary
increase in operational emissions may occur. Operational emissions include mobile source emissions and
building emissions. The San Diego Air Pollution Control District Rule 55 requires compliance with standard
fugitive dust control best management practices. The impact is expected to be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2, 3

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use or
disposal of hazardous materials? 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset
and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous materials into the environment? 

C) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or
waste within one- quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

M



Attachment D

d) 

e) 

f) 

g) 

h) 

Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous material sites complied pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962. 5 and , as a result would it create a significant hazard to the publi
or the environment? 

For a project located within an airport land use plan, or where such a plan has not been adopted, 

within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard for
people residing or working in the area? 
For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip would
people resident or working in the project area? 
Impair implementation of, or physically interfere with an
emergency evacuation plan? 

Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, 

including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas, 
wildlands? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact
X No Impact

the project result in a safety hazard for

adopted emergency response plan or

injury or death involving wildland fires, 
or where residences are intermixed with

Discussion: 

The site is to be developed as a residential project and will not create a hazardous environment through the
use or transport of hazardous materials. There are no known hazardous material sites within the city. 

The site is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of a public airport or public use
airport and no such detriment should occur. 

The proposed project will not impair implementation of or physically interfere with any emergency response
plan or evacuation plan because the project design and access has been reviewed and approved by the
Fire Department. 

The project is located within an urbanized area and there are no wildlands located within the vicinity of the
subject property. There will be no impact regarding hazards and hazardous materials. 
Source: 1, 2

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project: 
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 
b) Substantially degrade groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge

such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the groundwater table level
e. g. the production rate of pre- existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support

existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have been granted)? 
C) Substantially alter existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the

course of a stream or river, in a manner which would resulting a substantial erosion or siltation on- or
off- site? 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate of surface runoff in a manner which
would resulting flooding on- or off- site. 

e) Create or contribute runoff which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater
drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

MN



Attachment D

g) Place housing within a 100 -year floodplain on a Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance
Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 

h) Place within a 100 -year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect flood flows? 
i) Expose people or structures to significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including

flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 
j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project consists of 12 single- family units served by a private street accessing Mallard Street. 
The private street is proposed to utilize rolled curb and gutter. The site runoff will be collected within the
private street and conveyed to bioretention areas along the easterly property line. The design of the project
has been reviewed by the City of Lemon Grove Engineering Department in order to assess the need for
drainage improvements which have been included into the design of the project. According to the Drainage

Study prepared for the project, there are no major diversions of drainage that will create nuisances
downstream. The project will detain the proposed runoff so that the amount leaving the site will be equal to
or less than the amount leaving the site in the Existing Condition. This will be accomplished by the proposed
bioretention areas on the east side of the project site. The bioretention areas will also allow the runoff time

to infiltrate into the soil stratum, providing an opportunity for cleansing of pollutants. The bioretention areas
have been sized to accommodate the amount of proposed impervious surface attributed to them. 

The subject property is not located within a flood zone and is not subject to flooding. Hydrology and water
quality impacts would be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7

10. LAND USE PLANNING. Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community? 
b) Conflict with an applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agency with jurisdiction over the

project ( including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal program, or zoning
ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating environmental effect? 

C) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural communities' conservation plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The project will not divide the community. The General Plan Land Use designation for this site is Residential
Low/ Medium ( RL/ M), which allows up to seven dwelling units per net acre ( du/ ac). The gross area of the

site is 1. 59 acres. After required dedications and subtracting the area of the private street, the net area
would be 1. 24 acres. Based on the allowable density of up to seven du/ ac for the RL/ M designation, a
maximum of 8. 68 units would be allowed. With the density bonus, a maximum of 12 units would be allowed. 
The project proposes a density bonus to allow the construction of four dwelling units that are restricted to
moderate income households, which is consistent with the General Plan. There would be no land use

planning impacts. 
Source: 1, 2

43- 



Attachment D

11. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project: 
a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region am

the residents of the state? 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally -important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a
local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated
Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

There are no known mineral resources of value located within the City of Lemon Grove. There will be no
impact to mineral resources. 

Source: 1, 2, 5

12. NOISE. Would the project: 

a) Expose persons to or generate noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

b) Expose persons to or generate excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise levels? 
C) Result in a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels

existing without the project? 
d) Result in a substantially temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity

above levels existing without the project? 
e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been adopted

within two miles of a public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the
area to excessive noise levels? 

f) For a project within vicinity of a private airstrip would the project expose people residing or working
in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project is single- family residential in nature and will not introduce significant noise sources in
the vicinity that are inconsistent with the existing residential development of the area. The MEIR prepared
for the 1996 General Plan indicates that the subject property is located within an area encompassing 60 dB
CNEL noise levels or less. The MEIR states that projects with existing noise levels below 60 dB CNEL is
normally acceptable or satisfactory for the area and no conditions are required. The General Plan requires
noise studies only for projects exceeding 60 dB CNEL. This project proposes to maintain interior noise
levels at 45 dB CNEL or less as required by Title 24 of the California Building Code and the Lemon Grove
General Plan. The project is expected to generate temporary construction noise during site preparation and
grading, building construction, and paving. Conformance with the City' s Noise Abatement and Control
ordinance ( Chapter 9. 24 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code) is required for operation of any single or
combination of powered construction equipment at any construction site. The subject property is not located
within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. The noise impact would be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2

44- 



Attachment D

POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly ( for example, by proposing new
homes and businesses) or indirectly ( for example, through extension of roads or other

infrastructure)? 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing units, necessitating the construction of

replacement housing units elsewhere? 
C) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement housing

elsewhere? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project will not induce substantial population growth because the project is consistent with the Land use

Plan of the Community Development Element of the Lemon Grove General Plan and has been evaluated
under the MEIR for the General Plan. Four of the proposed units will be restricted to moderate -income

households, which assists the City in meeting its State -mandated affordable housing goals. The site is
currently vacant; therefore, the project does not displace existing housing units or numbers of people. The
impact to population and housing would be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2

14. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated

with the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for new or physically
altered government facilities, the construction which could cause significant environmental impacts, 

in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for

any of the public services: 
a) Fire protection? 

b) Police protection? 

C) Schools? 

d) Parks? 

e) Other public facilities? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in the demand for public services and facilities. 
The Fire Department, EDCO disposal service, Helix Water District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District and

the Sheriff' s Department have reviewed the proposed project and determined that existing services are

adequate to serve the increase in households proposed by the project. The impact to public services would
be less than significant. 

Source: 1, 2



Attachment D

15. RECREATION. Would the project: 
a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood or regional parks or other recreationF' 

facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 
b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of

recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not likely cause a significant increase in the demand on recreational services in
the community. Standard conditions of approval require the developer to pay a Parkland dedication in lieu
fee for each proposed dwelling unit. The project includes a 15, 254 square foot biofiltration area along the
east side of the site that will be incorporated into common area for the residents with a decomposed granite

walking path, an all -ages play structure, site furnishings, lighting, and numerous gathering spaces. The
impact to recreation would be less than significant. 
Source: 1, 2, 10

16. TRANSPORTATION/ TRAFFIC. Would the project: 
a) Cause an increase in the traffic which is substantial in relation to the existing traffic load and

capacity of the street system ( i. e., resulting a substantial increase in either the number of vehicle
trips, the volume to capacity ratio on roads, or congestion at intersections? 

b) Exceed, either individually or cumulatively, a level of service standard established by the County
Congestion Management Agency for designated roads or highways? 

C) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change ir, 
location that result in substantial safety risks? 

d) Substantially increase hazards to a design feature ( e. g. sharp curves or dangerous intersection) or
incompatible uses ( e. g. farm equipment)? 

e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 
f) Result in inadequate parking capacity? 
g) Conflict with adopted policies or programs supporting alternative transportation ( e. g. bus turnouts, 

bicycle racks)? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project is located on the north side of Mallard Street in the City of Lemon Grove. It should be noted that
Mallard Street and 69th Street south of Mallard Street are located in the Community of Encanto in the City of
San Diego. The project includes a private street which will provide access to the residential lots. The private
street is designed with rolled curb and gutter, four -foot wide sidewalks, four -foot planted parkways, and

enhanced lighting on each side. The project will generate approximately 120 average daily trips ( ADT) 
based on a trip generation rate of 10 ADT for a single- family residence, or 120 trips for 12 single- family
residences. Based on the San Diego Traffic Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) and the Institute of

Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San

Diego Region, a Traffic Impact Study is not required because the project' s trip generation is calculated to be
less than 1, 000 ADT and less than 100 peak hour trips. The project does not increase the volume- to- 

46- 



Attachment D

capacity ratio by more than 0. 02 per the significance threshold of both the jurisdictions and therefore would
not have an impact on adjacent roadway segments. The 69th Street/ Mallard Street intersection is projected
to operate at Level of Service ( LOS) C or better with and without project conditions; therefore, the proposed

project would not have an impact under future conditions. 

The Fire Department and Engineering Department have determined that the private road is adequate to
provide access for the proposed project and emergency vehicles. The proposed project meets the City' s
parking requirements and provides required bike racks. There are no hazardous street design features
proposed. A sight distance analysis was provided and indicates there are no potential sight distance issues

that will result from project improvements. The project will be responsible for frontage improvements along

Mallard Street, including a 30 -foot street dedication along the length of the property on Mallard Street, and
construction of curb, gutter, and sidewalk along the south property line. The subject property is not located
within the vicinity of a private airstrip or public airport. Transportation and traffic impacts would be less than
significant. 

Source: 1, 2, 8, 9, 10

17. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board? 
b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of

existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects? 
C) Require or result in the construction of new storm drainage facilities or expansion of existing

facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects? 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment facilities which services or may serve the
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project' s projected demand in addition to the
provider' s existing commitments? 

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project' s solid waste
disposal needs? 

g) Comply with the federal, state, and local statues and regulations related to solid waste? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

Best Management Practices ( BMPs) will be implemented towards overall water quality. According to the
Drainage Study prepared for the project, there are no major diversions of drainage that will create
nuisances downstream. The project will detain the proposed runoff so that the amount leaving the site will
be equal to or less than the amount leaving the site in the Existing Condition. This will be accomplished by
the proposed bioretention areas on the east side of the project site. The bioretention areas will also allow

the runoff time to infiltrate into the soil stratum, providing an opportunity for cleansing of pollutants. The
bioretention areas have been sized to accommodate the amount of proposed impervious surface attributed

to them. 

The subject property is served by the City of Lemon Grove Sanitation District. The proposed project will not
result in a substantial increase in the demand for sanitary services. Standard conditions of project approval

will require that the project obtain sewer permits, pay sewer service and connection fees and connect to the
Sanitation District. 

47- 



Attachment D

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in demand for domestic water supplies. 

Standard conditions of project approval will require that the project obtain water service permits, pay th, 
water service and connection fees and connect to the Helix Water District. 

The proposed project will not result in a substantial increase in the generation of solid waste. The project

will be required to comply with all federal, State and local statutes and regulations regarding solid waste. 
Source: 1, 2, 6, 7, 10

18. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE. 

a) Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce
the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self- 
sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict
the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major

periods of California history or prehistory? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not degrade the quality of the environment because it is located in an area that is
built out with single- family residential land uses in a developed suburban community. The development of

the site does not support or influence critical habitat or sensitive vegetation or wildlife and there are no

examples of California history or prehistory onsite. 

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable'! 
Cumulatively Considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when

viewed in connection with the effects of the past projects, the effects of other current projects, and
the effects of probable future projects)? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

X Less Than Significant Impact

No Impact

Discussion: 

The project will result in a slight increase in the number of residents located within a suburban community
and will not have impacts that are cumulatively considerable. 

C) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human

beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Potentially significant Impact
Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated

Less Than Significant Impact

X No Impact

Discussion: 

The proposed project will not cause a substantial adverse effect on human beings. 
Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10

48- 



Attachment D

In view of the above analysis, it is determined that the project will not have a significant impact on
the environment and an environmental impact report is not required. 

EARLIER ANALYSIS

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, one or more
effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063 ( c)( 3)( D). 

Earlier Documents prepared and utilized in this analysis are listed below. All of the documents are available

at the City of Lemon Grove, Development Services Department, 3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove. 

Reference # Document Title

1. City of Lemon Grove General Plan
2, Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General Plan

3, City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code
4, Firm Insurance Rate Map Community Panel No. 06073C1910G May 16, 2012
5, Geotechnical Investigation, TM0061/ PDP150- 002, by Applied Consultants

11/ 18/ 2015) 

6, Drainage Study, TM0061/ PDP150- 002, by Polaris Development Consultants
1/ 26/ 2016) 

7 Storm Water Management Plan, TM0061/ PDP150- 002, by Polaris Development
Consultants ( 1/ 26/ 2016) 

8 Traffic Study for Mallard Court, prepared by Darnell & Associates ( 3/ 11/ 2008) 

9 Brief Guide of Vehicular Traffic Generation Rates for the San Diego Region, 

SANDAG ( April 2002) 

10, TMO- 000- 0061/ PDP- 150- 0002 application package

Individuals and Oraanizations Consulted

David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of Lemon Grove
Jeremiah Harrington, Assistant Engineer, City of Lemon Grove
Chris Jensen, Fire Marshal, Heartland Fire and Rescue

Kurt Culver, President and CEO, Esgil

Patricia Bluman, City Place Planning

EN



Attachment E

VICINITY MAP AND AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

Feet

0 30 60 120 180



Attachment F

LETTER FROM THE APPLICANT

September 17, 2015

David De Vries

City of Lemon Grove
Community Development Department
3232 Main Street
Lemon Grove, CA 9194S

RE Mallard Court Pr(Ject - Development Submittal

yVe are pleased to present to you this ' Development Submittal' for the Mallard Court Project in
the City of Lemon Grove. The pro' ect will ultimately consist of 12 affordable single family
homes for first firne/ entry level 11011- - Iuycrs, 

hifill De' velopale nt (!(' lmparly lull bcco' nde %'Cloping infill proie( Ax Onoughoul the

areas of San 1) ieago Comity ( or over 23 yearsIn doing, this, wc have been ' Very gut:xessful and
have become as in il"Ifill de' v('+ , I) l neml with it aaJluci.al tfllpImsis oil clulry level housing Ofir

onp t I if"Yn cd, lxnlneiillj: Willi cilses" ilivemor"", flon- pli"flils, and landsijcoe s is based on, "'i so "? fou I u,  I  

oNyhel' s" offering, slipedill, ';frchilei"'lund dc'; igll' laill'zing sop notch ca nstruclitul Practices, fuld
soo' k"illg otir wull o, Accdlvfit esislonier service, 

hi onr ( ' `ofripany Nfissiou Sl" Itelilent, hildl, Devt°iq> pinent Company is committed to providing
horfle' s cal the luj!'Ilesl qualily while always', striving for improvement. We also know that our

wiosiw are our to cxprcss a ifir abdiiiiw, and our intentions, in striving for these
1113filies" our pr( qo cacre' ilfwloys pkifillf"Id tk-,signed, constructed, and serviced with the. utmost

concel' a fol Illo, c6morlier and 0) a cou' unlo fill

Thore('ore, w order to improve oil our projects : moil to e' llhant"e, hilild," be anti( ( lie

V01111111111R)' we are providing you with this paclwpc foryoul, review to scebow wt's addressed the
i " If t e,si fordc, lgll, We went throng-Yi numerous at ; I ite

As a result, you can see that a proje, i such a; this can achieve Urc,,11 housing opportunities for the
community. Infill Development wilI again spend a considerahie aunount of time and energy on
the smallest details in older to pjeavj( lo ih( M ( Ay of Lemon Grove and its residents With a superior
entry level infill project that ew, fyoric van lfc1lefit from. 

If you have any cluestions or need more information please call and we look forward to working, 
with you on this project, 

Sincerely
NMI Company

David 1- 

771 Jamacha Road # 516 El Cajon, CA 9201 

p. 619. 334. 5200 f, 619, 334. 5800
e. infilidevelopment@yahoo. com

53- 



Attachment G

EXHIBIT " A" - PROJECT PLANS

55



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date - April 19, 2O16.
µ Dept. Development Services

Department Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider an Appeal AA1- 600- 0001 of the
Development Services Director Determination Regarding the Denial of a Home
Occupation Permit Application for General

Gunsmithing. Staff Contact: Pave DeVries, Development Services

Director Miranda Evans, Assistant

Planner

Recommendation: 1. Conduct the public hearing; 
and 2. Either adopta Resolution (Attachment B) upholding the Development Services

Director determination to deny the home occupation permit or adopta Resolution (Attachment
C) reversing the decision of the Development Services Director conditionally approving
the home occupation permit for general

gunsmithing. Item

Summary: On February 16, 2016, Mr. James Woods applied for a home occupation permit to perform
general gunsmithing ( which includes firearm service, repair, and restoration) from his single- family
home located at 8204 Blossom Hill Court. Upon submission of his home occupation permit, Mr. 

Woods was informed that gunsmithing is not shown as a permitted use ora conditionally permitted
use within the City of Lemon Grove. For this reason, the Home Occupation permit was denied. 

Mr. Woods is appealing this determination prohibiting general gunsmithing in his home. The
staff report outlines Mr. Wood's administrative appeal request in more

detail. Fiscal

Impact: 

None. Environmental

Review: Not subject to

review Exempt, 

Section _. Public

Information: None  Newsletter

article Notice published in local

newspaper

Attachments: A. Staff

Report B. Resolution of

Denial C. Resolution of Conditional

Issuance D. Home Occupation Permit

Application Negative

Declaration Mitigated Negative

Declaration Tribal Government Consultation

Request Notice to property owners within 500

ft. E. Applicant' s

Letter F. Director

Determination G. Appeal

Application H. Aerial and Vicinity



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Attachment A

Item Title: : Public Hearing to Consider an Appeal AA1- 600- 0001 of the Development
Services Director Determination Regarding the Denial of a Home Occupation
Permit Application for General Gunsmithing. 

Staff Contact: Dave DeVries, Development Services Director

Miranda Evans, Assistant Planner

Background;. 

On February 16, 2016, James Woods applied for a home occupation permit for general

gunsmithing under the business name CJ' s Custom Shop. Gunsmithing relates to firearm repair, 
modification and manufacturing. Mr. Woods was informed by staff that the term " gunsmithing" is
not specified as a permitted use in any zone in the City and therefore would not be allowed as a
home occupation in the Residential Low/ Medium Zone. Staff met with Mr. Woods and

suggested that a zoning amendment be applied for to allow the City Council to consider
gunsmithing and related restrictions as a home occupation or permitted use in commercial
zones in the City and the applicant opted for an appeal of the decision to deny the home
occupation application. The same day, Mr. Woods was issued an official letter of denial for his
home occupation permit from the Development Services Department. 

On February 25, 2016, Mr. Woods filed an appeal application stating that the denial of a home
occupation permit was unwarranted because it is an acceptable accessory use and in
compliance with home occupation provisions, that all required Federal and State permits will be

obtained, and other reasons ( Attachment G). 

The applicant has submitted a letter identifying the justification for the home occupation
Attachment E). Staff has no additional response to the applicants justification, except that a

garage is not allowed to be converted into an office or workshop in a single- family home unless
a new two -car garage is provided. 

Discussion: 

The process for land use decisions begins with the General Plan. The General Plan Land Use

Designation for this property is Low/Medium Density Residential which allows for detached
houses primarily and accessory dwelling units, day care, open space, public facilities, and home
businesses which are compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. The corresponding zones
are established to prevent conflicting land uses from being located next to each other or within
the vicinity, specifically: to promote, protect and preserve the public health, safety, peace, 
comfort and general welfare. 

The Municipal Code is constructed as a restrictive code and it identifies only the uses that are
allowed by right or by discretionary permit. Where the Municipal Code is silent or a particular
use does not meet the functional and/ or operational characteristics of an identified allowable

use, that use is prohibited. Should the Council wish to continue to categorize the business solely

as gunsmithing, a term not found in the LLMC, the Council may uphold the decision of the
Development Services Director, further denying the home occupation permit ( Attachment B). 
Should the Council wish to categorize gunsmithing as maintenance and repair of consumer
goods, a permitted use in the General Commercial Zone, the Council may reverse the decision
of the Development Services Director and approve the home occupation permit ( Attachment



Attachment A

C). Under the approval scenario, the home occupation permit would be conditionally issued and, 
in accordance with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms ( ATF) provisions, the home

occupation permit for gunsmithing would require a Federal Firearm Licensing ( FFL) Level 1 ( no
selling, only service) license to perform the requested firearm repairs. Additionally, Sheriff
licensing requires review and approval. 

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the April 7, 2016 edition of the East
County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. 

The City received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing as of April 13, 2016. 
Staff will provide the Council at the time of the public hearing with any comments that may come
in past the distribution of the staff report. 

Conclusion:. 

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing and either adopt a Resolution
Attachment B) upholding the Development Services Director determination to deny the home

occupation permit or adopt a Resolution ( Attachment C) reversing the decision of the
Development Services Director conditionally approving the home occupation permit for general
gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Ct. 

M



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE UPHOLDING THE
DECISION OF THE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR DENYING A HOME

OCCUPATION PERMIT FOR GENERAL GUNSMITHING AT 8204 BLOSSOM HILL COURT, 
LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, Mr. John Woods applied for a home occupation
permit for general gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Ct. in the Residential Low/ Medium Zone
APN: 577- 720- 07- 00); and

WHEREAS, gunsmithing is defined as the service, repair, restoration, modification, and
customization of firearms; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, the Development Services Department denied the
home occupation permit because gunsmithing is not a permitted home occupation use
within the Residential Low/ Medium zone; and

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2016, Mr. John Woods filed an appeal application ( AA1- 
600- 0001); and

WHEREAS, the City Council duly noticed and held a public hearing on April 19, 2016 to
consider the appeal of the Development Services Director determination; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that gunsmithing is not shown a permitted use within
the City, and

WHEREAS, the appeal of this determination is not a project and is not subject to the

environmental review requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove hereby: 

1. Upholds determination of the Development Services Director denying a home
occupation permit for gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill Ct. 

M



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE :CITY OF LEMON GROVE REVERSING THE

DECISION OF THE DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR CONDITIONALLY APPROVING

A HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT FOR GENERAL GUNSMITHING AT 8204 BLOSSOM HILL

COURT, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, Mr. John Woods applied for a home occupation
permit for general gunsmithing 8204 Blossom Hill Ct. in the Residential Low/ Medium Zone
APN: 577- 720- 07- 00); and

WHEREAS, gunsmithing is defined as the service, repair, restoration, modification, and
customization of firearms; and

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2016, the Development Services Department denied the
home occupation permit because gunsmithing is not a permitted use with the City; and

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2016, Mr. John Woods filed an appeal application ( AA1- 
600- 0001); and

WHEREAS, the City Council duly noticed and held a public hearing on April 19, 2016 to
consider the appeal of the Development Services Director determination; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that gunsmithing is a permissible use within the City
and is categorized as a use, that provides maintenance, cleaning and repair services for
consumer goods within applicable commercial zones, and

WHEREAS, the project is found to be categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove hereby: 

1. Reverses the determination of the Development Services Director and conditionally
approves the home occupation permit allowing for gunsmithing at 8204 Blossom Hill
Court with conditions that appropriate Sheriff and Federal licenses for gunsmithing
are obtained. 



Attachment D

HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT APPLICATION0 50

0

Community Development Department/ Planning Division
3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove, CA 91945

rr Phone: 619- 825- 3805 Fax: 619- 825- 3818

www. ci. lemon- grove. ca. us

PROPOSED BUSINESS DESCRIPTI
11 11  . .. ................. . . ................ . . .. .. . . - ----- — ----- _....." I I

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNAI

I HEREBY AGREE TO ABIDE

BUSINESS NAME: 

ADDRESS ': ... ..... ...... . .. ....... 

THE

COMM' ENf" nd/ or CONDITIONS: 

DA"I' E."" 

LAND

CONDITIONALLY APPROVED ( See Below) 

N



Attachment D

CITY OF LEMON GROVE
3232 Main Street - Lemon Grove. CA 91945
Attn: Business Ucense, ( 619) 825- 3000

Now Application77

BU31NESS LICENSE APPLICATION 13 Change of Business Name

Now

Change13.' I= n— 

Business No" Entor number Enter number
of Enuploy* aM of Vehicles

JBusiness Location
Notts.®. Box) ............................... . .... . .......... . . . .. 

L2 Q yrs 13 NOI Articles of Incorporation

Fictiluous Name Filed U YES  NO
Alialling; Add

Business in O)(rDfferani.............. on

Preceding year 13 YESA( 40

Bus. Phone ( 6 M ) _" 
SIR& 4P 0 in -city

Elul- Fax 0 out of

E -Mail Address  Home Occupation

Deecriptlan — of Birelneae
LiJ

w,' 

L3 Corporation 0 Ud Uabirdy epqp" 15 rct rrY n XSOePmpdetar L3Tru,%t
State Lic. No. 

1. 1cense Type Expiration Data
Resale No. 

Federal 1. O no. . . .......... Stats 1. D_ No. 

Owner Name
Phone

Home Addresserr
Call Phone

City Z' shte CIA 7nf, l T q

Owner Name

Rome Address

City

Title

stalo ...... .. . ...... ZIP . . . . . . . ........... 

Phone

Call Phone

Name .... . 
Title Phone

Address . ..... ....... . ..... 
Coll Phone

r""" . ...... . . 

Name' ' k
1— j . . ............. Phone No. 

Address
License No. 

I declare under 13" MitY cfPQdurY that to the best of my knvwiedge and b. W the eggernenis rns" rein

7

Cymwr of Rer' bz< 

Business License

Racelpt* . . .............. . . ........ . .... . .. . .. . ............ 

ahe Paid ____ 

Q Cash Q Check U MCI VISA

Name as it appears an Credit Card - 

Account# 

Expiration Date: 

Amount Authorized: 

Authorized Signature: 

M

Planning 0* 0 6141
Code Enforownerd

Fire DWX. 

BaseFee $ 

Employee

Per Iv-Ri Fee

Processing Fee 30.00

Storm Water Fee

Fire Fee

TOTAL F_g_---- 
AMOUNT DUE

MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO THE
CITY OF LEMON GROVE



FIXED LOCATION IN CITY ( IN - CITY) 

Base Fee $ 15. 00

Employee Charge $ 2. 00 each

Maximum Employee Charge =$ 100, 00) 

APARTMENTS

Per Unit ( Min. fee = $ 10) $ 3. 00 each

NO FIX LOCATION IN CITY ( OUT -OF -CITY) 

Wholesalers/ Licensed Contractors

Base Fee $ 15. 00
Employee Charge $ 2. 00 each

Maximum Employee Charge =$ 100. 00) 

All Other Services
Base Fee $ 40, 00

Employee Charge $ 2. D0 each

Maximum Employee Charge =$ 100. 00) 

RETAIL ROUTE DELIVERIES

Base Fee Per Vehicle $ 40. 00

AMUSEMENTIMEC14ANICAUMUSIC

Each Machine $ 25. 00

AUCTION $ 150. 00
ACTIONEER $ 75. 00

EDULE OF ANNUAL BUSINESS LICENSE FEES

BILLBOARD ADVERTISING

Base Fee 100. 00

Three (3) or more 10. 00 each

BOWLING ALLEY

Base Fee 15. 00

Per Lane 10.00

CIRCUSICARNIVAL 250,00

COIN OPERATED VENDING MACHINES

Base Fee 25. 00

Per Machine 2. 00

ICE CREAM CARTS, WAGON& 

your home and wlll there be any indication the

FOOD VENDING VEHICLES

pwoparlios? 

PerVehicle 200. 00

PAWNBROKERS 100, 00

PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS, 

puPan

Do you Intend to r rudlart soler+ or Ofeir some service
in wrual d resldl' 9tlatproperty7

TRANSIENT MERCHANT

If the answer to the above question Is yes, will
such sounds be audible between the hours of

Fixed Location On Tax Roll 10. 00

No Fixed Location On Tax Roll 9 5, 00

POOL ROOMS, 19ILLARD

Do you intend to advertise vour home occuoatlon? 

Base Fee 15. 00

Per Table 10. 00

NOME OCCUPATION - GENERAL INFORMATION

Description of Proposed Business: 

a) Describe any product to be raeYwdor assembled_ _ 

Attachment D

Base Fee $ 25. 00

Employee Charge $ 2 00 each

Maximum Employee Charge=$ 100. 00) 

REAL ESTATE BROKER
Base Fee $ 15. 00

Per Salesman $ 10. 00

SHOOTING GALLERIESIARCADE

Amusement Center $ 1( Y0. 00

TAXI CABSI VEHICLES FOR HIRE

In City $ 50. 00

Outside City $ 100. 00

TRAILER PARK

Base Fee $ 15. 00
Per Spaoe $ 2, 00 each

PROCESSING FEE
n Arrnunt for Ali Buslnesses $ 30.00

TORM WATER FEE
V'a6va see " Storm Water Fee Schedule" 

rINl IN 91) 1' C IION FEE
vmW,$ - see FIre Feet"Icha4uw` 

DUPLICATE LICENSE $ 2, 00

1104JSINESS NAME CHANGE $ 2, 00

b) Describe materials or suppUes to be stored in or at your home ._ = ..=- .....:` .,... .............. -------, , 

c) Describe any service you will provide.' 

y machinery equipment ( type. size, number, hors  d) Describe an machine or ui ment to be used horsepower.) P ).: 

e) Please give any additional dutails W fully describe the nature of the proposed business. Attach an additional page if necessary. 

4 Approximately what percentage of the floor area of your home will be used in the home occupation

9) During what hours of the day will the home occupation be conducted. . ............ .. a,:' . ................... 

h) If any vehicies will be used in the conduct of your home occupation, please describe them ( number, size, capacity, intended use, etc.) 

d...._®::. eJ..._,__. .......,, 

i) H you anticipate commercial deliveries or pick- up of items produced on the premises, please describe the type of commercial carrier and the
frequency of deliverles and pick-ups. 

Do all Chug, persons who aie employed In the home
Ill(occulballan YES  NO

Will equipment used by you have the potential to
disrupt or adversely effect radio and televisionttvs to your he M67

in the 13 YES k( NO
Will ihors bo ant,! Aultalo evidence that you are

inception neighborhood? 

conducting a home oct,upafion which can be seen Will the home occupation change the appearance of

from a public rtwebt, shlowalb at radjo4ling uoartly your home and wlll there be any indication the

pwoparlios? 
O YES * NO dwelling Is Cleing user1 far anytia,;n«4 other than a

resldnnlfol " r YE9 W NO
g

lsoatwt
to sounds rpdbldch

ca

rl She hraatte

wwurf" Idpr theosan 4a91raatl'd rrrrtside 1INe wally of yrsar ISal11a? YES  NO

puPan

Do you Intend to r rudlart soler+ or Ofeir some service
in wrual d resldl' 9tlatproperty7 YES O NO

If the answer to the above question Is yes, will
such sounds be audible between the hours of

yo¢dr orvnrg111, Pdyorut

Will you offer any items for +p̂ini? YES ) a( NO

8 PM and 8 AM? 
YES } 3( NO

Do you intend to advertise vour home occuoatlon? YES JA NO

IF YOU ANSWERED " YES" TO ANY OF TIME ABOVE QUESTIONS, PLEASE EXPLAIN IN DETAIL YOUR REASONS FOR YOUR AFFIRMATIVE

RESPONS11i PLEASE USE AN ADDITIONAL PAGE

I declare undP[ lheypa" W gf ptfjyrw that the foregoing information is true and correct

orf Apit' lk.. .,". ... .,..
M:.   ..... ......- .............,. .....  ..:.... : -. w ." .. m... 

Si nature rnt Dale

M



Attachment E

February 16, 2016

To: From: 

Planning Board of Lemon Grove James N. Woods

3232 Main Street 8204 Blossom Hill Ct

Lemon Grove, CA 91945 Lemon Grove, CA 91945

619- 825- 3800

My name is James Woods and I would like to run a small business from my home. My mission
is to provide top notch quality service to San Diego for firearms service, repair and

preservation. I appreciate your consideration in the following: 

1.) Business to Business. I plan on working with area businesses to provide service to their

customers for all their repair needs. I will pick up and return, to the company, any client
firearms that I have serviced. This will allow me to not have any " walk- in" clients. 

2.) Low Key Operations. All of my equipment is no louder than an average air compressor in
your garage. I plan on conducting work between 9: 00 am and 3: 00 pm. The work to be

completed will usually be completed by hand with non -power tools. 

3.) Services to Provide. I plan on providing the following services: general cleaning services, 
general repairs, light machine work, customization of legal firearms and firearms appraisals

4.) Security of the Property. I have contacted BATFE and CAL DOJ in regards to my security
plan. As soon as the planning board of Lemon Grove approves my "Sole Proprietor" business
application, I will finish the security plan. I wish to build a workshop in my garage, which will be
turned into a secure space. I will need to add a deadbolt lock to the side walk- in door to the

garage, add an additional security point to my home security system, and install a security
camera for extra measure. I have an eight ( 8) gun security cabinet and a pistol security cabinet
that will be installed on the premises for additional security, as well. 

Respectfully, 

ames Woods

11



Attachment F

e

CITY OF

LEMON
GROVE" U" Irl " Maid

Development Services Department

February 16, 2016

James Woods

8204 Blossom Hill Ct

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Subject: Home Occupation Permit Application received February 16, 2016 at
8204 Blossom Hill Ct, Lemon Grove, CA

Dear Mr. Woods, 

The City of Lemon Grove (" City") is in receipt of your application for a Home Occupation Permit
Application for " Gunsmithing: Firearms repair, modification and manufacture" at 8204 Blossom
Hill Ct. 

City staff has determined that your business for gunsmithing, as proposed, is not a permitted
use in the City of Lemon Grove and is inconsistent with the purpose and general provisions of
the Lemon Grove Municipal Code and the Residential Low Medium zone and is therefore
denied. 

The denial of your Home Occupation Permit Application is based on the information you

submitted and the following conclusions: 

The Home Occupation Permit application states that the proposed home
occupation business is " Gunsmithing: Firearms repair, modification and

manufacture". This use is not listed as a permitted use or a conditionally permitted

use within the City of Lemon Grove and is inconsistent with the purpose and
general provisions of any of the City of Lemon Grove' s commercial or residential
zones ( LGMC § 17. 16. 070.) 

City records indicate that uses related to " firearms" were previously identified in the LGMC, but
were specifically removed in 1995. In 1995 and 1996, the City Council was deliberating on a
proposed Ordinance to allow firearm sales and gunsmithing during the course of three
meetings. The Ordinance was not adopted. 

The Lemon Grove Municipal code is constructed as a restrictive code and identifies only those

uses that may be allowed by right or by discretionary permit, Where the Municipal Code is silent
or a particular use does not meet the functional and/ or operational characteristics of an

identified allowable use, that use is prohibited. 

The Development Services Director is responsible for determinations regarding the appropriate

classification for any proposed use ( LGMC 17. 12. 070). Any application made in conflict with the
provisions of the LGMC, state law, or federal law shall be denied. 

3232 Main Street Lemon Grove California 91945- 1705

619. 825. 3805 FAX: 619. 825. 3818 www. cllemon- grovexa. us



Attachment F

The City Council is the body that establishes the rules and regulations under Title 17 and may, 
on its own motion, interpret the scope and meaning of any provision under this title, including
the applicability of any provision to a particular person or property. The City Council may request
the advice on any interpretation from the development services director or any other advisory
body it has formed, or chooses to form, for this purpose. 

If you disagree with the denial of your home occupation permit application, you may request the
City Council' s review of the Development Director' s determination and interpretation of the
regulations. The filing fee for this application is $ 75. 00. 

Sincerely, 

David De Vries

Acting Development Services Director

cc: City Manager
City Attorney

16- 



FEBAPPEAL APPLICATION & 25 Z016
PUBLICREQUESTFOR
EVELOFf'MENT SERVICES

Community Development D.. r Planningr. 

3232 Main Street, LemonGrove, 

Phone: 619- 825- 3805 Fax: 619- 825- 3818

www. ci. lemon- grove. ca. us

APPLICANT°
a PHONE: Lutl w 1v C1ndti+. t. e  1' a „.„ Gn ku,,l

s,, 16 lq* o ,, .
e) t 144T FAX

EMAtt- 

CASE/ PROJECT NUMBER. None ( iiv: Pr APP .377." 20- 07 00 RUM

DECISION / CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL BEING APPEALED ( INCLUDE CONDITION ITEM NUMBERS)' 

Jrrauaau€ rd', Cginwwn° d Yoa' awpa. 9Q6¢ reuPartwnnwP,, pry°rloa. watxaaua G ppwadgrk' Dzanu, p onaTMV) garnnunn) am GA6ruii....)v.... llwri

srrnin ¢.; la araan a, Denial of BLisincss i.icense A pplic: ationa adl at above address. 

m

SPECIFIC REASON( S) FOR APPEAL OR REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 

F' ro 9osed Use/ glome Occupation is an acceptable Accessory Use cnnde” ] LG MC section 97. 24. 0601), 3. ( A CCessory

Lues in ltesident.ia9 zones/ Tionle Occaap,.ationas) Pro posed i.rse is in co) 111p aice with the definition and limitations
of 1. GMC 18 20. 0'26 ( Illorne O7- c, r b, a[ iarna` l The 9° i w r 1, gcd Use w. ' k u[ I Hart a r aan indication of other than residential

use and avifi rnot be detrimental .. , b vi>rtane arita afo' flow, noise., odor or other adverse conditions, 

ll l ye Pi' opowd tl"je is not vjca hojvc a4 , aal a restriction in LG MC section 18. 0. 036, No (iaeairtns s ak
l

fan anana9+ aa lean w" url
nor l occur, will

4ttach additionallshe is if necessary wruip t uermntsl ` n

wi
i llland " Impoo rl h ar ala w " aw" , G" alaanrar, tia Vna dt. "

r. " 

n

A' trirr rt ' a ' r" goo patt( i. us wa Dal

17- 



n. r

Attachment H

8204 Blossom Hill Ct

V r;, O

a ri t,,ui cu

500



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 5

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016
Dept. City Attorney

Item Title: Authorization to Recruit Three Members of the Community Advisory
Commission pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 2. 08. 

Staff Contact: James P. Lough, City Attorney: 

Recommendation: 

1) Discuss options and give direction on selection process; and

2) Adopt a Resolution establishing the recruitment process ( Attachment B). 

Item Summary: 

In September 2015, the City Council established the Community Advisory Commission
CAC"). This Agenda item asks the City Council to establish a recruitment and appointment

process. The recommended process follows procedures used by the City Council in the past
for other permanent advisory committees. There are three permanent positions on the CAC to

be filled by this process. The Council, on an assignment - by -assignment basis, will add
members based on the complexity of the task. 

Fiscal Impact: 

No fiscal Impact. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption

Public Information: 

None  Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution No. 

C. Draft Application Form

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 5

Mtg. Date April 19, 2016

Attachment A

Item Title: Authorization to Recruit Three Permanent Members of the Community
Advisory Commission pursuant to Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter
2. 08. 

Staff Contact: James P. Lough, City Attorney] 

Background.: 

On September 15, 2015, the City Council adopted an Ordinance to assign Planning
Commission jurisdiction to the City Council. ( Ordinance No. 431.) The Ordinance also

established the Community Advisory Commission (" CAC"). The CAC is made up of three
permanent and a variable number of temporary members. The number and makeup of the
temporary membership would change based upon the need for citizen -members as determined
on an issue -to -issue basis by the City Council. 

The CAC would serve the role as either a Committee or Focus Group with the permanent
members serving in the leadership positions for the Committee ( i.e. Chair and Vice Chair of the
overall committee or focus group and chairs of any sub -groups formed). The purpose would be

to provide more stability to the Committee/ Group with less reliance on staff to assume a
leadership role. 

The Community Advisory Commission consists of three permanent members who shall be
residents of the City. By resolution, the City Council can appoint additional members that serve
for a limited duration ( temporary) to assist the permanent members in the study of issues
assigned to the Community Advisory Commission by the City Council. Limited duration

members can be residents, business owners or property owners within the City. 

Permanent positions on the Commission shall be appointed by the City Council and shall serve
for a period of three years, or until reappointment or appointment of a successor. Temporary
members of the Commission shall be appointed for a limited duration by resolution of the City
Council that establishes the task to be studied by the Commission or by subsequent resolution. 
The temporary Commission members shall serve for the length of time designated in the
Resolution of the City Council establishing the matter to be studied or as amended by
subsequent resolution of the City Council. 

The Commission shall have all of the powers and duties established by state law, ordinances
and resolutions, which the Council may enact. The City Council, acting as the Planning
Commission in all matters, may delegate to the Commission advisory functions on a case- by- 
case basis by Resolution. It is the duty of the Commission to advise the City Council upon the
amendment or revision of the General Plan when requested by the City Council. 

The CAC will operate under the spirit of the Brown Act and comply with all public noticing and
open meeting requirements. Permanent CAC members will be required to submit conflict if

interest forms and complete ethics training. 

3_ 



Attachment A

Discussion and Analysis: 

Since the adoption of the Ordinance establishing the CAC, the City Council has been making
changes in the code to reflect the changes in authority. Most of the necessary changes have

been made with some held in abeyance to make sure they do not conflict with changes reflected
in the General Plan update. This Agenda Item establishes the recruitment process to fill the

three permanent positions of the CAC. Each position will eventually have a three-year term. It

is recommended that the three members be appointed for staggered terms of one, two and

three years. A staggered appointment will help ensure continuity of leadership on the
Committee

Attachment C is the draft application. It is a modified application previously used by the City to
recruit candidates for permanent advisory committees. It lists the Second and Fourth Mondays

at 7: 00 P. M. as the likely date for meetings. 

Attachment B is the Resolution. It contains the deadlines for the recruitment process as follows; 

April 28, 2016 Public Notices

June 2, 2016 Deadline for Applications

June 21, 2016 City Council Appointment

It is recommended that the Announcement be published once in a newspaper of general

circulation; posted on the City' s Website and a notice be sent to all persons on the City' s
electronic mailing list. The deadline for these notices would be April 28, 2016. In addition to

adopting the recruitment process, the City Council is asked to give direction to Staff on how it
wishes to set up the procedures for the June 215 appointment process. In the past, the City
Council has used a variety of methods. It has held interviews of either each candidate or the

candidates that have been recommended participate in the interview process by at least two
council members. This second process is used when a large number of candidates have

applied. Other times, the Council has appointed from the application without interviews. The

Resolution does not require any particular method for choosing the three appointees. It is

asked that the Council either give direction to Staff at this meeting or wait until June 2nd and
decide the process based on the number of applicants. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 1) Give direction to Staff regarding Appointment
Process procedures and 2) Adopt Resolution No. , establishing a recruitment process for the
three permanent members of the Community Advisory Commission ( Attachment B). 

U



RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

ESTABLISHING A RECRUITMENT PROCESS TO APPOINT THE INITIAL THREE

PERMANENT MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMISSION. 

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2015, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted an
Ordinance establishing the Community Advisory Commission; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, after having made implementing changes in the municipal
code to set the general parameters for the Community Advisory Commission, desires to appoint
the three permanent members of the Commission through a recruitment process established

hereunder; and

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes the City Manager and city staff to advertise for
the appointment of three permanent members of the Community Advisory Commission in the
manner set out below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby
resolves as follows that: 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

2. The City Council authorizes the City Manager, and her designees, to advertise the
recruitment of citizens to serve in three permanent offices on the Community Advisory
Commission as follows: 

April 28, 2016 Public Notice Deadline

June 2, 2016 Deadline for Applications

June 21, 2016 City Council Appointment

3. The appointment process shall be posted and advertised at least once in a

newspaper of general circulation within the City of Lemon Grove. Further notices shall be given

through electronic mail and on the City' s Website. 

4. The City Council intends to appoint three members to initial terms of one, two and
three years. 

ADOPTED by the City Council on April 19, 2016. 

5- 



Attachment C

APPLICATION FOR COMMUNITY ADVISORY

COMMISSION

CONTACT INFORMATION

Name: Address: 

Phone.: Email Address: 

WORK & COMMUNITY EXPERIENCE

Employer: 

Statement of Occupational Experience: 

Title,, 

List any past or current community or public service appointments with dates served; 

What experience or special knowledge can you bring to the Community Advisory Commission? 

It is anticipated that the Community Advisory Commission will meet on a periodic basis as

determined by the City Council. It is likely that the meetings will be on the second Monday of

each month at 7: 00 p. m. Does your schedule allow you to attend on this day at this time? 
Circle one) 

Yes No

Comment: 

PERSONS HOLDING THIS POSITION ARE REQUIRED TO FILE CONFLICT OF INTEREST

STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT AND THE CITY OF
LEMON GROVE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE. 

Signature: 

no

Date



CITY OF LEMON GROVE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMISSION

Purpose: 

The Community Advisory Commission acts as a resident advisory/ focus group to the Lemon
Grove City Council on myriad of topics and issues. 

Membership: 

The Community Advisory Commission ( CAC) consists of three permanent Lemon Grove

residents that are appointed to by the City Council to and serve three- year terms. 

Ad hoc members will be added depending on topic/ issue specified by Resolution of the Lemon
Grove City Council. Ad hoc members are open to Lemon Grove residents, business owners and
property owners. 

Meetina Time/ Location: 

Tentatively scheduled for the second Monday of each month at 7: 00 p. m. Additional meetings
may be called on an as needed basis. Meeting will be held at the Lemon Grove Community
Center, 3146 School Lane. 

Compensation: 

None

Financial Disclosure: 

Permanent Members - Must submit a Conflict of Interest statements ( FPPC Form 700) 

Responsible Department°. 

City Manager' s Department/ Administration

W


